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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, June 17, 1989

ORDERED,—That a Sub-Committee of the Standing
Committee on Human Rights and the Status of Disabled
Persons be established for the purpose of studying
International Human Rights; and

—That the Sub-Committee be composed of seven (7)
Members of the Committee including four (4)
representatives from the Progressive Conservative Party,
two (2) from the Liberal Party and one (1) from the New
Democratic Party, and

—That the Members be appointed by the Chairman of the
Standing Committee after the usual consultation with the
whips of the different parties.

Tuesday, December 19, 1989

ORDERED,—That the Chairman of the Sub-committee
be authorized to hold meetings, to receive and authorize
the printing of evidence when a quorum is not present.

—That the Sub-committee be empowered to send for
persons, papers and records to sit while the House is
sitting, to sit during period when the House stands
adjourned, to print from day to day such papers and
evidence as may be ordered by it.

ATTEST

Marie Louise Paradis
The Clerk of the Committee

ORDRES DE RENVOI
Le mardi 27 juin 1989

IL EST ORDONNE,—Qu’un Sous-comité du Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées soit institué pour étudier les Droits
de la personne au niveau international; et

—Que le Sous-comité se compose de sept (7) membres du
Comité; y compris quatre (4) représentants du parti
progressiste conservateur, deux (2) représentants du parti
libéral et un (1) représentant du parti néo-démocrate; et

—Que les membres soient désignés par le président du
Comité permanent aprés les consultations habituelles avec
les whips des différents partis.

Le mardi 19 décembre 1989

IL EST ORDONNE,—Que le président du Sous-comité
ait le pouvoir de tenir des réunions, de recevoir des
témoignages et d’en autoriser I'impression en 1’absence de
quorum.

—Que le Sous-comité soit autorisé a réclamer des
personnes, des documents et des dossiers, a siéger pendant
les séances et les ajournements de la Chambre, et a faire
imprimer au jour le jour des documents et les
témoignages que celle-ci exigera.

ATTESTE

Le greffier du Comité
Marie Louise Paradis
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 1989
(1)
[Text]

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met at 10:10 o’clock a.m., in Room 208, West Block, this
day, for the purpose of organization.

Members of the Committee present: Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Svend Robinson, Christine Stewart,
Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election
of the Chairman of the Sub-Committee.

On motion of David Kilgour, seconded by Svend
Robinson, it was agreed,—That Maurice Tremblay take
the Chair of this Sub-Committee as Chairman.

On motion of Svend Robinson, it was agreed,—That
this Sub-Committee elect two Vice-Chairman, one of each
opposition party.

On motion of Christine Stewart, it was agreed,—That
Svend Robinson be elected as one of our Vice-Chairman.

On motion of Christine Stewart, it was agreed,—That
David Walker be elected as the second Vice-Chairman.

The Order of Reference from the Standing Committee
on Human Rights and the Status of Disabled Persons
dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989 being read as follows:

ORDERED,—That a Sub-Committee of the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status
of Disabled Persons be established for the purpose of
studying International Human Rights; and

That the Sub-Committee be composed of seven (7)
Members of the Committee including four (4)
representatives from the Progressive Conservative
Party, two (2) from the Liberal Party and one (1) from
the New Democratic Party, and

That the Members be appointed by the Chairman of
the Standing Committee after the usual consultation
with the whips of the different parties.

At 10:30 o’clock a.m., the Committee proceeded to sit
in camera.

By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the Sub-
Committee request the Standing Committee to be
empowered to send for persons, papers and records, to sit
while the House is sitting, to sit during period when the
House stands adjourned, to print from day to day such
papers and evidence as may be ordered by it and to
authorize its Chairman to hold meetings to receive and
authorize the printing of evidence when a quorum is not
present.

By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the
Chairman be authorized to hold meetings to receive and
authorize the printing of evidence when a quorum is not

PROCES-VERBAUX

LE LUNDI 4 DECEMBRE 1989
(1)
|Traduction]

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international tient aujourd’hui sa séance d’organisation a
10 h 10, dans la piece 208 de I’édifice de 1’Ouest.

Membres du Comité présents: Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Svend Robinson, Christine Stewart, Maurice
Tremblay, David Walker.

Le greffier du Comité procede a I’élection du président
du Sous-comité.

Sur motion de David Kilgour, appuyé de Svend
Robinson, il est convenu,—Que Maurice Tremblay soit
€lu président du Sous-comité.

Sur motion de Svend Robinson, il est convenu,—Que
deux vice-présidents soient élus, représentant chaque parti
d’opposition.

Sur motion de Christine Stewart, il est convenu,—Que
Svend Robinson soit élu vice-président.

Sur motion de Christine Stewart, il est convenu,—Que
David Walker soit élu vice-président.

Lecture est faite de l'ordre de renvoi établi par le
Comité permanent des droits de la personne et de la
condition des personnes handicapées en date du mardi 27
juin 1989, dont le texte suit:

IL EST ORDONNE,—Qu’un Sous-comité du
Comité permanent des droits de la personne et de la
condition des personnes handicapées soit institué pour
étudier les droits de la personne au niveau
international; et

—Que le Sous-comité se compose de sept membres
du Comité, dont quatre représentants du parti
progressiste conservateur, deux représentants du parti
libéral et un représentant du nouveau parti
démocratique; et

—Que les membres soient désignés par le président
du Comité permanent aprés les consultations
habituelles avec les whips des différents partis.

A 10 h 30, le Comité déclare le huit clos.

Du consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
Sous-comité demande I’autorisation de convoquer des
témoins, d’exiger des documents et des dossiers, de siéger
pendant les séances et les ajournements de la Chambre, de
faire imprimer au jour le jour des documents et des
témoignages, et que son président ait le pouvoir de tenir
des réunions, de recevoir des témoignages et d’en
autoriser 'impression en I’absence de quorum.

Du consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
président soit autorisé a tenir des réunions, a recevoir des
témoignages et en autoriser I'impression en l’absence de
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present provided that at least 3 Members are present and
that both Government and one Opposition Member are
represented.

By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the Sub-
Committee print 200 additional copies of its Minutes of
Proceedings and Evidence, to the 550 established by the
Board of Internal Economy.

At 10:50 o’clock a.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 1989
(2)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met in camera at 9:45 o’clock a.m., in Room 208, West

Block, this day, the Chairman Maurice Tremblay
presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Acting Member(s) present: Howard McCurdy for

Svend Robinson.

Witnesses: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs: Robert W. Miller; Denis G. Racicot. From the
Library of Parliament: Pauline LaMothe, Association
Director; Jack Stilborn; William Young; Allan
McChesney.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, the Sub-
committee commenced consideration of its futur business.
(See Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989,
Issue No. 1.)

Robert Miller and Denis G. Racicot made an opening
statement and answered question.

Jack Stilborn and Pauline LaMothe made an opening
statement and along with other witnesses answered
questions.

By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the Sub-
Committee retain the services of Jack Stilborn and
William Young as the two senior researchers from the
Library of Parliament and that the Sub-Committee retain
the services of Allan McChesney, and if needed M. Gilles
through the Library of Parliament, on the understanding
that the Sub-Committee will pay some fees for these two
hired experts.

At 11:16 o’clock a.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

'(I'3UESDAY, DECEMBER 19, 1989
)

Thg Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met in camera at 9:40 o'clock a.m., in Room 208, West
Block, the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay, presiding.

quorum, pourvu qu’au moins trois députés soient présents
et que le gouvernement et I’opposition soient représentés.

Du consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
Sous-comité fasse imprimer 200 exemplaires de ses Procés-
verbaux et témoignages en sus des 550 prévus par le
Bureau de régie interne.

A 10 h 50, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu'a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE MARDI 12 DECEMBRE 1989
(2)

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 9 h 45,
dans la piece 208 de 1’édifice de 1’Ouest sous la présidence
de Maurice Tremblay (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Membre  suppléant
remplace Svend Robinson.

présent: Howard  McCurdy

Témoins: Du Centre parlementaire pour les affaires
étrangéres et le commerce extérieur: Robert W. Miller et
Denis G. Racicot. De la Bibliothéque du Parlement:
Pauline LaMothe, directrice adjointe; Jack Stilborn;
William Young; Allan McChesney.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées en date du mardi 27 juin 1989, le
Sous-comité délibére de ses travaux a venir (voir les
Procés-verbaux et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989,
fascicule n° I).

Robert Miller et Denis G. Racicot font chacun un
exposé et répondent aux questions.

Jack Stilborn et Pauline LaMothe font chacun un
exposé puis, avec les autres témoins, répondent aux
questions.

Du consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
Sous-comité retienne les services de Jack Stilborn et de
William  Young, recherchistes principaux de |la
Bibliotheque du Parlement, de méme que d’Allan
McChesney et au besoin de M. Gilles, dont les services
seront retenus par la Bibliothéque mais en partie payés
par le Sous-comité.

A 11 h 16, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE MARDI 19 DECEMBRE 1989
(3)

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 9 h 40,
dans la piece 208 de lédifice de 1’'Ouest, sous la
présidence de Maurice Tremblay (président).
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Members of the Committee present: Barbara Greene,
Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Acting Member present: Howard McCurdy for Svend
Robinson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament: Jack Stilborn, Bill Young and
Allan McChesney, Research Officers.

In accordance with its Order of Reference form the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, the Sub-
committee resumed consideration of its futur business.
(See Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989,
Issue No. 1.)

By unanimous consent it was agreed,—That the Sub-
committee request from the Standing Committee a total
budget of $52,500, until the end of this fiscal year.

At 11:10 o’clock a.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

THURSDAY, JANUARY 25, 1990
(4)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met in camera at 9:35 o’clock a.m., in Room 269, West
Block, this day, the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay,
presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay,
David Walker.

Acting Member present: Howard McCurdy for Svend
Robinson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament: Jack Stilborn, Bill Young and
Allan McChesney, Research Officers.

In accordance with its Order of Reference form the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and
Tuesday, December 19, 1989, the Sub-committee resumed
consideration of its futur business. (See Minutes of
Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989, Issue No. 1.)

At 10:15 o’clock a.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 1990
(%)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met in camera at 3:40 o’clock p.m., in Room 208, West
Block, this day, the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay,
presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay,
David Walker.

Membres du Comité présents: Barbara Greene,
Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Membre  suppléant McCurdy
remplace Svend Robinson.

présent:  Howard

Aussi  présents: Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Jack Stilborn, Bill Young et
Allan McChesney, attachés de recherche.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées en date du mardi 27 juin 1989, le
Sous-comité délibére de ses travaux a venir (voir les
Proces-verbaux et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989,
fascicule n° 1).

Du consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
Sous-comité demande au Comité permanent un budget
global de 52 5008 d’ici la fin du présent exercice
financier.

A 11 h 10, le Comité s'ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE JEUDI 25 JANVIER 1990
4

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 9 h 35,
dans la piéce 269 de I’édifice de 1'Ouest, sous la
présidence de Maurice Tremblay (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Barbara Greene,
Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Membre  suppléant Howard  McCurdy

remplace Svend Robinson.

présent:

Aussi  présents: Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Jack Stilborn, Bill Young et
Allan McChesney, attachés de recherche.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées en date du mardi 27 juin 1989, le
Sous-comité délibére de ses travaux a venir (voir les
Procés-verbaux et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989,
fascicule n° 1).

A 10 h 15, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE JEUDI 1¢ FEVRIER 1990
(5)

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 15 h 40,
dans la piéce 208 de I'édifice de I’Ouest, sous la
présidence de Maurice Tremblay (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay, David
Walker.
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In attendance: From the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament: Jack Stilborn and Allan
McChesney, Research Officers.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and
Tuesday, December 19, 1989, the Sub-committee
commenced a review of International agreements. (See
Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989, Issue
No. 1.)

By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the
Chairman be empowered to authorize that reasonable
travelling and living expenses be paid to a maximum of
three (3) representatives per organization.

Allan McChesney made a presentation.

At 5:05 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

Marie Louise Paradis
Clerk of the Sub-Committee

recherche de la
Allan

Aussi  présents: Du Service de
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Jack Stilborn et
McChesney, attachés de recherche.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées en date du mardi 27 juin 1989, le
Sous-comité délibéere de ses travaux a venir (voir les
Procés-verbaux et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989,
fascicule n° I).

Du consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
président soit autorisé a rembouser des frais de
déplacement et de séjour jugés raisonnables, jusqu’a
concurrence de trois représentants par organisme.

Allan McChesney fait un exposé.

A 17 h 05, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu'a nouvelle
convocation du président.

La greffiére du Sous-comité
Marie Louise Paradis
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EVIDENCE

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
[Texte]

Monday, December 4, 1989

* 1011

La greffiere du Comité: A I'ordre! Je crois qu’il y a
quorum.

Le premier sujet a I'ordre du jour est 1’élection d’un
président. J’aimerais vous rappeler que seul un membre
du Sous-comité peut étre €lu président. Vous avez la liste
des membres du Comité. Je suis préte a recevoir une
motion.

M. David Kilgour (député de Edmonton-Sud-Est):
Madame la greffiere, j'ai le plaisir de proposer la
nomination de Maurice Tremblay au poste de président.

M. Svend J. Robinson (député de Burnaby—Kingsway):
J’appuie la motion avec plaisir.

La greffiére: Il est proposé par M. Kilgour, appuyé par
M. Robinson, que M. Maurice Tremblay soit élu
président.

La motion est adoptée a 'unanimité

La greffiére: Il me fait plaisir, monsieur le président, de
vous accueillir.

Le président: Merci beaucoup. Méme si je disais & mon
collegue David Kilgour que les dés étaient pipés, vous me
permettrez de saluer tout le monde et surtout de vous
remercier de votre confiance.

Ce Comité, qui regoit I’assentiment des membres qui
sont ici présents depuis plusieurs mois déja, est un comité
extrément important. Au moment ou on voulait le
former, notre planéte ne connaissait pas tous les
bouleversements qu’elle connait aujourd’hui, mais il y
avait tout de méme des motifs qui nous incitaient a
explorer cette dimension, au niveau international et au
niveau des droits de la personne. Les développements
actuel font que nous sommes davantage d’actualité et plus
intéressants.

J’avais I'impression d’étre un chien de garde des autres
pays. Nous avons l’avantage de vivre au Canada, ou les
droits de la personne ne posent pas vraiment de
probléme, mais avec ce qui se passe aujourd’hui, j’ai
Iimpression que nous serons davantage tirés par le
courant international. Nous devrons donc agir avec
prudence et découvrir les vrais messages qui nous sont
transmis.

Je compte beaucoup sur votre collaboration. Je suis
votre humble serviteur. Je suis certain qu’au cours des
prochaines semaines et des prochains mois, nous ferons
un travail qui nous aidera dans notre évolution et qui
aidera également nos collegues de la Chambre des
communes.

J’ai assez parlé pour un lundi matin. Monsieur Walker.

TEMOIGNAGES
[Enregistrement électronique)
[Traduction]

Le lundi 4 décembre 1989

The Clerk of the Committee: Order, please. I see a
quorum.

The first order of business is to elect a chairman. I
would like to remind you that only a member of the
subcommittee can be elected chairman. I gave you the list
of all the members of the committee. I am ready to accept
a motion.

Mr. David Kilgour (Edmonton South-East): Madam
Clerk, I would like to nominate Mr. Maurice Tremblay
for the position of chairman.

Mr. Svend J. Robinson (Burnaby—Kingsway): I second
this motion with pleasure.

The Clerk: Moved by Mr. Kilgour, seconded by Mr.
Robinson, that Mr. Maurice Tremblay be elected
chairman of this committee.

Motion carried unanimously.
The Clerk: Welcome, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. Even if I were
to tell my friend David Kilgour that the dice were loaded,
please allow me to welcome everybody and above all to
thank you for your vote of confidence.

This committee which received the approval of all the
members who have been here for several months already,
is an extremely important committee. When we were
considering its creation, our world had not gone through
the upheaval we have witnessed since, but we had reasons
for reviewing the situation at the international level and
as far as human rights were concerned. The recent events
make this committee even more current and interesting.

[ felt as if I were a watchdog for other countries. We
are very fortunate to be living in Canada, where human
rights are not really an issue, but considering what is
happening today, I feel that we may be pulled by the
current international events. This is why we should.be
cautious and find out what are the real messages being
conveyed.

I shall rely on your co-operation. I am your humble
servant. I am sure that in the weeks and months to come,
we will produce a report which will shape our thinking
and which will also help our colleagues.

I think I have talked enough for a Monday morning.
Mr. Walker.
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[Texte] [Traduction]
Mr. Walker (Winnipeg North Centre): [ would just like M. Walker (Winnipeg-Nord-Centre): Je voudrais

to express my congratulations formally on your being
chosen as Chair and to say that we are looking forward to
working with you and setting an agenda. Like yourself, we
think this is an area of great importance and a new area
for the House of Commons under this structure. So we
are breaking new ground, and we hope to continue the
mood of non-partisanship in looking at these topics. We
look forward to working with you.

= 1015
Le président: Merci beaucoup.

M. Robinson: Monsieur le président, je veux aussi vous
féliciter pour votre nomination. Ayant déja travaillé avec
vous a plusieurs comités, le Comité de la justice et du
solliciteur général, le Comité des droits de la personne et
de la condition des personnes handicapées et le Comité
spécial sur le droit a I’égalité, je sais trés bien que vous
vous étes engagé a protéger les droits de la personne au
Canada et au niveau international.

I might also say, Mr. Chairman, that I think a measure
of how far we have come in the last few weeks and
months is the fact that the report this committee prepared
just a few months ago quite clearly has been totally passed
by as a result of the events that have taken place. The
report speaks of an Iron Curtain that fortunately has
crumbled. I think that is a testament to just how much
progress has been made, but certainly we have to be
vigilant to ensure that human rights are protected in all
corners of the world, and I am really pleased to see that
will be happening.

I might say as well that my colleague, Howard
McCurdy, who is our spokesperson in this area, is not
able to be here this morning for reasons that I think most
members will understand, but I know he looks forward to
playing an active role in this subcommittee.

Le président: Si vous me le permettez, monsieur
Robinson, je vais faire un commentaire sur votre
commentaire. Vous me permettez évidemment de saluer
et de féliciter votre collegue pour la magnifique
performance qu’il nous a offerte. Tout 2 I’heure, quand
vous avez fait allusion a nos travaux aux mémes comités,
j’ai eu peur que vous ne disiez lequel de nous deux était le
plus a gauche.

M. Kilgour: J’ai fait une liste de groupes en écoutant
nos collegues. Vous les connaissez peut-étre. Il y a par
exemple les sikhs et la situation a East Timor. Il y a
plusieurs endroits «chauds» dans le monde. A mon avis,
la Roumanie est un de ces endroits. Il serait bon d’établir
une liste de priorités et de demander a des groupes
canadiens de venir nous faire part de leurs conseils et de
leurs inquiétudes. Cela pourrait nous donner une certaine
crédibilité assez rapidement.

simplement vous féliciter officiellement de votre élection
au poste de président de ce comité et vous dire que c’est
avec plaisir que nous travaillerons avec vous et que nous
établirons ensemble un calendrier de nos travaux. Tout
comme vous, nous estimons que cette question est tres
importante et que nous ouvrons la voie en quelque sorte.
Nous espérons que nos débats continueront d’étre dénués
de tout esprit de partisanerie lorsque nous examinerons
ces questions. C'est avec plaisir que nous travaillerons
avec vous.

The Chairman: Thank you very much.

Mr. Robinson: Mr. Chairman, [ too would like to
congratulate you for having been elected chairman of this
committee. We have sat together on several committees,
on the Committee on Justice and Solicitor General, on
the Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons and on the Special Committee on
Equality Rights, and I know that you are committed to

protecting human rights in Canada and at the
international level.

Permettez-moi également d’ajouter, monsieur le
président, que nous pouvons mesurer les progres

accomplis au cours des derniéres semaines et méme des
derniers mois en constatant que le rapport que ce comité
a rédigé il y a tout juste quelques mois est totalement
dépassé a la suite des événements récents. Notre rapport
parlait du rideau de fer qui, depuis lors, s’est
heureusement écroulé. Cela montre ’ampleur des progres
réalisés, mais nous devons demeurer vigilants et veiller a
ce que les droits de la personne soient protégés dans le
monde entier, et c’est avec plaisir que je vois les
événements prendre une heureuse tournure.

Je dois dire également que mon collegue, Howard
McCurdy, qui est notre porte-parole dans ce domaine,
n’est pas ici ce matin pour des raisons que nous
comprendrons tous, je crois, mais je sais qu’il entend
jouer un rdle actif au sein de ce sous-comité.

The Chairman: With your permission, Mr. Robinson, I
will comment what you have just said. I would like to
congratulate your colleague for his wonderful
performance. When you said earlier that we sat on the
same committees, [ suspected that you were going to say
which one of us leaned more to the left.

Mr. Kilgour: While I was listening to my colleagues, I
made up a list of future witnesses. You may know them
already. For example, we may want to hear from the
Sikhs and talk about the situation in East Timor. There
are several hot spots in the world today like Rumania, for
example. We should draw up a priority list and ask
Canadian groups to make their views and concerns
known. Our credibility could thus be established fairly
quickly.
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Je constate que M. Robinson—et il y en a peut-étre
d’autres—est membre du comité des parlementaires
canadiens pour East Timor. On pourrait commencer par
entendre ce groupe-la, surtout parce que ce groupe se
trouve en Colombie-Britannique. Eilleen Pryer n’est pas
un électeur de Svend Robinson, mais il vient de la
Colombie-Britannique.

Bref, il serait bon d’établir une liste assez rapidement,
parce que je sais trés bien que les groupes nous attendent
depuis des mois et des mois. Je suis certain que mes
collegues partagent mon avis.

Le président: Sirement.

Mrs. Stewart (Northumberland): My congratulations to
you as well. If we are talking about agenda, I would like
to add some comments about what I feel I would like to
see the committee address.

There are hot spots all over the world, and I think we
could work ourselves literally to death in trying to deal
with them all. My particular interest for this committee is
to try to develop some suggestions for coherent policy for
our government vis-a-vis international human rights so
that somehow or other our aid and our trade and our
refugee determinations, for example, are coherent.

East Timor is a good example. We stand up in the
House—and it has happened before this session—
incessantly harping on the injustices there, but Canada
has a very large trade relationship with Indonesia, which
cuts the knees from under all of us, as parliamentarians,
in trying to address the East Timor problem. I think we
should try to look at all the various instruments we have
signed, the conventions and so on that we have signed or
could have signed and that other countries could have
signed or have not signed, and try to work out some
coherence. I have a feeling the Secretary of State for
External Affairs is left taking advice from the bureaucrats
in External Affairs as to where we are going to trade and
how we are going to deal with human rights issues. There
are many parliamentarians who feel very strongly about
human rights issues, but they are not being heard because
they are too incoherent.

= 1020
The Chairman: Any other comments?

M. Kilgour: Pour ce qui est de la question du Salvador,
il y a un groupe qui est venu me voir, une délégation de
FMLN. C'est un groupe que nous pouvons inviter assez
rapidement, peut-€tre avant Noél. Ces gens pourraient
nous donner leur point de vue sur cette situation, parce
que la guerre continue, semble-t-il.

Ms Greene (Don Valley North): I think I agree with
Mrs. Stewart that we need to approach this from a policy
framework, because clearly the list of groups that would

[Translation)

I see that Mr. Robinson—and there may be others—is a
member of the Canadian Parliamentary Committee on
East Timor. We could start with this group as it is based
in British Columbia. Eilleen Pryer is not one of Svend
Robinson’s constituents, but he comes from British
Columbia.

I think it would be desirable to draw up that list fairly
quickly because I know that groups have been waiting to
hear from us for months. I am sure that my colleagues are
of the same opinion.

The Chairman: Yes.

Mme Stewart (Northumberland): Permettez-moi de
vous féliciter également, monsieur le président. Puisque
nous parlons du calendrier de nos travaux, je voudrais
vous faire part de ce que je pense, de ce que jaimerais
que le comité fasse.

Il y a des points chauds dans le monde entier et si on
devait s’attaquer a tous ces problémes, on pourrait en
discuter jusqu’a ce que mort s’ensuive. Je voudrais tout
particulierement que le comité fasse des suggestions qui
permettraient a notre gouvernement d’élaborer une
politique cohérente en ce qui concerne les droits de la
personne dans le monde, pour que l'aide que nous
accordons, nos échanges commerciaux et l’accueil des

réfugiés se fassent de maniére conséquente.
Le Timor oriental est un bon exemple. Nous pouvons

toujours dénoncer a la Chambre les injustices qui s’y
déroulent—et nous l’avons déja fait au cours de cette
session—mais le Canada est un partenaire commercial
privilégié de I'Indonésie, ce qui nous empéche, nous
parlementaires, de nous attaquer a ce probléme. Je crois
que nous devrions examiner tous les traités, accord§ et
conventions que nous avons signés ou que nous aurions
pu signer et ceux que d’autres pays auraient pu signer ou
n’ont pas signés et essayer d’y voir clair. [l me semble que
le secretaire d’Etat aux Affaires extérieures n’a pas d’autre
choix que de suivre I’avis des fonctionnaires du minist_ére
pour savoir quels pays seront nos partenaires
commerciaux et comment nous allons nous attaquer aux
problémes des droits de la personne. D_e nombreux
parlementaires ont vraiment a coeur la question des droits
de la personne, mais ils ne peuvent faire part de leurs
points de vue car leurs arguments manquent de
cohérence.

Le président: D’autres commentaires?

Mr. Kilgour: Concerning the situation in El Salvador, I
have met with an FMLN delegation. We can hear that
group pretty soon, maybe before 'Christmas. These
representatives could give us their opinion on the current
situation, because, as we are told, the war goes on.

Mme Greene (Don Valley-Nord): Je suis d’acco.rd avec
M™e Stewart. I1 nous faut étudier cette question en
fonction de 1'établissement d’une politique, car il y a une
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like to come here to tell us about their particular problem
and to use us as a forum to express their particular
problems is very long. For example, in my view Iran is
just overwhelming in terms of the violations of human
rights. If we just listen to the people who come here,
without having some kind of framework in order to make
recommendations that make sense, then we will become
not a policy-making body but merely a forum. So I think
it is important that we have that kind of framework
before approaching them.

Mr. Robinson: I was not going to get into this
discussion about who we should be hearing and the role
we should be playing. However, I do want to say that I
think it is important that early on some of the key groups
that have been waiting for some time be given an
opportunity to voice their concerns. I do not think we
should put that off until after we come up with a global
approach to human rights. In fact, I think it may assist us
to hear from some of the groups whose concerns are most
pressing.

[ know that the group that is struggling for democracy
in Iran has expressed serious concerns and wants to
appear. So I would just caution us not to think of it as an
either-or proposition. Also, if I might say, we should not
think of this as just a forum for people to appear. I would
hope that this committee would play a role larger than
that and be prepared to make some hard-hitting
recommendations to government, if necessary. Of course
these recommendations should always be diplomatically
worded. We should consider ourselves a part of the policy-
making process in this important area.

Le président: Il est agréable de vous entendre parce
qu'on voit que vous avez énormément d’idées. Cela
démontre aussi la délicatesse du sujet.

_ Notre greffiere me signale cependant qu’il faut d’abord
régler des questions d’ordre technique. Il faut procéder a
’élection d’un vice-président.

Mr. Robinson: In keeping with the approach this
committee has taken, I would like to propose that we
agree to elect two vice-chair people, one representing each
of the opposition parties on the committee. This would
reflect the spirit of non-partisanship with which we
should be approaching this work. As the clerk will agree,
there is certainly precedent for this in a number of other
committees. I would move, Mr. Chairman, that we
proceed in this manner.

Le président: Je vois que tout le monde appuie cette
fagon de procéder. Personnellement, je l'accepte avec
beaucoup d’intérét. J’attends les propositions.

Mr.s. Stewart: I would move that Svend Robinson be
one vice-chair.

M. Kilgour: Ou est-ce que c’est Howard McCurdy?
Mrs. Stewart: Or is it Howard McCurdy?

[Traduction]

longue liste de groupes qui aimeraient nous faire part de
leurs problémes et utiliser ce comité comme forum pour
exposer leur point de vue. A titre d’exemple, les violations
des droits de la personne en Iran représentent un
probléme énorme. Si nous ne faisons qu’entendre des
témoins, sans adopter un cadre de travail nous permettant
de formuler des recommandations valides, nous ne serons
plus un organe de décision mais simplement un forum.
Donc, avant méme d’entendre des témoins, il importe
d’élaborer un cadre de travail.

M. Robinson: Je ne voulais pas discuter de la question
du choix des témoins et du role que nous devons jouer.
Cependant, il faudrait dés le début donner la possibilité
aux principaux groupes d’exprimer leurs préoccupations,
et certains groupes attendent cette occasion depuis un bon
moment déja. Je ne pense pas que I’on devrait adopter un
cadre de travail pour les droits de la personne avant
d’entendre ces principaux groupes. En fait, il nous serait
peut-étre utile d’entendre certains groupes dont les
préoccupations sont trés pressantes.

Le groupe qui lutte pour la démocratie en Iran a
exprimé de sérieuses préoccupations et désire comparaitre
devant le comité. Je pense que nous n’avons pas le choix
ici. Ce comité ne devrait pas servir uniquement de forum.
J’espére que nous jouerons un rdle plus important et que
nous ferons au gouvernement des recommandations trés
dynamiques, si nécessaire. Ces recommandations
devraient bien sir respecter les régles de la diplomatie.
Nous devrions penser que notre comité participe a la
prise de décisions dans ce domaine trés important.

The Chairman: It is nice to hear you speak like that
because it shows that you have so many ideas. It also
shows that this matter is delicate.

The clerk tells me that we have first to deal with
practical questions. We have to elect a vice-chairman.

M. Robinson: Conformément a la démarche adoptée
par ce comité, j’aimerais proposer I’élection de deux vice-
présidents, représentant chacun un parti de l'opposition.
Cela témoignera de Llobjectivité politique dont nous
devrons faire preuve. La greffiere en conviendra
sirement, un tel systtme a déja été utilis€é dans bon
nombre d’autres comités. Monsieur le président, je
propose que nous procédions ainsi.

The Chairman: I see that everyone is in favor.
Personally, I fully agree with your proposal. I am waiting
for nominations.

Mme Stewart: Je propose la candidature de Svend
Robinson pour I'un des deux postes de vice-président.

Mr. Kilgour: Or is it Howard McCurdy?

Mme Stewart: Est-ce que c’est Howard McCurdy?
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Mr. Robinson: That is why I did not want to name any
names. [ would like us to accept the principle but leave
open the specific individuals until the next meeting.

I would put forward the motion itself, that we accept
that in principle and the individuals in question. . .

Mr. Kilgour: Pourquoi ne pas nommer Howard
McCurdy et quelqu’un parmi les libéraux?

Mr. Robinson: I guess we could nominate him, even
though he is not here.

La greffiere: Je pense que M. McCurdy vous
remplacera comme substitut. Il serait donc plus normal
que vous soyez le vice-président et qu’il remplace
simplement.

Mr. Robinson: [ do not know about the technicalities.

The Chairman: We are going to have two vice-
chairmen or. . .

Mr. Robinson: Why do I not accept that for the
moment, and then if it is necessary, change it?

The Chairman: That is right.

Il est donc proposé par M™M¢ Stewart que M. Svend
Robinson soit nommé vice-président.

La motion est adoptée

Mrs. Stewart: [ would also nominate David Walker as
the other vice-chairman.

La motion est adoptée

Le président: Félicitations, monsieur Walker et
monsieur Robinson.

Nous allons maintenant entrer dans des détails assez
importants. Si les membres du Comité sont d’accord, nous
siégerons a huis clos pour discuter de différentes choses.

Mr. Walker: Is it necessary?
The Chairman: Yes. I will explain it to you later.

Mr. Robinson: Are these not just routine proceedings?
We have dealt with routine proceedings of this nature
openly before. I do not know why we would not. . .

Ms Greene: We are just going to approve all these
motions, are we not? Does anybody have any objections? I
would move them all.

Mr. Walker: [ am fine sitting in public, unless the clerk
has some serious objection.

Le président: Est-ce que nous prendrons des décisions
concernant nos recherchistes ce matin?

[Translation)

M. Robinson: Voila pourquoi je n’ai pas voulu
proposer de noms. J'aimerais que nous acceptions ce
principe et que nous attendions a la prochaine réunion
avant de nommer les personnes en question.

Je propose donc que nous procédions de la sorte, que
nous acceptions ce principe et pour ce qui est des
personnes. . .

Mr. Kilgour: Why not nominate Howard McCurdy and
someone else among the Liberals?

M. Robinson: Je pense que l’on pourrait proposer sa
nomination, méme s’il n’est pas présent.

The Clerk: I think that Mr. McCurdy will be acting as
a substitute. Hence, it would be preferable that you be

appointed as vice-chairman and that he acts as a
substitute.

M. Robinson: Je ne connais pas les détails de
procédure.

Le président: Nous aurons deux vice-présidents. . .

M. Robinson: Pourquoi n’accepterions-nous pas cela
pour linstant? Le cas échéant, nous pourrons toujours
apporter des changements.

Le président: Treés bien.

It is moved by Mrs. Stewart that Mr. Svend Robinson
be appointed vice-chairman.

Motion carried

Mme Stewart: J'aimerais €également proposer la
candidature de David Walker pour 'autre poste de vice-
président.

Motion carried

The Chairman: I would like to congratulate Mr.
Walker and Mr. Robinson.

We are now going to deal with fairly important details.
If members agree, we will sit in camera to discuss those
items.

M. Walker: Est-ce nécessaire?

Le président: Oui. J’en expliquerai la raison un peu
plus tard.

M. Robinson: Ne s’agit-il pas d’affaires courantes
ordinaires? Nous avons déja discuté de telles questions
sans avoir recours au huis clos. Je ne sais pas pourquol
nous ne pourrions pas. . .

Mme Greene: Nous allons simplement approuver
toutes ces motions, n’'est-ce pas? Quelqu'un a-t-il des
objections? Je vais les présenter toutes.

M. Walker: Selon moi, la réunion peut se poursu_ivre
en public, 2 moins que la greffiere n’ait des objections
importantes.

The Chairman: Are we going to make decisions
concerning our researchers this morning?




1-2-1990

Droits de la personne au niveau international

) i

[Texte]

M. Kilgour: Je ne crois pas, monsieur le président. Il
faudrait peut-étre discuter avec nos actuels recherchistes
qui sont excellents. Est-ce qu’ils sont intéressés a faire de
la recherche sur les droits internationaux, les droits de la
personne?

La greffiere: Nous avons deux recherchistes de la
Bibliothéque ici.
M. Kilgour: Je sais et j’ai trés confiance en eux, mais

on a déja discuté de M. Miller qu’on pourrait ajouter a
nos collegues. Est-ce que nos greffiers peuvent nous aider?

Le président: Monsieur Kilgour, c’est justement la
raison pour laquelle je demande le huis clos. Cest
toujours délicat quand il faut procéder au choix de
recherchistes qui sont présents. Je voudrais également
vous faire part d’autres hypotheses.

Mr. Robinson: Well, Mr. Chairman, if there are any
questions of this nature then we should go in camera.

The Chairman: Yes. Do we agree to go in camera?
Some hon. members: Agreed.
[Proceedings continue in camera)

[Traduction)

Mr. Kilgour: I do not think so, Mr. Chairman. We
might have to talk with our current researchers who are
doing a very good job. Are they interested to do research
on international rights, on human rights?

The Clerk: We have with us now two researchers from
the Library.

Mr. Kilgour: Fine. I fully trust them. We have already
mentioned that Mr. Miller could join them. Could the
clerks help us out? :

The Chairman: Mr. Kilgour, this is exactly why I want
to move in camera. It is always difficult to decide on
researchers who are present. Furthermore, there are other
options I would like to present.

M. Robinson: Trés bien, si nous devons discuter de ces
questions, nous devrions le faire a huis clos.

Le président: La réunion se poursuit a huis clos?
Des voix: Adopté.
[La réunion se poursuit a huis clos).
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[Text] [Traduction)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met in camera at 4:35 o’clock p.m., in Room 209, West
Block, this day, the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay,
presiding.

Members of the Sub-Committee present:
Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

David

Acting Member present: Howard McCurdy for Svend
Robinson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn,
Research Officers.

Witnesses: Yvon Beaulne, Individual. From the
Canadian Commission for UNESCO: Francine Fournier,
General Secretary. Kalmen Kaplansky, Individual;

Philippe Leblanc, Individual.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and
Tuesday, December 19, 1989, the Sub-committee
commenced a review of International agreements. (See
Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989, Issue
1)

The witnesses
answered questions.

made an opening statement and

At 5:57 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 1990
(6)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights
met at 3:35 o’clock p.m., in Room 209, West Block, this
day, the Vice-Chairman, David Walker, presiding.

Members of the Sub-Committee present: Barbara
Greene, David Kilgour, Christine Stewart, David Walker.

Acting Members present: Doug Fee for David Kilgour,
Howard McCurdy for Svend Robinson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn,
Research Officers.

Witnesses: From Amnesty International: Roger Clark,
English Section; Bernard Cyr, French Section. From the

Network  on  International Human Rights: Douglas
Williams.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Stgndmg Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 16 h 35,
dans la piece 209 de I'édifice de 1'Ouest, sous la
présidence de Maurice Tremblay (président).

Membres du Sous-comité présents:
Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

Membre  suppléant
remplace Svend Robinson.

David Kilgour,

présent:  Howard  McCurdy

Aussi  présents: Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Allan McChesney et Jack
Stilborn, attachés de recherche.

Témoins: A titre individuel: Yvon Beaulne. De la
Commission canadienne pour [I'UNESCO: Francine
Fournier, secrétaire générale. A titre individuel: Kalmen
Kaplansky; Philippe Leblanc.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre
1989, le Sous-comité commence l’examen des ententes
internationales (voir les Procés-verbaux et témoignages du
lundi 4 décembre 1989, fascicule n° 1).

Les témoins font
questions.

des exposés et répondent aux

A 17 h 57, le Sous-comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE JEUDI 15 FEVRIER 1990
(6)

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 35, dans la
piece 209 de I’édifice de I’Ouest, sous la présidence de
David Walker (vice-président).

Membres du Sous-comité présents: Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Christine Stewart, David Walker.

Membres suppléants présents: Doug Fee remplace
David Kilgour; Howard McCurdy remplace Svend
Robinson.

Aussi  présents: Du Service de recherche de la

Bibliothéque du Parlement: Allan McChesney et Jack
Stilborn, attachés de recherche.

Témoins: De Amnistie Internationale: Roger Clark,
section anglaise; Bernard Cyr, section frangaise. Du
Réseau des droits de la personne au plan international:
Douglas Williams.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre
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Tuesday, December 19, 1989. (See Minutes of
Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989, Issue 1.)

Witnesses made an opening statement and answered
questions.

At 4:50 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.

Marie Louise Paradis
Clerk of the Sub-Committee

1989, le Sous-comité poursuit l’examen des ententes
internationales (voir les Procés-verbaux et témoignages du
lundi 4 décembre 1989, fasc. n° 1).

Les témoins font des exposés et répondent aux
questions.

A 16 h 50, le Sous-comité s'ajourne jusqu'a nouvelle
convocation du président.

La greffiere du Sous-comité
Marie Louise Paradis
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Thursday, February 15, 1990

++13533
The Vice-Chairman: [ call this meeting to order.

Nous avons deux groupes de témoins cet aprés-midi. Il
y a d’abord les représentants d’Amnistie internationale,
MM. Roger Clark et Bernard Cyr.

Douglas Williams is appearing for the Network on
International Human Rights. Please proceed.

Mr. Douglas Williams (Member, Network on
International Human Rights): [ would like to thank the
committee once again for inviting the three of us to
appear before you. We were to have been here with a
fourth colleague, Bernard Dufresne, from the Conference
of Catholic Bishops, who unfortunately was unable to
come with us this afternoon.

I am appearing on behalf of the Network on
International Human Rights, a grouping of some 40
Canadian organizations that are active on human rights
issues, focused on the international side. It is comprised of
churches and church-based organizations, a number of
development agencies in Canada, some groups that focus
specifically on human rights, and a number of
knowledgeable individuals as well. I work at the human
rights centre of the University of Ottawa and co-ordinate
the international programs there.

At the January 4 and 5 meeting of the network, we
were very pleased to note that the committee has decided
to include international issues as part of the mandate of
the committee’s work. We took note of the fact that you
decided to pursue this through a subcommittee, which we
see today. As I noted in our letter of January 9 to the
committee, we are very pleased to see that this has taken
place and would like to offer our full co-operation with
the committee as you pursue your work over the coming
months.

1335

M. Bernard Cyr (président d’Amnistie internationale,
section francaise): Monsieur le président, cet aprés-midi,
nous sommes censés vous donner notre point de vue sur
'orientation que devraient prendre les travaux du Sous-
comité. Pour ma part, jaimerais m’attarder 2 trois
questions particuliéres.

Nous souhaiterions que le Sous-comité aborde des
thémes ol le Canada puisse jouer un role efficace. Le
Canada a déja joué un rdle important au niveau des
organisations internationales ou intergouvernementales.
Je pense notamment au Commonwealth, a la
Francophonie, a I’Organisation des Etats américains dont
le Canada vient d’étre fait membre A part entiére et,

Le jeudi 15 février 1990

Le vice-président: Je déclare la séance ouverte.

We have two groups of witnesses this afternoon. The
first groups is from Amnesty International, represented by
Mr. Roger Clark and Mr. Bernard Cyr.

M. Douglas Williams représente le Réseau des Droits de la
personne au plan international. Vous avez la parole.

M. Douglas Williams (Réseau des Droits de la personne
au plan international): J’aimerais remercier a nouveau le
Comité de nous avoir donné l'occasion de comparaitre
devant vous. Malheureusement notre collégue, Bernard
Dufresne de la Conférence des évéques catholiques, ne
peut comparaitre avec nous cet apres-midi.

Je représente aujourd’hui le Réseau des Droits de la
personne au plan international. Le Réseau regroupe
environ 40 organisations canadiennes qui travaillent pour
promouvoir les droits de la personne au plan
international. Notre Réseau comprend des églises, des
organisations ecclésiastiques, un certain nombre d’agences
de développement canadiennes, de groupes qui
s’intéressent aux droits de la personne, ainsi que des
particuliers bien informés dans ce domaine. Je travaille au
centre des droits de la personne de I’Université d’Ottawa
ou je coordonne les programmes internationaux.

A la réunion du Réseau qui a eu lieu le 4 et 5 janvier,
nous avons appris avec plaisir que votre Comité avait
décidé d’inclure les questions d’importance internationale
dans son mandat. Vous avez décidé d’étudier ce dossier
dans le cadre d’un Sous-comité devant lequel nous
comparaissons aujourd’hui. Comme je vous I’avais signalé
dans notre lettre du 9 janvier, nous sommes trés heureux
d’apprendre que vous allez étudier ce dossier et nous vous
assurons de notre entiére coopération dans vos travaux au
cours des mois a venir.

Mr. Bernard Cyr (President of Amnesty International,
French Section): Mr. Chairman, this afternoon we are
supposed to give you our view points on the direction the
Sub-Committee’s work should take. I would like to stress
three main points.

We would like the Sub-Committee to focus on areas
where Canada can play an effective role. Canada has
played an important role in international and
intergovernmental organizations. I refer here particularly
to its role in the Commonwealth, the Francophonie, the
Organization of American States of which it has recently
become a full member, and of course the United Nations.
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évidemment, aux Nations Unies. Ces quatre organisations These four intergovernmental organizations provide

intergouvernementales offrent un endroit privilégié ou le
Canada peut favoriser le respect des droits de la personne
dans le monde. Comme vous le savez sans doute, au
niveau de la francophonie, il y aura une réunion
importante au Zaire en 1991. Nous souhaiterions qu’a
cette occasion, le Canada joue un rdle de premier plan en
matiére de droits de la personne. A notre avis, le Sous-
comité pourrait aider le gouvernement canadien a
€laborer une position et surtout I’encourager a poursuivre
ses efforts dans ce sens.

Le deuxiéeme champ d’intervention du Sous-comité
n’est pas clairement défini a nos yeux. C’est plutot une
question que nous vous posons. Il s’agit des questions
d’actualité ou de questions particuliéres. Les derniers mois
offrent beaucoup d’exemples de situations ou le
gouvernement canadien et le Parlement canadien auraient
pu étre appelés a intervenir ou a prendre position. Je
pense aux événements de juin dernier en Chine, et aux
événements de Roumanie. On parle actuellement
d’événements possibles aux Philippines, d’une possibilité
de coup d’Etat et de réinstallation de la peine de mort
dans ce pays. Ce sont des événements d’actualité, et nous
nous demandons jusqu’a quel point le Sous-comité serait
prét a intervenir d’une fagon ou d’une autre sur ces
questions.

Troisiémement, nous voyons au Sous-comité un rdle
d’éducation et de sensibilisation de la Chambre des
communes, des députés et des sénateurs canadiens. Les
hommes et les femmes députés et sénateurs peuvent jouer
un réle important dans la promotion des droits de la
personne dans le monde. Ils le peuvent par l’envoi de
lettres, ce que certains font déja pour des cas précis. Ils
peuvent également intervenir auprés des représentants
étrangers qu’ils rencontrent. Ils peuvent également
intervenir en Chambre et aux comités ou ils siégent. Le
Sous-comité peut donc jouer un rdle d’éducation et de
sensibilisation, simplement en faisant connaitre I’état de
la situation dans certaines régions ou selon certains
thémes.

Voila, en gros, trois possibilités qui s’offrent au Sous-
comité.

Mr. Roger Clark (Secretary General, Amnesty
International (English Section)): I would like to raise
perhaps one or two general questions that might lead to a
discussion this afternoon on some particular areas
regarding the functioning of the committee. We have
some questions that we would perhaps like to raise with
you.

In our presentation in June to the full committee we
were emphasizing quite strongly the need for
strengthening the role of human rights in Canadian
foreign affairs, but also strengthening the work of the
committee itself so that it was not simply a reactive
committee or a committee that was functioning on a
rather ad hoc basis to current events or crises, and I think
the earlier discussion we had with you brought those
points out.

Canada with an excellent opportunity to promote respect
for human rights in the world. As you no doubt know,
there will be an important meeting of francophone states
in Zaire in 1991. We hope that Canada will play a leading
role there in promoting human rights. We believe that the
Sub-Committee could help the Federal Government to
develop a position and should encourage it to continue
working towards these goals.

The second area where the Sub-Committee could
become involved is not yet clear to us, and we therefore
must ask you a question. This area concerns specific and
topical issues. In the last few months we have seen many
examples of situations where the Government and
Parliament of Canada might have been asked to intervene
or take a position. I am thinking of the events that took
place last June in China, and those which occured in
Romania. At present people are talking about the
possibility of a coup d’Etat in the Phillippines and
restoration of the death penalty in that country. These are
examples of current events, and we would like to know to
what extent the Sub-Committee would be willing to
become involved in them.

Third, we feel that the Sub-Committee could help to
educate and sensitize the Members of the House of
Commons and the Senate, both of whom can make a
significant contribution to promoting human rights in the
world. They can do so by sending letters, and some are
already doing so. They can also speak to the
representatives of other countries whom they meet. They
can speak in the House or in Committee. Therefore the
Sub-Committee can help to educate and increase
awareness, simply by informing people of the situation in
certain parts of the world and in relation to certain issues.

Briefly these are three of the possibilities available to
the Sub-Committee.

M. Roger Clark (secrétaire général, Amnistie
internationale, Section anglaise): J'aimerais soulever une
ou deux questions d’ordre général qui pourraient servir de
point de départ dans vos délibérations sur le role que 51011
jouer votre Comité. Il y a un certain nombre de questions
que nous aimerions aborder avec vous.

Lors de notre comparution en juin devant le Comité
plénier, nous avons signalé la nécessité d’insister sur
I'importance des droits de la personne dans nos relations
internationales, et nous avons fait valoir que le Comité ne
doit pas simplement réagir de fagon passive ou ponctuelle
aux événements et aux crises qui se produisent dans le
monde. Pour éviter ce danger, il faut renforcer le role du
Comité.
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The first thing I would like to reiterate is the role the
committee can play in strengthening the accountability of
the Canadian government in the area of human rights and
foreign affairs; that this accountability, when it becomes
more visible, more public, in turn will strengthen the role
human rights play within External Affairs, within the
foreign affairs agenda.

This immediately leads to a question regarding the
reports and documents produced by your committee. For
example, at the moment the precise process that will be
followed is not clear to us. You will presumably be
reporting to the full committee. Does the full committee
have an overview responsibility? Will there be
reassessment of reports coming from the subcommittee
before they are transmitted to Parliament? How is that
going to work?

That is a question we would like to raise with you.
Then perhaps we would take that a little further and talk
about how your reports are used beyond there. Certainly
from our perspective it seems high-quality reports from a
committee such as yours will be of great use to us in turn.

So there is a two-way function going on. It is not
simply a matter of Amnesty and other NGOs appearing
before you, creating a report that then goes up the ladder,
but rather the other way around, that you have a
responsibility to the NGO community too in your
information gathering and in your analysis of Canadian
positions.

In a more general way, this committee should be
looking for new openings for comment. There are
opportunities I cannot define now, but certainly if the
question of accountability becomes significant in areas
such as foreign trading, export to countries where there
are major human rights problems, transfers of military
equipment, and so on, all these things are rather grey
areas, and for many years organizations like our own have
been talking about greater visibility, greater accountability
in those sectors.

I mentioned at the outset the reaction to current
events. Recognizing the limitations of your committee in
time and resources. . . at the same time there is clearly an
expectancy on the part of many NGOs and individuals
that a committee such as this one does have a
responsibility to follow, to monitor, and potentially to
react to significant current events such as the events in
China or the more recent events in eastern Europe—or
the situation in El Salvador; and I use that advisedly,
because of the appearance of groups such as the El
Salvador Monitoring Group before committees such as
your own and other parliamentary committees. It is part
of a broader process you are familiar with, you are very
sensitive to, and that is the giving of credibility, I would
say, to some of the witnesses who appear before you.

[Traduction]

La premiére chose sur laquelle je voudrais insister,
c’est le role que le comité peut jouer pour renforcer
I'imputabilité du gouvernement canadien en ce qui
concerne les droits de la personne et les affaires étrangeres
et le fait qu'en rendant cette imputabilité davantage
visible, publique, on accordera plus d’importance aux
droits de la personne au ministére des Affaires extérieures
et dans les relations étrangéres du Canada.

Cela m’améne immédiatement a une question relative
aux rapports et documents rédigés par votre comité. Nous
ne comprenons pas trés bien pour l'instant le processus
que suivra votre comité. J'imagine que vous ferez rapport
au comité principal. Est-ce que celui-ci jouera un role de
surveillance quelconque? Réévaluera-t-il les rapports
présentés par le sous-comité avant de les remettre au
Parlement? Comment cela fonctionnera-t-il?

C’est une question a laquelle nous aimerions que vous
répondiez. A partir de 13, nous pourrions peut-étre
discuter de la fagon dont vos rapports seront utilisés par la
suite. Selon nous, des rapports d’une excellente qualité
rédigés par un comité comme le votre pourraient nous
étre extrémement utiles.

Il y a donc un certain élément bilatéral dans votre
travail. Il ne s’agit pas simplement pour Amnistie
internationale et les autres ONG de témoigner devant
votre comité pour que vous puissiez rédiger un rapport
qui sera transmis vers le haut, mais vous avez aussi des
obligations envers les ONG lorsque vous recueillez des
renseignements et que vous analysez la position du
Canada.

De fagon plus générale, votre comité devrait explorer
la possibilité de commenter d’autres sujets. Je ne peux pas
préciser ces possibilités pour l'instant, mais si la question
de la responsabilité revét une certaine importance dans le
commerce extérieur, par exemple, il a toujours régné une
certaine incertitude relativement aux exportations vers les
pays qui violent les droits de la personne, aux transferts de
matériel militaire, et ainsi de suite. Depuis des années, des
organismes comme le nétre réclament plus de visibilité et
plus de responsabilité dans ces domaines.

J’ai parlé au début de la réaction a la conjoncture.
Méme si votre comité manque de temps et de ressources,
bon nombre d’ONG et de particuliers jugent qu’un
comité comme le votre a le devoir de surveiller ce qui se
passe et peut-étre de réagir aux questions d’actualité
comme ce qui s’est passé en Chine ou, plus récemment,
en Europe de I’Est, ou encore a la situation au Salvador,
et je mentionne cet exemple a dessein parce que des
organismes comme le Groupe de surveillance de la
situation au Salvador a déja témoigné devant des comités
comme le vOtre et d’autres comités parlementaires. Tout
cela fait partie d’un processus que vous connaissez bien et
qui consiste a2 donner une certaine crédibilité aux témoins
qui se présentent devant vous.
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The forming of Canadian policy, the understanding by
the government of situations in places such as El Salvador
or situations that are fairly complex, depend on expert
advice, expert opinion, expert testimony. Clearly there has
to be some role there, but not to the extent that it would
derail other processes that may be going on. That clearly
is a danger.

» 1545

To sum up, the committee does have a special capacity.
It is not yet clear to us nor perhaps to you what that
special capacity may be, but my reference to opportunities
and openings suggests the sort of direction in which you
may be heading. Perhaps we can explore some of those in
the discussion later this afternoon.

The Vice-Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Clark. You have
raised some good questions and we will all be interested
in the respective answers because we have not had a
chance to solve them ourselves. So it is a good time to be
raising the questions.

Mr. Williams: I would like to close with a few specific
suggestions resulting from discussions leading up to our
appearance before you and with issues raised during the
last several meetings of the Network on International
Human Rights.

I am not speaking as a representative of the entire
group in this respect because not all these positions have
been thoroughly discussed or approved by the whole
group. Nevertheless, you might be interested in hearing a
number of issues that recur in the group’s discussions.

During the next several months a number of openings
may occur in which this committee could make an
important and needed contribution to the discussion of
human rights issues.

One possibility would concern Canada’s membership
in the Organization of American States. As you know,
Canada joined the OAS during the fall of 1989 and the
question is open as to-whether and in what way Canada
will ratify the convention dealing with human rights
within the OAS system. The procedures of the OAS offer
some protections not available through the UN system.
On the other hand, the institution has a number of
shortcomings and  weaknesses that have been
acknowledged by many who have observed it.

It has occurred to many that this committee might be
in a good position to explore some of the implications for
Canada of joining the OAS and of ratifying the
convention. There may also be some room to discuss roles
for Canada in strengthening the regional system for
protecting human rights in the hemisphere represented by
the OAS.

A second specific and fairly immediate issue the
committee may find of interest concerns the United
Nations Commission on Human Rights, which, as you
may know, is meeting now. From early reports of

[Translation)

Pour élaborer sa politique étrangére et comprendre ce
qui se passe dans des endroits comme le Salvador ou
encore y voir clair dans des situations relativement
complexes, le gouvernement a besoin des conseils, des avis
et des témoignages d’experts. Votre comité doit clairement
jouer un rdle quelconque a cet égard, mais pas au point
d’entraver d’autres processus. Cela poserait certainement
un danger.

Pour résumer, votre comité a un role spécial a jouer.
Nous ne savons pas encore trés bien, ni vous d’ailleurs
non plus, quel sera ce rdole, mais ce que j'ai dit au sujet
des possibilités qui s’offrent a2 vous vous en donnera
peut-étre une idée. Nous pourrions peut-étre nous étendre
davantage la-dessus plus tard cet aprés-midi.

Le vice-président: Merci, monsieur Clark. Vous avez
soulevé de trés bonnes questions dont nous avons tous
hite de connaitre les réponses, parce que nous n’avons
pas encore eu la chance de les examiner nous-mémes. Le
moment est donc bien choisi pour les poser.

M. Williams: Je voudrais pour terminer formuler
quelques propositions précises qui découlent des
discussions que nous avons eues avant de venir témoigner
devant votre comité et parler aussi de certaines questions
qui ont été soulevées pendant les derniéres réunions du
Réseau des droits de la personne au plan internatinal.

Je ne me fais pas le porte-parole de tout le groupe a cet
égard parce que toutes ces opinions n’ont pas fait
I'unanimité chez le groupe. Néanmoins, cela vous
intéressera peut-étre de savoir de quelles questions le
groupe discute fréquemment.

Au cours des quelques prochains mois, votre comité
pourrait avoir quelques occasions de faire une
contribution importante et nécessaire aux questions
reliées aux droits de la personne.

L’une de ces occasions vient du fait que le Canada est
maintenant membre de [I’Organisation des Etats
américains. Comme vous le savez, le Canada s’est joint a
I’OEA a 'automne de 1989 et ’on ne sait pas encore si le
Canada ratifiera la convention relative aux droits de la
personne de I’OEA, ni comment il le fera. Les processus
utilisés par I'OEA offrent certaines protections qui
n’existent pas 4 I'ONU. D’autre part, bon nombre
d’observateurs reconnaissent que I'OEA a certaines
faiblesses.

Bien des gens pensent que votre comi!e’; serait bien
placé pour examiner certaines des conséquences de
l'adhésion du Canada a I'OEA et de la ratification de la
convention. Il pourrait peut-étre aussi examiner le role
que le Canada peut jouer pour renforcer le systeme
régional de protection des drois de la personne dans
I’hémisphére représenté par 'OEA.

Une deuxiéme question bien précise et d’actualité a
trait 2 la Commission des Nations unies pour les drqits de
la personne qui, comme vous le savez, se.réun§t ces jours-
ci. D’aprés ce qui est ressorti des réunions jusqu’ici, il
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developments at commission meetings, some fairly
important shifts in the power structure seem to be taking
place. Notably, the Eastern Bloc no longer functions as it
has in past meetings so there may now be an opportunity
for the taking on of new roles at the commission and
some important new actions are possible.

It is early to say exactly what will result from this year’s
commission and we will not know until early in March.
In March, April or May, it may be of considerable interest
for this committee to review what took place at this year’s
commission and what opportunities may now be open
because of changes in voting patterns and behaviour on
the part of different states.

You may want to invite representatives from External
Affairs to discuss what they observed happening, as well as
representatives from the many NGOs in Canada that have
taken part in commission proceedings over the years. As
you may know, the commission is one of the most open
of the UN forums. NGOs have played a very important
role in bringing issues forward and have considerable
expertise in Canada, notably among the churches, many
of which are headquartered in Toronto.

Over the longer term, I realize you have a vast field to
consider when choosing a focus or setting priorities for
action. There are a number of points that network
representatives have discussed over the last year or so.

The committee may also be in a good position to
review Canada’s aid relationships with developing
countries and to review and update some of the issues
discussed in the Winegard report and positions taken by
the government in its response to that report and in the
Sharing Our Future document, which serves as our aid
strategy now.

Another option the committee may want to pursue
would be to take a broader look at the different policy
instruments available for dealing with human rights
internationally. In addition to the aid program, Roger has
mentioned a number of instruments, such as export
policies, import policies, Canadian influence at the
United Nations and within international financial
institutions, and our influence over the manner of
resolution of the debt crisis of many developing countries.
These are some of the many instruments that are available
for dealing with human rights issues.

It is very difficult to treat the whole world in this, but
one other possibility would be to try to focus on a sub-set
of countries in looking at these policies. You could
choose a regional focus such as examining eastern
Europe, southern Africa, Latin America or Central
America. .1550

[Traduction]

semble y avoir des changements relativement importants
dans la structure des pouvoirs. Notamment, le bloc de
I’Est ne fonctionne plus comme dans le passé, ce qui
pourrait fournir une occasion aux autres pays de jouer de
nouveaux rdles au sein de la commission et de prendre
certaines nouvelles mesures importantes.

Il est trop tot pour savoir ce qui ressortira des réunions
de commission cette année et nous ne le saurons pas avant
le début de mars. En mars, en avril ou en mai, il pourrait
étre trés intéressant pour votre comité d’examiner ce qui
s’est passé aux réunions de la commission cette année et
de voir les possibilités qui pourraient découler des
changements dans la fagon de voter et le comportement
de divers pays.

Ou vous voudrez peut-étre inviter des représentants des
Affaires extérieures a venir discuter de ce qu’ils ont
observé la-bas, de méme que des représentants des
nombreux ONG du Canada qui ont participé aux activités
de la commission au cours des années. Comme vous le
savez peut-étre, la Commission est I'un des organismes les
plus ouverts des Nations Unies. Les ONG y ont joué un
role trés important pour faire avancer certaines questions
et les ONG canadiens, surtout les organismes religieux,
dont bon nombre ont leur quartier général a Toronto,
sont trés bien renseignés la-dessus.

A plus long terme, je sais que le domaine qui vous
intéresse est trés vaste lorsqu’il s’agit de vous concentrer
sur une question en particulier ou d’établir vos priorités.
Il y a cependant certaines questions sur lequelles les
représentants du réseau se sont penchés depuis environ
un an.

Le comité pourrait aussi étre trés bien placé pour
examiner ’aide fournie par le Canada aux pays en voie de
développement et pour revenir sur certaines des questions
examinées dans le rapport Winegard et sur les positions
adoptées dans la réponse du gouvernement a ce rapport et
dans le document Partageons notre avenir, sur lequel
s’appuie notre politique en matiére d’aide étrangere.

Le comité pourrait aussi se pencher sur les divers
instruments de politique dont dispose le gouvernement
pour s’occuper des droits de la personne a I’échelle
internationale. Roger a déja mentionné un certain
nombre de ces instruments a part le programme d’aide,
notamment les politiques d’exportation et d’importation,
I'influence du Canada aux Nations Unies et au sein des
institutions financiéres internationales et ce que nous
ferons pour aider a décider comment on réglera la crise
de la dette d’'un grand nombre des pays en voie de
développement. Tout cela fait partie des instruments dont
nous disposons pour traiter des droits de la personne.

Il est tres difficile d’examiner ce qui se passe partout
dans le monde, mais votre comité pourrait essayer de se
concentrer sur un certain de pays. Vous pourriez choisir
une certaine région, par exemple I’'Europe de I'Est,
I’Afrique australe, I’Amérique latine ou I’Amérique
centrale.



2510

International Human Rights

15-2-1990

[Text]

Equally, it might be of considerable interest to focus on
countries that are undergoing a transition at the moment.
You see this happening in eastern Europe, but Namibia is
also undergoing a transition in its form of government.
South Africa may be doing so in the near future. A
number of Central American governments have just
shifted from a military regime to a democratically elected
regime. Human rights abuses continue in many of these
countries, yet there are opportunities for developing new
systems, standards, and procedures. There are also new
opportunities for Canada to develop a policy and to play
an effective role in supporting the development of human
rights there. These are just a few suggestions that would
have come from the group of organizations taking part in
the network. There are also many others that we would be
happy to discuss with you if you are interested.

Mrs. Stewart (Northumberland): Thank you very much
for your comments and your overview today. Your
recommendations are appreciated. Certainly, they cover a
very broad spectrum. My own interest in this committee
is to ensure that we are not simply reactive to world
events. That is the bottom priority for me. The second
thing that is important to me is that we do not produce a
report that is more or less random musings on where
Canada might go. I would prefer to be more pro-active
and come out of this with a report that has very specific
recommendations. Canada’s aid relations in respect of
international human rights, our trade relations, our
refugee determination work, is the area that I would like
to focus on and see particular recommendations in.

[ know that the NGO community has had annual
meetings with External Affairs to look at human rights
issues. I gather there has been some frustration there, in
that the NGO community feels they are being co-opted by
External Affairs to justify External Affairs’ activities.
Perhaps you are not really seeing an influence there. I
wondered if you could give us some ideas on how
External Affairs could produce information that would
make the Canadian government more accountable to the
public for our aid and trade and refugee determination
policies.

Mr. Williams: I think you are correct to note that there
has been some frustration in the NGO community with
the structure of this set of annual consultations with
External Affairs. The department always takes a restrictive
view of what is covered in these consultations. They are
dealing only with issues that come up at the commission
meetings. The consultations occur in early January, and
the commission begins at the end of the month and
continues for six weeks.

[Translation)

En outre, il serait sans doute intéressant de s’attacher
aux pays qui connaissent une transition a I’heure actuelle.
Il y a évidlemment I'’Europe de I’Est, mais la Namibie
s’appréte a adopter une nouvelle forme de gouvernement.
Drailleurs, I’Afrique du Sud pourrait en faire autant dans
un prochain avenir. Et un certain nombre de
gouvernements d’Amérique centrale viennent tout juste
de passer d'un régime militaire a un régime
démocratique. Les violations des droits de la personne se
poursuivent dans un grand nombre de ces pays, mais il est
possible d’élaborer des systémes, des normes et des
processus nouveaux. Les changements survenus offrent au
Canada la possibilité d’élaborer une politique a ’appui du
respect des droits de la personne dans ces pays et de jouer
un role actif a cet égard. Ce ne sont la que quelques-unes
des suggestions proposées par les organisations qui font
partie du réseau. Il y en a bien d’autres dont nous
pourrions parler, si cela vous intéresse.

Mme Stewart (Northumberland): Merci beaucoup de
nous avoir présenté ce survol aujourd’hui. Nous
apprécions vos recommandations. Chose certaine, elles ne
manquent pas d’ampleur. Si je suis au Comité, c’est que je
veux m’assurer que le Canada ne se borne pas a réagir a
I’actualité. C’est une priorité pour moi. La deuxiéme
chose qui m’importe, c’est que le Comité produise un
rapport qui renferme plus que de vagues considérations
sur lorientation du Canada. Je préfére que nous
adoptions une attitude plus dynamique et que nous
rédigions un rapport renfermant des recommandations
trés précises. A mon sens, ces recommandations devraient
porter sur l’aide internationale du Canada au regard du
respect des droits de la personne, sur nos relations
commerciales et sur le dossier de la détermination du
statut de réfugié.

Je sais que les représentants des ONG rencontrent
chaque année des fonctionnaires du ministére des Affaires
extérieures pour examiner la question des droits de la
personne. Je crois savoir que cet exercice a engendré une
certaine frustration du coté des ONG, celles-ci ayant
'impression d’étre absorbées par les Affaires extérieures
qui veulent ainsi justifier leurs propres activités. Il semble
que vous ayez du mal a exercer une influence a ce niveau.
Pourriez-vous nous dire comment on pourrait amener le
ministére des Affaires extérieures a diffuser davantage

d’informations afin d’accroitre la transparence du
gouvernement du Canada en ce qui concerné nos
politiques d’aide, d’échanges commerciaux et de

détermination du statut de réfugié.

M. Williams: Vous avez raison de dire que les ONG
sont mécontentes de la structure des consultations
annuelles qui ont lieu avec le ministere des Affaires
extérieures. Le ministére adopte toujours une attitude
restrictive en ce qui concerne le champ des sujets abordés
a loccasion de ces consultations. Celles-ci portent
uniquement sur les questions proposées lors des réuniqns
de la commission. Les consultations en question ont lieu
au début de janvier, alors que la commission amorce ses
travaux, qui durent six semaines, a la fin du mois.
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The NGOs have been seeking to broaden the realm of
issues covered. They have also been seeking changes in
format to ensure that there is greater discussion and
interaction on issues. I think this year will probably see
some movement towards improving the whole structure
of those consultations. There seems to be a willingness on
the part of the department to discuss with NGOs the
change in the format, so there may be progress on that
front.

As to what could be done to make the department
more accountable, I think it would be very useful if the
department were able to consult more frequently and
extensively on these issues. At the moment, they consult
in a formal way once a year. Many other organizations
meet with them informally at other points during the
year. I think it would help if there were a report-back
session held after the commission. I think it would also
help if there were opportunities to raise other issues in a
more formal sense with the department. These could be
issues that are going to come before the forum on the
Prevention of Discrimination Against Minorities, a very
important excpert forum that meets in August. Also, there
are various treaty bodies which deal with specific issues,
torture, discrimination against women, for example,
where there is room for consultation and discussion.

* 18556

I would favour very much having more of these events
and certainly providing more access to groups outside
Ottawa, Toronto and Montreal to take part. I would think
also there may be a role for this committee in following
up and bringing these issues to the attention of Parliament
and the public.

Mr. Clark: I think Doug is right in saying that the
consultations with External Affairs are changing, are
moving, and I think this reflects in part a strengthening of
the NGO community as well. It is not necessarily a
question only of attitude but also a question of growth and
awareness.

[ think that prior to the establishment of the
committee on human rights itself we had made the point
quite strongly that we felt there should be something like
an international human rights advisory committee to the
government made up of specialists who would then be
important in forming foreign policy in the area of human
rights. We are not there at all. We are far from that, but I
think the partnership arrangement between NGOs and
External Affairs may be moving a little bit in that sort of
dlregtion so that it is not simply a matter of External
Affairs going through an exercise of listening to NGOs
but that there is really a move towards some
accountability.

The_ suggestion was made that there be a review
followmg. the_commission itself so that the concerns the
NGOs raised in January can then be measured a little bit

[Traduction]

Les ONG souhaitent élargir le champ des questions
abordées. Elles souhaitent aussi modifier la formule afin
de stimuler la discussion et les échanges sur ces questions.
Je pense qu’on verra sans doute cette année certaines
améliorations pour ce qui est de la structure d’ensemble
de ces consultations. Le ministére semble disposer a
discuter avec les ONG un changement de formule. On
s’attend donc a des progres a cet égard.

Quant a ce qu’il y a lieu de faire pour rendre le
ministére davantage responsable de ses activités, je pense
qu’il serait bon qu’il multiplie les consultations sur ces
questions. A I’heure actuelle, des consultations officielles
ont lieu une fois I'an. Un grand nombre d’autres
organisations rencontrent officieusement les
fonctionnaires a d’autres moments de l'année. Je pense
qu’il serait bon de tenir une session d’information une
fois les travaux de la commission terminés. On aurait
aussi intérét a créer de nouvelles occasions formelles
d’aborder d’autres questions avec le ministére. Je songe,
par exemple, aux questions qui seront examinées a
l'occasion de la trés importante conférence sur la
prévention de la discrimination entre les minorités, qui se
tiendra en aolt prochain. Il y a aussi diverses
organisations découlant de traités qui abordent des
questions précises comme la torture ou la discrimination
envers les femmes et qui se préteraient bien a la
consultation et a la discussion.

Je pense qu’on devrait multiplier les manifestations de
ce genre et faciliter leur accés a des groupes qui ne
viennent pas d’Ottawa, de Toronto ou de Montréal. Je
pense aussi que votre Comité pourrait assurer un réle de
suivi et porter ces questions a la connaissance du
Parlement et du grand public.

M. Clark: Doug a raison de dire que les consultations
avec le ministére des Affaires extérieures se transforment
et évoluent, et je pense que cela refléte en partie un
renforcement de la communauté des ONG. Ce n’est pas
nécessairement une question d’attitude seulement, mais
aussi une question de croissance et de sensibilisation.

Avant la création du Comité des droits de la personne,
nous avions fortement préconisé la constitution d’un
comité consultatif sur la situation des droits de 1la
personne dans le monde, comité qui aurait été composé
d’experts appelés a participer a I’élaboration de la
politique étrangére dans le domaine des droits de la
personne. Nous sommes encore loin de la. Il reste
énormément de chemin a parcourir, mais je pense que le
partenariat entre les ONG et les Affaires extérieures est
un pas dans la bonne direction. En effet, le ministére ne
se borne pas simplement a écouter les ONG. On se dirige
véritablement vers un sain exercice de la responsabilité.

On a proposé l'instauration d’un examen a la suite des
travaux de la commission. De cette fagon, on pourrait
reprendre les préoccupations soulevées par les ONG en
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against the sort of record the Canadian government has
demonstrated in Geneva, the positions that have been
taken, and the votes that have been adopted and so on, as
one way of strengthening the accountability.

The reports that Doug mentioned and whch Canada is
obliged to make under various conventions and covenants
are produced only at the time of the international
meetings. In other words, there is really no review of
those prior to their presentation at the international level.
There can be reaction to those, but there is really no
opportunity to preview them on the part of those who
perhaps are best able to comment.

The third area is the whole question of access to
information, which I alluded to under the foreign trade
investment question. It is very difficult to obtain that
information, and yet clearly there is a lot of trading going
on with countries like Iran, Iraq and so on. I do not need
to list them. Those three areas at least would move
somewhat towards a better accountability.

M. Cyr: Jai quelque chose a ajouter pour souligner
I'importance du dernier point soulevé par Roger, a savoir
la question de l'accés a I'information. On a I'impression
que la politique extérieure est parfois compartimentée. Il
y a une politique pour les droits de la personne, il y a une
politique commerciale et il y a une politique pour les
réfugiés, et on ne voit pas toujours clairement les liens
qu’il y a entre tous ces éléments.

Si on pouvait avoir un tableau complet, par région ou
par théme, on aurait une meilleure idée de ce qu’est la
politique extérieure du Canada et on pourrait mieux
I’analyser et I’évaluer, et y proposer des modifications ou
des améliorations s’il y a lieu.

La question de l’accés a l'information est certainement
essentielle pour nous a plusieurs points de vue.

Mrs. Stewart: When you have had your consultations
with External Affairs or in any other forum, have you
ever attempted a case study analysis of a particular
country, for example with human rights abuses, and tried
to determine the base data by which the government has
made its determinations for aid, trade, refugee
determination? I gather it is very difficult to get the data,
but I wondered if you had ever tried to zone in on a
particular case study.

* 1600

Mr. Clark: Not that I am aware of. I think people are
sensitive to what happens, but I do not think they are
adequately aware of the basis on which those decisions are
being made. I am not aware of that. Maybe Doug is, but I
do not think that has happened.

[Translation]

janvier et les comparer aux réalisations du gouvernement
du Canada présentée, a Genéve, aux positions qui ont été
prises et aux résolutions qui ont été adoptées. Ce serait
une fagon de renforcer ’exercice de la responsabilité.

Comme Doug I’a mentionné, le Canada est tenu de
rédiger certains rapports conformément 3a diverses
conventions et pactes internationaux. Or, ces rapports
sont préparés uniquement a l'occasion de rencontres
internationales. Autrement dit, personne ne peut les
examiner avant qu’ils ne soient déposés auprés des
instances internationales. On peut y réagir par la suite,
mais les intervenants les plus qualifiés pour faire des
commentaires n’ont pas vraiment I'occasion d’en prendre
connaissance avant leur diffusion mondiale.

Mon troisiéme point porte sur la question de 1’accés a
I'information. D’ailleurs, j’y ai fait référence lorsque j’ai
parlé de nos investissements commerciaux a ’étranger. Il
est trés difficile d’obtenir des renseignements dans ce
domaine. Pourtant, il ne fait aucun doute que nous avons
des échanges commerciaux avec des pays comme l'Iran,
I'Irak et d’autres encore. Je n’ai pas besoin de vous en
dresser la liste. Dans ces trois domaines au moins, le
gouvernement pourrait mieux s’acquitter de son
obligation de rendre compte.

Mr. Cyr: I want to add something in order to stress the
importance of the last point raised by Roger, the whole
question of access to information. One gets the impression
that our foreign policy is somewhat fragmented. There is a
human rights policy, a trade policy and a refugee policy
and the links between all those elements are not always
clear.

If we could get the whole picture, either by area or by
theme, we would have a better idea of Canada’s foreign
policy and we would be in a better position to analyze and
assess it and, if need be, to recommend changes or
improvements.

In many regards, the question of access to information
is obviously essential for us.

Mme Stewart: Dans le cadre de vos consultations avec
les Affaires extérieures ou dans un autre contexte, avez-
vous déja fait une analyse du cas particulier d’un pays, par
exemple en ce qui a trait aux violations des droits _dg la
personne? Avez-vous essayé de déterminer quels critéres
dictent les décisions du gouvernement en matiére d’aide,
de commerce ou de détermination du statut de réfugié? Je
crois savoir qu’il est trés difficile d’obtenir ce genre de
données, mais je me demandais si vous aviez déja essaye
de vous concentrer sur ’étude d’un cas en particulier.

M. Clark: Pas 2 ma connaissance. Certes, les gens sont
sensibles a ce qui se passe, mais je ne pense pas qu'ils
connaissent les critéres sur lesquels le gouvernement se
fonde pour prendre ces décisions. En tous cas, je ne suis
pas au courant d’un tel exercice. Doug pourra peut-etre
vous renseigner, mais je ne pense pas que cela ait été fait.
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Mr. Williams: No. When consultations happen, they
deal with countries on a broad-brush approach. There is
generally a short presentation on what the government
policy is on country X or Y. NGOs will then make some
proposals or raise issues about countries they feel the
government may not fully understand or that officials
need to take into account when they go to Geneva. There
is not, not to my knowledge, the type of process you
described. There is lots of data on country situations
which can serve as a baseline. That is no problem to find.

Mrs. Stewart: But their baseline is different. They are
putting different information in the mix.

Mr. Williams: Their baseline is composed partly of
published reports from Amnesty and other publicly
available sources. There are quite a number of those. But
what also goes into that mix is information prepared by
post officers overseas. They are reading their information
on the human rights situation in particular countries. But
what happens after that is a bit of a black box. It gets
processed in External Affairs, shared with CIDA and
submitted to Cabinet. Officials, if they are free to divulge
this, can tell you much better than I could. But the exact
criteria by which decisions are made about what levels of
aid are going to different countries or what channels are
going to be used—that is not publicly available, to my
knowledge.

Mr. Clark: An interesting question came up this year
with regard to Panama that is quite illustrative of these
sorts of problems, that Panama was not technically on the
agenda for the commission in Geneva, yet clearly it was
an extremely important issue. It was one being questioned
by many NGOs, specifically the position adopted by the
Canadian government with regard to the American action
in Panama.

There was a strong sense that it was an appropriate
item for the consultations. However, it was not possible to
put that into the agenda in a very formal way. I think it
came up tangentially on the second day during the
geographic discussion relating to Central America. But in
a bigger sense, there was no possibility for any dialogue
on the principles underlying the Canadian position, and I

think that sort of incident reflects the problems we are
facing.

The Vice-Chairman: The American government has a
mandated report that the Secretary of State has to submit
to Congress—a country-by-country report. Leaving aside
the content—whether you agree or disagree with the
tone—is that as a style something you would see us move

[Traduction)]

M. Williams: Non. Lorsqu’il y a des consultations, on y
parle des pays de fagon trés générale. D’habitude, le
ministére présente un bref exposé de la politique du
gouvernement a I’égard du pays X ou Y. Ensuite, les
représentant des ONG font des propositions, apportent
des précisions sur certains pays lorsqu’ils estiment que le
gouvernement n’a pas saisi toutes les facettes d’une
situation ou souléve des questions dont les fonctionnaires
devront tenir compte lorsqu’ils se rendront a Geneve. A
ma connaissance, on ne se livre pas au genre d’exercice
que vous décrivez. Il existe sur la situation qui régne dans
les divers pays énormément de données qui servent de
base a une décision. Il n’est pas difficile de trouver ces
données.

Mme Stewart: Mais le gouvernement se fonde sur des
données diverses. En effet, il puise a diverses sources
d’information.

M. Williams: Le gouvernement tire ses renseignements
des rapports publiés par Amnistie internationale et
d’autres sources publiques. Et il y en a un nombre
imposant. A cela s’ajoutent les rapports rédigés par les
agents du ministére en poste a I’étranger. Les autorités
lisent les renseignements que leur fournissent ces agents
sur la situation des droits de la personne dans certains
pays en particulier. Mais ensuite, j’ignore ce qui se passe.
L’information est traitée aux Affaires extérieures, partagée
avec ’ACDI et soumise au Cabinet. Pour peu qu’ils soient
autorisés a divulguer leurs méthodes, les fonctionnaires
pourront certainement vous expliquer cela mieux que
moi. Cependant, 38 ma connaissance, les critéres précis qui
dictent les décisions quant au niveau de l’aide qui sera
accordée aux divers pays et selon quelles voies, ne sont pas
rendus publics.

M. Clark: Cette année, il est survenu un incident
intéressant au sujet de Panama qui illustre bien ce genre
de probléme. En effet, le cas de Panama n’était pas inscrit
a l'ordre du jour des travaux de la Commission de
Geneéve. Pourtant, il s’agissait manifestement d’une
question extrémement importante. D’ailleurs, de
nombreuses ONG s’étaient précisément élevées contre la
position adoptée par le gouvernement du Canada a I’égard
de I’invasion américaine dans ce pays.

Tous les intervenants étaient convaincus que cette
question devait faire I’objet de consultation. Cependant, il
n’a pas été possible d’inscrire officiellement ce sujet a
I'ordre du jour. Finalement, elle a été mise sur le tapis le
deuxiéme jour, un peu par la bande, a 'occasion d’une
discussion sur la géographie de ’Amérique centrale. En
somme, il a été impossible d’engager un dialogue sur les
principes qui sous-tendent la position du Canada. Je pense
que ce genre d’incident refléte les problémes qui sont les
notres.

Le vice-président: Aux Etats-Unis, le secrétaire d’état
est tenu, de par son mandat, de soumettre un rapport au
Congrés sur tous les pays. Son contenu mis a part—on
peut étre ou ne pas étre d’accord avec le ton employé—est-
ce une formule que nous devrions adopter? Est-ce un
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towards? Is that useful to the human rights community or
not?

Mr. Williams: We work with that to a certain extent at
our own program at the University of Ottawa. The reports
that go out from the U.S. State Department are enormous.
They are about about three inches thick and they are
getting bigger every year. The quality of the coverage is
variable, and it does not cover all rights. It is a selective
look at primarily civil and political rights because the
U.S. government does not acknowledge that social and
economic rights are as important or in fact exist separate
from civil and political ones.

One of the points about that exercise is that it takes a
great deal of energy and time to compile, in a systematic
fashion, good reports and then to make them publicly
available. The U.S. State Department does it—each post
overseas has at least one officer devoted full time to
human rights reporting, and I am convinced Canada does
not have that staffing available.

I do not know if it would be a particularly good use of
resources on our government’s part to undertake an
exercise like that, to do this for all countries every year. I
do not know that we would be generating any additional
information that would help government officials or the
NGO community learn more about human rights
situations. I think there are other sources that we can
draw on to do that. There may be a role for the
Department of External Affairs in preparing reports on
selected countries that are of particular concern to us
right at the moment.

The Vice-Chairman: How would we choose that?

» 1605

Mr. Williams: It is always going to be a difficult
question. There will always be a certain number of
countries in the dock at the Commission on Human
Rights in Geneva. Certainly that can be one grouping of
countries about which information will be required.
During the year, there will always be particular events
that require response as well, as events in El Salvador or
Romania unfold. So it would have to be on a fairly ad hoc
basis, I would think, as well.

Mr. Fee (Red Deer): I was interested in this line of
questioning. I would like to follow it up a bit.

[ am a substitute on this committee and have not
normally sat in, but I would hope that we all have the
same basic objective when it comes to human rights
throughout the world. I am really pleased with the way
you are handling your committee. It is not as partisan as
some I have sat in.

[Translation)|

exercice utile pour les champions des droits de la
personne ou non?

M. Williams: Dans une certaine mesure, c’est un peu
ce que nous faisons dans notre programme a I'université
d’Ottawa. Les rapports publiés par le Département d’Etat
américain sont énormes. Ils font environ trois pouces
d’épaisseur et ils grossissent chaque année. La qualité du
contenu est variable et on ne s’attache pas a tous les
droits. Il s’agit d’'un examen sélectif qui porte surtout sur
les droits civils et politiques, parce que le gouvernement
américain ne reconnait pas une importance égale aux
droits socio-économiques. En fait, il n’en reconnait pas
I’existence distincte par rapport aux droits civiles et
politiques.

En fait, un exercice de ce genre est trés exigeant. Il faut
beaucoup d’énergie et de temps pour compiler, de fagon
systématique, des rapports valables et les publier par la
suite. Le département d’Etat réussit ce tour de force, mais
chaque mission a I'étranger dispose d’au moins un agent
qui consacre tout son temps a I’examen des droits de la
personne. Je suis convaincu que, pour sa part, le Canada
n’a pas suffisamment de ressources humaines pour faire
cela.

J’ignore si le fait de se livrer 2 un exercice de ce genre
pour tous les pays, et tous les ans, constituerait une
utilisation  optimale = des ressources de notre
gouvernement. Je ne sais pas si on réussirait ainsi a
recueillir des renseignements complémentaires qui en
apprendraient  davantage aux  représentants du
gouvernement et aux membres des ONG au sujet de la
situation des droits de la personne. Je pense qu’il existe
d’autres sources auxquelles nous pouvons puiser. Cela dit,
je pense que le ministére des Affaires extérieures pourrait
préparer des rapports sur une brochette de pays qui nous
préoccupent particulierement en ce moment.

Le vice-président: Comment choisir ces pays?

M. Williams: Il sera toujours difficile de répondre a
cette question. Evidemment, il y a toujours un certain
nombre de pays au banc des accusés a la Commission des
droits de la personne a Genéve. C'est évidemment un
groupe de pays au sujet duquel il faudra requeﬂhr Qes
renseignements. En outre, au cours d’une annee dpnnee,
il y a toujours des événements qui exigent une réaction. Je
songe a l'évolution de la situation au Salvador et en
Roumanie. Par conséquent, je pense que nous serons

constamment appelés a réagir de fagon ponctuelle
également.
M. Fee (Red Deer): Comme ces questions

m’intéressent, je vais poursuivre dans le méme sens.

Je ne siége pas normalement au Comité. Je suis un
simple remplagant mais j'ose espérer qu’en ce qui
concerne le respect des droits de la personne dans le
monde, nous partageons tous les mémes objectifs. J'aime
beaucoup la fagon dont le Comité travaille. I} n’est pas
aussi tendancieux que certains auxquels j’ai siégé.
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Once we identify or somebody in External identifies a
country we should zero in on, how would External Affairs
go about doing a survey and getting an accurate
assessment of the situation?

Mr. Clark: There are two things I would like to say.
One is that, as Bernard suggested at the outset, there are
areas, there are countries and situations, where Canada
can play a role, where involvement, for one reason or
another, makes it more meaningful and, in a pragmatic
sense, perhaps more realistic. Those areas can be
identified from input from NGOs, but also from an
analysis of the Canadian economic and political situation.

So already there is an area that is circumscribed. It is
not an attempt to try to cover the whole world, nor is it
an attempt to produce a report that was described as being
simply full of random thoughts. It would then be a report
that is more focused and relates more to specific
undertakings and policy positions and so on.

That is one fairly practical way of approaching such a
report.

Mr. Williams: To add to that, formerly under the aid
program there was a category of core countries, which
numbered some 30 or 35 depending on how you counted
the regional groupings. Although that category no longer
exists, in fact the aid program is still concentrated on a
group of 35 countries. That is one set that we may want to
have some sustained interest in. There will be others as
well, I think identified as important for our bilateral
relationships for other reasons, that we would want to add
to that list.

On how to get that information you want on those
countries, there are a lot of documentary sources around.
Amnesty does very good reporting on civil and political
rights situations. There are other sources of analysis.
There is a group of human rights institutes in Europe, a
group in which our centre takes part at the university,
that prepares a report on 13 developing countries,
focusing on a broad range of rights, social and economic
ones as well as civil and political. That is updated every
year. That is one source you can also turn to.

You can rely also on many of the development NGOs
that have people on the ground who are receiving reports
back all the time from their staff and their associates.
Also, Canadian churches that are very active in the field
will have very up-to-date information on the situation of
their associates overseas.

Mr. Fee: What is your relationship with External right
now? Amnesty has a tremendous reputation
internationally. Do you enjoy a very good working
relationship with External Affairs?

M. Cyr: Oui, nous avons de bonnes relations avec les
Affaires extérieures. Pour reprendre ce que madame

[Traduction)|

Une fois quon a décidé d’accorder une attention
particuliére 2 un pays, comment le ministére des Affaires
extérieures s’y prend-t-il pour faire une étude et obtenir
une évaluation fidele de la situation?

M. Clark: Je voudrais dire deux choses. D’abord,
comme Bernard 1’a dit au début, il y a des domaines, des
pays et des situations ou l’intervention du Canada semble
davantage justifiée pour des raisons pratiques. En effet, il
faut étre réaliste. On peut recenser ces domaines a partir
des renseignements fournis par les ONG, mais également
a partir d’'une analyse de la situation économique et
politique du Canada.

Déja, cela nous ameéne a circonscrire notre action. Il ne
s’agit pas d’étudier la situation de tous les pays du monde
ou de rédiger un rapport qui, comme on l'a dit tout a
I’heure, serait ni plus ni moins qu’un ramassis de vagues
idées. Le rapport en question serait davantage focalisé et il
s’attacherait a des engagements et a des prises de position
politique plus précises.

Voila une fagon pratique d’aborder la rédaction d’un
tel rapport.

M. Williams: Auparavant, le programme d’aide
établissait une catégorie de pays de concentration, au
nombre de 30 ou 35, selon la fagon dont on comptait les
groupements régionaux. Cette catégorie n’existe plus, mais
le programme d’aide continue de se concentrer sur un
groupe de 35 pays. C’est un groupe de pays auxquels on
s’intéressera sans doute de plus prés. Bien siir, nous en
ajouterons d’autres a cette liste, dont des pays qui revétent
énormément d’importance pour nos relations bilatérales a
d’autres égards.

Il n’est pas difficile d’obtenir des renseignements sur
ces pays. Les sources documentaires abondent. Amniéstie
monte de trés bons dossiers sur la situation relative aux
droits civils et politiques. Et il existe d’autres sources
d’analyse. Notamment, il existe en Europe un groupe
d’instituts des droits de la personne, auquel se rattache
notre centre a l'université, qui publie un rapport sur 13
pays en développement. Ce rapport s’attache a toute la
gamme des droits, socio-économiques ainsi que civils et
politiques, et il est mis a jour tous les ans. C’est une autre
source disponible.

On peut également puiser dans les dossiers des ONG
qui se consacrent au développement et qui ont du
personnel sur le terrain. Ces ONG recoivent
périodiquement des rapports de leurs employés et de leurs
collaborateurs. En outre, les églises canadiennes qui
oeuvrent sur le terrain auront également des
renseignements a jour sur la situation de leurs
collaborateurs a I’étranger.

M. Fee: Quelles sont vos relations avec le ministere des
Affaires extérieures a I’heure actuelle? Amnistie jouit
d’une réputation enviable dans le monde entier.
Entretenez-vous de bons rapports avec le ministére des
Affaires extérieures?

Mr. Cyr: Yes, we enjoy a good relationship with
External Affairs. To go back to what Mrs. Stewart was
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disait, nous ne nous faisons pas d’illusions quant & notre
influence sur les Affaires extérieures. Nous consultons les
Affaires extérieures, et le ministére nous consulte. Nous
lui transmettons nos positions quant a certains pays, a
certains cas et a certains thémes. Le ministére en prend
note et nous fait part de ses positions. Clest
essentiellement un échange d’information.

Il peut arriver que la discussion devienne un peu plus
ferme a certains égards, pour certains pays, mais de fagon

générale, il s’agit essentiellement d’un échange
d’information fructueux.
Il y aurait peut-étre lieu, a certains moments,

d’améliorer la fagon de procéder, mais globalement, on
peut dire que c’est satisfaisant.

Mr. Clark: I think that quite genuinely there has been
a notable increase in awareness of the role that human
rights is going to play in Canadian foreign policy. That
has been made explicit, but it is quite tangible in some of
the relationships we have, not only with External Affairs
but also with CIDA. So we feel that the information we
are providing is now more relevant and is being listened
to.
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At the same time we have no sense at all that we are in
a close partnership. There is certainly not that. On the
other hand, as that relationship grows stronger the
exchange of information is also quite significant. We
frequently raise specific cases, country situations. We
occasionally ask for assistance in meeting an ambassador
from a country that we are attempting to approach, but
which is difficult.

I think that Amnesty in Canada, compared to Amnesty
in a number of other countries, has fairly privileged
access to government, but at the same time because we
have that privilege, we have to also be very cautious in
how we use it and we have to reassert our own
independence with regard to that relationship. We do that
quite comfortably, I think.

Mr. Fee: You mentioned that one possible topic the
committee could look at was our membership in the
Organization of American States. Just as a visitor to your
committee, I would hope you would not look specifically
at our membership, because that has been a policy
decision that is made. I do think something the committee
could do is look at how we could use that membership as
a positive impact on human rights in Central America or
Latin America.

Mr. Williams: I agree very much. I do not think the
issue would be to decide whether Canada should be a
member. I think that is fait accompli. I think it would be
interesting to explore the implications of what it means
now that Canada has joined and what about the other

[Translation]

saying, we have no delusions as far as our capacity to
influence External Affairs. We consult External Affairs
and they consult us. We give them our position with
regard to some countries, some situations and some
themes. The Department takes notes and tells us its
position. Essentially, it is information sharing.

The discussion may become a little bit heated with
regard to some issues or countries, but generally speaking,
our relationship is limited to fruitful information sharing.

We may feel at times that things could be improved on,
but we are generally satisfied with the process.

M. Clark: En toute sincérité, je pense qu’on est de plus
en plus sensible a 1’aspect des droits de la personne dans
I’élaboration de la politique étrangére du Canada. Cette
tendance a été exprimée explicitement, mais elle se traduit
concrétement dans les rapports que nous avons non
seulement avec le ministére des Affaires extérieures mais
aussi avec ’ACDI. Nous avons donc le sentiment que les
renseignements que nous fournissons sont maintenant
plus pertinents et qu’on en tient davantage compte.

Mais, cela dit, nous n’avons pas l'impression de
travailler en étroite collaboration. Il est clair que cela
n’est pas le cas. Pourtant, au fur et a mesure que se
renforcent les liens de coopération, les échanges
d’information s’accroissent. Nous évoquons fréquemment
tel ou tel cas précis, la situation de tel ou tel pays. Parfois,
nous ne demandons de l’aide dans l’organisation d’une
rencontre avec I’ambassadeur d’un pays avec lequel nous
avons du mal a prendre contact.

Je pense qu'au Canada Amunistie jouit, par rapport E} ce
qu’il en est dans d’autres pays, d’un acces pl_utét pr1v1leg§e
aux responsables gouvernementaux mais cet acces
privilégié nous oblige a en user avec beaucoup de
prudence et nous incite a une grande vigilance quant a
'indépendance des liens que nous entretenons avec le

gouvernement. Je pense que nous y parvenons assez bien.

M. Fee: Vous avez tout a I’heure envisagé d’examiner
notre appartenance a I’Organisation des Etats amf,ricams.
Permettez-moi, en tant que simple témoin, d’espérer que
vous ne vous pencherez pas spécialement sur la question
de notre adhésion a cet organisme étant donné qu’il s’agit
12 d’une décision qui a été prise dans le cadre de notre
politique étrangére. Je pense, par contre, que le Comité
pourrait examiner les moyens que nous pourrions utiliser,
justement, notre appartenance a cet organisme pour
favoriser, en Amérique centrale ou en Ameérique latine, le
respect des droits de la personne.

M. Williams: Je suis entiérement d’accord avec vous. 'Jg
ne pense pas qu’il convienne de débattre de I'opportunite
de l'adhésion du Canada a I'OEA. La question a €te
réglée. Il serait, cependant, intéressant d’étudier sous
divers angles la portée de cette adhésion et la maniere
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things we could be doing within that institution to make
it more effective and therefore have an impact on the
whole region.

Ms Greene (Don Valley North): I was interested in the
transition to democracies that are occurring in eastern
Europe as well as in Namibia and other parts of Africa,
and as well the treatment of minorities.

I, too, like the idea of doing something very positive. I
had the experience of visiting Rumania in January, and it
seems to me that there is such ignorance about democracy
and human rights in many of these countries that I think
that it might be a very worthwhile to see if Canada could
do something effective.

What sorts of activities would you think we might, as a
country, be able to have some impact on, and what kind
of process do you see this committee doing in attempting
to tackle that kind of topic?

Mr. Williams: I can perhaps speak best from the
experience of our centre. We have been involved for
several years now in Zimbabwe, a country that has
undergone a similar transition, although dating from
1980. The situation there was one in which the outline of
the legal system was there and functioned to a certain
extent, but it certainly did not function equally well in all
parts of the country.

After the process of discussion and consultation, it was
agreed that Canada could play a positive role in
supporting in effect the promotion of human rights in
Zimbabwe by making the legal system function better. So
Canada has taken a number of actions on different fronts.
We have provided books and equipment to the court
system. Our centre is engaged in a project with a non-
governmental organization to provide support for
community-level legal services outside the major centres,
which will enable a lot of people to have access to legal
procedures, people who otherwise had no access. There
has been support for legal education also.

That is one strategy that fits in the context of
Zimbabwe. You will probably find strategies are going to
vary markedly from one country to the other depending
on the situation. I could not pretend to give you a recipe
for Eastern Europe, but there are going to be, I am sure, a
number of initiatives for developing legal systems and
legal protections. That is one approach. There are many
others, I am sure.

Mr. Clark: I think the other part of the answer is the
credibility that Canada has on the world stage as a country
that really upholds human rights in its policies in a
genuine sort of way. That credibility then allows

[Traduction)

dont nous pourrions contribuer, du dedans, a rendre cet
organisme plus efficace et a élargir ainsi notre role dans
cette région du monde.

Mme Greene (Don Valley-Nord): Je m’intéresse au
passage a la démocratie que 'on constate actuellement en
Europe de I’Est ainsi qu'en Namibie et dans d’autres
régions de I’Afrique. Je m’intéresse également beaucoup
au traitement accordé aux minorités.

Et moi aussi je suis tentée par la possibilité de
contribuer a cela. J’ai eu l'occasion, au mois de janvier,
de me rendre en Roumanie et je crois pouvoir constater,
dans beaucoup de ces pays, une grande ignorance en ce
qui concerne la démocratie et les droits de la personne. Il
serait bon, je pense, que le Canada puisse contribuer a
une amélioration de la situation par des mesures
concretes.

Quel rdle nous voyez-vous jouer et quelle pourrait étre,
selon vous, la démarche du Comité a cet égard?

M. Williams: Permettez-moi d’évoquer l’expérience de
notre centre. Depuis plusieurs années déja, nous sommes
actifs au Zimbabwe qui a lui-méme opéré a une transition
analogue, bien que celle-ci remonte a 1980. Ce pays
possédait les bases d’un systeme juridique, mais celui-ci
fonctionnait de maniére un peu approximative et de
manieére trés inégale dans I’ensemble du pays.

A Vlissue d’un processus de discussions et de
consultations approfondies, il fut décidé que le Canada
pourrait aider au progrés des droits de la personne au
Zimbabwe en contribuant a un meilleur fonctionnement
du systeme juridique. Le Canada a donc entrepris un
certain nombre d’initiatives dans divers domaines. Nous
avons, par exemple, fourni a la justice de ce pays quantité
de livres et d’équipement. Notre centre participe a la
réalisation d’un projet mené conjointement avec une
organisation non gouvernementale afin de créer, en
dehors des grands centres, une infrastructurs de services
juridiques communautaires afin de favoriser I’acces a la
justice pour ceux qui en seraient sans cela privés. Nous
avons également appuyé certaines initiatives pédagogiques
en matiere juridique.

Voila une stratégie qui correspond a la situation propre
au Zimbabwe.Vous n’étes pas sans savoir que cela varie
d’un pays a l'autre, toute stratégie devant s’adapter a une
situation précise. C’est dire que je ne suis pas en mesure
de vous proposer de recette applicable a I’Europe de I’Est,
mais je suis persuadée qu’un certain nombre d’initiatives
vont étre prises pour contribuer au développement de la
justice et des garanties juridiques. Voila, du moins, une
maniére d’approcher la question. Ce n’est sans doute pas
la seule.

M. Clark: Il conviendrait d’ajouter que, au niveau
international le Canada a la réputation d’un pays qui
contribue réellement a la protection des droits de la
personne. La crédibilité dont il bénéficie en ce domaine
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individuals or groups within Canada to participate in the
sort of process that is necessary to establish democratic
structures in a realistic and genuine manner.
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[ understand Judge Robert Wells of Newfoundland is
currently chairing a joint committee, Canada-the
Cameroons, to develop human rights protections within
that country’s constitution. That to me is a very tangible
and effective way in which Canada can play a role in that
sort of situation. There may be many others. I do not see
it relating too much to the work of the committee,
although the committee perhaps does have a watch-dog
role, if I could call it that, better than that of many other
committees that are around.

[ am not saying you will necessarily do anything
specific to develop those mechanisms, but you at least
have an overview. You have a watching brief to ensure
the sorts of institutions and structures necessary for those
things to take place are in fact happening. I would see it
as being perfectly appropriate for a committee like your
own to make comments on improvements that are visible,
but also on areas where no apparent changes are taking
place, which might contribute to the greater credibility of
the Canadian position.

. Ms Greene: So it would be through an examination of
a particular country as far as the committee proceeding is
concerned. Obviously you have mentioned some things
NGOs can do, but as for the Government of Canada and
Members of Parliament—

Mr. Clark: I think it would be very cumbersome for
the committee to undertake that sort of analysis. It may
well be possible, but—

Ms Greene: That is what I mean. Some of the things
you have mentioned do not sound like things we can
practically do.

Mr. Clark: I would not put that as one of them. On the
other hand, to be able to identify some of the areas where
work can be done may be a very useful contribution that
could be achieved by the committee.

Mr. Fee: You have just given two examples. We are all
rookie Members of Parliament around here, or most of us
are—

Ms Greene: Not McCurdy.

Mr. Fee: Okay, he has been here forever.

You have given two examples, Cameroon and
Zimbabwe, where Canadians had a positive impact and
contributed something. Even if the committee could

[Translation)

permet a ses ressortissants, agissant a titre individuel ou
dans le cadre de divers organismes, de contribuer
utilement aux initiatives permettrant, de maniére a la fois
réaliste et effective, de favoriser l’instauration de
structures démocratiques.

Je crois savoir que le juge Robert Wells de Terre-
Neuve, préside, a 1’heure actuelle, un comité mixte au
sein duquel le Canada et le Cameroun oeuvrent pour
améliorer, dans le cadre de la constitution de cet Etat, les
garanties accordés aux droits de la personne. Voila un
exemple du réle que le Canada peut jouer dans ce genre
de situation. Les possibilités d’action ne se limitent
d’ailleurs pas a ce genre d’initiative. Je ne suis pas certain
que cela soit particulierement li€ a l’action de votre
Comité, bien que celui-ci exerce effectivement des
fonctions de surveillance qui dépassent en efficacité
I’action d’un certain nombre d’autres comités.

Je veux dire par cela que vous n’allez pas
nécessairement étre appelés a prendre des mesures
concrétes en vue de la création de ce genre de mécanisme,
mais cela vous donne au moins une sorte de vue
d’ensemble. Vous étes chargés d’une sorte de mission de
surveillance qui vous permet de veiller a I'instauration des
structures et des institutions qui rendent possibles de telles
initiatives. J’estime que, dans le cadre de la mission qu’il
lui est confiée, votre Comité peut tout a fait se prononcer
non seulement sur les progrés manifestes mais €galement
dans un certain nombre de domaines ou on ne peut guere
déceler de progrés mais ou une intervention du Comité
serait susceptible de renforcer la crédibilité du Canada.

Mme Greene: Ainsi, il s’agirait, pour le Comité, de se
pencher sur la situation de tel ou tel pays. Vous avez
évoqué le champ d’action propre aux ONG mais, en ce
qui concerne le gouvernement du Canada et les
parlementaires—

M. Clark: Je ne pense pas qu’il serait trés pratique pour
le Comité d’entreprendre ce genre d’analyse. Ce serait
sans doute possible, mais—

Mme Greene: C’est ce que je voulais dire. Certaines des
initiatives que vous avez évoquées ne me semblent pas
correspondre a4 ce que nous pourrions effectivement
mettre en oeuvre.

M. Clark: Cela me semble vrai de cette derniere idée.
Je pense, par contre, que le Comité pourrajt tré;
utilement chercher a cerner de plus prés les domaines ou
il conviendrait d’intervenir.

M. Fee: Vous venez de nous citer deux exemples. Or
nous sommes tous de nouvelles recrues parlementaires, et
la plupart d’entre nous sont—

Mme Greene: Pas M. McCurdy.
M. Fee: C’est vrai, lui est ici depuis l’origine des temps.

Vous avez cité le Cameroun et le Zimbabwe, deux pays
ou des Canadiens ont été en mesure de contribuer
utilement. Peut-étre le Comité pourrait-il contribuer a
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publicize a few of these so we could encourage them to do
others. . . I was not aware of either one of those, and I
visited both of those countries last month. In both of
them [ was greeted very, very well by governmental
officials as a Canadian.

Ms Greene: What about assessing projects that are
currently being done and funded or assisted through our
foreign aid program in terms of their effectiveness in
addressing human rights issues and democracy?

Mr. Fee: We hear about our shortcomings and our
mistakes. We do not dwell enough on our successes.

Ms Greene: Some would be good and some would not
be.

The Vice-Chairman: There are process questions to
follow up. By the rules of the House of Commons, the
subcommittee reports through the committee to the
House. We do not report directly. Under normal
circumstances we would expect the committee to accept
our report, unless there were some very particular
problem dealing with some manoeuvring or whatever. So
you would see it go from the subcommittee to the
committee to the House.

The question of what we are going to be actually
presenting is totally unsettled, I think. We do not know
yet. We have resource people working with us, and the
process is that they are arranging for people like
yourselves to come to us as witnesses and give some ideas.
They will be summarizing for us in writing what have
been the major themes and then facilitating a discussion
on the committee about where that leads us.

So some of the questions you have in front of us today
are very much questions we have in front of ourselves:
regional approaches; country approaches; thematic
approaches dealing with new roles. These are all questions
we are seeking advice on, and it is through this series of
questions we have just had here. . . it helps all of us think
about what our capacity is, for example, to deal with
situations we know nothing about. How do we get officials
to report back from a six-week congress in—

Ms Greene: As you were just saying, it sounds like a
useful kind of thing, and it might help the Canadian
public understand the value of the foreign aid program as
well as areas that could be improved.

Mr. McCurdy (Windsor—St-Clair): Before we lose
focus altogether, this committee is about human rights.

[Traduction)|

mieux faire connaitre de tels exemples afin d’encourager
la multiplication de ce genre d’initiative. .. J’avoue que
j’ai visité ces deux pays le mois dernier mais sans étre au
courant des intitiatives dont nous avons parlé tout a
I’heure. J’ajoute que dans ces deux pays j'ai été
extrémement bien regu, en tant que Canadien, par les
autorités.

Mme Greene: Ne pourrions-nous pas nous pencher sur
les projets en voie de réalisation et bénéficiant de I’appui
de notre programme d’aide au développement, afin de
voir un peu quels sont les projets qui contribuent au
développement des droits de la personne et de la
démocratie?

M. Fee: On parle souvent des erreurs que nous avons
faites et de ’insuffisance de nos initiatives mais, peut-étre
ne nous arrétons pas assez sur nos Succes.

Mme Greene: Certains vaudraient plus la peine de s’y
arréter que d’autres.

Le vice-président: Il faudrait tout méme tenir compte
de certaines questions de procédure. Selon les regles de la
Chambre des Communes, notre Sous-comité rend compte
a la Chambre par l'intermédiaire du Comité. C’est dire
que nous ne pouvons pas aller directement devant la
Chambre. En temps normal, on s’attendrait a voir le
Comité adopter notre rapport 3 moins que cela ne souléve
quelque probléme au niveau de la stratégie parlementaire
ou quelque chose de cet ordre-la. Le rapport irait ainsi du
Sous-comité au Comité, puis a la Chambre.

Nous n’avons pas encore réglé la question du contenu
de nos recommandations. Nous n’en savons toujours rien.
Un certain nombre de recherchistes nous ont été adjoints
et nous ont prévu un certain nombre de témoins qui,
comme vous, viennent avancer des idées. Celles-ci seront
résumées dans le cadre d’un document exposant les
principaux thémes de la question et servant a orienter les
travaux du Comité.

C’est dire que les questions vous avez évoquées ici
touchent de trés prés celles que nous nous sommes nous-
mémes posées touchant les initiatives qui pourraient €tre
prises dans le cadre de telle ou telle région, ou vis-a-vis de
tel ou tel pays. Nous nous sommes également interrogés
sur I’évolution des rdles. Autant de questions que nous
voudrions éclaircir au cours de débats tels que celui-ci.
Cela nous aide a évaluer les moyens que nous serions
susceptibles de mettre en oeuvre dans le cadre de telle ou
telle situation sur laquelle nous ne sommes guere
renseignés. Comment obtenir des informations de la part
des personnes ayant participé a un congrés de six
semaines dans tel ou tel pays?

Mme Greene: Comme vous venez de la dire, cela me
parait utile et pourrait donner au public canadien une
meilleure compréhension du rdle de notre aide au
développement, tout en faisant plus clairement ressortir
les lacunes.

M. McCurdy (Windsor—Sainte-Claire): Je tiens a
rappeler, avant que nous nous éloignions trop de notre
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We have a committee on international affairs to look at
the broader question.

Ms Greene: That is what I am saying, asssessing human
rights and democracy.

Mr. McCurdy: One of the things that begin to bother
me is that we begin to lack definition on what precisely
this committee is all about. It has to do with human
rights.

* 1620
'Ms Greene: But we do not know.

Mr. McCurdy: For those on the committee who
increasingly pose the question as if there was no idea
existing anywhere in the world about the purpose of this
committee, we did explore in the wake of the Winegard
report, other reports, and other studies what we should be
doing. And very largely what we have heard is what we
concluded at that time we should be doing, that insofar as
it is possible to weigh the effective applications of those
levers we have in respect to human rights practices, most
particularly with respect to Third World nations.

We did talk about having some evaluative procedure,
trying to get access to what in God’s name it is that
External Affairs does to decide whether they should sell
bombs to Chile versus what many of us would think
would be a more appropriate course, in the absence of
having no knowledge whatever of what criteria are
applied in how those decisions are taken. I am not so sure
we have advanced that very far because we still have not
gotten a handle on how we get that information out of
External Affairs. This consultation the NGOs have is in
some respects way ahead of anything the House of
Commons has. And I suppose the question that jumps
right into one’s mind is whether there is a record of these
consultations.

Mr. Williams: No.

Mr. McCurdy: Of course, if there is no record of these
consultations, then there is no possibility of an evaluation
of their outcome.

Mr. Clark: Just on that last point, we raised among
ourselves the question of public access and press access to
the consultations, and we felt quite strongly that there
should be that access, because that in fact does exactly
what you are saying, it opens it up to public scrutiny—

Mr. McCurdy: That is right.

Mr. Clark: —and I think that should be a step that
could be taken fairly quickly.

[Translation)

sujet, que ce qui est censé retenir notre attention ce sont
les droits de la personne. Il existe un comité des affaires
étrangeéres plus spécialement chargé de ’ensemble de la
situation.

Mme Greene: C’est vrai, ce qui nous concerne ici ce
sont les droits de la personne et la démocratie.

M. McCurdy: Ce qui me préoccupe c’est le flou dans
lequel nous opérons. Notre Comité est censé se pencher
sur les droits de la personne.

Mme Greene: Mais nous ne le savons pas.

M. McCurdy: Jaimerais rappeler, a lintention des
membres du Comité qui continuent a poser la question
comme si personne au monde n’était en mesure
d’expliquer la mission confiée & notre Comité, que nous
avons examiné, dans le sillage du rapport Winegard et
d’'un certain nombre d’autres rapports et d’études,
justement la question de savoir comment nous devrions
nous y prendre. Or, comme on vient de nous le redire
aujourd’hui, nous avions a I’époque décidé que notre
tdche consistait a examiner la maniére dont nous
pourrions, le plus efficacement possible, faire jouer les
divers moyens a notre disposition pour faire progresser,
notamment dans les pays du tiers monde, les droits de la
personne.

Nous avions évoqué la possibilité de mettre en place
une procédure d’évaluation et d’essayer d’avoir accés aux
mystérieux critéres utilisés par le ministere des Affaires
extérieures lorsqu’il doit se prononcer par exemple sur
I'opportunité de vendre des armes au Chili, au lieu
d’adopter une ligne de conduite que beaucoup jugeraient
plus acceptable. Nous ne savons absolument rien des
critéres applicables a de telles décisions et voila a quoi
nous voudrions remédier. Je ne suis pas certain que nous
ayons fait beaucoup de progrés dans cette voie, étant
donné que nous ne savons toujours pas comment obtenir
ce genre de renseignements des Affaires extérieures. Dans
une certaine mesure, les ONG sont a cet égard beaucoup
plus avancées que la Chambre des communes. Chacun se
demande, j'imagine, s’il existe un proceés verbal de ces
consultations.

M. Williams: Non.

M. McCurdy: Il est bien certain qu’en l’absence de
proceés verbal, nous ne sommes pas e€n mesure d’en
évaluer les résultats.

M. Clark: J’aimerais dire, sur ce point précis, que nous
nous sommes nous-mémes demandés s’il ne conviendrait
pas de donner, A la presse et au public, acceés a ces
consultations, car il faut d’aprés nous, assurer la
transparence de ce processus.

M. McCurdy: Effectivement.

M. Clark: Et je pense qu’une initiative en ce sens
pourrait rapidement aboutir.




15-2-1990

Droits de la personne au niveau international 2221

[Texte]

Mr. McCurdy: In the absence of any record of that
consultation, it occurs to me, Mr. Chairman, that one of
the things the committee might do is behave somewhat as
an intermediary. I am just shooting this out as the kind of
idea that could be considered. It is not the ideal, but one
could perhaps cut through some of the stuff that is
involved here by in fact hearing, if not directly on our
own hook, what it is the NGOs are saying and then ask
people from External Affairs to come in and respond to
it. We would have a record. Then we could look at what
happens at the United Nations and afterwards evaluate it.
There are some initiatives we could take that would
respond to the concerns the NGOs have and some others
we may have ourselves. But I think it is extremely
important that we not cast the net so broadly that we
catch no fish at all.

M. Cyr: J’aimerais dire que je suis d’accord sur ce que
M. McCurdy vient de signaler.

Il est important de viser lefficacité au lieu de
s’éparpiller sur trop de sujets ou de questions. L’idéal
serait que tous les ministéres fédéraux, dans toutes leurs
relations extérieures, quelles qu’elles soient, tiennent
compte de la question des droits de la personne d’une
fagon ou d’une autre.

J’ai dit tout a I’heure que la politique extérieure
canadienne nous semblait compartimentée. On peut dire
la méme chose des relations militaires, de sécurité et de
police. Qui sait ici ce qui se passe vraiment dans ce
secteur? Nous ne le savons pas avec exactitude. S’il est un
domaine dans lequel nous aimerions avoir de
I’information, c’est bien celui-la. Malheureusement, dans
certains cas, il est étroitement lié a des violations
indirectes des droits de la personne.

Il est extrémement important que le Canada ait un
dossier clair et net dans ce domaine. Je ne dis rien; je dis
simplement que je ne sais pas ce qui se passe. Cependant,
pour nous, c’est un secteur important.

s51625

Il y a d’autres aspects pratiques. J’ai mentionné tout a
I'heure le Sommet des pays francophones qui aura lieu en
1991. Ce Sommet regroupe des pays en voie de
développement, des pays africains, des pays asiatiques, des
pays ou il y a de graves violations des droits de la
personne. C’est notamment le cas du pays hote.

L’occasion révée est 1a. Pourquoi le ministére des
Affaires extérieures ou le gouvernement canadien ne
dresse-t-il pas un tableau complet de ses relations avec ces
pays: relations commerciales, relations d’aide au
dqve!oppement, questions des droits de la personne?
A1n§1, on aurait un tableau complet et on pourrait dire:
Ceci nous convient et cela ne nous convient pas. On a la
une occasion en or pour agir.

[Traduction)|

M. McCurdy: Etant donné I’absence de tout procés
verbal, je pense, monsieur le président, que notre Comité
pourrait peut-étre agir a titre d’intermédiaire. Ce n’est
qu’une idée que j'avance un peu comme ¢a; elle ne
représente certes pas une solution idéale, mais cela nous
permettrait peut-étre d’aller plus droit au but, de mieux
connaitre les theéses avancées par les ONG et de
convoquer, ensuite, des représentants des Affaires
extérieures pour venir faire valoir leur propre point de
vue. Les diverses approches mises en évidence pourraient
ainsi étre consignées. On pourrait ensuite examiner I’état
de la question telle que débattue aux Nations Unies et
nous prononcer sur la situation. Certaines des initiatives
que nous pourrions prendre correspondent aux
préoccupations dont les ONG ont fait état ainsi qu’a
certaines préoccupations qui se sont manifestées au sein
du Comité. Mais je pense qu’il faut absolument éviter de
nous éparpiller, sous peine de nous retrouver les mains
vides.

Mr. Cyr: I am in full agreement with what Mr.
McCurdy has just said.

We should strive to be effective and not spread
ourselves too thin. The ideal solution would be for the
various government departments to remain very much
aware of human rights’ concerns in all their foreign
dealings.

I mentioned earlier that Canada’s foreign policy seems
too compartmentalized. The same could be said of our
military, police and security operations. Is there anyone
here who really knows what goes on in these various
fields? We are lacking precise knowledge in this respect.
And yet, it is in precisely those fields that we would like
to be better informed. Unfortunetaly, it sometimes
happens that these issues are closely connected to indirect
human rights violations.

In this field, Canada should be completely above board.
I am only saying that I have no real knowledge of what
goes on. And yet it would be extremely important for us
to have that type of knowledge.

There is a number of other practical concerns. I
mentioned earlier the Francophone Summit scheduled
for 1991. This Summit will bring together developing
countries in Africa and Asia, countries where serious
breaches of human rights occur, and that includes the
host country.

It is a golden opportunity. Why does the Department of
External Affairs or the Canadian Government not
compile a list of all its relations with these countries:
trade relations, foreign aid relations, human rights
concerns? This would give us a complete picture of the
situation and enable us to say: This is all right but that is
unacceptable. This would give us a golden opportunity to
act.
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Voila donc deux secteurs ou le Sous-comité pourrait
intervenir d’une fagon ou d’une autre. On a mentionné
d’autres organisations. Il y a le Commonwealth, ou il y a
des réunions réguliéres, 1'Organisation des Etats
américains et I'ONU. Le Canada participe a la
Commission des droits de I’homme. On peut évaluer sa
participation. On peut dire: Oui, c’est bien, ce que vous
avez fait; non, ce n’est pas bien et on aimerait que ce soit
autrement. Il en est de méme pour la Conférence sur la
sécurité et la coopération en Europe, autre organisation
intergouvernementale ou le Canada joue un rdle.

Donc, les occasions existent, les possibilités existent,
mais je pense qu’il faut se concentrer sur ce que ’on peut
faire et sur ce que 'on peut raisonnablement attendre de
la machine gouvernementale.

Mrs. Stewart: If I understood what you were saying,
you were saying you agree with what we are saying but as
long as we do not have our own corrections here in
Canada, it will be very hard to have an influence on the
international bodies, if we do not have right here in
Canada a solid policy on how we ourselves deal with
countries. To me, to come back to our own policies here
in this country, we have to deal with them first before we
can have a better influence internationally. This is not to
ignore by any means the international fora, but it has to
be in existence at home and what we are trying to do here
has to be open and understood.

M. Cyr: Je suis d’accord, mais déja le gouvernement
canadien a une politique quelconque, méme si elle n’est
pas avouée. Par ses actions ou par ses interventions dans
un secteur ou dans l'autre, on peut tirer des conclusions
sur ce qu’est la politique canadienne extérieure. Déja, on
a un point de départ. Ce n’est pas le vide absolu.

Mrs. Stewart: I guess we exist as a committee because
that policy is very weak. We are trying to do what we can
to improve it. If we simply listen to the NGOs, who are
expert in international human rights and the problems
that exist on a country-by-country basis, such as Amnesty
International and the work you do at the University of
Ottawa, we would not have a problem, we would know
how to respond. But obviously there are other things that
impinge on how we respond to the information you have.
One is the politics of every situation and I would say that
the other perhaps equally as strong in terms of our own
country’s decisions is economic considerations. It seems to
me that—and I could be wrong and I am asking your
opinion—one of the principal engines in this country of
determining our aid trade is the Export Development
Corporation. I wonder if you have had discussions with
the Export Development Corporation from a human
rights perspective and point of view, if you have talked to
them about how they are making their decisions which
might fly in the face of your human rights evidence for
particular countries. I wonder if you have had any
consultations with the EDC.

| Translation)|

There then are a couple of fields where the Sub-
Committee might be able to exert some influence one way
or another. Other organizations were also mentioned.
There is the Commonwealth with its regularly scheduled
meetings, the Organization of American States and the
UN. Canada is a member of the Human Rights
Commission and perhaps we should assess its activity
there. We could then say: Well yes, you were right to do
what you did in that case but with regard to that other
question, we feel it could have been handled differently.
The same could be said for the Conference on European
Security and Cooperation, another intergovernmental
agency where Canada has a role to play.

The opportunities are there, the potential is there, but I
think we should focus on what could be done and on
what we can reasonably expect from our own
bureaucracy.

Mme Stewart: Si je comprends bien, vous étes d’accord
avec nous, mais, d’aprés vous, nous ne pourrons guere
influencer les organismes internationaux avant d’avoir fait
le ménage chez nous, c’est-a-dire avant d’étre bien fixés
sur l'attitude qu’il conviendrait d’adopter vis-a-vis de ces
pays-la. J’estime que nous devons mettre un petit peu
d’ordre dans le schéma de nos relations extérieures si
nous voulons pouvoir exercer une influence a I’étranger.
Cela ne veut pas dire que I’on ne puisse rien faire au sein
des assemblées internationales, mais il faut que cette
action-la réponde a ce que nous faisons ici méme et il faut
que nos efforts soient a la fois connus et compris.

Mr. Cyr: I agree but the Canadian Government already
has a policy even if it is not explicit. A number of
conclusions can be drawn with respect to Canada’s foreign
policy simply by observing what it does in this or that
situation, in this or that field. That is at least a start. We
are not completely in the dark.

Mme Stewart: J'imagine qu’on a créé notre Comité
justement parce que la politique du gouvernement
manquait un peu de rigueur et nous faisons ce que nous
pouvons pour tenter de I'améliorer. Il n’y aurait pas de
probléme si nous adoptions toutes les recommandations
des ONG qui sont spécialistes des droits de la personne au
niveau international. Nous pourrions simplement nous
inspirer des rapports d’Amnistie internationale ou de vos
travaux a I’'Université d’Ottawa pour savoir ou en sont les
droits de la personne dans tel ou tel pays. Mais justement,
quelles suites donner aux renseignements .dont’. vous
disposez? Il est bien évident que chaque situation s'insere
dans un contexte politique dont il faut tenir compte; par
ailleurs, les décisions que nous prenons au Canada sont
forcément fonction de  considérations  d’ordre
économique. J’ai I'impression—corrigez-moi si vous n’§tes
pas d’accord—qu’au Canada la Société pour I’expansion
des exportations joue un role primordial en matiere
d’aide au développement. Avez-vous discuté avec les
représentants de la Société pour I'expansion des
exportations des questions touchant des droits de la
personne? Leur avez-vous demande' s’ils sont parfois
portés a prendre des décisions qui ne tiennent pas compte
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Mr. Clark: Amnesty has not. I should say straight away
that we do not make public any position on things such as
sanctions, either for or against. We do not use that part of
our knowledge to influence a situation.

However, having said that, clearly the sort of
information we provide is directly relevant to political
decisions that are being taken. Being aware of that we do
make approaches at the government level, but more
particularly at the non-government level to investment
companies, corporations and so on.

It is interesting to look at the South African example
where the Canadian record of investment, trade and so on
is very visible and is known perhaps almost down to the
last item. Yet if we look at other countries where the
human rights concerns are major, that scrutiny is not
available.

* 1630

Even now, Canada has a role to play in investment in
the developments in Iran, as I am sure will become
evident over the coming months. Why is Canada then not
able to make the same sort of links without saying we are
going to cut things off, we are not going to stop trade with
Iran and sending wheat and so on? We could at least link
that to a fairly vocal public expression of concern for the
sort of human rights violations in Iran where 1,500
people were executed last year and 38 people where
stoned to death.

It seems that there is a discrepancy in public attitude
that perhaps needs to be pursued further. This
information should be brought out so that Canada will
make those strong statements without jeopardizing our
political or economic situation. It comes back to
credibility. If we speak strongly, we are not going to
jeopardize those things. That does not enter into. But it is
a public stance that is known internationally and
presumably has some sort of weight.

Mrs. Stewart: The government does speak through the
EDC, the Export Development Corporation. It is a very
loud voice on what Canada’s stand is as a nation towards
human rights. We basically ignore them in the EDC if it
is more economically expedient to do so.

Mr. Williams: By and large, we also take no account of
human rights in our voting patterns at the World Bank
and through the IMF where Canada now has quite an
important role, given that Michael Wilson is the chairman
of the interim committee with the IMF.

[Traduction]

de ce que nous savons sur I’état des droits de la personne
dans tel ou tel pays. Avez-vous soulevé cette question
aupres de la SEE?

M. Clark: Amnistie internationale ne 1’a pas fait. Je
tiens tout de suite a dire que nous ne nous prononcons
pas en public sur des questions telles que celles des
sanctions économiques. Nous ne cherchons pas a utiliser
ce que nous savons pour influencer les décisions en ce
domaine.

Cela dit, il est bien évident que les renseignements dont
nous pouvons faire état ont un rapport direct avec les
décisions prises au niveau politique. Sachant cela, nous
intervenons effectivement auprés des gouvernements, mais
plus particuliérement, au niveau non gouvernemental,
auprés des compagnies d’investissements, des sociétés
commerciales, etc.

~

Il est intéressant, a cet égard, de citer I'’exemple de
I'Afrique du Sud ou les données concernant les
investissements canadiens, le commerce, etc, sont
parfaitement connues. Cela n’est cependant pas toujours
vrai, car on ne posséde pas les chiffres touchant d’autres
pays ol se posent pourtant de trés sérieux problémes en

matiére de droits de la personne.

En ce moment méme, les investissements canadiens
jouent un certain rdle dans la remise a flot de I’économie
iranienne. Cela va devenir de plus en plus clair au cours
des prochains mois. Pourquoi le Canada ne poserait-il pas
certaines conditions, sans aller jusqu’a menacer I'Iran de
ne plus lui vendre de blé ou mettre fin aux relations
commerciales avec ce pays? Ne pourrions-nous pas, tout
au moins, dire avec un peu plus d’énergie Ia
préoccupation que nous inspire la violation des droits de
la personne en Iran ou, I’année derniere, 1,500 personnes
ont été exécutées et 38 personnes lapidées?

Je vois 1a une différence de discours a laquelle on
pourrait peut-étre s’arréter. L’'on pourrait faire la lumiere
sur ce genre de situation afin que le Canada puisse
défendre énergiquement les droits de la personne sans
porter atteinte a nos intéréts politiques ou économiques.
Ce n’est pas en nous faisant les défenseurs des droits de la
personne que nous nuirons a nos propres intéréts. La
position du Canada est bien connue a I’étranger et je
pense qu’elle a un certain poids.

Mme Stewart: Le gouvernement s’exprime
effectivement a travers la SEE, la Société pour ’expansion
des exportations. Cela donne une indication extrémement
éloquente de la position du Canada en matiére de droits
de la personne. En fait, pour tout ce qui touche a la SEE,
nous mettons la question de coté a chaque fois que nos
intéréts économiques nous y portent.

M. Williams: D’une maniére générale, nous ne tenons
pas compte non plus des droits de la personne lorsque
nous votons dans le cadre de la Banque mondiale ou du
FMI ou le Canada joue maintenant un role considérable,
étant donné que M. Michael Wilson occupe actuellement
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There are options. Certainly there had been pressure in
the past to make use of our vote in the IMF and also in
the World Bank, for example, in the case of Chile and in
South Africa.

The Vice-Chairman: Going back to Howard’s question,
from an NGO point of view, what is the best way for us to
target an annual report and bring in officials for annual
questioning about it? We can all do things to make
ourselves feel better, which is to have people for internal
consumption, for example, say that what is happening in
Iran is bad. How does this committee then take that into
an environment where it makes a difference as to what is
taking place in Iran? Surely that is the ultimate objective.

Mr. Clark: I think the suggestion Mr. McCurdy made
should be pursued further. It would be interesting to see
what sort of intermediary role the committee could play
in that process. I think it would strengthen everybody
involved in this equation. I could see that as being very
practical, much more so than an annual report which to
me is not particularly useful in this sort of work.

Mr. McCurdy: At least not a great big congressional
report on human rights activities, but year by year.

You mentioned the Export Development Corporation.
There are all kinds of agencies and areas in which we
should be expressing a coherent policy with respect to the
way in which we treat countries with bad human rights
records. We have to have some examples. Iran is one.

Most of them are going to arise because somebody,
somehow, has given them profile—Iran, Tibet, whatever.
Apart from looking at this annual consultation and
evaluating our actions in the UN Commission, we could
look at the IMF, EDC, CIDA. There are lots of agencies
we could look at and evaluate from time to time to see
whether there is a consistent coherent policy that reflects
what I think most of us who are interested in human
rights want to see.

Mr. Williams: From my observation it seems that the
CIDA program is probably better documented and better
understood in terms of human rights than these other
ones you are talking about. These areas are definitely not
well understood in terms of the IMF, the World Bank.

[Translation)

au sein du FMI le poste de président du comité
provisoire.

Or, il y a des solutions possibles. Certains avaient, dans
le passé, sollicité le vote du Canada, au sein du FMI et de
la Banque mondiale, pour faire pression sur le Chili et
I’Afrique du Sud.

Le vice-président: Pour en revenir a la question posée
par Howard, comment devrions-nous, dans I'optique des
ONG, orienter notre rapport annuel et nos entretiens
avec les responsables que nous invitons, chaque année, a
venir répondre a nos questions? On pourrait, bien sir,
prendre diverses mesures destinées a nous donner une
illusion d’utilité et inviter des gens qui nous
confirmeraient dans notre opinion que telle ou telle chose
qui se passe en Iran est inacceptable. Mais comment
transmuer ces informations en mesures susceptibles de
peser sur la situation en Iran? C’est pourtant bien cela
que nous visons.

M. Clark: Nous devrions en revenir un peu a la
proposition de M. McCurdy. Il serait intéressant de voir si
le Comité ne pourrait pas effectivement jouer le role
d’intermédiaire. Je pense que cela renforcerait ’action de
tous les autres participants. Cela me semble étre une
mesure beaucoup plus concréte que la rédaction d’un
rapport annuel qui, dans ce domaine-ci, ne me semble pas
d’une grande utilité.

M. McCurdy: Plus utile du moins qu’un rapport global
sur les efforts consentis en faveur des droits de la
personne, mais nous pourrions suivre, d’année en année,
la situation dans tel ou tel pays.

Vous avez parlé de la Société pour l’expansion des
exportations. Or il y a une foule d’organismes auprés
desquels nous pourrions intervenir pour apporter un peu
de cohérence aux liens que ces divers organismes
entretiennent avec des pays qui ne respectent pas les
droits de la personne.

On ne peut quand méme pas passer de telles situations
sous silence. La situation des droits de la personne ne peut
que s’améliorer, justement, si l'on ébruite les cas de
violations pour faire connaitre ce qui se passe, par
exemple, en Iran ou au Tibet. Nous pourrions non
seulement procéder a cette consultation annuelle et a
I’examen des initiatives prises par le Canada au sein de la
Commission des droits de I’homme des Nations-Unies,
mais nous pourrions également examiner l’action de
notre pays au sein du FMI, ainsi que I'activité de la SEE
et de ’ACDI. Il existe de nombreux organismes dont nous
pourrions examiner l’action afin de voir si c_elle-ci se situg
dans le cadre d’une politique cohérente qui correspond a
I'impulsion que nous voudrions donner aux droits de la
personne.

M. Williams: J’ai 'impression que l'on connait et que
'on comprend probablement mieux l'action de I'ACDI
relativement aux droits de ’'homme que celle des autres
organismes que vous avez cités. Il est clair que c’est
beaucoup moins évident dans le cas du FMI ou de la
Banque mondiale.
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Mr. McCurdy: Whatever you call this outfit that
approves the sale of arms—

Mr. Williams: The Export Control Division of External
Affairs. Yes, I think there is some very interesting work to
be done there.

#1635

The Vice-Chairman: Could I just change the topic a
little bit. One of the constant considerations we have in
this committee in terms of our weekly discussions is the
percentage of our time should we set aside, not for NGOs
like yourself, which have an umbrella interest, but groups
specific to countries that have problems. Do you see that
as being, off the top of your head, a waste of our time, or
something that we should set aside a lot of time for? Is
there a real need in Canada for them to have a public
forum? Or have they plenty of public forums and we
should be doing other work? Could you just give any
ideas that you may have on that.

It is a very difficult question for us, because we
constantly have people asking to see us, and there are
only so many hours in the week. What you think the
balance might be there?

Mr. Clark: I refer it to the credibility that your
committee can give to some of those groups who appear.

The Vice-Chairman: I think that is it. Like any other
committee there are people who come to see you to
promote their case and make sure they are heard, both for
consumption in Canada and consumption elsewhere.
Some groups are very aggressive and some groups are not.
We have requests already backlogged and we are trying to
figure out how much time to spend on this. I am just
curious as to whether you had any opinions on that.

Mr. Clark: [ would see it as being a danger that your
committee could be drawn very easily into that sort of a
situation. My immediate sense is that the committee as it
grows in its own knowledge and wisdom will be able to
determine sort of country-specific situations where such a
hearing is warranted.

I certainly would not say to have none of that at all. I
do not think that would be at all appropriate. I think
there are situations about which it is a responsibility for
this committee to hear information, but in a very selective
and very discriminating sort of way. However, I think it
may be this committee is the only committee that can pay

close attention to the human rights element of those
situations.

I know such groups will appear before the external
affairs committee and before the refugee committee and
so on, but all of those are also very specifically aimed,
whereas [ think your mandate does bestow on you a
certain responsibility in that area. How you sort out the

[Traduction]

M. McCurdy: Comment appelez-vous cet organisme
chargé d’approuver des ventes d’armes. . .

M. Williams: C’est la Direction du contrdle des
exportations aux Affaires extérieures. Oui, je pense qu’on
pourrait utilement se pencher sur lactivité de cet
organisme.

Le vice-président: Permettez-moi de changer un peu de
sujet. Au sein du comité, nous nous interrogeons
constamment sur la maniére dont nous devrions répartir
notre temps. Je ne parle pas des ONG tels que celle que
vous représentez et qui se spécialise dans I’ensemble du
domaine, mais je parle du temps qu’il conviendrait de
réserver a des groupes qui s’intéressent particulierement a
tel ou tel pays. Cela représente-il, d’aprés vous, une perte
de temps ou devrions-nous y consacrer pas mal de temps?
Est-il important de leur offrir une plate-forme ou
devrions-nous réserver nos efforts a autre chose? Avez-
vous quelque idée sur cela?

Il nous est trés difficile de décider cela, car on nous
demande constamment l’autorisation de venir devant le
comité pour faire valoir tel ou tel point de vue, mais
notre temps n’est pas illimité. Quel serait, d’aprés vous,
I’équilibre a trouver?

M. Clark: Je crois qu’en accueillant certains groupes,
vous contribuez a asseoir leur crédibilité.

Le vice-président: Je pense que c’est effectivement cela.
C’est la méme chose devant les autres comités; il y a des
gens qui veulent comparaitre pour se faire entendre et
avancer leur cause, que ce soit aux yeux des Canadiens ou
aux yeux d’autres parties. Certains groupes se montrent
trés agressifs, et d’autres non. Nous avons déja pris pas
mal de retard par rapport aux demandes qui nous ont été
envoyées et nous allons devoir décider comment répartir
notre temps de la maniére la plus efficace. J’aurais aimé
avoir votre avis sur ces questions.

M. Clark: A mon avis, votre comité risque justement
d’étre entrainé dans ce genre de situation. Je pense que
plus votre comité sera au fait de la question, et plus il
pourra se former une vue d’ensemble, plus il sera en
mesure de décider s’il convient, dans tel ou tel cas,
d’entendre tel ou tel intervenant.

Je ne pense pas qu’il faille envisager de n’en accueillir
aucun. Je ne pense pas que ce serait une solution. Je
pense au contraire qu’il y a des cas ou ce comité doit
effectivement recueillir des informations, mais en triant
les intervenants et en faisant un choix. A mon avis, votre
comité est peut étre le seul a pouvoir se pencher avec
autant d’attention sur tout ce qui touche aux droits de la
personne.

Je pense que ces mémes groupes seront probablement
appelés a comparaitre devant le Comité des affaires
étrangéres et devant le Comité des réfugiés. Mais ces
divers comités ont, eux aussi, un mandat trés précis et
votre mandat vous impose effectivement une certaine
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ones you wish to hear and the ones that you simply will
set aside, I really do not know.

In earlier committee reports on things like “Human
Rights Violations Behind the Iron Curtain”, I think the
fear was that the report really did not help very much.
There was a long process of listening to a lot of people; a
report came out that did not seem to help anybody’s
knowledge of the situation other than the things that
everybody knew already. I think it is much more
important to have something that is very timely, that
happens very reactively to a serious and major situation,
which will then feed into a broader network of
information within a short period of time that is going to
shape Canadian statements and so on.

[ think there is a role for the committee in a public
policy forming way that is perhaps simply reactive. By
being there, by listening and by questioning you are part
of that process, and I think that is important.

Ms Greene: We were thinking about having, say, one
day per month to focus on a particular group or a
particular country. It seems to be that there is a consensus
that Iran has to be the worst violator of human rights. I
am just thinking about an examination of that, as it
impacts Canada enormously.

I think of the number of immigration and refugee
people who are involved. Is it 25% of the population that
is supposed to have left? There are a lot of ways in which
we as a country are influenced by the events in Iran,
beyond just the trade questions and that sort of thing. It
seems to me that might be an appropriate place to start in
that particular area. Do you agree?

Mr. Clark: I could not possibly agree because we shy
away from saying that one situation is worse than another.
We do not make that sort of comparison.

Ms Greene: You have more human rights violations
documented in Iran, do you not, than in other countries?

Mr. Clark: Yes, it is certainly a very bad situation. But
I could probably list another ten that in their own way
would be equally as serious. You cannot measure human
rights violations on those terms. I think your committee
may well be able to arrive at some assessment like that. I
do not think you should expect us to point out the worst
country and advise you to spend some time on it.

= 1640

You can analyse a whole lot of factors, including the
size of trade, the political links, and all of those things

[Translation)]

responsabilité dans ce domaine. Cela dit, je ne vois pas
trés bien comment faire le tri parmi tous les groupes qui
cherchent a comparaitre devant vous.

Certains ont pensé, je pense, que des rapports tels que
le rapport sur les violations des droits de la personne
derriére le rideau de fer n’ont guére contribué a faire
avancer la situation. Beaucoup de gens avaient été
entendus et le rapport qui a été publié ne semblait pas
vraiment ajouter grand chose a ce qu’on savait déja. Il me
semble préférable d’intervenir au bon moment, de serrer
de plus prés la réalité et de réagir de maniére ponctuelle a
une situation grave. Cette réaction s’insére alors dans un
réseau de renseignements et dans un faisceau de mesures
qui correspondent étroitement a [’actualité et peuvent
influencer l’attitude de notre gouvernement, de notre
opinion publique et d’un certain nombre d’organismes
concernés.

C’est dire que par ses réactions mémes, le comité peut
influencer la formulation de nos politiques. En
interrogeant, en écoutant, en vous penchant sur la
question, vous participez a ce qui peut et doit étre fait et
je pense que ce role-1a est loin d’étre négligeable.

Mme Greene: Nous avions envisagé de consacrer une
journée par mois a un groupe donné, ou a la situation
dans un pays donné. Nous semblons étre tous d’accord sur
le fait que I'Iran est, pour l'instant, le pire violateur des
droits de la personne. Je pensais commencer par ce cas-la,
étant donné son importance vis-a-vis du Canada.

Cela concerne un grand nombre d’immigrants et de
réfugiés. N’a-t-on pas prétendu que 25 p. 100 de la
population avait quitté ce pays? La situation en Iran nous
influence a plusieurs égards et non seulement en ce qui
concerne le commerce. Cela me semble étre un bon point
de départ. Qu’en pensez-vous?

M. Clark: Je ne peux pas dire que je suis d’accord, car
nous évitons de dire que la situation de tel ou tel pays est
pire que celle que 'on peut constater ailleurs. Nous ne
faisons pas ce genre de comparaison.

Mme Greene: Mais n’avez-vous pas relevé, en Iran, un
plus grand nombre de violations des droits de la personne
que dans les autres pays?

M. Clark: Il est bien évident que la situation en Iran est
extrémement préoccupante. Cela dit, je pourrais
probablement vous citer dix autres pays ou la sjtuauon est
peut-étre un peu différente mais tout aussi préoccupante.
On ne peut pas mesurer de cette fagon les atteintes aux
droits de la personne. Je pense que votre Comité pourrait
effectivement en arriver a un certain classement selon la
gravité de la situation, mais je ne pense pas qu’il nous
appartienne a nous de dire qu’un pays donn§ est plus
coupable qu’un autre et de vous conseiller de lui accorder
une attention prioritaire.

Vous pouvez tenir compte de tout un ensemble de
facteurs, y compris I'importance des liens commerciaux,
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that are not part of our mandate. You may well determine
that Iran is a country that you want us to focus on during
the month of April, and we would expect to appear to
give you our part of that picture. But not the other way
around. This is what I mean about the committee growing
in its knowledge and wisdom of what is going on in the
world. The sort of things that Howard McCurdy was
talking about is part of the way the committee would be
able to obtain that and arrive at that decision.

M. Cyr: Comme le dit M. Clark, Amnistie
internationale ne prend jamais position quant a la gravité
ou quant a une espeéce de classement des pires pays en
matiére de droits de la personne.

L’exemple qui me vient a I’esprit est celui de la Chine.
Tout le monde a déploré la situation extrémement
dramatique du mois de juin, mais comme nous vous
I’avions rappelé, un an auparavant, la situation était
semblable en Birmanie et la réaction avait été beaucoup
moins vive que dans le cas de la Chine. La gravité était
exactement la méme dans les deux cas. Il y a également de
nombreux pays africains ou la situation est extrémement
grave. On pourrait, de la méme fagon, les citer comme
des pays méritant une attention particuliére.

En fait, il faut se méfier un peu de ce que j’appelle les
pays vedettes en matiere de droits de la personne.
Malheureusement, il y a des pays tristement vedettes. Le
Chili I’a été pendant un certain temps, et c’est maintenant
I'Iran. Cela a tendance a occulter ce qui se passe ailleurs.

Comme le dit M. Clark, c’est au Sous-comité d’établir
ses critéres, qui peuvent étre tout a fait différents des
crittres des ONG, par exemple; c’est une question
d’influence politique, de possibilité réelle d’action et
d’intervention du Canada dans un pays ou un autre. Il est
important de tenir compte de cela.

Par ailleurs, quel que soit le pays que vous choisissiez,

notre  organisation  pourra  vous donner  des
renseignements sur ce pays.
Le vice-président: J'ai une question sur la

francophonie. Quels sont les problémes spéciaux dans le
cas de la francophonie?

M. Cyr: Les problémes particuliers a la francophonie
ne sont pas des problemes liés au fait qu’il s’agit de pays
francophones. Certains pays ont un dossier trés noir en
matiére de droits de la personne, notamment le Zaire qui
sera le pays hote du Sommet francophone. On y constate
de graves violations des droits de la personne. Le Vietnam,
qui fal‘t partie de la francophonie, est un autre pays ol on
a de serieuses préoccupations. Plusieurs autres pays, a des
degrés divers, soit pour des questions d’application de la
peine de mort, soit pour des questions de torture ou de

[Traduction]

des liens politiques ainsi que divers autres éléments qui
dépassent les considérations qui nous sont propres. Vous
pourriez décider de consacrer le mois d’avril plus
spécialement a I'Iran et nous pourrions alors comparaitre
et vous faire part des informations que nous possédons sur
ce pays. Nous ne pouvons pas faire I'inverse. C’est un peu
ce que je voulais dire lorsque j'ai parlé des connaissances
de plus en plus précises que votre Comité pourrait
accumuler en ce domaine. Cela se rattache a ce que disait
tout a I’heure Howard McCurdy lorsqu’il évoquait la
maniére dont le Comité pourrait se documenter pour
prendre ce genre de décision.

Mr. Cyr: As Mr. Clark says, Amnesty International
never attempts to grade human rights violations according
to their seriousness and does not list human rights
violators in ascending or descending order of gravity.

The Chinese example comes to mind. Everyone was
extremely concerned with the dramatic events in June of
last year but, as we had pointed out, the year before, a
very similar situation had occured in Burma, yet the
people did not react as strongly as they did to what
happened in China. And yet the situation was equally
serious in both cases. There are also a number of African
nations where the situation is extremely serious and
which we could also single out for special attention.

I think we should refrain from singling out for
particular attention those nations that are making the
headlines in terms of human rights. There are,
unfortunetaly, a number of nations that are in the
spotlight. Chile was one of them and now it is Iran. But
this tends to make us forget about what is going on in
other places.

As Mr. Clark says, it is up to the subcommittee to
formulate its own standards, which could be quite
different from those used by NGO’s. We should take into
account the political influence that Canada could bring to
bear on this or that situation. And the potential for
weighing in with effective measures. We must not lose
sight of that.

Our organization can give you information on any
country you wish to focus on.

The Vice-Chairman: I have a question concerning
Francophone nations. Are there problems particular to
these Francophone nations?

Mr. Cyr: The problems which are particular to
Francophone countries have nothing to do with the fact
that they are French speaking countries. In some
countries, such as Zaire, which will be hosting the next
Francophone summit, the human rights situation is
extremely poor. There have been some very serious
human rights violations in that country. We are also very
concerned with the situation in Vietnam, another
Francophone nation. We have had to intervene in several
other countries, because of the way they apply the death
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disparition, font 'objet de notre intervention d’une fagon
ou d’une autre.

The Vice-Chairman: If there are no further questions, I
would like to thank you very much for coming in and
taking the time to explain your perspective. As you can
see, we are very much open to suggestions. If there is
anything you think of later, please drop us a note. We
hope to have our game plan in motion as soon as we
finish with our earlier witnesses and begin our work in
the new fiscal year.

The meeting is adjourned.

[Translation)

penalty, or because they practice torture or because
people are missing.

Le vice-président: Si personne n’a d’autre question 2
poser, je vais remercier nos témoins d’étre venus pour
nous exposer leur point de vue. Comme vous avez pu le
constater, nous sommes ouverts aux conseils et, si une
idée vous vient a I’esprit dans les jours qui suivent, je vous
demande de nous envoyer un mot et de nous en faire
bénéficier. J’espére qu’aprés en avoir fini avec nos
premiers témoins, nous pourrons, dés le début de la
nouvelle année financiére, mettre en oeuvre le plan que
nous aurons décidé.

La séance est levée.
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[Text] [Traduction)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights met in
camera at 3:40 o’clock p.m., in Room 371, West Block, this day,
the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay, presiding,

Members of the Sub-Committee present. Barbara Greene,
Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

Acting Member present: Edna Anderson for Walter McLean,
Howard McCurdy for Svend Robinson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn, William Young,
Research Officers.

Witnesses: From External Affairs: Chris Westdal, Intrnational
Organization Bureau; Dan Livermore, Human Rights and Social
Affairs. From the Canadian International Development Agency
(CIDA): Nicole Sénécal, Vice-President, Policy Branch; Clovis
Demers, Adviser to the President, Howard Smith, Senior policy
Advisor.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the Standing
Committee on Human Rights and the Status of Disabled Persons
dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and Tuesday, December 19, 1989,
the Sub-committee proceeded to a briefing session. (See Minutes
of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989, Issue 1).

By unanimous consent, It was agreed—That Mr. Lazzlo Tokes
be invited by the Sub-Committee on an informal manner to
discuss with Members of the Sub-Committee and some other
Members of Parliament interested in International Human
Rights on Thursday, March 22, 1990.

Chris Westdal, Nicole Sénécal and Clovis Demers made an
opening statement and along with other witnesses answered
questions.

At 5:50 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 1990
®

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights met in
camera at 3:45 o’clock p.m., in Room 701, 151 Sparks, this day,
the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay, presiding.

Members of the Sub-Committee present. Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

Acting Members present. Edna Anderson for Walter McLean,
Lynn Hunter for Svend Robinson.

Iq attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, William Young, Research Offi-
cers.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the Standing
Committee on Human Rights and the Status of Disabled Persons
dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and Tuesday, December 19, 1989,
the Sub-Committee resumed consideration of its future busi-
?css. I(SSee Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989,

ssue 1).

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 15 h 40, dans la
piéce 371 de I'édifice de I'Ouest, sous la présidence de Maurice
Tremblay (président).

Membres du Sous—comité présents: Barbara Greene, Christine
Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

Membres suppléants présents: Edna Anderson remplace Walter
McLean; Howard McCurdy remplace Svend Robinson.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn et William Young,
attachés de recherche.

Témoins: Du ministére des Affaires extérieures: Chris Westdal,
Direction générale des organisations internationales; Dan
Livermore, Droits de la personne et Affaires sociales. De I’Agence
canadienne de développement international (ACDI): Nicole
Sénécal, vice-présidente, Direction de la politique; Clovis
Demers, conseiller auprés du président; Howard Smith, conseil-
ler principal.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre 1989,
le Sous-comité tient une séance d’information (voir les Procés—-
verbaux et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989, fascicule n° I).

Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le jeudi, 22
mars 1990, le Sous-comité invite Lazzlo Tokes a un entretien
informel avec ses membres et d’autres députés qui s’intéressent
aux droits de la personne au niveau international.

Chris Westdal, Nicole Sénécal et Clovis Demers font un
exposé et, avec les autres témoins, répondent aux questions.

A 17 h 50, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

LE MARDI 3 AVRIL 1990
()

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 15 h 45, dans la
piéce 701 au 151, rue Sparks, sous la présidence de Maurice
Tremblay (président).

Membres du Sous-comité présents: Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

Membres suppléants présents: Edna Anderson remplace Walter
McLean; Lynn Hunter remplace Svend Robinson.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement. Allan McChesney et William Young, attachés de
recherche.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre 1989,
le Sous-comité poursuit 'étude de ses travaux a venir (voir les
Procés-verbaux et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989, fascicule
n® 1)
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—By unanimous consent, it was agreed, —That the Sub-Com-
mittee retain the services of Allan McChesney through the
Library of Parliament, for the period of April 1st, 1990 to
March 31, 1991, provided that the total cost do not exceed
$50.000.00.

—By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the
Chairman table a report to the Standing Committee on
Human Rights and the Status of Disabled Persons,
requesting that the Standing Committee seek from the
House of Commons authorization to travel for three
members of the Sub-Committee on International Human
Rights, representing each party, in order for them to
participate for 5 days in the second meeting of the
Conference on the Human Dimension of the Conference on
Security and Co-operation in Europe (CSCE), which will be
held in Copenhagen from June 5 to 29, 1990, and to meet with
international human rights organizations which will be there
for that occasion, and that the appropriate staff do accompany
the Sub-Committee members.

—By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That Ed Broadbent
from the International Centre on Human Rights and
Democratic Development be invited to appear before the
Sub-Committee in order to brief the members on the role of
this organization.

—By unanimous consent, it was agreed,—That the Inter-
Church Committee on Human Rights in Latin America be
invited to appear.

—By unanimous consent, it was agreed,— That the Sub-Com-
mittee commence a study on the review of Canada’s policy
regarding Human Rights vis-a-vis international financial
institutions, international trade, including military equipment
exports, and that the Sub-Committee endeavour to table
before the end of June 1990 an interim report on its study.

—By unanimous consent, it was agreed, —That the Sub-Com-
mittee endeavour to table a global report before the end of
December, 1990.

At 4:35 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

Marie Louise Paradis
Clerk of the Sub—Committee

TUESDAY, APRIL 10, 1990
®

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights met at
3:38 o’clock p.m., in Room 208, West Block, this day, the
Chairman Maurice Tremblay, presiding.

Members of the Sub-Committee present. Barbara Greene,
David Kilgour, Maurice Tremblay, Christine Stewart.

Acting Members present. Maurizio Bevilacqua for David
Walker, Howard McCurdy for Svend Robinson.

—Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le

Sous-comité retienne les services d’Allan McChesney, de la

Bibliothéque du Parlement, pour la période allant du 1°* avril

;990 a; 31 mars 1991, le cofit total ne devant pas dépasser
0,0008.

—Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
président soumette un rapport au Comité permanent des
droits de la personne et de la condition des personnes
handicapées le priant de demander a4 la Chambre des
communes une autorisation de déplacement: trois
membres du Sous-comité, représentant chaque parti,
participeraient pendant cing jours & la deuxiéme réunion
de la Conférence sur la dimension humaine de Ia
Conférence sur la sécurité et la coopération en Europe,
réunion qui aura lieu @ Copenhague, du 5 au 9 juin 1990, et a
laquelle assisteront des délégués d’organismes internationaux
de défense des droits de la personne; le personnel requis
accompagnerait les membres du Sous-comité.

—Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que Ed
Broadbent, du Centre international des droits de la personne
et du développement démocratique, vienne informer le
Sous-comité du role de cet organisme.

—Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le Comité
inter-Eglises des droits de 1a personne en Amérique latine soit
invité a comparaitre.

—Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
Sous-comité examine la revue de la position officielle du
Canada en matiére des droits de la personne, vis-a-vis des
institutions financiéres internationales, le commerce extérieur
incluant les ventes de matériel militaire, et que le Sous-comité
envisage de déposer un rapport provisoire avant la fin de juin.

—Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que le
Sous-comité prévoit déposer un rapport final au plus tard a la
fin de décembre.

A 16 h 35, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiére du Sous—comité

Marie Louise Paradis

LE MARDI 10 AVRIL 1990
®

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 38, dans la salle 208 de
I’édifice de I'Ouest, sous la présidence de Maurice Tremblay
(président).

Membres du Sous—comité présents: Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay.

Membres suppléants présents: Maurizio Bevilacqua rpmplace
David Walker; Howard McCurdy remplace Svend Robinson.
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Other Members present. Mark Assad, Joseph Volpe, Beth
Phinney.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn, Research Officers.

Witnesses: From the International Center for Human Rights and
Democratic Development: Hon. Ed Broadbent, P.C., M.P.

In accordance with its mandate under Standing Order 108(3)c)
the Committee proceeded to a briefing session on the role of the
International Centre for Human Rights and Democratic
Development.

Hon. Ed Broadbent, PC., M.P. made an opening statement
and answered questions.

At 4:50 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

Eugene Morawski

Committee Clerk

Autres députés présents: Mark Assad, Joseph Volpe, Beth
Phinney.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement. Allan McChesney et Jack Stilborn, attachés de
recherche.

Témoin: Du Centre international des droits de la personne et du
développement démocratique: Lhon. Ed Broadbent, C.P.

Conformément au mandat que lui confere I'alinéa 108(3)c) du
Réglement, le Sous-comité tient une séance d’information sur
le role du Centre international des droits de la personnes et du
développement démocratique.

Lhon. Ed Broadbent fait une déclaration et répond aux
questions.

A 16 h 50, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

Greffier de comité

Eugene Morawski
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Le président: A I'ordre!
Comme nous avons quorum, je déclare la séance ouverte.

We are very fortunate to have with us today the Hon. Ed
Broadbent, who is now the president of the International Centre
for Human Rights and Democratic Development.

As you know, Mr. Broadbent, your board is very new, but
so is our committee also very new. This centre was
established by an act of Parliament in June 1988, and you
were appointed president of this centre only a few months
ago. We know that already you have had many meetings and have
travelled throughout the world. We appreciate having you here,
because as members of this committee we would like to have
more information on what you plan to do.

I am going to give you, Mr. Broadbent, a few minutes to make
a statement, after which members will have their question
period.

L’honorable Ed Broadbent, c.p. (Centre international des
droits de la personne et du développement démocratique):
Merci beaucoup, monsieur le président. C’est nouveau pour moi
d’étre témoin, et j’espére que j'aimerai 'expérience de ce coté de
la table. Dans le passé, j’aimais beaucoup étre de I'autre coté.
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I am very happy to be before this subcommittee to speak
briefly and then respond to whatever questions committee
members may have about the new International Centre for
Human Rights and Democratic Development.

As members will know, the mandate of this centre, in
global terms, is an important mandate in terms of what is
now going on in the world. We are instructed by Parliament,
by legislation that established the centre, to do whatever we
can to initiate, encourage and facilitate the development and
entrenchment of human rights and democratic institutions
virtually anywhere on the globe. The legislative mandate is
specific in the sense that it includes in the legislation a
reference to the International Bill of Human Rights, which in
turn includes the UN Declaration of Human Rights as well as a
variety of covenants and protocols that have been developed and
adopted by the United Nations in the last three or four decades.

The mandate, then, is a very broad one. In terms of human
rights and democratic practices, it includes civil, political, social,
cultural and economic rights. So the scope for action is not only
global in terms of where we may be active, but it is global in the
breadth of the mandate itself.

The Chairman: Order, please!
Since we have a quorum, I will call the meething to order.

Nous avons le grand plaisir d’avoir avec nous aujourd’hui
I’Honorable Ed Broadbent, qui est maintenant président du
Centre international des droits de la personne et du développe-
ment démocratique.

Comme vous le savez, M. Broadbent, votre commission
est trés récente, tout comme d’ailleurs, notre comité. Ce
Centre a été créé par une loi du Parlement en juin 1988 et
vous avez ét€ nommé a la téte de ce Centre il n’y a que
quelques mois. Nous savons que vous avez déja tenu des
réunions et que vous avez voyagé dans plusieurs pays dans
différentes parties du monde. Nous sommes heureux de vous
avoir ici parce que en tant que membre de ce comité nous
aimerions en savoir davantage sur vos projets.

Je vais vous accorder quelques minutes, M. Broadbent, pour
que vous nous fassiez un exposé, apres lequel les membres
aimeraient vous poser des questions.

The Honorable Ed Broadbent, p.c. (International Centre for
Human Rights and Democratic Development): Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman. It is quite new for me to be a witness and
I hope I will like standing on this side of the table. In the past,
I really liked being on the other side.

Je suis trés heureux de comparaitre devant ce sous-comité et
je ferai un bref exposé aprés quoi je répondrai aux questions que
les membres du comité pourraient avoir au sujet du Centre
international des droits de la personne et du développement
démocratique.

Comme le savent les membres, ce centre a, d’'une fagon
générale, une vaste mission pour ce qui est des événements
internationaux. Dans la Loi portant création du centre, le
Parlement I'a chargé de prendre toutes les mesures possibles
pour encourager et faciliter le développement et le
renforcement des droits de la personne et des institutions
démocratiques dans quelque pays que ce soit. Cette loi parle
de la déclaration internationale des droits de 'homme, qui
reprend & son tour la déclaration des droits de 'homme des
Nations Unies ainsi que diverses conventions et protocoles que
les Nations Unies ont élaborés depuis quelques dizaines
d’années, ce qui vient préciser la mission confiée au centre.

Cette mission est donc trés large. Pour ce qui est des droits de
la personne et des pratiques démocratiques, elle comprend les
droits civils, politiques, sociaux, culturels et économiques. De
sorte que I'action du centre est non seulement globale pour ce
qui est des lieux ol il peut étre présent mais également globale
pour ce qui est de 'ampleur de sa mission.
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The second point I could mention at this time to
members of the committee is to underline that although we
may act anywhere on the globe, the money that has been
allocated by the legislation to the centre must be spent in
developing countries—some $15 million over the five years that
the funding is provided. This money must, I repeat, be used in
developing countries. As committee members will know, as a
centre we can raise additional funds. If we are now to be spending
in parts of the globe in terms of programs outside a developing
country area, we would have to get additional funding.

The other point I would add about the mandate at this
point is simply that in working with groups or institutions
outside of our country, we may do so as long as we are
consistent with the laws of the country that we may happen
to work within. Not to emphasize the point but to draw
attention to it, it means that we may be working with citizens
within a country who are acting in accord with the laws of
their country, but it may not always be with the wholehearted
support of the government of the day in that particular country.
I would add that it is inextricably part of the broad human rights
mandate. We could find ourselves from time to time supporting
men and women who are acting consistently, I repeat, with the
laws of their nation, but often they will find themselves, in a
number of countries, in open conflict with the governments in
those given countries.

Comme vous le savez, le conseil de ce Centre a été lancé le 22
mars. La premiére réunion de notre conseil aura lieu la semaine
prochaine, les 19 et 20 avril. A ce moment-13, le conseil du Centre
va prendre les décisions concernant les réglements du Centre, le
site 2 Montréal et les politiques.

Today, perhaps I could indicate to members of the
committee, as a request that came from your chairman in
conversation, a summary at least of what I have been doing.
As I said, the board has just come into being and it will be
making some policy decisions at its first meeting next week. I
have been active since January 15, the date of my appointment,
and I would like to indicate to you some of the things I have been
up to, things that are your right to know.
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Shortly after my appointment with the NGO community
I had meetings in this city, in Toronto and in Montreal, and
meetings in Halifax and Vancouver will be forthcoming.
Additionally, I went to Geneva to meet with important
officials associated with human rights work. I met with Mr.
Martensen, the Under-Secretary General for Human Rights for
the United Nations. I also met with Thorvald Stoltenberg, the
United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, as well as a
number of other officials active in the global human rights
movement.

During the course of the week I was in Geneva, I spent
virtually half the time meeting with international NGOs. If
you want to single out one group of citizens who have made
the greatest impact during the last few decades in ensuring

[Traduction]

Je voudrais aborder un second aspect avec les membres
du comité et souligner que si nous pouvons intervenir dans
quelque pays que ce soit, les fonds qui ont été attribués par
la Loi au centre doivent étre dépensés dans les pays en voie
de développement—soit une somme de quelque 15 millions de
dollars répartie sur cing ans. Comme je I'ai indiqué, cette somme
doit étre utilisée dans les pays en voie de développement.
Comme le savent les membres du comité, le centre a le droit de
rechercher un financement complémentaire. Si nous décidons
de consacrer des fonds a des programmes qui ne s’adressent pas
a un pays en voie de développement, il nous faut obtenir un
financement complémentaire.

Je voudrais également mentionner ici que lorsque nous
trvaillons avec des groupes ou des organismes a I'extérieur du
Canada, nous devons nous limiter a ceux qui respectent les
lois du pays ou nous travaillons. Je voudrais attirer votre
attention sur le fait que cela peut nous amener a travailler
avec les citoyens d’un pays qui respectent les lois de leur pays
mais sans l'appui du gouvernement de ce pays. J'ajouterais
qu’il n’est pas possible de dissocier cet aspect de notre
mission en matiére de droits de la personne. Il pourrait nous
arriver d’offrir un appui a des hommes et a des femmes qui tout
en respectant, j'insiste sur ce point, les lois de leur pays, se
trouvent néanmoins, dans certaines régions, en conflit ouvert
avec le gouvernement de leur pays.

As you know, the members of the Board were appointed on
March 22. The Board will have its first meeting next week on
April 19 and 20 and it will decide on the by-laws of the Centre,
the Montreal site and it will make some policy decisions.

Je pourrais peut-étre donner aux membres de ce comité,
comme me lI'a demandé votre président au cours d'une
conversation, un résumé de mes propres activités. Comme je
I'ai mentionné, ce conseil vient tout juste d’étre nommé et il
sera appelé a adopter certaines politiques au moment de sa
premiere réunion la semaine prochaine. J'ai été trés occupé
depuis le 15 janvier, date de ma nomination, et j'aimerais vous
mentionner ce a quoi je me suis occupé, comme vous avez le
droit de le savoir.

Peu aprés ma nomination auprés de la communauté des
ONG, j’ai tenu des réunions ici, & Toronto et a Montréal et
j’en aurai bient6t a Halifax et a Vancouver. De plus, je me
suis rendu a Genéve pour rencontrer des hauts—fonctionnaires
qui travaillent dans le domaine des droits de la personne. J'ai
rencontré M. Martensen, le sous-secrétaire général des droits de
’homme auprés des Nations Unies. J’ai également rencontré
Thorvald Stoltenberg, le haut-commissaire des Nations Unies
pour les réfugiés, ainsi qu'un certain nombre d’autres fonction-
naires qui s’occupent du mouvement international des droits de
la personne.

Pendant la semaine que jai passée a Geneve, jai
pratiquement consacré la moitié de mon temps a des
réunions avec des ONG internationales. S’il fallait choisir le
groupe de citoyens qui a eu le plus grand effet sur le respect




3:8

International Human Rights

10-4-1990

[Text]

that human rights were established as rights in a number of
states around the world, it is the NGO community. It has
been  ordinary citizens—not  political parties or
governments—who have organized to establish their own
rights in given countries. The international NGO community is
avery important group of world citizens. Our centre, when it gets
under way, intends to work co-operatively with this community.

So I did spend a fair bit of time in Geneva meeting with the
international NGO community.

Following that trip I went to Strasbourg and spent 48 hours
with officials of the European Parliament. During my stay there
not only were there discussions about the human rights part of
the mandate of the centre, but also discussions about what is
taking place in eastern Europe in terms of the development of
democratic institutions.

Most recently I was in both Costa Rica and El Salvador.
The week before last I spent 24 hours in San Salvador
meeting with Father Michael Cherney, a Canadian Jesuit
who has taken over—in a tremendously courageous
fashion—the responsibility of heading the Jesuit Human Rights
Centre at the Jesuit University in San Salvador. This is the same
centre where in November of this year six priests were
assassinated, one of whom Reverend Cherney is replacing as a
teacher of philosophy. He was only there for a couple of weeks
before he was asked to assume the position of director of that
centre of human rights.

I think Canadians should be proud of the courage and
commitment that requires in a country still undergoing—al-
though there have been improvements in recent weeks—a very
high—from the point of view of civil liberties in general—and
unacceptable level of infringement of human rights.

So I met with Reverend Cherney and others to discuss the
general situation in El Salvador.

I spent almost a week in Costa Rica where I met with
the staff of the Inter-American Institute of Human Rights,
which is headquarted in San Jose. They brought in experts on
human rights matters from some 15 Latin American
countries—legal experts, academics and lawyers. Seminars that
would have taken place anyway were organized to coincide with
my visit so I could get a better understanding of their respective
countries.
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At the same time, in addition to these legal experts, meetings
were arranged by CODAUCA, which is the acronym for the
Central American commission for the defence of human rights.
They brought into San Jose during the same period NGO
representatives from a dozen to 15 Latin American countries.
Discussions were extremely useful, both with the experts and
with the NGO activists.

[Translation)

des droits de 'homme dans un certain nombre de pays au
cours des derniéres dizaine d’années, il faudrait choisir la
communauté des ONG. Ce sont des citoyens ordinaires—et
non des partis politiques ou des gouvernements—qui se sont
organisés pour défendre les droits de la personne dans certains
pays. La communauaté internationale des ONG représente un
groupe trés important des citoyens du monde. Nous avons
I'intention, dés que nos travaux vont démarrer, de travailler de
concert avec cette communauté.

Jai donc passé pas mal de temps & Genéve avec la
communauté internationale des ONG.

A la suite de ce voyage, je me suis rendu a Strasbourg et j’ai
passé 48 heures avec des représentants du Parlement de
I’Europe. Au cours de ce séjour, nous avons abordé non
seulement la question des droits de 'homme dans le cadre de la
mission du centre mais également des événements qui ont lieu
en Europe de V'Est pour ce qui est du développement
d’institutions démocratiques.

Plus récemment, je me suis rendu au Costa Rica et au
Salvador. Il y a deux semaines, j'ai passé¢ 24 heures au
Salvador et j'ai rencontré le pere Michael Cherney, un
Jésuite canadien qui a repris—et fait ainsi preuve d’un
courage extraordinaire—la téte du Centre jésuite des droits de
la personne de I'Université jésuite de San Salvador. Il s’agit du
centre dans lequel six prétres ont été assassinés en novembre
dernier, et le pere Cherney remplace d’ailleurs un de ces prétres
au poste de professeur de philosophie. Il était 1a depuis quelques
semaines seulement lorsqu’on lui a demandé d’accepter le poste
de directeur du centre des droits de la personne.

Je pense que les Canadiens devraient étre fiers du courage et
des efforts que cela demande dans un pays ot I'on constate des
violations nombreuses et trés graves des droits de la personne—
et des libertés civiles en général—méme s’il y a eu certaines
améliorations ces derniéres semaines.

J’ai donc rencontré le pére Cherney et d’autres avec qui j'ai
discuté de la situation générale au Salvador.

Jai passé prés d'une semaine au Costa Rica ou j'ai
rencontré des membres de Ulnter-American Institute of
Human Rights, qui a son quartier général a San Jose. Ils ont
réuni des spécialistes des questions reliées aux droits de la
personne qui provenaient de prés de 15 pays d’Amérique
latine—spécialistes du Droit, universitaires et avocats. Ils ont
modifié certains horaires pour que je puisse assister aux
séminaires prévus de fagon que je puisse, au cours de ma visite,
mieux comprendre ces pays.

Parallélement, en plus de ces juristes, le CODAUCA, qui est
l'acronyme pour la Commission de défense des droits de la
personne pour I’Amérique Centrale, a mis sur pied un certain
nombre de réunions. Ils ont regroupé a San Jose des
représentants des ONG provenant d’une douzaine a une
quinzaine de pays d’Amérique du Sud au méme moment. Ces
discussions ont été fort utiles, tant celles qui ont eu lieu avec les
spécialistes qu’avec les représentants des ONG.
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Finally, while I was there I had very good discussions with
President Arias about democratic developments in Central
America and, if you like, a sort of four de raison of the politics of
Central and Latin America.

I would like to emphasize for the members of the
committee what seemed to be interesting conclusions for that
part of the world that came, on the one hand, from these
experts, professionals, if you like, who came in at the request
of the institute, and the NGOs, who are the activist, direct,
grass-roots working people on the other. There were a couple of
important points that I, who was meeting separately with them,
noted there was strong agreement on. They are the following.

Although there have been important moves towards
democracy in Latin America, and I think particularly of the
restoration of democracy in Chile and Uruguay and also, in
another sense, in Brazil and Argentina, much work needs to
be done to strengthen human rights and democratic institutions
throughout Latin America. There was common agreement on
that, I want to emphasize. It is not that I was party to making it,
as a Canadian, as an outsider who was there to listen, but that
was a commonly felt, strongly felt, view of all the Latin
Americans who were there.

The second point tying in directly with the mandate of
this Canadian international centre that I would emphasize is
that the democratic electoral processes are important, but in
themselves they are not sufficient to constitute an adequate
definition for a democratic nation. That is to say, you cannot
have democracy without competitive elections, but competitive
elections without established human rights practices embedded
in society are quite insufficient grounds for saying a nation is
democratic. That too was a pretty strongly felt view amongst the
professionals who were there, the lawyers and academics, and the
grass-roots activists.

I would also say at this point the role of Canada in the
region was widely respected. I think that is a very safe
generalization. Whether it has been Canadian governmental
agencies like CIDA or the Canadian church community or
other NGO activity or trade union people who have been
working in Central and Latin America, Canadians in general
are held in high esteem. I think it is safe to say our centre,
once it gets under way in a programmatic sense, intends to
continue this Canadian tradition in Central and Latin America,
to do what we can in the modest but real role we have to help
deepen human rights and democratic traditions in that part of
the world.

I should say about my meeting with President Arias of
Costa Rica that he invited me to go back to Costa Rica, to go
with him for the inaugural ceremonies of the new
government in Nicaragua that will take place on April 25. He
noted to me that he thought it would be important for me, as
the president of this new Canadian centre, and as one who
did spend time meeting particularly with the NGOs, to have
the opportunity to meet with the presidents of the Central

[Traduction]

Enfin, j’ai également eu, a 'occasion de ce séjour, d’excellen-
tes conversations avec le président Arias au sujet des développe-
ments démocratiques en Amérique Centrale et, ce que I'on
pourrait appeler, un tour d’horizon de la situation politique en
Amérique Centrale et en Amérique Latine.

Jaimerais partager avec les membres du comité certaines
conclusions qui m’ont paru intéressantes concernant cette
partie du monde, conclusions qui viennent, d’une part, de ces
spécialistes, professionnels si I'on peut dire, qui sont venus a
la demande de I'Institut et d’autre part des ONG, dont les
membres sont actifs et en contact direct avec la réalité de ces
pays. J’ai eu des réunions distinctes avec chacun de ces groupes
mais j'ai noté un certain nombre d’aspects importants sur
lesquels leurs opinions se recoupaient. Les voici.

La démocratie a fait de grands progrés en Amérique
Latine, et je pense en particulier au rétablissement de la
démocratie au Chili, en Uruguay et également, sur un autre
plan, au Brésil et en Argentine, mais il y a encore beaucoup
a faire pour renforcer les droits de la personne et les institutions
démocratiques. Ils étaient tous d’accord sur ce point, je voudrais
le souligner. Je n’ai pas participé a la réalisation de ce concensus,
comme Canadien venant de 'extérieur, mais c’était une opinion
largement partagée et ressentie chez tous les représentants de
ces pays d’Amérique Latine.

Le deuxieme aspect est directement relié a la mission du
Centre international canadien et porte sur le fait que si
I'existence d’un processus électoral démocratique est
importante, cet aspect ne suffit pas pour garantir I'existence
d’un pays démocratique. C’est-a-dire que s’il n’est pas possible
d’avoir une démocratie sans des élections et plusieurs partis—de
telles é€lections sans le respect des droits de la personne ne
permettent pas de garantir qu’un pays est démocratique. Cette
opinion était partagée par tous les spécialistes qui assistaient &
ces réunions, les avocats et les universitaires et aussi par les
activistes, et toutes ces personnes accordaient beaucoup
d’importance a cette distinction.

Je voudrais également mentionner que le rdle que le
Canada joue dans cette région est trés respecté. Je pense que

on peut dire cela. Qu’il s’agisse d’organismes
gouvernementaux comme I'’ACDI, ou de communautés
religieuses canadiennes, d’activités de ONG ou de

représentants de syndicats qui ont travaillé en Amérique
Centrale et en Amérique Latine, les Canadiens sont, de
facon générale, trés respectés. Je pense pouvoir dire que
notre centre, dés qu’il pourra démarrer concrétement ses
activités, a I'intention de poursuivre cette tradition canadienne
en Amérique Centrale et en Amérique Latine pour apporter
notre contribution, aussi modeste soit-elle, au renforcement des
droits de la personne et des traditions démocratiques dans cette
région du monde.

Je devrais également mentionner que lors de ma réunion
avec le président Arias de Costa Rica, ce dernier m’a invité a
revenir dans son pays et a assister avec lui aux cérémonies de
la prise du pouvoir du nouveau gouvernement au Nicaragua
qui auront lieu le 25 avril. Il m’a fait remarquer que cette
occasion pourrait m’étre fort utile, en tant que président de
ce nouveau centre canadien et qu’apres avoir sondé les ONG,
je pourrais alors m’entretenir avec les présidents de plusieurs
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American countries. He undertook to do that and invited me to
go. Not the least of its attractions will be the opportunity to drive
with him for six hours from San Jose to Managua through jungle
and other interesting country, he assures me, so the companion-
ship of such a person as well as the important opportunity, as he
noted, to meet with the presidents of other Central American
countries was something I readily accepted his invitation for.
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Let me conclude with this point. There are other parts of
the world I have not been to yet, in terms of the global
mandate of the centre. Expressions of interest in the centre
have come from Africa. The Gambian government, as
members of the committee will know, has set up a human rights
centre at Banjul. They have expressed an interest in co-opera-
tion with our centre. We have had expressions of interest in
working with us from the NGO community in Pakistan and India.
People in the Philippines have expressed an interest in the
Canadian centre and hope we will be working with them in their
country.

Law Asia, an NGO group of lawyers and academics with a
secretariat in Sydney, Australia, with its mandate in that part of
the globe and that part of Asia, has also expressed an interest in
working with us. In the future I intend to follow up, and make
contacts with people by a personal visit, at some point, in both
Asia and Africa.

The members of the committee will know we can work as
a centre in eastern Europe. Certainly part of my discussions
in Strasbourg indicated a very real interest on the part of
western Europeans for us to play our role in the contributory
process when we are asked, in the putting into place of human
rights and democratic institutions in eastern European countries.
I also met with the ambassadors of a couple of eastern European
states when I was in Geneva. They too expressed an interest.

As one of them said to me when it came to the question of
human rights training for police forces, this has not been a
well-established practice in eastern Europe in the recent past,
and that perhaps a Canadian centre like ours could facilitate
work of that kind.

This could be an important task in terms of Canadian
policy as a whole towards eastern Europe. A centre like ours,
with its arm’s length relationship with the government, could
perhaps play a constructive role. Important as it evidently is
that the western Europeans play a leading role as democratic
countries in that part of the world, the Americans are already
doing things. They are certainly physically no closer than we
are. A good case could be made for saying our centre, with
the broad kind of support it does have in Canada with its arm’s
length relationship with the whatever the government of the day
may be, could play a constructive role in providing, where we are
asked, some support for democratic institutions and human
rights practices in eastern Europe.

[Translation)

pays d’Amérique Centrale. Il m’a donc invité a 'accompagner.
Lun des principaux attraits de ce voyage sera de faire six heures
de route en sa compagnie, de San Jose & Managua, a travers un
pays de jungle et d’autres paysages intéressants, m’assure-t-il.
La perspective d’étre le compagnon de voyage d’une telle
personne, de méme que I'occasion privilégiée, comme il I'a fait
remarquer, de rencontrer les présidents d’autres pays d’Améri-
que centrale, m’ont incité a accepter d’emblée son invitation.

Enfin, il y a d’autres parties du monde ou je ne me suis
pas encore rendu dans le cadre du mandat global du centre.
Certains pays d’Afrique ont exprimé un intérét envers le
centre. Comme les membres du comité le savent, le
gouvernement de Gambie a institué un centre des droits de la
personne a Banjul. On y a manifesté le désir de coopérer avec
notre centre. Des gens des milieux des organisations non
gouvernementales (ONG) au Pakistan et en Indes ont égale-
ment exprimé le désir de travailler avec nous. Des gens des
Philipines ont manifesté de I'intérét pour le centre canadien et
espérent que nous travaillerons avec eux dans leur pays.

Le groupe Law Asia, une ONG regroupant des avocats et des
universitaires et ayant un secrétariat a Sydney, en Australie, dont
le mandat concerne cette partie du globe et I’Asie, a également
exprimé le désir de travailler avec nous. Pour donner suite a ces
manifestations d’intérét, j’ai I'intention d’établir bientdt des
contacts personnels avec ces gens et de me rendre par la suite en
Asie et en Afrique.

Je tiens a confirmer aux membres du comité que notre
centre peut oeuvrer en Europe de I'Est. Au cours de nos
entretiens a Strasbourg, les représentants de I'Europe de
I'Ouest se sont montrés vivement intéressés a ce que nous
participions a I'établissement des droits de la personne et
d’institutions démocratiques dans les pays d’Europe de I’Est qui
en feront la demande. Pendant mon séjour a Geneve, j'ai
également rencontré les ambassadeurs de deux ou trois pays
d’Europe de I'Est. IIs ont également exprimé de I'intérét.

Lun d’entre eux m’a dit que ces derniéres années, on ne s'était
pas vraiment préoccupé de former les policiers en matiére de
droits de la personne en Europe de I'Est et qu'un centre
canadien comme le ndtre pourrait peut-étre faciliter ce genre de
formation.

Une telle tiche pourrait étre importante dans I'ensemble
de la politique canadienne envers I'Europe de I'Est. Un
centre comme le notre, fonctionnant indépendamment du
gouvernement, pourrait peut-étre jouer un role constructif. Il
est évidemment important que les pays d’Europe de I'Ouest
jouent le premier role, & titre de pays démocratiques da’r.1§
cette partic du monde, mais les Américains ont déja
commencé & agir. Ils ne sont certainement pas plus prés que
nous géographiquement. On peut certainement affirmer que
notre centre, fort de I'appui général des Canadiens, de son
indépendance vis-a-vis du gouvernement du jour, quel qu’il soit,
pourrait jouer un rdle constructif en appuyant, sur demande,
’établissement d’institutions démocratiques et de mesures
visant 2 faire respecter les droits de la personne en Europe de
I’Est.
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[Texte]

I conclude on that point by saying if we do do it, we need
more money. I mentioned at the outset that the money we
have been allocated by the legislation has to be spent for
developing countries. To put it in concrete terms, if I am
going to hire staff at the centre a mandate to work in eastern
Europe, and if we are to embark on programs the way a number
of people would like us to in that part of the world, then we have
to get some more money somewhere, somehow, to do it.

Mr. Chairman, I have used enough of your time already by
these introductory comments. I thank members of the commit-
tee for listening and I am only too happy to reply to questions
now.

The Chairman: We also thank you for these very interesting
comments. You referred to—I think you used the words “vast
mandate”. If you will look at our mandate, which is to have a look
at human rights, and mainly with the external policy of Canada,
I am sure this committee will need your help to work together,
both your centre and this committee, to really achieve both our
mandates.

e 1600

Mr. Kilgour (Edmonton Southeast): Mr. Broadbent, I want
to congratulate you publicly for your appointment. I think it is
an excellent thing. It sounds as if you could already write a book
about your experiences during the past two months.

As our chairman has just said, I think it is extremely important
that we work closely together. I am sure we will always be happy
to see you. If you ever want to see us we will be happy to come
and see you.

I have about 20 things I would like to ask you, and you may
not want to comment on some of them. I will make some points.
You might pick and choose if you like.

One thing you may be aware of is the debate going on in
policy options with respect to CIDA and the fact that 25% of
CIDAs employees are Canadians of origin in the developing
world. I would simply urge you that you make every effort
when you hire people—bearing in mind your mandate in the
developing world —that you will hire the many, many Canadians
of origin in the developing world who probably will be applying
to work with you. I hope we will not see that you have nothing
but Canadians of origin in Britain and France when you have
your staff.

_In El Salvador, you probably have met a gentleman—I think
his name is Diaz—who is a secretary of one of the trade unions
whose building was blown up. Perhaps you saw the building; four
or five people were killed.

Mr. Broadbent: No, I did not. I think it was part of my original
agenda, but the plane I flew in on to get there was four hours late

getting in. Part of the agenda was scrapped and I think that was
part of it.

[Traduction]

Je termine en disant que pour le faire nous aurons besoin
de plus d’argent. J’ai mentionné dés le départ que les crédits
qui nous sont affectés en vertu de la Loi doivent étre
dépensés pour les pays en voie de développement. En termes
concrets, si je dois engager au centre du personnel qui s’occupera
des questions de 'Europe de I'Est, et si nous devons instituer
dans cette partie du monde des programmes comme bien des
gens voudraient nous voir lancer, nous devrons alors trouver un
moyen d’obtenir plus d’argent.

Monsieur le président, j'ai déja abusé de votre temps en
prolongeant mes remarques préliminaires. Je remercie les
membres du comité de m’avoir écouté et je me ferai un plaisir
de répondre aux questions maintenant.

Le président: Nous vous remercions également de ces
commentaires trés intéressants. Vous avez parlé, je pense, d'un
«vaste mandat». Si vous examinez notre mandat, qui est
d’examiner les questions relatives aux droits de la personne,
surtout en ce qui concerne la politique extérieure du Canada,
vous comprendrez que le comité aura besoin de votre aide,
c’est-a-dire que votre centre et le comité devront collaborer
pour que nous parvenions tous a respecter notre mandat.

M. Kilgour (député d’Edmonton Sud-Est): Monsieur Broad-
bent, je tiens a vous féliciter publiquement de votre nomination.
Je pense que c’est une excellente chose. Il semble que vous
pourriez déja écrire un livre sur vos expériences des deux
derniers mois.

Comme notre président vient de le dire, je pense qu’il est
extrémement important que nous travaillions en étroite collabo-
ration. Nous serons certainement toujours ravis de vous voir. Si
vous voulez nous voir, nous nous ferons également un plaisir
d’aller vous rendre visite.

Il y a une vingtaine de questions que j’aimerais vous poser et
vous ne voudrez peut-€tre pas faire de commentaires sur
certaines d’entre elles. Je vais mentionner quelques points qui
m’intéressent et vous pourrez choisir ceux que vous voudrez
commenter.

Vous étes peut-€tre au courant du débat sur les
possibilités d’action de I'’Agence canadienne de
développement international (ACDI) et du fait que 25 p. 100
des employés de ’ACDI sont des Canadiens originaires du
Tiers monde. Etant donné votre mandat concernant le Tiers
monde, je vous exhorte a faire de votre mieux pour engager de
nombreux Canadiens originaires du Tiers monde et il y en a
probablement beaucoup qui vont vous présenter une demande
d’emploi. J’espére que votre personnel ne sera pas uniquement
composé de Canadiens d’origine britannique et frangaise.

Au Salvador, vous avez probablement rencontré le secrétaire
de I'un des syndicats, M. Diaz, je pense, dont on a fait exploser
les bureaux. Vous avez peut-étre vu I'édifice; quatre ou cinq
personnes y ont été tuées.

M. Broadbent: Non. Je pense que cela faisait partiec de mon
programme au départ, mais mon avion est arrivé la-bas avec
quatre heures de retard. Une partie de mon programme a été
annulée et je pense que c’'était celle-la.
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Mr. Kilgour: He came to Edmonton, and he would very much
have liked some Canadian MP—or perhaps somebody from your
centre—to have gone back with him. He thought his life would
be safer if he had some high-profile person from North America
with him. You might want to consider whether you could do that
sort thing in selected cases around the world.

There is an argument that human rights and democratic
development are inextricably linked. If you have anything more
than you have already said on that, I am certain our committee
would be interested in your comments or conclusions to date on
that difficult subject.

Mr. Broadbent: I will be brief on the point, although I think
it is a very important point. I know part of the old debate. It has
been the view of some that there is some kind of dichotomy there.
On one hand you have human rights and on the other you have
democratic institutions and practices.

I have never viewed it that way, to give my personal
philosophy. I think democratic institutions and practices are
inextricably linked as part of the fundamental family of human
rights. The two do go conceptually together. Certainly in moral
argumentation and in institutional practices, I think they ought
to go together.

So I was not among those. I respect those, even though I differ
from the argrument. I read some of the debate after I accepted
the position. I went back and read some of the debate that led
up to it. T understand where some people are coming from. They
saw a distinction. In part it depends on your definition of
democracy, and in part it depends on other considerations.

In any case, I would like to emphasize that I see the two
being profoundly linked. I think if you are to generalize at all
about what is going on now in a very positive way in Latin
and Central America, and certainly in eastern Europe,
ordinary people in most parts of the world make the linkage
rather directly now, in moral terms, between human rights and
democratic institutions. I think our centre will continue to make
a direct linkage between the two.

Mr. Kilgour: Mr. Bauer, a man you probably already
know and have met with, made the point at McGill last week
that the CSCE process requires the 35 signatory countries to
pursue the question of ethnic minorities within the member
countries. I think I heard you speak about that not long ago. The
extreme concern we all have is that there could be real problems
with that. Already there are problems with that. Maybe you could
tell us more, if you would, about what role you think your centre
might have on that issue.

You may have heard today that Mr. Gorbachev has apparently
indicated he wants the Lithuanian Parliament to dissolve or some
such phrase. Would you like to get into those difficult areas?

[Translation)

M. Kllgour' Il est venu 2 Edmonton et il aurait beaucoup
aimé qu’un député canadien, ou peut-étre quclqu un de votre
centre, retourne avec lui. Il pensait qu’il serait plus en sécurité
si une personne trés en vue d’Amérique du Nord Iavait
accompagné. Vous pourriez peut-&tre songer a faire ce genre de
choses pour certains cas particuliers a travers le monde.

On affirme que les droits de la personne et le développement
démocratique sont inextricablement liés. Si vous pouvez a]outer
quelque chose a ce que vous avez déja dit a ce sujet, je suis
persuade que les membres de notre comité seraient bien
intéressés d’entendre vos commentaires ou vos conclusions sur
cette question difficile.

M. Broadbent: Je pense que la question est trés importante,
mais je serai bref. Je suis au courant des vieux arguments.
Certains prétendaient qu’il existait 1a un genre de dichotomie.
D’une part on aurait les droits de la personne et de l'autre les
institutions et les pratiques démocratiques.

Personnellement, je n’ai jamais vu les choses ainsi. J’estime
que les institutions et les pratiques démocratiques sont
inextricablement liées, elles font partie de la famille fondamen-
tale des droits de la personne. Les deux concepts vont de pair.
Sur le plan moral et sur le plan pratique, celui des institutions,
jestime que les deux doivent aller de pair.

Je ne faisais donc pas partie de ces gens. Je les respecte, bien
que je sois d’un avis contraire. Apres avoir accepté ce poste, j’ai
lu le compte rendu de certains des débats qui ont mené a ce
genre d’arguments. Je comprends le cheminement du raisonne-
ment de certaines personnes, elles ont vu une distinction. Cela
dépend en partie de la fagon dont on définit la démocratie et en
partie d’autres considérations.

Quoi qu’il en soit, je tiens a souligner que je vois les
deux éléments comme étant profondément liés. De fagon
générale, quand les gens ordinaires de la plupart des régions
du monde voient tous les événements trés positifs qui se
déroulent actuellement en Amérique latine ou centrale et
certainement en Europe de I'Est, ils établissent maintenant le
lien trés directement, sur le plan moral, entre les droits de la
personne et les institutions démocratiques. Je pense que notre
centre continuera d’établir un lien direct entre les deux.

M. Kilgour: M. Bauer, que vous avez déja probablement
rencontré, a dit la semaine derniére a McGill que dans le
cadre de la Conférence sur la sécurité et la coopération en
Europe, les 35 pays signataires sont tenus de chercher & faire
respecter les droits des minorités ethniques a l'intérieur des pays
membres. Je pense vous avoir entendu parler de cette question
récemment. Nous craignons tous fortement de voir de véritables
problemcs survenir. En fait, des problémes existent déja. Vous
poumez peut-étre nous parler davantage du role que pourrait
jouer votre centre a cet égard.

Vous avez peut-étre entendu dire aujourd’hui que M.
Gorbachev veut apparemment que le Parlement lithuanien soit
dissout ou quelque chose du genre. Voudriez-vous vous occuper
de questions aussi difficiles?
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Mr. Broadbent: Only in the sense that in the M. Broadbent: Seulement dans ce sens que, les droits de

development of human rights there have been individual
rights on the one hand and collective and cultural rights on
the other. Clearly, there are many cases where these do not
clash, that you can have collective or cultural rights without
necessarily having a contradiction with individual rights. But
sometimes there may be a clash, and to ensure or preserve a
minority right or a right of a national grouping—and certainly
as a federal state that is a good part of the raison d’étre for a
country called Canada to preserve the effective cultural right of
French-speaking Canadians in the 19th century—one of the
principal justifications for our federal state was to ensure a
territorial region in which that minority of Canadians would have
the right to make their laws, to govern their community within
the whole of Canada.

While there is a notion there of a collective right, a
cultural right, one of the things it seems to me—and I will
not get much beyond this if you will permit me—that the
Soviet Union has to come to grips with as an evolving
democratic society that is not yet democratic but clearly seems
to be evolving in that direction and deserves praise from all of
us from outside, is that they have to evolve a kind of federal
structure that will allow the freedom of differing linguistic groups
within that system and also the issue of minorities within those
groups.

Some of us might have seen the program on Georgia last
night—it was on part of the CBC Journal broadcast—and the
very serious tensions that we can see arising not only within the
Soviet state because of, as they perceive it themselves, the
legitimate demands of the majority of Georgians within Georgia,
but then there is the problem of the minorities within the
Georgian population and their rights to exist.

It will not surprise you to learn, I am sure, that I do not
have an easy answer to that. But I do recognize that clearly
in the modern world now, and increasingly I think, we are
going to have to sit and think hard in terms of collective
rights on the one hand, but minorities that have a right to exist
within those collectivities on the other. It is going to take a lot
of work and a lot of tolerance in resolving governmental
structures that will make that possible.

M. Joseph Volpe (député d’Eglinton—Lawrence): Je
félicite M. Broadbent pour sa nomination. Je le remercie
d’étre venu ici aujourd’hui pour faire une présentation que je
trouve assez difficile. Vous avez commencé par un sujet tres
philosophique, a mon avis. En répondant aux questions de mon
collégue, vous avez touché une chose qu’il m’est trés difficile de
comprendre. Quand vous parlez des droits de la personne et d’'un
systtme démocratique, il est bien difficile de comprendre de
quelle sorte de démocratie vous parlez. Je pense que vous avez
déja avoué qu’il était trés difficile d’en arriver a une définition de
la démocratie acceptable pour tout le monde.

Je voudrais aborder un élément de cette démocratie que
vous avez déja souligné. Cela concerne I'’Amérique centrale.
A votre avis, est-il possible qu’il y ait un jour en Amérique
centrale une vraie démocratie, que vous définissez comme un

la personne peuvent étre subdivisés en droit individuels d’une
part et en droits collectifs et culturels d’autre part. Il est
certain que les deux ne sont pas en contradiction dans bien
des cas, c’est-a-dire qu'on peut avoir des droits collectifs ou
culturels sans nécessairement enfreindre les droits individuels.
Il y a cependant parfois une contradiction entre les deux et
préserver les droits d’'une minorité ou d’un groupe ethnique
constitue certainement la raison d’étre d’un état fédéral, comme
C’est le cas par exemple d’un pays appelé Canada, qui cherchait
a préserver le droit culturel effectif des Canadiens-francais au
19¢ siécle. Lun des principaux motifs de la création de notre état
fédéral était d’assurer l'existence d’un territoire ou cette
minorité de Canadiens aurait le droit de faire ses propres lois, de
se gouverner dans 'ensemble du Canada.

Je ne m’étendrai pas longtemps sur le sujet, si vous le
permettez. Bien qu’existe 1a-bas la notion de droits collectifs,
de droits culturels, il me semble que I'Union soviétique, a
titre de société manifestement en évolution vers la
démocratie, ce qui lui mérite nos éloges, doit instituer le genre
de structure fédérale qui permettra a des groupes linguistiques
différents d’exister librement, tout en préservant les droits des
minorités a I'intérieur de ces groupes.

Vous avez peut-étre vu hier soir au réseau anglais de
Radio-Canada I'émission Journal qui présentait un reportage
sur la Géorgie, ou se manifestent de tres grandes tensions non
seulement parce que c’est une république de I'état soviétique qui
cherche a faire valoir ce qu’elle percoit étre les revendications
légitimes de la majorité que sont les Georgiens dans la
république, mais aussi a cause du probléme des minorités au sein
de la population de Géorgie, qui revendiquent le droit d’exister.

Vous ne serez pas étonnés d’apprendre, j'en suis
persuadé, que je n'ai pas de réponse facile a donner a ce
sujet. Je reconnais cependant que dans le monde
d’aujourd’hui, il devient de plus en plus pressant de repenser
ensemble d’une part I'importance des droits collectifs, mais
d’autre part aussi le droit des minorités d’exister au sein de ces
collectivités. Il faudra beaucoup d’efforts et de tolérance pour
mettre en place des structures gouvernementales permettant
cette co-existance.

Mr. Joseph Volpe (Eglington—Lawrence): I congratulate
Mr. Broadbent for his appointment. I thank him for coming
here today to make a presentation that I find rather difficult.
In my view, you have started to talk about a very
philosophical subject. When you were answering questions from
my colleague, you addressed an issue which is very difficult for
me to understand. When you speak of human rights and a
democratic system, it is very difficult to understand what kind of
democracy you are talking about. I think you have already
admitted that it is very difficult to come up with a definition of
democracy which is acceptable to everybody.

I would like to address one aspect of democracy which
you have already emphasized. It deals with Central America.
In your view, is it possible that we may see one day in
Central America a true democracy, which you define as a
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régime ou il y a une élection compétitive, 8'il y a toujours la
présence d’une puissance comme celle des Etats-Unis, qui ont
des intéréts bien définis et qui ne sont pas encore préts a les
mettre de coté?

® 1610

M. Broadbent: Cette question est trés importante et concréte
pour les gens de la région de I’Amérique centrale.

Selon moi, la majorité des gens qui font de la politique, en
Amérique latine, croient que les Américains sont trop souvent
disposés a intervenir directement dans leurs affaires par le
truchement des militaires.

Par exemple, avant mon départ pour le Costa Rica, j’ai lu deux
articles dans deux magazines américains: une revue qui s’appelle
The New Yorker, et I'autre, The New York Review. La méme
semaine, ces deux revues ont souligné tous les événements et
toutes les activités militaires des Américains, avec toutes leurs
interventions passées dans cette région.

I said this when I was there. For the lifetime of everyone
in this room certainly, if American influence has been great
in Canada, as it has, any of the unusual difficulties—let me
put it that way—that we may have experienced as a country
have been our own decisions as Canadians. The arguments in
Canada, as you will know, have been for and against certain
levels of foreign investment coming from the United States. I
had a discussion along the lines of the question you asked
when I was in Costa Rica, and I said that any problems we have
had—setting aside the benefits; the question you raised was
about problems—my experience as a Canadian is that they have
been self-imposed by us as a democratic free people. We have
not experienced the kind of intervention that Latin Americans
have with the United States.

There is no doubt that there is apprehension. For
example, the intervention of the American government in
getting rid of what everyone regarded as a man who was an
international gangster in Panama was universally objected to
in Latin American as a kind of intervention. They wanted the
results. They wanted him to go, but there was widespread
opposition to this kind of direct intervention by the United States
using military force to achieve that goal. It is important for us to
understand that. I am taking some time on your question, and
even at that it is going to be much too short.

Mr. Volpe: I would focus here, Mr. Broadbent, so I can
understand how we can be influential in the area of human
rights as well as democratic development. If we acknowledge
the presence of a power whose interests are not going to be
dismissed by our entreaties, how much more serious or
difficult will it be to advance the cause of human rights in
terms of the definition you gave earlier in an area where we
have a military occupation and a de facto state of war? For

[Translation)

system where competitive elections are held, in spite of the
continued presence of a power like the United States, a country
which has well defined interests that it is not yet ready to set
aside?

Mr. Broadbent: It is a very important and concrete issue for
the people of Central America.

In my view, most politicians in Latin America believe that the
Americans are often too willing to intervene militarily in the
affairs of their countries.

For example, before I left for Costa Rica, I read two articles
published in two American magazines, one magazine is called
The New Yorker, and the other one, The New York Review. The
same week, these two magazines recalled all the military
activities of the Americans, all their past interventions in the
region.

Je l'ai dit quand j'étais la-bas. En dépit de la grande
influence des Etats-Unis sur le Canada, dans toutes les
difficultés particuliéres que nous avons vu notre pays
traverser, les décisions prises étaient toujours les ndtres en
tant que Canadiens. Comme vous le savez, il y a eu de
nombreux débats entre les partisans et les opposants de
I'investissement américain ici. J’ai discuté au Costa Rica du
genre de question que vous avez posée, je ne parlerai pas
davantage, puisque votre question portait sur des problémes, et
j’ai dit que d’aprés mon expérience comme Canadien, nous
étions nous-mémes responsables de nos problémes en tant que
peuple démocratique libre. Nous n’avons pas fait I'objet du
genre d’intervention que les gens d’Amérique latine ont di subir
de la part des Etats-Unis.

Il existe certainement de I'appréhension. Tout le monde
a protesté en Amérique latine contre le genre d’intervention
du gouvernement américain qui a permis, par exemple, de
débarrasser Panama d’'un homme considéré comme un
gangster international. On voulait les résultats, on voulait qu’il
parte, mais on était généralement opposé a ce genre d’interven-
tion directe de la part des Etats-Unis qui ont eu recours a la
force militaire pour réaliser cet objectif. Il est important que
nous le comprenions. Je prends beaucoup de temps pour
répondre & votre question, mais c’est encore loin d’étre suffisant.

M. Volpe: J'aimerais préciser quelque chose, monsieur
Broadbent, afin de pouvoir comprendre comment nous
pourrons exercer une certaine influence dans !e domaine des
droits de la personne et du développement démocratique. Si
nous reconnaissons la présence d’une puissance que nous ne
pouvons pas convaincre de renoncer a ses intéréts, comment
parviendrons-nous a faire progresser la cause des d1:01t§ de la
personne dans le sens que vous avez donné plus tot a cette
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example, in the Middle East or in other areas, there is a
recognition of a different ethic or value system than the one we
recognize in the Western world that emanates from the
traditional Judaeo-Christian-Hellenic type of background—I
hope I do not offend anybody—where we have a particular
concept of individual rights and a concept of due process of law
and justice. How can our centre promote such values in an
environment that recognizes military occupation, which goes one
step further than the scenario you have described in Central
America?
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Mr. Broadbent: As I said in my opening comments, one of the
remarkably encouraging things going on in the modern
world—and to shift to eastern Europe again, I think particularly
of the changes that took place in Czechoslovakia and Poland—is
the strong moral force of individuals using moral arguments,
using non-violent means to achieve radical human rights and
democratic reforms.

Similarly, in Latin America we have to be very sensitive to the
kind of arguments they have made about direct intervention.
Their values in terms of not wanting direct intervention are very
similar to ours. In fact, you used the Judaeo-Christian
framework. That is of course as much a part of the heritage in
Latin America as it is a part of ours, including democratic values.

The question of power politics is a legitimate one that
has be thought about and worked through from the point of
view of human rights. One of the main catalysts that caused a
lot of the countries in eastern Europe to make their demands
on the local communist governments was because the Soviet
Union renounced the kind of terrible force they used in the 1950s
in Poland, in the 1960s in Czechoslovakia, and so on. We will
watch to see how consistent they are on this.

So too the United States. . .it seems to me. This kind of
comparison ought to renounce the use of force. Perhaps it would
be perceived as a great kind of development in Latin and Central
America, if the Americans would also renounce the use of force
as a political means of resolving disputes in that part of the world.

Mr. Volpe: I applaud that. The general principles behind the
centre and the work you are going to embark on. . . I look forward
to hearing how some of these things will take place as we revise
the way people think on how they should treat each other.

You brought us back to eastern Europe without answering the
question about the military occupations.

Mr. Broadbent: I am not trying to evade one, though.

_ Mr. Volpe: Do not mistake my comment. There is an
indication that you were.

My understanding of the way human rights is viewed in Asia,
for example, and other exotic countries is a little different from
our own view of human rights. I think our understanding of the
democratic process in our sector of North America is a little bit
different from the understanding of democratic processes in
other places.

[Traduction]

expression, dans une région occupée militairement, ce qui la met
automatiquement en état de guerre? Au Moyen-Orient et dans
d’autres régions, par exemple, on reconnait un systtme de
valeurs ou de principes moraux différents de celui du monde
occidental, qui émane de la tradition judéo-chrétienne-helléni-
que de nos ancétres; j'espere n’offenser personne. Notre systéme
suppose un concept particulier des droits individuels et la notion
d’application réguliere de la loi et de la justice. Comment notre
centre peut-il promouvoir de telles valeurs dans un monde qui
reconnait 'occupation militaire, ce qui va au-dela du scénario
que vous décriviez pour ’Amérique centrale?

M. Broadbent: Comme je I'ai dit au début, et je vais parler de
nouveau de I'Europe de I'Est, en particulier des changements
survenus en Pologne et en Tchécoslovaquie, je pense que I'un
des éléments remarquablement encourageants du monde
d’aujourd’hui est la grande force morale des gens qui ont recours
a des arguments, a des moyens non violents, pour réaliser une
réforme radicale en matiére de droit de la personne et faire
progresser la démocratie.

De méme, nous devons étre trés sensibles au genre
d’arguments invoqués en Amérique latine contre toute interven-
tion directe. Les raisons pour lesquelles la population de cette
région ne veut pas d’intervention directe sont trés semblables
aux notres. En fait, vous avez parlé du systtme de valeurs
judéo-chrétien. Cela fait bien sir partie, comme les valeurs
démocratiques, du patrimoine latino-américain comme du
notre.

Il est légitime d’examiner la question de la politique de
la force dans la perspective des droits de la personne. Lune
des raisons qui a poussé plusieurs pays d’Europe de I'Est a
présenter leurs revendications a leur gouvernement
communiste local est que I'Union soviétique a renoncé a
recourir au genre de force terrible dont ce pays a fait usage dans
les années 50 en Pologne, dans les années 60 en Tchécoslovaquie
et ainsi de suite. Nous allons voir si cette résolution se maintient.

I faudra voir également ce que feront les Etats-Unis, il me
semble. Ce pays devrait également renoncer au recours a la
force. En Amérique latine et centrale, on verrait comme un
grand progrés que les Américains renoncent également a utiliser
la force comme moyen politique et régler les conflits dans cette
partie du monde.

M. Volpe: Je suis tout a fait d’accord. Les principes généraux
qui animent le centre et le travail que vous allez entreprendre. . .
Jai hate de voir comment les choses évolueront, au fur et a
mesure que les gens repenseront la facon dont ils doivent se
traiter les uns les autres.

Vous avez recommencé a parler de I'Europe de I'Est sans
répondre a ma question sur 'occupation militaire.

M. Broadbent: Je n’essaie cependant pas de me dérober.

M. Volpe: Ne vous méprenez pas sur mes paroles, je disais
simplement qu’on pouvait le penser.

Il me semble qu'en Asie, par exemple, et dans d’autres
endroits exotiques, on voit les droits de la personne d’une fagon
différente de la ndtre. Je pense également que dans notre partie
d’Amérique du Nord, nous voyons le processus démocratique
sous un oeil différent des gens d’autres endroits.




3:16

International Human Rights

10-4-1990

(Text]

‘When embarking on a missionary-type role, which I think you
outlined for us, are we in fact running up against an obstacle
called history in eastern Europe that has become much more
alluring, given the events of the last year, without our having the
mechanisms in place to be able to have an impact for the
dissemination of a concept of human rights that we think we
value here in Canada?

It is fine to speak in terms of the initiatives of another
leader of a government who has renounced the rule of force
and, therefore, by extrapolation, I suppose, filled a vacuum
with recognition of due process and perhaps rights of
individuals, whether they be purely individual or whether they be
collective rights. I am still looking forward to hearing how you
will accomplish that on your budget, with your staff, and given
what you identified as the realities of power politics.

Mr. Broadbent: I do not know if that was a question. It
sounded like one I used to pose in the House of Commons.

Mr. Volpe: I watched you for a while.

Mr. Broadbent: Let me be very modest about our budget
and role. I do not see us as having a major role to play. I see
us as having a useful role to play where we are asked. That
deals with another part of what you are talking about, too.
We will not be involved in the activities of another country
unless citizens in that country and/or governments in that
given country ask us to be involved in a program. So there is
not some kind of cultural imperialism going on here, either
on a minor scale or a large scale. But where men and women are
prepared to be out front, as in the obvious case of El Salvador
which I mentioned in my opening comments, where they are
prepared in some cases to risk their lives, then one of the roles
of our centre ought to be to do what we can, consistent with the
laws in that country, to provide some assistance essentially for
their initiatives. I have always believed you get social change not
by outside forces acting, whether they are large outside forces or
small, but by the people who live there who want change and
work for it.
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Mr. Volpe: Their issues and their values.

Mr. Broadbent: Their issues and their values, and when they
coincide with a democratic direction and a human rights
direction, and they come to us for assistance within the scope of
our lofty budget, we will provide that assistance.

Mr. Volpe: I wish you well.

Ms Greene (Don Valley North): I am interested in how you
might specifically be of assistance to various communities. Are
you thinking of programs along the line of the American
Institute for Democracy?

Mr. Broadbent: Rather than giving comments on other
institutions as such, I would rather you give me an example of a
particular program, and then I will answer.

Ms Greene: What I am thinking of is this. I visited
Romania in January, and there is a tremendous level of
ignorance there as to what democracy is, particularly among
young people who have no experience with it at all. Many of

[Translation)

En entreprenant ce rdle de missionnaire, pourrait-on dire,
que vous venez de décrire, nous heurterons-nous a I'obstacle
que constitue T'histoire en Europe de I'Est, devenue beaucoup
plus séduisante par suite des événements de la derniére année,
sans disposer des mécanismes nous permettant d’avoir une
influence sur la diffusion d’une notion des droits de la personne
que nous chérissons au Canada?

C’est bien de parler des initiatives d’'un autre chef de
gouvernement qui a renoncé a utiliser la force, car il semble
étre le premier la-bas a reconnaitre la notion de I'application
réguliére de la loi et peut-étre les droits des individus, qu’il
s’agisse de droits purement individuels ou de droits collectifs. J’ai
tout de méme héte de vous entendre dire comment vous allez
accomplir tout cela avec le personnel et le budget dont vous
disposez, étant donné les réalités de la politique de la force dont
vous avez parlé.

M. Broadbent: Je ne sais pas si ¢’était une question que vous
avez posée. Cela ressemblait au genre de questions que j’avais
I’habitude de poser a la Chambre des communes.

M. Volpe: Je vous ai observé pendant quelque temps.

M. Broadbent: Je vais étre trés modeste a propos de
notre budget et de notre role. Je ne pense pas que nous
ayons un role important a jouer a cet égard. Nous aurons un
role utile a jouer 1a ou I'on nous en fera la demande. Cela
vaut également pour une autre partiec de votre question.
Nous n’interviendrons pas dans les activités d’un autre pays a
moins que ses citoyens ou son gouvernement ne nous
demande de participer a un programme. Il n’est donc pas
question ici d’impérialisme culturel, que ce soit sur une grande
échelle ou une petite échelle. Cependant, lorsque des hommes
et des femmes sont disposés a lutter, comme dans le cas du
Salvador dont j’ai parlé au début, lorsqu’ils sont préts dans
certains cas a risquer leur vie, I'un des roles de notre centre doit
alors étre de faire de notre mieux, dans les limites des lois du
pays, pour les aider dans leurs initiatives. J’ai toujours été d’avis
qu'on n’obtient pas de changements sociaux par I'action de
forces de I'extérieur, grandes ou petites, mais plutdt par I'action
des résidents qui veulent ces changements et qui travaillent pour
les obtenir.

M. Volpe: Il s’agit de leurs problémes et de leurs valeurs.

M. Broadbent: Ce sont les leurs en effet et lqrsque les
mouvements de réforme vont dans la direction de la démocratie
et des droits de la personne, et qu'on nous demande de I'aide,
nous I'accordons dans les limites de notre grand budget.

M. Volpe: Je vous souhaite de réussir!

Mme Greene (député de Don Valley-Nord): Je vou_d;ajs
savoir comment vous pourriez aider diverses collectivités
exactement. Pensez-vous 4 des programmes semblables a ceux
de ’American Institute for Democracy?

M. Broadbent: Plutét que de faire des commentaires sur
d’autres organismes, je préférerais que vous me donniez un
programme en exemple et je pourrais alors vous répondre.

Mme Greene: Voild a quoi je pense. Je suis allée en
Roumanie en janvier et jai vu qu'on n’y _connaissait
pratiquement rien de la démocratie, en Pgrticuher chez les
jeunes, qui n’en ont jamais fait I'expérience. Un grand
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them think democracy is good times, wealth. We see now
that there seems to be a rise in the number of Iron Guard
demonstrations and repression of minorities; a synagogue was
recently burned down; and of course, there are the Hungarian
problems in Tirgu Mures and Cluj. Would your institute be
considering doing things such as going in there and helping some
of the minority groups to communicate or to help some of the—

Mr. Broadbent: It could. In fact, I sat in on the
discussions that took place here in Ottawa with the NGO
community before the UN Session on Human Rights in
Geneva. There were church people attending who had just
returned from Romania, and they raised the kind of question
you did now, and one was a specific reference that they have
had no experience in what we would call genuine municipal
elections and do not know how to organize. The question put
in that context was if a group or a municipality asks for some
practical advice based on our experience or other experience that
we could point to, the reply would be yes, in principle. I have to
say right away it is the kind of project we could look at as a centre
and say yes.

For example, I have already sent word to the head of the
Canadian Political Science Association that it would be useful
for us to get a list of all Canadian academics who have
expertise in municipal elections. So yes, we could arrange a
meeting with such officials from Romania, to take a concrete
case, if it were presented, to put them in touch with certain
Canadian academics and/or people at the governmental level
who have had experience in organizing and implementing local
elections in a democratic way. We could do that.

Ms Greene: The Institute for Democracy, I understand, is
really strained at the present moment, given that there are so
many new democracies. One thing they have been doing is
helping people, educational institutions and that kind of thing,
get there. They apparently have programs set up to help people
develop—
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Mr. Broadbent: For example, the people with whom I
met in Strasbourg at the European Parliament were urging
Canada to get involved and not leave it to our American
neighbours, or not leave it to other western Europeans.
There was a lot of work that had to be done, and it can be a
facilitating kind of work of providing information. Certainly,
given the nature of our federal state with experience at the
provincial, municipal, and national level, we do have a lot of
experience we could share, and I think that as a policy matter the
centre should be involved now—if we had the resources to do
that—to help out.

Ms Phinney (Hamilton Mountain): Thank you for visiting us,
and excuse me for having to leave in the middle. You probably
understand that.

You have to have 13 directors, and I just wonder how many
of the 13 would be representative of aboriginal communities?

[Traduction]

nombre d’entre eux pensent que la démocratie signifie avoir
du bon temps et de la richesse. Nous voyons maintenant,
semble-t-il, une augmentation du nombre de manifestations
de la Garde de fer et une plus grande répression des
minorités; une synagogue a récemment été briilée, et il y a bien
siir les problémes de la minorité hongoise a Tirgu Mures et a
Cluj. Votre centre songerait-il a aller 1a-bas, par exemple, aider
certains des groupes minoritaires a communiquer ou aider
certains. . .

M. Broadbent: C’est possible. En fait, j’ai participé aux
discussions qui ont eu lieu a Ottawa avec les représentants
d’organisations non gouvernementales avant la session des
Nations Unies sur les Droits de 'homme a Geneve. Il y avait
notamment des représentants de groupes religieux qui
revenaient de Roumanie et qui ont posé le méme genre de
questions que vous. Ils ont mentionné notamment que les
Roumains n’avaient pas fait l'expérience de véritables
élections municipales et qu’ils ne savent pas comment les
organiser. On nous a demandé dans ce contexte ce que nous
dirions si un groupe ou une municipalité nous demandait des
conseils pratiques fondés sur notre expérience ou nous
demandait d’indiquer qui pourrait les aider; je répondrais oui, en
principe. Je dois dire que c’est le genre de projet que notre
centre envisagerait d’entreprendre.

Par exemple, jai déja informé le directeur de
I’Association canadienne des sciences politiques qu’il nous
serait utile d’avoir une liste de tous les universitaires
canadiens ayant une expérience des élections municipales. Si
des personnages officiels de Roumanie nous le demandaient,
nous pourrions donc en effet organiser une réunion ou les
mettre en contact avec certains universitaires canadiens ou des
fonctionnaires qui ont eu I'expérience d’organiser des élections
locales de fagon démocratique. Nous pourrions le faire.

Mme Greene: Si je comprends bien, I'Institut pour la
démocratie est débordée de travail actuellement, étant donné le
grand nombre de nouvelles démocraties. Llnstitut a notamment
aidé des enseignants et des gens d’autres secteurs a se rendre
la-bas. Il a apparemment institué des programmes pour aider les
gens a organiser. . .

M. Broadbent: Par exemple, les personnes que jai
rencontrées a Strasbourg au Parlement de [I'Europe
demandaient au Canada de s’en occuper et de ne pas laisser
cette question a nos voisins américains ni aux autres
européens de I'Ouest. Il y a beaucoup de choses a faire et cela
aiderait beaucoup de fournir des renseignements sur ces
questions. Bien évidemment, étant donné la nature de notre
régime fédéral avec le niveau municipal, provincial et national,
nous avons une grande expérience de ces problémes, expérience
que nous pourrions partager, et je pense que le centre devrait,
en régle général, s'en occuper, pourvu que nous ayons les
moyens de le faire.

Mme Phinney (Hamilton Mountain): Je vous remercie de
votre visite et vous demanderais de bien vouloir m’excuser car je
dois partir bient6t. Vous le comprendrez probablement.

Vous devez avoir 13 administrateurs et je me demande quel
est, parmi ces 13, le nombre des représentants des communautés
autochtones?
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Mr. Broadbent: Ten of the 13 are Canadians. The 10 were
named by the government on March 22, and 1 of the 10 is an
aboriginal Canadian from Saskatchewan.

Ms Phinney: I wonder what exactly your centre could do that
the government itself could not do, and if you have any concerns
that, as you start working, CIDA and the Department of External
Affairs might slacken their efforts, thinking you are going to pick
up some activities they have already been doing.

Mr. Broadbent: As you may know, that concern was
expressed in the early debates and discussions that led to the
establishment of the centre. It was denied by the government
that they would do that, and I have been pleased to see that
Mr. Clark has subsequently denied that. I have no reason to
believe that a cut-back will be coming as a result of our
involvement as a centre. It seems to me that if we do our job
then we ought to be generating more demands, not fewer, or
not even the same level of demands. If we do what all parties
agreed the centre ought to be up to in its activities by being
involved in other countries in this field, I think the inevitable
by-product of it will be to increase demands for our CIDA and
External Affairs programs, as well as demands going to other
countries, in developed countries that have provided similar
assistance. I certainly will be watching to see if there is a sign that
CIDA or other government programs are cut back as a result of
our activity. But, frankly, I have seen no sign of that.

Ms Phinney: It says in here that this organization is
independent of our government and that it is to promote the
observance of human rights in other countries. What if a group
from Canada came to you?

Mr. Broadbent: We can do things in Canada, but right
now in terms of the money that has been allocated, we can
spend money only if, for example, a group in Canada was
working with people in El Salvador, or the Philippines, or
Africa. If what they were doing here was to facilitate action there,
a concrete program there, then we could be spending here. But
in terms of independent activities in terms of human rights
activities, in Canada with existing funds, the answer would be no.
The money that has been allocated has to be used for developing
countries.

But we could fund-raise. That is in our mandate as well.
We can raise money for specific Canadian programs, and we
may at some point get around to doing that. But certainly the
prime focus of the centre is to be active outside of Canada. I
would like to be very clear on that, though: the things we do in
Canada, as a matter of emphasis, ought to be related to, to
explain what we are doing abroad, to get support for what we are
doing abroad if you like—

[Translation]

M. Broadbent: Dix de ces 13 administrateurs sont Canadiens.
C’est le gouvernement qui a nommé dix administrateurs le 22
mars, et une de ces personnes est un autochtone de la
Saskatchewan.

Mme Phinney: Je me demande ce que votre centre pourrait
faire que le gouvernement ne pourrait pas et je me demande
également si vous craignez que 'ACDI et le ministére des
Affaires extérieures relachent quelque peu leurs efforts en
pensant que vous allez reprendre certaines de leurs attributions.

M. Broadbent: Comme vous le savez peut-étre, cette
crainte a été exprimée au cours des premiers débats et
discussions qui ont précédé la création du centre. Le
gouvernement a publiquement déclaré qu’il n’adopterait pas
une telle attitude et j'ai eu le plaisir de voir que M. Clark a
confirmé cette position. Je n’ai aucune raison de croire que le
démarrage du centre va entrainer une réduction dans ce type
d’activités. I1 me semble que si nous faisons bien notre
travail, cela devrait déboucher sur une augmentation des
demandes présentées a ces organismes. Si nous respectons la
mission, telle que définie par tous les partis, a savoir le
renforcement des droits de la personne et des institutions
démocratiques dans des pays étrangers, je pense que la
conséquence immédiate de ces activités serait une demande
accrue pour les programmes mis sur pied par 'ACDI et les
Affaires extérieures, ainsi que des demandes adressées a d’autres
pays, a d’autres pays développés qui offrent une aide compara-
ble. J'ai bien entendu lintention de m’assurer que les
programmes de 'ACDI ou d’autres organismes gouvernemen-
taux ne soient pas réduits en raison de nos activités. Mais je dois
dire franchement que je n’ai constaté aucun élément me
permettant de croire que ce soit le cas.

Mme Phinney: Je note que d’aprés ce document cet
organisme est indépendant de notre gouvernement et qu'il est
chargé de promouvoir le respect des droits de 'homme dans les
autres pays. Et si un groupe de Canadiens s’adressait a vous?

M. Broadbent: Nous pouvons exercer nos activités au
Canada mais a I’heure actuelle, pour ce qui est des fonds qui
nous ont été attribués, nous ne pouvons les dépenser que
dans le cas ou, par exemple, un groupe de Canadiens
travaillait avec des personnes au Salvador, aux Philippines ou en
Afrique. Si ce groupe de Canadiens avait une action dans un de
Ces pays, un programme concret, nous pourrions dépenser de
l'argent ici. Mais pour ce qui est d’avoir des activités indépen-
dantes sur le plan des droits de la personnes, au Canada, avec les
fonds dont nous disposons, la réponse est non. Les fonds qui
nous ont été attribués doivent étre utilisés au bénéfice des pays
en voie de développement.

Mais nous pourrions également tenter de nous procurer
des fonds. Ceci fait également partie de notre mission. Nous
pouvons chercher des fonds pour financer des programmes
canadiens et il est possible que nous le fassions 4 un moment
donné. Mais I'essentiel des activités du centre doivent étre
dirigées a I'extérieur du Canada. J'aimerais bien préciser cela:
Les activités que nous avons au Canada devraient étre reliées a
ce que nous faisons a I’etranger, devraient viser a obtenir un
appui pour nos activités a I'étranger. .
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Ms Phinney: So it cannot be to help any group in Canada that
may feel they need this help we are offering other countries?

Mr. Broadbent: Strictly speaking, the answer is yes, we can do
that; but also strictly speaking in terms of the money that has
been allocated, we cannot use a cent for it.

Ms Phinney: It says here quite clearly “in other countries”. It
does not say anything about working in Canada.

Mr. Broadbent: Yes, there is a clause there; it says—

Ms Phinney: Your mandate says “and other organizations in
other countries for training, counsel”. It says nothing about in
Canada.
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Mr. Broadbent: There is something about the mandate.

Mr. McCurdy (Windsor—St. Clair): In the statement of
objects it excludes working with organizations in the country. I
guess the real question is whether to work with organizations
addressing human rights within Canada.

Ms Phinney: Yes, I am talking about human rights within
Canada, and here it says no.

Mr. Broadbent: I do not want you to take it just on faith. I
know there is a paragraph in here that permits activities. Yes,
paragraph 4.(c) does do that. But there is another clause in here
that says any of the money we have has to be spent on programs
for developing countries.

Ms Phinney: So the answer is no.

Mr. Broadbent: But we could fund-raise, for example. If we
decided to act on paragraph (c) in whatever way with human
rights programs in Canada, technically speaking we could do it.
We would just have to raise money in Canada to do it.

But clearly the intent of the act of setting up the centre was
not for human rights activities in Canada as such. It was for
outside Canada. We have our own human rights institutions for
domestic purposes.

Mr. Assad (Gatineau—La Liévre): Mr. Broadbent, I am sure
most Canadians wish you the best and the centre will be a success.
You spoke a while ago about the useful role it can play, and there
is no doubt it can.

Having been in public life for so long, you realize
probably more than anybody else in this room that perception
and facts are two different things. I remember when Ms
Karen Rib got back from El Salvador I had the honour of
meeting her. I had a lot of questions about El Salvador. I had
been influenced by the writings of a guy by the name of Noam
Chomsky, but I heard from Ms Rib herself. I was stunned at the
information she had gathered right in El Salvador.

[Traduction]

Mme Phinney: Le centre ne pourrait donc pas aider un
groupe canadien qui penserait avoir besoin du genre d’aide que
vous offrez aux autres pays?

M. Broadbent: En théorie, la réponse est oui, nous pouvons
le faire; mais sur le plan des fonds qui nous ont été accordés,
nous ne pourrions utiliser un dollar pour ce genre de chose.

Mme Phinney: On parle ici trés clairement «dans d’autres
pays». Il n'est fait aucune mention d’activités exercées au
Canada.

M. Broadbent: Si, il y a un article qui énonce. . .

Mme Phinney: Votre mission parle «et d’autres organismes
dans d’autres pays». On ne parle pas du Canada.

M. Broadbent: Il s’agit de notre mission.

M. McCurdy (Windsor—Sainte-Clair): Eénoncé des objets
du centre ne parle pas d’activités concernant des organismes
canadiens. Je pense que la véritable question est celle de savoir
si le centre peut travailler avec des organismes qui s’occupent de
droits de la personne au Canada.

Mme Phinney: Oui, je parle des droits de la personne au
Canada et ce document dit que non.

M. Broadbent: Je ne vous demande pas de me croire sur
parole. Je sais qu’il existe une disposition qui autorise ce genre
d’activités. Oui, c’est I'alinéa 4.c). Mais il y a également une autre
disposition d’aprés laquelle les fonds dont nous disposons
doivent étre uniquement consacrés a des programmes dans les
pays en voie de développement.

Mme Phinney: La réponse est donc non.

M. Broadbent: Mais nous pourrions financer nous-mémes ce
genre d’activités. Si nous décidions d’exercer des activités dont
parle l'alinéa c) pour ce qui est de programmes de défense des
droits de la personne au Canada, nous pourrions le faire en
théorie. Il nous faudrait tout simplement trouver les fonds au
Canada pour le faire.

Mais il est bien évident que I'intention de la Loi était de créer
un centre qui ne s’occuperait pas de la défense des droits de la
personne au Canada. Cela visait 'étranger. Il y a déja des
organismes canadiens qui s’occupent de la défense des droits de
la personne.

M. Assad (Gatineau—La Liévre): Monsieur Broadbent, je
suis siir que la plupart des Canadiens souhaitent que vous et
votre centre ayez beaucoup de succeés. Vous avez parlé il y a
quelques minutes du role fort utile que ce centre peut jouer et
je suis certain qu’il le fera.

Avec votre grande expérience de la vie publique, vous
savez peut-€tre mieux que personne ici que la perception et
la réalité sont deux choses différentes. J'ai eu I’honneur de
rencontrer M™ Karen Rib lorsquelle est rentrée du
Salvador. Je me posais beaucoup de questions sur le Salvador.
Javais été influencé par les écrits d’un certain Noam Chomsky
et javais entendu parler M™ Rib. Jai été atterré des
renseignements qu’elle avait obtenus sur place au Salvador.
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There is so much information that comes in. At least
Canadians will be well informed by the centre of violations of
human rights or the lack of the democratic institutions in
certain countries, but especially the violation of human rights,
which I am sure we are very concerned with. The centre
there, I feel—I would like your opinion—first and foremost,
as it evolves. .. Of course money is tight, but if you had the
budgets a lot could be done. But right now a lot of the
information we do get concerning violation of human rights is
completely erroneous and distorted, be it the information from
Central America or that from the Middle East, concerning the
Palestinian cause. We get a lot of erroneous information. Do you
think the centre could at least give the Canadian people the facts
rather than the perception we get from the news media?

Mr. Broadbent: As you know, the serious debates are always
about what is a fact, to start with. Of course we will do our best
to be scrupulous and any statement we put out claiming it to be
factual will be factual. We will act with integrity, which is not to
say we will not be mistaken. Like other institutions, from time
to time it will be.

Other than that, I am not sure what your question may be
aiming at. Are you asking if we are going to have a major research
staff that will have as its mandate keeping an up-to-date
assessment of the human rights situation in a number of given
countries? That is possible. It is something the board of the
centre will have to discuss. It was one kind of role that was talked
about for the centre.
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I would simply say at this point that if we do take that
on, it would take up a lot of resources; i.e., if we did tae
research ourselves. I am making a particular effort to have
people who have worked on the ground in the countries they
are going to be making decisions about back in an office building
in Montreal. We will still be dependent, in terms of our factual
assessment, for their contacts with our own government offices,
certainly on the ground, our own embassies there, but in
particular with Canadian NGO contacts in those places and
other international NGO contacts.

We will be doing our best to determine it, but in one
sense our own judgment is going to be based on other
credible sources like Amnesty International—what they tell
us and so on. We will be relying to a good extent on
institutions that have established a reputation for integrity. In
some cases where we are putting programs in place, we will be
doing our best before we launch X program in Y country to have
an assessment made by our own people, to determine what the
factual situation is before we launch a program.

[Translation)

Il y a tellement de renseignements qui arrivent. Cela
aidera les Canadiens @ mieux connaitre, grice au centre, les
violations des droits de la personne ou le manque
d’institutions  démocratiques dans certains pays, mais
principalement, les violations des droits de la personne,
aspect qui nous préoccupe énormément. Le centre, je
pense—et jaimerais avoir votre opinion & ce sujet, va
principalement. . . Bien siir, il n’y pas beaucoup d’argent et si
vous aviez un budget plus important, vous pourriez faire
davantage. Mais a I'heure actuelle, une bonne partie des
informations concernant la violation des droits de la personne
est trés déformée et inexacte, qu’il s’agisse d’informations sur
I’Amérique centrale ou sur le Moyen-Orient, sur la cause des
Palestiniens. Nous recevons beaucoup d’informations inexactes.
Pensez-vous que le centre pourrait au moins donner aux
Canadiens des faits au lieu des perceptions que nous donnent les
médias?

M. Broadbent: Comme vous le savez, il n’est pas toujours
facile de s’entendre sur ce qu’est un fait. Bien siir, nous nous
efforcerons de faire tres attention a cet aspect et si nous publions
une déclaration qui présente des faits, il s’agira bien entendu de
faits. Nous allons agir de fagon honnéte, ce qui ne veut pas dire
qu’il ne nous arrivera pas de nous tromper. Cela risque de nous
arriver de temps en temps comme a n’importe quelle autre
institution.

Pour le reste, je ne comprends pas trés bien le sens de votre
question. Voulez-vous savoir si nous allons rassembler un
personnel de recherche important qui serait chargé de rassem-
bler des renseignements a jour sur la situation des droits de la
personne dans un certain nombre de pays? Cela est possible. Le
conseil du centre devra en discuter. C’est un des rdles que
pourrait jouer le centre.

Je peux cependant dire que si nous adoptons un tel role,
cela exigerait que nous y affections beaucoup de ressources;
c’est-a-dire si nous faisions des recherches nous-mémes. Je
vais essayer de trouver des personnes qui connaissent bien les
pays au sujet desquels nous serons amenés a prendre des
décisions de Montréal. Pour ce qui est des éléments factuels,
nous dépendrons toujours des contacts qu’elles entretiennent
avec nos bureaux gouvernementaux, et leurs représentants sur
place, nos propres ambassades, mais en particulier avec les
représentants d’ONG canadiennes dans ces pays et d’autres
ONG internationales.

Nous avons tenté de nous faire une image précise de la
situation mais en un sens, nous allons baser notre propre
jugement sur des sources fiables comme Aministie
internationale—sur les renseignements qu’elles nous
communiqueront. Nous allons nous fier dans une grande mesure
aux organismes qui se sont gagné une bonne réputation
d’intégrité. Il nous arrive de mettre sur pied un programme, nous
allons faire notre possible, avant de démarrer le programme X
dans le pays Y, d’envoyer des membres du centre examiner sur
place ce qu’est la situation avant de démarrer un tel programme.
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Mr. Assad: If you were to rely on organizations like Amnesty
International I would be more than happy. I assume that you will
always be objective and there will be complete integrity. I hope
the information you are receiving is not biased, distorted, or
subject to power politics and what not. We have been
over-exposed to that.

For instance, let us look at what has happened in eastern
Europe. For years we believed that the communist menace was
imminent and that we could be wiped off the map. Then we
began to realize that it was totally distorted. Therefore, I would
be glad to see that the information we get is precise, for a change.

Mr. Broadbent: I hope the information will have the same
credibility as my speeches have had in the past—more so.

Mr. McCurdy: Mr. Broadbent, you and I worried about this
centre and discussed it many times. We worried whether the
person in charge would be of the appropriate political philosophy
and sincere in his devotion to human rights issues. I guess we are
both satisfied.

As I recall, one of the concerns that brought you here
was our ruminating about the role of this committee. One of
the problems this committee has as the subcommittee on
international human rights is the fact that we are shut out
from a considerable amount of information. We do not have
access to evaluative material with respect to human rights
practices in various countries in the world, what External does
with respect to that, how it responds. We see human rights
increasingly determining Canadian foreign policy, including the
provision of overseas development aid.

You have addressed it at least in part by suggesting that
your sources of information would come largely from NGOs
operating on the ground, which of course is the same source
of information that we have. I am wondering, understanding
that the centre is to have no specific responsibilities to
government, whether we cannot together explore the
potential for your centre’s having a relationship to
Parliament. As you know, we are often left quite weak in our
attempt to bring to bear constructive criticism of Canadian
foreign policy. We do not have access, as I said, to all kinds of
information, from the evaluation of the human rights practices
of various countries on into who gets arms from Canada.
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Understanding that you have already said your budget is
limited, and I can understand that there are inevitable
limitations, I am wondering whether you would be willing to take
the initiative to make the centre a resource for parliamentarians
in respect to our role in furthering international human rights,
as described in the context of the act.

[Traduction]

M. Assad: Je serais trés satisfait si vous utilisiez des
renseignements communiqués par des organismes comme
Amnistie internationale. Je suis certain que vous seriez toujours
objectifs et désintéressés. J’espére que les renseignements que
vous obtiendrez ne seront pas, déformés ou soumis a des
pressions politiques autres. Nous avons trop eu de choses de ce
genre.

Par exemple, regardons ce qui s’est passé en Europe de I'Est.
Pendant des années, nous avons cru que les communistes
risquaient de nous attaquer d’'un moment a l'autre et qu’ils
pourraient nous détruire. Nous nous sommes apercus par la suite
que cette image était complétement fausse. C’est pourquoi je
serais trés heureux d’obtenir des renseignements exacts pour
changer.

M. Broadbent: J'espere que ces renseignements auront la
méme crédibilité qu'avaient mes discours dans le passé —méme
davantage.

M. McCurdy: M. Broadbent, ce centre nous a inquiété et
nous en avons parlé a plusieurs reprises. Nous nous demandions
si la personne choisie serait sincére dans son action en faveur des
droits de la personne et si elle agirait en fonction de principes
politiques efficaces dans ce domaine. Je dois dire que nous
sommes tous les deux satisfaits du choix.

Je me souviens qu’un des sujets que nous avions abordés
était celui du role de ce Comité. Un des problemes que
connait ce Comité est qu’en tant que sous-comité des droits
de la personne au niveau international est que nous
disposons de renseignements insuffisants. Nous n’avons pas
d’accés a des documents d’évaluation concernant les pratiques
suivies dans divers pays du monde en matiére de droits de la
personne, ni sur ce que font les Affaires extérieures a ce sujet ni
comment ce ministére y réagit. La question des droits de la
personne semble influer de plus en plus sur la politique
étrangére du Canada, y compris la fourniture d’aide au
développement a I'étranger.

Vous avez répondu en partie a ce probléme en indiquant
que vous comptiez obtenir nos principales informations
aupres de NGO travaillant sur place, et dont la source de
renseignements est essentiellement la méme que la notre. Le
centre parait n’avoir aucune responsabilité précise envers le
gouvernement et je me demande si nous ne pourrions pas
nous interroger sur I'établissement d’un lien entre le centre
et le Parlement. Comme vous le savez, nous manquons
parfois de vigueur lorsque nous tentons de formuler des critiques
constructives au sujet de la politique étrangere du Canada. Nous
n’avons pas acces, comme je 'ai déja dit, a un grand nombre de
renseignements, qu’il s’agisse de I'évaluation des pratiques des
divers pays en matiere de droits de la personne ou des personnes
au pays qui achetent des armes du Canada.

Vous avez déja mentionné le fait que votre budget était limité
et je sais que cela est inévitable, je me demande si vous seriez
prét a permettre aux députés d’utiliser votre centre comme une
source de renseignements pour ce qui est de notre role de la
défense des droits de la personne sur le plan international, telle
qu’elle est décrite dans votre loi.
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Mr. Broadbent: Insofar as that means being totally co-
operative in providing Members of Parliament with all the
information—and I mean not in just a formal kind of way,
but to establish a relationship, particularly with members of
this committee, which by definition has its focus on human
rights—as far as that means really making everything available
to members of the committee, that we have formal meetings,
informal meetings, and by committee members being welcome
to our office in Montreal and so on, the answer is an unequivocal
yes.

I would like to see a close working relationship where we
get, for example, as the centre, the full-time staff and also
the board. There have been suggestions from Members of
Parliament of the kinds of things we might do to have that. I
for one would not regard it as interference. If that is the question
Howard is asking, the answer would be an unhesitating yes. I
would welcome that close co-operation of our centre with
Members of Parliament, and particularly with this committee.

I have had some experience in seeing how committee
members can change around, so it would be good to see over a
number of years a number of people on this committee who
would remain constant and they themselves acquire, over a
period of time, as parliamentarians, a real expertise in the field.
It could be a good two-way flow between the centre on the one
hand and members of the committee on the other.

Mr. McCurdy: You mean you would hire me when I retire?

Even apart from this relationship, apart from the funding
considerations, would you consider it appropriate for the
centre, as do various organizations in the States, one already
cited, to evaluate, in ways that would be useful not just to us
but to everyone, the human rights practices of nations with which
we have significant international or aid dealings in such a way as
to allow us generally, within the context of that kind of evaluation
of human rights practices and democratic practices, to have
impact, as parliamentarians, and I suppose as other portions of
the community, on the behaviour of our government with respect
to those?

Mr. Broadbent: That is one of the questions we have
talked about—by “we” I mean the centre itself, the staff
and the board of the centre—to decide whether we want to
do that on a systematic basis. Say, take the principal countries
the Government of Canada has trading activities with, or that
CIDA is principally involved in, and do an annual assessment of
those countries in terms of their human rights practices. That is
one suggestion that in fact has been made, and it is one that we
will have to talk about. I can say candidly to you and other
members of the committee that is not something on which I
personally have made up my own mind.
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Perhaps I can I add one thing. Whether we did it on a
systematic basis in those countries or not, or whether we do
as a centre, there is one way we have to get involved in
assessments. Once we get programs in place in a country that

[Translation)

M. Broadbent: Si vous voulez dire par 1a apporter un
appui actif aux membres du Parlement en leur fournissant les
renseignements dont ils ont besoin—et je ne veux pas dire
seulement de fagon officielle mais d’établir une relation, en
particulier avec les membres de ce comité, qui par définition
s’occupent des droits de la personne—si cela veut dire fournir
tous ces documents aux membres du comité, avoir des réunions
officielles ou non et accueillir les membres du comité dans notre
bureau de Montréal, etc., la réponse est un oui, sans aucun
doute.

Jaimerais que nous travaillions en collaboration étroite
sur ces questions lorsque nous aurons un personnel a plein
temps au centre et aussi avec le conseil d’administration.
Certains députés ont proposé certaines facons d’y arriver. Je
ne considére pas qu’il y a interférence dans un tel cas. Si c’est
bien 13 la question que pose Howard, je dirais que la réponse est
un oui, eh oui, sans hésitation. Je suis en faveur d’une
collaboration étroite entre notre centre et les députés, et en
particulier, avec ceux qui font partie de ce comité.

Je sais par expérience que les membres d’'un comité changent,
c’est pourquoi je pense qu’il serait bon de voir un certain nombre
de députés continuer a siéger a ce comité pour qu’ils puissent
acquérir, avec le temps, une grande expertise dans ce domaine.
Cela permettrait des échanges entre le centre d’une part et les
membres du comité de I'autre.

M. McCurdy: Vous voulez dire que vous pourriez m’embau-
cher quand je prendrai ma retraite?

En plus de ces échanges, en plus des considérations
financieres, pensez-vous qu’il conviendrait que le centre, tout
comme divers organismes américains—nous en avons déja
mentionné un—nous fasse connaitre, d’'une fagcon qui ne
serait pas seulement utile & nous mais a tous les citoyens, a tous
les Canadiens, les pratiques en matiere de droits de la personne
dans le cas de pays avec lesquels nous traitons ou a qui nous
apportons de l'aide. Cela pourrait nous permettre, de fagon
générale et dans le contexte de I'évaluation des pratiques en
matiére des droits de la personne et de pratiques démocratiques,
d’avoir un certain effet, en tant que députés—tout comme je le
suppose pourraient avoir d’autres secteurs du public, sur le
comportement de notre gouvernement a I'égard de ces pays?

M. Broadbent: C’est une des questions que nous avons
abordée—quand je dis «nous», je veux dire le centre, son
personnel et le conseil du centre—et nous nous sommes
demandés s’il faudrait le faire sur une base systématique. On
pourrait prendre par exemple les principaux pays avec lesquels
le gouvernement du Canada entretient des liens commerciaux
ou avec lesquels 'ACDI exécute des projets et faire une
évaluation annuelle de ces pays en fonction de la protection des
droits de la personne. C’est une suggestion qui nous a été faite
et il nous faudra y réfléchir. Je dois vous dire ainsi qu’aux
membres du comité que je n’ai pas encore pris une décision sur
ce point.

Je pourrais peut-étre ajouter quelque chose. Que nous le
fassions de fagon systématique ou non, ou que ce soit le
centre ou un autre organisme qui le fasse, nous devrons de
toute fagon effectuer, dans certains cas, ce genre
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are worked out thoughtfully and seriously in terms of the
mandate of the centre, if at any time there is interference by
those countries in terms of their human rights practices with the
program that is aimed at human rights, you can be sure we will
be saying something about the absence of human rights practises
vis-a-vis that program, if we run into that kind of conflict.

Mr. McCurdy: Finally, do you feel you have sufficient
assurance of independence to be able to criticize the government
when it pursues policies that are inconsistent with the goals of the
centre and therefore, I would think, the will of Canadians with
respect to the enhancement of human rights and democracy
elsewhere?

Mr. Broadbent: Yes. There is no doubt we have that leeway.
The question is whether we want to take that on as a principal
part of our mandate.

Mrs. Stewart (Northumberland): My question is really a bit
of a follow-up to Howard’s. I presume you have been made
aware of what our immediate mandate is, what we have decided
as a group we want to address.

Mr. Broadbent: No, I have not, actually.

Mrs. Stewart: That is too bad. My interpretation of it,
very briefly, is to try to get some coherency in Canadian
foreign affairs policies. We are not finally getting CIDA to
address human rights issues, but that policy in CIDA loses all
its impact because our trade with a particular country has no
relation whatsoever to our aid policies, because trade is not based
on any human rights consideration. I hope our staff will provide
you with what it is we are trying to address.

My particular interest and question, following what Mr.
McCurdy asked, is what and how you would perceive the
centre relating to this committee, if you have any other ideas.
I think you will probably have a better idea of that when you
know more specifically what it is we are trying to do at this time.
Presumably this will be an ongoing subcommittee. We are going
to produce reports, and there will be a development; there will
be a process. You are producing an annual report, which will be
of great interest to us. In the committee as a whole we are very
interested, for example, in the human rights commissioner for
the country coming and speaking to the committee. Do you see
yourself having to—

Mr. Broadbent: I do not know if you were here when I
replied to an earlier question along these lines. I would really
like to say both formally and informally. I regard this meeting
as a formal meeting. Sometimes we could have lunch
together—members of the committee—or you could come to
Montreal, or we could have closed sessions together to really
talk about the ways we can interact and help each other. The
roles are different, you as parliamentarians on the one hand,
and we having responsibility for the centre, but beyond that, I do
not know. I would like to know the agenda items you have
decided as a committee you are interested in. One of the useful
discussions we could have before long would be to see which of
those agenda items might bear directly on the work of the centre,
and then how the centre can help you fulfil your task as
parliamentarians.

[Traduction]

d’évaluation. Si nous instituons un programme dans un pays,
programme qui a été soigneusement étudié et conforme a la
mission du centre et §’il se produit dans ce pays des atteintes aux
droits de la personne qui nuisent au programme qui vise a les
protéger, vous pouvez étre certains que nous ne resterons pas
silencieux.

M. McCurdy: Pour terminer, pensez-vous que vous serez
suffisamment indépendants du gouvernement pour pouvoir le
critiquer lorsqu’il poursuit des politiques qui sont incompatibles
avec les objectifs du Centre et par conséquent, je le pense, contre
la volonté des Canadiens pour ce qui est de la protection des
droits de 'homme et de la démocratie a I'étranger?

M. Broadbent: Oui. Je suis sfir que nous avons suffisamment
de marge de manoeuvre. Cependant, je ne sais pas si cela doit
représenter une partie essentielle de notre mission.

Mme Stewart (Northumberland): Ma question vient en fait
poursuivre celle qu'a posée Howard. Je pense que vous devez
savoir quel est notre objecif immédiat, quel est le probleme
auquel, en tant que groupe, nous voulons examiner.

M. Broadbent: Non en fait je ne sais pas.

Mme Stewart: C’est dommage. Voici, de facon tres
résumée, comment je le congois: il s’agit d’introduire une
certaine cohérence dans les politiques canadiennes en matiére
d’affaires extérieures. LACDI se préoccupe finalement des
questions de droits de la personne mais cette politique voit sa
portée fort réduite parce que le commerce que nous entretenons
avec un certain pays n’a aucun rapport avec nos politiques en
matiere d’aide et parce que le commerce ne tient pas compte de
la question des droits de la personne. J'espére que notre
personnel va vous remettre des documents sur la question a
laquelle nous voulons nous attaquer.

Suite & lintervention de M. McCurdy, I'aspect qui me
préoccupe est la fagon dont vous percevez les relations entre
le centre et ce Comité. J’aimerais connaitre vos idées sur ce
point. Vous aurez sans doute une image plus claire de tout
cela lorsque vous connaitrez mieux nos objectifs. Nous espérons
qu’il s’agira d’un sous-comité permanent. Nous allons rédiger
des rapports et mettre en branle un processus. Vous rédigez
également un rapport annuel qui nous intéressera vivement.
Nous voulons que le Commissaire aux droits de la personne
vienne nous parler. Pensez-vous que. . .

M. Broadbent: Je ne sais pas si vous étiez ici lorsque j'ai
répondu a une question quelque peu semblable. J’aimerais
qu’il y ait a la fois des liens officiels et non-officiels. Pour
moi, il s’agit maintenant d’'une réunion officielle mais nous
pourrions parfois déjeuner ensemble—avec les membres du
Comité—ou vous pourriez venir a Montréal et nous
pourrions aussi avoir des sessions a huis clos pour parler des
différentes fagons dont nous pourrions nous aider
mutuellement. Nos roles sont différents puisque il y a d’un coté
les députés et de I'autre le centre, mais a part cela, je ne sais pas.
Jaimerais connaitre les domaines exacts qui vous intéressent.
Nous pourrions discuter utilement dans un proche avenir des
questions qui figurent sur cette liste et qui pourraient étre reliées
aux activités du centre, pour ensuite examiner comment celui-ci
pourrait vous aider dans votre tache de député.
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Mrs. Stewart: Personally, I think it is urgent that Mr.
Broadbent know what our agenda is.

The Chairman: Mr. Broadbent, you realize we have a vote, of
course. But first of all, on behalf of the members of this
committee, I want to thank you very much. We really appreciate
your evidence.

Mr. McCurdy: There is no reason why we should call this
committee to a close now. David and I will go and maybe one or
two others from this side. You could stay.

Mr. Broadbent: I am very independent. I am very neutral in
these things, Mr. Chairman.
® 1650

The Chairman: By the way, Mr. Broadbent, we will have some
discussions on that subject in the near future. The issue is very
important.

On a personal basis, if I look briefly at subsection 13.(3), you
are more than qualified and we as Canadians are very lucky to
have you chairing this centre. So on behalf of this member, we
thank you again and wish you good luck.

M. Broadbent: Merci, monsieur le président, et a la prochaine.

Le président: Ala prochaine fois! Merci, monsieur Broad-
bent.

La séance est levée.

[Translation)

Mme Stewart: Personnellement, je pense qu’il est urgent que
M. Broadbent soit mis au courant de nos sujets d’intérét.

Le président: M. Broadbent, vous savez que nous devons aller
voter. Mais tout d’abord, je voudrais, au nom des membres de ce
Comité, vous remercier. Nous sommes vraiment trés heureux
d’avoir pu entendre votre témoignage.

M. McCurdy: Rien ne nous oblige a lever la séance. David et
moi allons nous en aller et peut-étre un ou deux membres de ce
cOté. Vous pourriez rester.

M. Broadbent: Je suis trés indépendant. Je suis trés neutre sur
ces choses, M. le président.

Le président: Alors M. Boadbent, je voudrais mentionner en
passant que nous allons avoir une discussion sur ce sujet dans un
proche avenir. Cette question est trés importante.

Sur un plan plus personnel, si on examine rapidement le
paragraphe 13(3), vous étes plus que qualifi€ et je dois dire que
les Canadiens ont beaucoup de chance que ce soit vous qui
dirigiez ce centre. En mon nom personnel, je vous remercie et
vous souhaite bonne chance.

Mr. Broadbent: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, until next time.

The Chairman: Till next time then! Thank you, Mr.
Broadbent.

The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WEDNESDAY, MAY 2, 1990
(10)

[Text)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights met at
3:40 o'clock p.m. this day, in Room 307. West Block, the
Chairman, Maurice Tremblay. presiding.

Members of the Sub—Committee present: Maurice Tremblay.,
David Walker.

Acting Member present: Bruce Halliday for David Kilgour.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn, Research Officers.

Witnesses: From the Inter—Church Committee on Human Rights
in Latin America: Bishop Federico Pagura, President of Latin
American Council of Churches: Rev. Felipe Adolf, General
Secretary of CLAI and Silvia de Oliveira, Executive Member of
CLAL

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the Standing
Committee on Human Rights and the Status of Disabled Persons
dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and Tuesday, December 19, 1989.
the Sub-Committee proceeded to a briefing session on the
situation in Latin America. (See Minutes of Proceedings, Monday,
December 4, 1989, Issue 1).

Bishop Pagura made an opening statement and along with
other witnesses answered questions.

At 4:45 o’clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

THURSDAY, MAY 3, 1990
(11)

The Sub-Committee on International Human Rights met in
camera at 9:45 o’clock a.m. this day. in Room 208, West Block,
the Chairman, Maurice Tremblay, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Barbara Greene, Maurice
Tremblay, David Walker.

Acting Member present: Clément Couture for Walter McLean.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn, Research Officers.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the Standing
Committee on Human Rights and the Status of Disabled Persons
dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and Tuesday, December 19, 1989,
the Sub-Committee proceeded to study its future business. (See
Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, December 4, 1989, Issue 1).

By unanimous consent, it was agreed,— That notwithstanding
a motion adopted December 4, 1989. the quorum to hear
witnesses be reduced at 2 members.

PROCES-VERBAUX

LE MERCREDI 2 MAT 1990
(10)

[Traduction]

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 40, dans la piece 307 de
I'édifice de 1'Ouest, sous la présidence de Maurice Tremblay
(président).

Membres du Sous—comité présents: Maurice Tremblay et David
Walker.

Membre suppléant présent. Bruce Halliday remplace David
Kilgour.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliotheque du
Parlement: Allan McChesney et Jack Stilborn, attachés de
recherche.

Témoins: Du Comité inter-Eglises des droits de la personne en
Amérique latine: Mgr Federico Pagura. président du Conseil
latino-américain des églises: Rév. Felipe Adolf, secrétaire
général; Silvia de Oliveira, membre du Conseil.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre 1989,
le Sous-comité tient une séance d’information sur la situation en
Amérique latine (voir les Proces-verbaux et témoignages du lundi
4 décembre 1989, fascicule n° 1).

Mgr Pagura fait un exposé puis, avec les autres témoins,
répond aux questions.

A 16 h 45, le Comité s'ajourne jusqu'a nouvelle convocation
du président.

LE JEUDI 3 MAI 1990
(11)

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit a huis clos aujourd’hui a 9 h 45, dans la
piece 208 de I'édifice de I'Ouest, sous la présidence de Maurice
Tremblay (président).

Membres du Sous—comité présents: Barbara Greene, Maurice
Tremblay et David Walker.

Membre suppléant présent: Clément Couture remplace Walter
McLean.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement:. Allan McChesney et Jack Stilborn, attachés de
recherche.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre 1989,
le Sous-comité délibere de ses travaux a venir (voir les
Proces—verbauix et témoignages du lundi 4 décembre 1989, fascicule
n°1).

Par consentement unanime. il est convenu,—Que par
dérogation a la motion adoptée le 4 décembre 1989, le quorum
requis pour entendre des témoignages soit réduit a deux
membres.
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At 10:15 o'clock a.m.. the Sub-Committee adjourned to the A 10 h 15, le Comité s'ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
call of the Chair. du président.

Marie Louise Paradis ‘ La greffiére du Sous—comité

Clerk of the Sub—Commiittee : Marie Louise Paradis

—
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[Texte] [Traduction]
EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatuis]
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Wednesday, May 2, 1990

The Chairman: I am going to declare the session open, even
though we are still waiting for one member.

We are very pleased to have today the group from the Latin
American Coucil of Churches. We have with us Bishop Federico
Pagura, Reverend Felipe Adolf, and Reverend Silvia de Oliveira.
1 will allow you between 10 and 15 minutes and then we will have
questions from the members. The floor is yours.

His Excellency Bishop Federico Pagura (Inter-Church
Committee on Human Rights in Latin America): We are
very grateful for. this opportunity to share with you some
information about our work, our program and our concerns
in the field of human rights, not only according to the more
limited concept that has been used even in our own countries in
Latin America, but according to a more global and I would say
Christian understanding of the meaning of human rights.

I will give this introductory report after saying some
words about our Latin American Council of Churches. The
Latin American Council of Churches was formed in 1978 in
Ixtepec, Mexico, just a few weeks before the Puebla
Conference of the Catholic Bishops was held in the same
country, Mexico. It included representatives from most of the
Christian churches in Latin America, and ecumenical
organizations. At that time we had fewer than 100 members
participating in that assembly where the decision was taken to
create this Council of Latin American Churches for a formative
period that would carry us to a confirmation of the constitutional
foundation of the council and its programme after four or five
years of functioning in that formative period.

In 1982 we had our second assembly in Peru, in
Huancané, where our constitution was approved, and we
entered into our work with the support of a growing number
of churches and ecumenical organizations in Latin America
that cover a spectrum so large as to include Anglicans and
Lutherans in the so-called historical traditions of the
churches. and the most new, but very important in growth in
Latin America—the so-called Pentecostal groups of our
movements. It has been a real adventure of the spirit to grow
together, to have our tensions discussed, our different viewpoints
shared, and to see a program answering to the growing needs of
our countries and of our churches in this last year.
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The last assembly was held a year ago in Indaiatuva,
Brazil. In it I see a place where the Catholic bishops usually
meet for their own council. We had the privilege of receiving
Cardinal Arnz, who has been always a great fighter for
human rights in Latin America, and as people from Argentina
we are always grateful for the contribution he made for the cause
of human rights in that area of our continent. particularly during
the very dark days of our military dictatorships.

[Enregistrement électronique)

Le mercredi 2 mai 1990

Le président: Je déclare la séance ouverte, méme s'il manque
encore un député.

Nous sommes trés heureux d’accueillir aujourd’hui des
représentants du Conseil latino-américain des églises. Il s’agit
de Monseigneur Federico Pagura. du révérend Felipe Adolf et
du révérend Silvia de Oliveira. Vous aurez chacun dix a quinze
minutes pour nous faire un exposé, puis les députés vous
poseront des questions. Vous avez la parole.

Son Excellence Monseigneur Federico Pagura (Comité
inter-églises sur les droits humains en Amérique latine):
Nous sommes trés heureux d’avoir 'occasion de vous donner
des renseignements sur notre travail, notre programme et nos
préoccupations dans le domaine des droits de la personne, non
seulement a I'égard du concept restreint qu'on utilise méme
dans nos propres pays latino-américains, mais selon une vision
plus globale et je dirais méme chrétienne de ce que sont les
droits de la personne.

Je vous ferai un exposé d'introduction aprés vous avoir
touché un mot de notre Conseil latino-américain des églises.
Le conseil a ét¢ formé en 1978, a Ixtepec au Mexique,
quelques semaines a peine avant la conférence des évéques
catholiques de Puebla qui a eu lieu également au Mexique.
On y retrouvait des représentants de presque toutes les
églises chrétiennes d’Amérique latine de méme que des
organisations oecuméniques. A I'époque, il y avait moins de
100 participants a cette assemblée ou I'on a décidé de créer ce
Conseil latino-américain des églises en attendant la fondation
en bonne et due forme du conseil et la confirmation de son
programme, apres quatre ou cing ans de fonctionnement.

En 1982, nous avons tenu une deuxiéme assemblée a
Huancané, au Pérou. ou les statuts ont été approuvés. Nous
nous sommes mis au travail avec l'appui d'un nombre
croissant  d'églises et d'organisations  oecuméniques
d’Amérique latine qui présentent un éventail assez vaste pour
inclure les Anglicans et les Luthériens. des églises
traditionnelles anciennes, et aussi les mouvements
pentecdtistes qui sont plus récents, mais dont la croissance
est rapide. C'est une véritable aventure sprirituelle que de
grandir ensemble. de discuter de nos tensions, de mettre en
commun nos points de vue divergents et de voir apparaitre cette
année un programme qui réponde aux besoins croissants de nos
pays et de nos églises.

La derniére assemblée a eu lieu I'an dernier a Indaiatuva
au Brésil. C'est aussi I'occasion pour les évéques catholiques
de tenir leur propre conseil. Nous avons eu le privilege
d'accueillir le cardinal Arnz, qui a toujours lutté pour la
reconnaissance des droits de la personne en Amérique latine et
le peuple argentin lui sera toujours reconnaissant de sa
contribution a la cause des droits de la personne dans cette
partie du continent, surtout durant les jours treés sombres des
dictatures militaires.
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I would say the human rights struggle is carried on by
our council under a service called Pastorale of Consolation
and Solidarity. Particularly during the time when most of our
countries were ruled by military dictatorships, that would be a
euphemistic expression to cover the idea of human rights. In
many cases it was practically prohibited, in some of our countries,
but it has fulfilled a very important role as a pastoral adjunct to
the churches—and to many other groups, religious or secular,
that were struggling for the respect of human dignity in all our
countries.

At this moment, I would say we are interested
particularly in four important questions of the human rights
question or problem. A political aspect—we have had to give
a great contribution in the way of psychological, economical,
and pastoral assistance to the people who suffered under
human rights struggles. I am a member—I am a co-president
of the Ecumenical Movement for Human Rights in
Argentina, presided over by a Catholic bishop, myself, and
the president of the Church of the Disciples of Christ, in that
country. We still have a great responsibility for the people who
have suffered under the long dictatorship we suffered, and that
work is not over yet. After the establishment of democracy as a
political system in many of our countries—particularly in Brazil,
now in Chile, in Argentina, Paraguay, Uruguay, etc.—some
people think all the problems are over, the risk for human rights
is over also. and that we are having wonderful times in Latin
America. That is not true at all.

I am also a member. with Cardinal Enriquez of Santiago,
Chile, of a commission that used to be presided over by
President Carlos Andres Perez of Venezuela. called the
Commission for Democracy and Peace in South America. We
have been discussing precisely this question in that commis-
sion—i.e., to have a form of democracy does not mean the body
of rights that correspond to every human being is ensured.
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That is why we have developed thinking about a political,
cultural, and even religious understanding of security that will
take the part of what was called national security, which has really
been pagan idolatry in our countries. We have suffered all that
we have suffered in our countries in the name of national
security. We have rejected, as Christians. both Catholics and
Protestants, the ideology of national security.

We are now proposing the idea of democratic security that
comes from the participation of the people in their struggle for
freedom, justice, and brotherhood or sisterhood. In that sense,
we are very interested in continuing the struggle for human
rights, not just as a formal issue—i.e., if there is no torture and
no more people in the jails we are satisfied, because many other
things are killing people in our continent.

We want to make sure that a new social. economical, and
political system develops in our countries that will ensure the
spectrum of human rights that is a divine right of every creature
under the sun. That is one of the first issues we are taking into
consideration in our program in Latin America.

[Translation)

Notre conseil méne la luttre en faveur des droits de la
personne par lentremise d'un service qu'on appelle la
Pastorale de la consolation et de la solidarité. Au moment ot
la plupart de nos pays étaient sous I'emprise des dictatures
militaires, c'était un euphémisme pour les droits de la personne.
Dans certains pays, elle était en pratique interdite, mais elle a
joué un rdle trés important comme complément pastoral au
travail des églises et de bien d’autres groupes, religieux ou
laiques, qui luttaient pour faire respecter la dignité humaine
dans tous les pays latino-américains.

A Theure actuelle, nous nous intéressons plus
particulierement a quatre grandes questions ou problémes
concernant les droits de la personne. Il y a un aspect
politique puisque nous avons dii apporter une grande aide
psychologique, matérielle et pastorale a ceux qui ont souffert
de cette lutte. Je suis co-président. du Mouvement
oecuménique pour les droits de la personne en Argentine que
préside un évéque catholique, c'est-a-dire moi-méme et le
président de I'Eglise des disciples du Christ du pays. Nous avons
encore d'énormes responsabilités a I'endroit de ceux qui ont
souffert durant la longue dictature et tout n’est pas encore réglé.
Bien des gens croient que dés qu'un régime politique démocrati-
que est instauré dans un pays—notamment au Brésil, au Chili,
en Argentine, au Paraguay, en Uruguay, etc—tous les problémes
disparaissent du méme coup, les droits de la personne sont
respectés et la vie est merveilleuse. Tout cela est faux.

Je suis également membre, ainsi que le cardinal Enriquez
de Santiago au Chili, d'une commission qui a déja été
présidée par le président Carlos Andres Perez du Vénézuela
et qu'on appelle la Commission pour la démocratie et la paix
en Amérique du Sud. La commission a abordé précisément cette
question—c'est-a-dire que le fait d'instaurer une forme de
démocratie ne signifie pas qu'on ne porte plus atteinte a
I'ensemble des droits de tout étre humain.

Voila pourquoi nous avons réfléchi a un concept politico-cul-
turel et méme religieux de la sécurité qui remplacera ce qu'on
appelle actuellement la sécurité nationale et qui n'a €té rien
d'autre qu'une idolatrie paienne. Dans nos pays, nous avons
enduré toutes ces souffrances au nom de la sécurité nationale.
Nous chrétiens. tant catholiques que protestants, avons rejeté
I'idéologie de la sécurité nationale.

Nous proposons maintenant I'idée d'une sécurité démocrati-
que qui découle de la participation des gens a la lutte pour la
liberté, la justice et la fraternité. C'est en ce sens que nous allons
poursuivre avec enthousiasme la lutte en faveur des droits de la
personne; autrement dit, ce n'est pas parce qu'il n'y a plus de
tortures ni de détenus politiques que nous devons nous reposer
parce que bien d'autres choses encore font mourir nos peuples.

Nous voulons étre certains qu'apparaitra un nouveau systéme
social, économique et politique dans nos pays afin que toute la
gamme des libertés fondamentales soit respectée puisque c'est
le droit divin de toute créature. Voila le premier sujet qu'aborde
notre programme en Amérique latine.
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[Texte]

The other issue has, I would say, a racial dimension. We are
approaching the celebration of 1992, which is simply a historical
remembrance of something that will become very polemic in our
countries and even within our churches.

We have appointed someone to co-ordinate the many
expressions that will occur in all Latin American countries of the
real meaning of 1992. I can assure you that it will become a
burning issue in all our countries, and we believe that Canadians
and the people of the United States will also have to enter into
that discussion.

I have met people in the United States who say the
remembrance is something that only affects the Latin
American countries and that they have nothing to do. with it.
We say that is not at all true, because the matter has affected
the lives of millions of people, from the north of our continent
to the south, and is still affecting those who survived what is
called a genocide by many of the indigenous peoples of our
continent.

A short book was written by a Catholic theologian from
Italy named Julio Girardi, which is one of the most lucid
interpretations of what has happened. in my view. The title of
that book asks a question: with what right did the conquest
of Latin American occur? Julio Girardi is an Italian Catholic
theologian who came to Latin America and saw and studied the
whole phenomena of the conquest and the colonization up until
this present time, and he is making a tremendous judgment and
presenting a challenge to the European nations with regard to
what has happened in our continent and to the responsibility for
the future of the continent.

You must remember that when Pope John Paul II visited
Bolivia, Peru, and Ecuador, in which the population is mostly
indigenous, a group of people from Bolivia came to him with
a Bible. They gave the Bible to him and asked him to please
take it, to carry it back to Europe, and to tell the European people
that they needed it more than they did at this moment if they
wanted to be coherent to what had been given to them through
the Bible, through the message.
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We believe they are telling us the truth. After 500 years, it is
very important for us to review our presence in the development,
in the history of our countries in Latin America. So that will be.
It is also part of our struggle for human rights. We believe the
remembrance of 1992 will have a dimension of self-analysis,
self-criticism, historical revision, and also reparation.

If I have to speak about the people in my own country, we are
far from being just the people that survived a terrible crime
against not only their culture but also their life.

The third aspect is peace. Our Latin American Council is very
much concerned about peace, not only in the south of our
continent—where fortunately we have been arriving to at least
a limited understanding of democracy—but also in Central
America. For too many years the people there have been
suffering from violence, from injustice. from oppression.

[Traduction)

La deuxiéme question a une dimension, disons, sociale. Les
célébrations de 1992 approchent. Il s’agit simplement d'un
rappel historique de ce qui deviendra treés polémique dans nos
pays et méme dans nos églises.

Nous avons nommé un coordonnateur des nombreuses
manifestations qui exprimeront dans tous les pays d’Amérique
latine la signification réelle de 1992. Je peux vous assurer que
cela deviendra un probléme briilant dans tous nos pays et nous
croyons que les Canadiens et les Américains devront participer
a la discussion.

Jai rencontré des gens aux Etats-Unis qui croient que
cet anniversaire ne concerne que les pays latino-américains et
pas eux. Ce n'est pas vrai, croyons-nous, car ce fait historique
a affecté la vie de millions de personnes, du nord au sud du
continent, et continue d'affecter tous ceux qui ont survécu a ce
que bien des peuples autochtones appellent un génocide.

Un théologien catholique italien, Julio Girardi, a écrit un
petit livre qui donne I'une des interprétations les plus lucides,
selon moi, de ce qui s'est passé. Le titre du livre prend la
forme d'une question: de quel droit a-t-on conquis
I'’Amérique latine? Julio Girardi est un théologien catholique
italien qui est venu en Amérique latine pour étudier la fagon
dont elle a été conquise et colonisé jusqu’a aujourd'hui et il porte
un jugement terrible qui défie les nations européennes de
reconnaitre ce qui s'est passé sur notre continent et d’assumer la
responsabilité de I'avenir de ce continent.

Souvenez-vous, lorsque le pape Jean Paul II est venu en
Bolivie, au Pérou et en Equateur, pays surtout peuplés
d’autochtones, un groupe de Boliviens lui a remis une bible.
Ils Tont prié de la rapporter en Europe et de dire aux
Européens qu'ils en avaient plus besoin qu’'eux en ce moment
s'ils voulaient étre fidéles au message biblique.

Nous croyons qu'ils ont raison. Au bout de 500 ans, il est tres
important que nous revoyions notre présence dans ces pays
latino-américains. C'est ce que nous ferons. Cela fait aussi partie
de notre lutte en faveur des droits de la personne. Nous croyons
que la commémoration de la découverte de Christophe Colomb
devra comporter une part d'auto-analyse, d'auto-critique, de
révision historique et aussi de réparation.

La population de mon propre pays a survécu a un terrible
crime non seulement contre sa culture, mais aussi contre son
existence.

La troisieme question. c'est celle de la paix. Notre conseil
latino-américain s'inquic¢te beaucoup pour la paix, pas seule-
ment en Amérique du Sud—ou on commence heureusement a
avoir une certaine compréhension. quoique limitée, de la
démocratie—mais aussi en Amérique centrale. Depuis de trop
nombreuses années, les gens la-bas sont victimes de la violence,
de T'injustice, de 'oppression.
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When I, as an Argentine, visited Guatemala after their
last earthquake, I was visiting it with a team of ecumenical
leaders. A Lutheran minister of Guatemala told me that we
Argentinians were beginning to think about human rights in
these countries. the disappearance of people, the torture of
people, because we were now suffering. He asked me if I
knew that they suffered it many years before we experienced
a military dictatorship. He said that the only thing was that
our military men needed cemeteries, clandestine cemeteries—
what we call “NN” cemeteries—while under the different
dictatorships they have had their military men had thrown the
bodies of people killed into volcanoes of their country. They have
many volcanoes used as clandestine cemeteries.

We believe all this problem of human rights in Central
America is closely connected to the whole system—economic,
social, political, military system —that has presided in the life of
all those countries in Central America. That is why when the
program Esquipulas II was proposed, and when President Oscar
Arias from Costa Rica took the leadership of that plan, of that
program, we supported them fully.

We have had missions visiting each country with co-operation
from the World Council of Churches. the National Council of
Churches of the United States, the Caribbean Council of
Churches, and our Council of Churches in Latin America. We
have made that a very important concern in our work.

We have visited every country. We have interviewed every
president, foreign minister, interior minister. We have spoken
with workers, with educators, with political leaders, with church
leaders. We have been following all that process in Central
America.
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We have gone to Washington to discuss with authorities
in Washington, during Reagan’s presidency and even
recently, to present our point of view about what is
happening in Central America. We have defended the right
of Nicaragua to have an independent life. We have condemned
the intervention of the United States in the life of Nicaragua, not
only through this last period but through all its history. We have
tried to be as objective but at the same time as firm as possible
in presenting our position and our interpretation of what has
been happening in the whole Central American region.

Now we have entered into another period. We were
ecumenical observers in the last election in Nicaragua. Mrs
Chamorro recognized four or five observation groups that
merited her respect. They were the United Nations, the
Organization of American States, our government. Carter’s
foundation and our organization, the Latin American Council of
Churches, and ecumenical organizations, including observation
members from Europe, from the United States and from the
Latin American and Caribbean area.

[Translation)

Je suis Argentin et quand jai visité le Guatemala a la
suite du dernier tremblement de terre, j'ai rencontré un
groupe oecuménique de dirigeants religieux. Un ministre
luthérien du Guatemala m'a dit que nous. les Argentins,
nous commencions a réfléchir aux droits de la personne dans
les autres pays, aux disparitions, a la torture, parce que nous
en sommes maintenant nous-mémes les victimes. Il m'a
demandé si je savais que c'était pour eux déja un probléme
bien avant que nous n'ayons une dictature militaire. Il a dit que
la seule différence. c'était que nos militaires a nous avaient
besoin de cimetiéres clandestins—ce que nous appelons les
cimetiéres «NN»—tandis que sous les diverses dictatures qu'ils
avaient connues, les militaires se contentaient de lancer les corps
de ceux qu’ils tuaient dans les volcans. Beaucoup de leurs volcans
ont ainsi servi de cimetiéres clandestins.

Nous croyons que le probleme des droits de la personne en
Amérique centrale est étroitement lié au régime économique,
social, politique et militaire qui régit la vie dans tous ces pays.
Voila pourquoi, quand on a proposé le programme Esquipulas
II et que le président du Costa Rica, Oscar Arias, en a assumé
la direction. nous I'avons appuyé sans réserve.

En collaboration avec le Conseil oecuménique des églises, le
Conseil national des églises des Etats-Unis et le Conseil antillais
des églises, notre Conseil latino-américain des églises a envoyé
des missions dans chacun de ces pays. C'est une part importante
de notre travail.

Nous avons visité chaque pays ol nous nous sommes
entretenus avec le président, le ministre des Affaires étrangeres
et le ministre de I'Intérieur. Nous avons discuté avec des
travailleurs, des éducateurs, des leaders politiques, des dirigeants
ecclésiastiques. Nous avons fait la méme chose dans tous les pays
d’Amérique centrale.

Nous sommes allés a Washington pour y rencontrer les
autorités, lorsque M. Reagan était président et nous y
sommes retournés récemment, dans le but d'exposer notre
point de vue sur ce qui se passe en Amérique centrale. Nous
y avons défendu le droit du Nicaragua a son autonomie. Nous
avons condamné I'ingérence des Etats-Unis au Nicaragua, non
seulement derniérement, mais depuis les débuts de son histoire.
Nous avons tenté de présenter une position ferme et objective
ainsi que notre interprétation de ce qui se passe dans toute
I’Amérique centrale.

C'est une nouvelle ére qui commence. Lors des derniéres
élections au Nicaragua, nous y étions a titre d'observateurs
oecuméniques. M™ Chamorro a reconnu quatre ou cinq
groupes d'observateurs qui méritaient son respect: les
Nations unies, I'Organisation des Etats américains, notre
gouvernement, la Fondation Carter et notre organisation, le
Conseil latino-américain des églises et d'autres organismes
oecuméniques comprennant des observateurs européens, améri-
cains. latino-américains et antillais.
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[Texte]

We believe it is a moment where we will have to be very
attentive to what is happening in Central America. For instance,
we think that the United Nations, like the American organiza-
tions, like the governments and the churches, should be very
strong in insisting upon the fulfilment of all the things that were
convened with reference to Nicaragua.

It would be impossible to continue a democratic process in
Nicaragua unless the Contra army is demobilized. That will be
a problem and a very hard situation for any government, either
the Sandinistas in the past or Mrs. Chamorro in the future.

We are very grateful for the presence of Canadian men
participating now in that control, but I think it will need a
very strong word from all parts of the world with reference to
the mark of this process. At the same time, we said in our
report after that observation that we have been so strict with
reference to Nicaragua that we should be strict in the future as
to the development of political processes in the whole region of
Central America. particularly coming elections in Guatemala.

We need the presence of the United Nations., of the
American organizations, of the churches, of the governments,
of the press in that election because those people have
suffered for many years a situation of human rights
violations. I would like that we could hear as much about
what is happening now in Guatemala as we have heard about
what happened in Nicaragua. We believe in my own country,
Argentina, that we know only a very little piece of the truth
about what is happening in Guatemala at this time. as has also
been the situation in El Salvador. We believe that if we want to
go to a time of real international justice we must apply the same
conditions to the elections in Guatemala as were applied with
reference to the Nicaraguan process.

The last point I would mention—

The Chairman: I am sorry to interrupt you, Bishop Pagura,
but Mr. Walker and I are very anxious to ask you questions. If
it is possible to go quickly to your conclusion, we would remind
you that time goes by. Go ahead.

Bishop Pagura: I will just mention as a last point the question
of the foreign debt. We believe that this is conditioning the life
of all our countries and that we are suffering because of the
foreign debt. You may know much more than I know about what
is happening with this problem, but people are literally dying in
our countries at an alarming rate because of a tremendously
unjust and immoral situation.
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We have said our word in that sense, and I think this is
very closely related to human rights struggles. In Jamaica we
will have a consultation of Catholic and Protestant bishops
and presidents of churches next June to consider this
question and the drug traffic question, which also has some
relationship with the economic situation. So that will be our
prophetic contribution to the moment we are facing now in our
continent. Thank you for your attention.

The Chairman: We thank you very much for this presentation.

[Traduction)

1l faudra maintenant étre trés attentifs a ce qui se passe en
Amérique centrale. Nous croyons, par exemple, que les Nations
unies, comme les organismes américains, les gouvernements et
les églises, devraient insister absolument sur le respect de tous
les engagements pris au sujet du Nicaragua.

Il sera impossible de poursuivre la démocratisation du
Nicaragua si la Contra n'est pas démobilisée. Pour le gouverne-
ment de M™ Chamorro, ce sera un probléme et une situation
trés pénible comme ce fut le cas pour les sandinistes.

Nous sommes trés reconnaissants de la présence de
Canadiens qui participent au contréle, mais je crois que tous
les pays du monde devront appuyer le processus sans réserve.
De la méme fagon, et nous le disons dans notre rapport,
nous avons été si stricts avec le Nicaragua que nous devrions
I'étre tout autant pour la tenue d’autres élections en Amérique
centrale, notamment au Guatemala bientot.

La présence des Nations unies, des organisations
américaines, des églises, des gouvernements, des journalistes
est indispensable a ces élections parce que, depuis de
nombreuses années, on viole les droits de la population de ce
pays. Je voudrais qu'on parle autant de ce qui se passe en ce
moment au Guatemala qu'on a parlé de ce qui s'est passé au
Nicaragua. Dans mon pays, I'’Argentine, nous avons
I'impression de ne connaitre qu'une infime parcelle de la
vérité sur la situation actuelle au Guatemala; c'est d’ailleurs la
méme chose pour le Salvador. Si nous aspirons a une véritable
justice internationale, nous devons appliquer aux élections
guatemalteques les mémes conditions que celles imposées a
celles au Nicaragua.

En terminant, je dirais. . .

Le président: Monseigneur Pagura, je suis désolé de vous
interrompre, mais M. Walker et moi avons héte de vous poser
des questions. Si vous vouliez bien conclure rapidement parce
que le temps passe vite. Allez-y.

Mgr Pagura: J'aborderai en terminant le probleme de la dette
étrangere. Nous croyons que c'est elle qui conditionne la vie
dans tous les pays latino-américains et nous en subissons les
conséquences. Vous en savez sans doute plus long que moi sur
ce probléme, mais je vous dis que les gens meurent littéralement,
a un rythme alarmant, a cause d'une situation extrémement
injuste et immorale.

Nous avons dit ce que nous en pensions et je crois que le
probleme est tres étoitement lié aux luttes pour le respect des
droits de la personne. En Jamaique, au mois de juin
prochain, les évéques catholiques et protestants ainsi que les
présidents des autres églises se réuniront pour étudier cette
question et aussi celle du trafic des stupéfiants qui ne manque
pas non plus de peser sur la situation économique. Ce sera notre
apport a cet instant prophétique que vit notre continent. Je vous
remercie de votre attention.

Le président: Nous vous remercions de cet exposé.
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[Text]

Jaimerais signaler la présence de Tamara Lipcovich. qui est
interpréte pour les deux autres t€émoins. M™ Lipcovich peut-elle
demander aux deux autres témoins s'ils veulent ajouter a ce qui
a déja été dit par I'évéque Pagura?

Ms Tamara Lipcovich (Interpreter): They suggest they would
rather answer questions.

The Chairman: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Walker will
start.

Mr. Walker (Winnipeg North Centre): Thank you for
coming to the committee and presenting your ideas and
giving us an opportunity to talk with you. You are of interest
to us for several reasons. You are working in an area of the
world that is very important to us and you are working in a group
of non-governmental organizations, primarily the church, which
is of interest. I think the issues you are dealing with are the
hardest ones for us to deal with.

The chairman or the staff probably told you this is just a new
committee and we are finding our way through as to what the best
strategy is. Perhaps I can get to the questions we find the most
difficult to deal with and get some advice from you.

One of the points you raised is the consideration of
human rights as a factor in aid and in foreign policy. We
would probably not find any disagreement amongst any
politicians around the table as to that objective, but what we
are trying to do is figure out how we give this some meaning. How
do you begin to measure the human rights? It seems to me that
those of you who are in the field and know first hand in dealing
with these governments could give us some advice as to how we
begin to separate some countries where violations are so extreme
they are world-known. There are many countries where the
subtleties of oppression and the subtleties of punishment are
either not seen easily or perhaps forgiven too easily.

There are also countries that have a long record of human
rights violations. People say that they are trying now, give them
an opportunity. Certainly the El Salvadoran government made
a foray into Canada in December begging for time. They were
making a sincere effort. So you talk to people and ask what the
sincerity is, and whether they are really making an effort. What
is good faith in this business?

I gave you a long list. What sorts of measures do you use of
tolerance? How do you collect information? How do you begin
to deal with this issue in concrete ways?

Bishop Pagura: I will say one thing and leave our
general secretary to continue. We are very much basing our
interpretation of the issues in each country on the witness of
our membership, of our churches. If we go to EI Salvador, it
is because the people of the churches in El Salvador invite us to
go and find out the facts. We are not depending too much on the
United Press, the Associated Press, or any other press. Though
they hear, we read, we study and send them personally to the
State Department in the United States.

[Translation]

May I introduce to you Tamara Lipcovich, who is the
interpreter for the other two witnesses. Would Ms. Lipcovich ask
the other two witnesses whether they would like to add anything
to what Bishop Pagura has said?

Madame Tamara Lipcovich (interpréte): Ils préfeéreraient
répondre simplement aux questions.

Le président: Trés bien, merci beaucoup. M. Walker va
commencer.

M. Walker (député de Winnipeg-Nord-Centre): Merci
d'étre venus au comité pour nous présenter vos idées et nous
donner l'occasion de discuter. Nous nous intéressons a vous
pour plusieurs raisons. D’abord, vous travaillez dans une
région du globe qui a beaucoup d’importance & nos yeux, et en
plus avec un groupement d’organisations non gouvernementa-
les, surtout des églises, ce que nous trouvons intéressant. Les
problémes dont vous vous occupez sont les plus difficiles pour
nous.

Le président ou ses collaborateurs vous ont sans doute dit que
notre comité était tout nouveau et que nous nous demandons
encore quelle serait la meilleure stratégie a adopter. Je vais donc
aborder les questions qui nous posent le plus de probleme et ce,
pour profiter de vos conseils.

Vous dites que le respect des droits de la personne
devrait étre pris en considération pour l'aide et la politique
étrangere. Tous les politiciens ici s'entendent sur la nécessité
de cet objectif. mais nous essayons de déterminer comment
cela peut se traduire dans la réalité. Comment quantifier les
libertés fondamentales? Vous qui €tes sur place et qui savez
traiter avec ces gouvernements, pouvez-vous nous dire com-
ment écarter ces pays ou les violations sont telles qu’elles ont fait
leur réputation internationale. Dans bien des pays I'oppression
et les sanctions sont si subtiles qu'elles sont soit difficiles a
déceler. soit trop facilement pardonnées.

Il y a aussi des pays ot les libertés fondamentales ne sont plus
respectées depuis longtemps. Certains demandent mantenant
qu'on leur donne la chance de se racheter. Le gouvernement du
Salvador. par exemple. a fait une incursion au Canada. en
décembre dernier. pour supplier qu'on lui accorde du temps. Il
semble faire un effort sincére. Il faut déterminer le degré de
sincérité pour savoir si on fait vraiment des efforts. Qu'est-ce
que la bonne foi dans ce domaine?

Mes questions sont nombreuses. Comment quantifier la
tolérance? Comment recueillir de I'information? Comment
peut-on concrétement faire face au probleme?

Mgr Pagura: Je vais faire une observation et je laisserai
notre secrétaire général poursuivre. Nous fondons notre
interprétation des problémes dans chaque pays sur les
témoignages de nos membres, de nos églises. Quand nous
allons au Salvador. c'est parce que les églises du Salvador nous
y ont invité pour découvrir la vérité. Nous ne nous fions pas a la
United Press. a la Associated Press ni aux autres agences de
presse. Nous lisons, nous étudions et nous envoyons ces témoins
eux-mémes au Département d'Etat américain.
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You are one voice among many voices, and we are not
always confident in what you interpret for us. That is why we
went directly to them to speak about these questions. That is
why we have been present in many critical situations in Chile.
in Brazil, in Argentina, in my own country. At that time we
welcomed even the presence of the American organization that
was rejected by the military men. At that moment it was very
helpful for us. Our churches have been speaking very frankly and
openly about that. So for us that was one of the first sources for
what our people are telling us about what they see and feel and
suffer under those conditions.

Reverend Felipe Adolf (Inter—-Church Committee on Human
Rights in Latin America) (Interpretation): We understand
human rights as the right every human being has to life.

We have returned Latin America to a situation for life we
thought we had left behind some 20 or 30 years ago. Today there
are more people in Latin America, particularly more children,
who are dying from hunger and poverty than from violence. To
us, as churches, this gives a very clear indication of what the
situation really is, and where poverty and violence stand in Latin
America.

We are fully aware that for you it must sometimes be
very difficult to determine whether human rights have
improved in Latin America or not. In a way you are trying to
identify democracy with elections. Our experience is entirely
different. The United States likes to say that in all of Latin
America with the exception of Cuba they have democratic
governments. What the United States will not admit is that we
lack sovereignty. What we want is democracy plus sovereignty.

Mr. Walker: Probably we see it the same way. But it still begs
the question, what do we do about it?

You are one organization, and you collect information
that is reliable. We hear about it, and we are always trying to
figure out, in one sense. if you are committed to human
rights; and you will not get any disagreement around the
table about this. We are so committed to human rights that every
life is as valuable to us as it is for you. So there are absolute values
here. I am not in any way. shape. or form negotiating absolute
values here. I am trying to understand how one judges the
seriousness of the situation.

Let us use a concrete example. The new government in El
Salvador, notwithstanding the incidents in December. claims to
be making an effort. How would you ask us to evaluate whether
or not it is an honest effort in the area of human rights? Let me
use that as a concrete example.
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Bishop Pagura: I would say that one of the concrete actions
that will help us to evaluate the sincerity of this position is if they
continue persistently in finding a political solution to the
problems of El Salvador. For us, the problem is very serious and
a larger problem than simply having elections every four or five
years. It is economical, social, etc.

[Traduction)

Vous étes une voix parmi de nombreuses autres et c'est
pourquoi nous ne faisons pas toujours confiance a votre
interprétation. Nous allons donc directement aux sources.
Voila pourquoi nous nous sommes retrouvés dans bien des
situations critiques au Chili, au Brésil et en Argentine, mon
propre pays. Nous étions alors heureux de la présence des
Américains qui étaient rejetés par les militaires. A I'époque, ce
fut trés utile. Nos églises en parlent tres franchement et
ouvertement. Nos sources premieres, ce sont donc les gens qui

nous disent ce qu'ils ont observé, ressenti et souffert.

Le révérend Felipe Adolf (Comité inter-églises pour les
droits humains en Amérique latine) (interprétation): Selon
nous. les droits de la personne, c'est le droit a la vie de tout étre
humain.

En Amérique latine, nous en sommes maintenant revenus au
méme point qu'il y a 20 ou 30 ans. A I'heure actuelle, il meurt
plus de gens, surtout des enfants, de la faim et de la pauvreté que
de la violence. Pour nous, les églises, c'est un indice révélateur
de la situation actuelle, c'est-a-dire du degré de pauvreté ou de
violence en Amérique latine.

Nous savons pertinemment qu'il peut parfois étre difficile
pour vous de déterminer si la situation des droits de la
personne en Amérique latine s'est améliorée ou non. Pour
vous, démocratie est synonyme d'€lections. Pour nous, c'est
une tout autre histoire. Les Etats-Unis aiment proclamer que,
dans tous les pays d’Amérique latine, exception faite de Cuba, il
y a un gouvernement démocratique. Ce que les Etats-Unis
refusent d'admettre. c’est que nous avons perdu notre souverai-
neté. Nous, nous voulons la souveraineté en plus de la
démocratie.

M. Walker: Je crois que nous sommes sur la méme longueur
d’onde. Néanmoins. que peut-on faire?

Votre organisme recueille des renseignements de source
fiable. Quand nous en entendons parler, nous essayons
toujours de déterminer en un sens s'il y a respect des droits
de la personne. Personne ici ne le contredira. Le respect des
libertés fondamentales nous tient tellement a coeur qu'une seule
vie est aussi précieuse a nos yeux qu’aux votres. Ce sont la des
valeurs absolues. Je ne cherche absolument pas a négocier les
valeurs absolues. J'essaie de comprendre comment on peut juger
de la gravité de la situation.

Prenons un exemple concret. Le nouveau gouvernement du
Salvador. hormis les incidents de décembre dernier, prétend
faire des efforts. Comment pouvons-nous évaluer I'honnéteté
de ses efforts a 1'égard des droits de la personne? Voila un
exemple concret.

Mgr Pagura: Je dirais que I'une des actions concrétes qui
nous aidera a apprécier la sincérité de sa position, c'est s'il
continue a trouver des solutions politiques aux problemes du
pays. Pour nous, le probleme est trés grave et ne peut se régler
par la tenue d'élections tous les quatre ou cing ans. Il s’agit d'un
probléme économique, social, etc.
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Our impression is that the army is having such a strenth, such
a power that even a civilian government cannot fulfil its
responsibility unless it has some freedom of action, some power.

Remember the killing of the Jesuit priests? Now they are
accepting, I think, even if they do not say it so loudly, that it
was the army that did that. In the beginning they said it was
the rebels. I think that shows the tremendous power that the
army has there, and that is why we believe that to strengthen the
army is not to favour democracy at all. It will just help them to
continue having the first and the last word in the life of El
Salvador, as it is in Guatemala.

Mr. Walker: What should be the strategy regarding aid? There
are probably three strategies on aid. You can say, until we really
see a political solution, no aid. We think you are making progress,
here is some aid; or here is some aid for non-governmental
organizations only.

Again, I am using the example of El Salvador. You can pick
another country if you feel more comfortable. What do you do
during this process?

Bishop Pagura: I think it is important to help the people fight
their own struggle for justice, and for freedom, and for equality
at this moment. Money that is sent to some of this democratic
government is to stress the power of the powerful, and
particularly I insist the armed forces.

Militarism is a cancer in Latin America. I lived in Costa
Rica for four years, and I admired the audacity of the people
and the government, which cut the army from the budget and
the life of Cost Rica. I think it is one of the best things they
ever did. That is why Costa Rica has, I would say, a richer type
of life. Costa Rica has more respect of human rights, of freedom,
than any other country in all that area. In great part it was
because all the power and the benefits given to the armies were
cut at the time of Figueres years ago, and they are still struggling
to keep that. The strong influence of the United States wanted
to recreate the army in Costa Rica.

I would say that it is not arms that we need in Argentina,
in my country. They have more than they need. But our
people are hungry and they are now pressing the government
because they want higher salaries at this moment. The
teachers in my own city of Rosario in Argentina receive $30
per month, and when I left Rosario more than a week ago
they were having a hunger strike because they have received
half of their salary for February and no more. They are
protesting in the streets of Rosario, and you see tents in one of
the central squares of Rosario because they are not receiving
their salaries. The military men are receiving higher salaries
because they have the arms in their hands.
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Anything to give possibilities to the people. union labourers.
teachers. educators, people of the cultural world. religious or
ecumenical organizations is well taken and well used to empower
the people for their struggle. I think that will apply more or less
to all Latin American countries. We have more armaments and
armies than we need for the present situation.

[Translation]

Nous avons I'impression que I'armée a tellement de pouvoir,
que méme un gouvernement civil ne pourrait arriver a se
décharger de ses obligations & moins qu'il ait une certaine
latitude et donc plus de pouvoirs.

Vous vous rappelez l'assassinat des jésuites? Je crois
qu'on commence maintenant a admettre, méme si on ne le
dit pas tout haut, que c'est 'armée qui en est responsable.
Au début, on a dit que c'étaient les rebelles. Cela vous
montre le pouvoir énorme dont dispose I'armée la-bas et cest
pourquoi nous croyons que ce n'est pas en renfor¢ant encore son
pouvoir qu'on favorisera la démocratie, au contraire. Cela
I'aidera simplement a continuer de régenter la vie au Salvador,
comme c'est le cas au Guatemala.

M. Walker: Quelle stratégie devrions-nous adopter pour ce
qui est de I'aide étrangere? Il y en aurait trois: la premiére, c'est
de refuser toute aide en attendant I'adoption d'une solution
politique réelle; la deuxieme, c'est une aide partielle en cas de
progres; et la troisieme, c'est d'accorder de I'aide aux seules
organisations non gouvernementales.

Reprenons I'exemple du Salvador. Vous pouvez choisir un
autre pays si vous préférez. Que fait-on dans l'intervalle?

Mgr Pagura: Je crois qu'il est important d’aider le peuple a
livrer son propre combat pour la justice, pour la liberté et pour
I'égalité. Envoyer de I'argent a ce gouvernement démocratique,
c'est accentuer le pouvoir des puissants, notamment, et j'insiste,
des forces armées.

Le militarisme est le cancer de I'’Amérique latine. J'ai
vécu au Costa Rica pendant quatre ans et jai admiré
l'audace de la population et du gouvernement qui a retranché
I'armée du budget et de la société. Je crois que c'est ce qu'ils
ont fait de mieux. C'est d'ailleurs pourquoi, @ mon avis, le Costa
Rica a un mode de vie plus riche. On y respecte les droits de la
personne, la liberté plus que dans n’importe quel autre pays de
la région. Tout le pouvoir et les avantages octroyés a I'armée ont
été supprimés par Figueres il y a des années et la lutte n’est pas
finie. Ceux qui étaient fortement influencés par les Etats-Unis
voulaient ressusciter I'armée au Costa Rica.

L'Argentine n'a pas besoin d'armes, elle en a déja plus
qu'assez. Les Argentins ont faim et exercent en ce moment
des pressions sur le gouvernement parce qu'ils veulent une
augmentation de leur salaire. Les enseignants dans la ville de
Rosario, ou jhabite en Argentine. gagnent 30$ par mois.
Quand je suis parti de Rosario il y a plus d'une semaine, ils
faisaient la gréve de la faim parce qu'ils n'avaient recu que la
moitié de leur salaire pour février et rien depuis. Ils
manifestent dans les rues de la ville et on peut voir des tentes
dans I'un des parcs du centre-ville parce qu'on ne les paye pas.
Les militaires eux sont mieux payés parce qu’ils ont I'arme au

poing.

Tout ce qui donne des possibilités aux gens, aux syndiqués,
aux enseignants, aux éducateurs, aux milieux de la culture. aux
organisations religieuses ou oecuméniques est bien regu et sert
aaider le peuple dans sa lutte. On peut en dire autant de presque
tous les pays d’Amérique latine. Il y a beaucoup trop d'armes et
de soldats pour les besoins actuels.
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Rev. Adolf (Interpretation): In the very few days we have spent
here in Canada, we have found that the church here, whether it
is Catholic or Protestant, has immense resources as compared to
the resources of our own churches.

Our bags are full of documents produced by Canadian
and North American church organizations on the situation of
human rights in Latin America. We are very happy to see
this, and we are very thankful to the Canadian people for
being so concerned with the human rights situation in Latin
America. We know that in just one Central American
country there have been 40,000 Canadian visitors, and I think
you as a committee are surely well acquainted with all the
necessary information to determine where there have been more
or less human rights violations in Latin America. So we thank
you, the Canadian people and the Canadian churches, most
sincerely for your concern with the human rights situation in
Latin America.

Le président: Madame l'interpréte, les deux autres témoins
sont-ils aussi de I'Argentine?

Ms Lipcovich: He is Argentinian, but he lives in Ecuador, and
the lady is Brazilian.

The Chairman: I see.

Je voudrais échanger un peu avec vous. Hier j'ai diné avec un
représentant argentin de I’Association des juristes américains, le
D" Smugler. Nous avons eu une conversation extrémement
intéressante et le révérend Adolf a soulevé certains points.
J'aimerais revenir a 'un de ces points.
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Dans I'ensemble de I'’Amérique latine, on se préoccupe
évidlemment de la violation des droits de la personne, mais
nous avons soulevé a juste titre que le probleme le plus
criant et le plus visible était peut-€tre un probleme d'ordre
économique. On parlait notamment de I'Argentine, ou le
président actuel, Menem, et I'ancien président, Alfonsin,
semblent au gouvernement canadien des chefs démocratique-
ment élus.

Comment peut-on parler de violation de droits de la
personne lorsqu'on a affaire & des gouvernements
démocratiquement €lus? Si le probléeme est surtout de nature
économique, il est important que ces pays. en particulier
I'’Argentine, définissent bien leurs besoins au gouvernement
canadien pour que nous sachions ce que nous pouvons faire
comme gouvernement. L3, je fais la distinction de I'Eglise
canadienne, catholique ou protestante.

J Vous comprenez que le gouvernement canadien ne peut
intervenir directement si le gouvernement en place est un
gouvernement démocratique. II est treés difficile d'intervenir, a
moins que les gouvernements locaux ou les organisations
locales puissent bien démontrer leurs problémes et leurs besoins
et demander la solution correspondante. Le champ d'interven-
tion est trés vaste. Si vous nous laissez I'initiative d'intervenir
directement, il nous sera extrémement difficile de le faire. C'est
a vous de définir vos besoins au gouvernement canadien pour
qu’on puisse échanger sur des solutions possibles.

[Traduction)

Le rév. Adolf (interprétation): Les quelques jours que nous
avons passés au Canada nous ont permis de constater que les
églises catholiques ou protestantes ici ont des ressources
immenses comparées aux notres.

Nos valises sont bourrées de documents préparés par des
organisations écclésiastiques canadiennes et nord-américaines
sur la situation des droits de la personne en Amérique latine.
Nous en sommes trés heureux et nous sommes trés
reconnaissants a la population canadienne de se préoccuper a
ce point de la situation des droits de la personne en
Amérique latine. Nous savons qu'un seul pays d’Amérique
centrale a accueilli 40.000 visiteurs canadiens; votre comité
dispose donc stirement de tous les renseignements nécessaires
pour établir si les violations des droits fondamentaux en
Amérique latine ont augmenté ou diminué. Nous remercions
donc tres sincérement les Canadiens et les églises canadiennes
de s'intéresser a la situation des droits de la personne en
Amérique latine.

The Chairman: Would the interpreter tell us whether the
other two witnesses are also from Argentina?

Mme Lipcovich: Lui est Argentin, mais il vit en Equateur
tandis que la dame est Brésilienne.

Le président: C'est bien.

I would like to talk with you a bit. Last night, I had dinner with
a representative from Argentina of the Association of American
Jurists, Dr. Smugler, and we had a very interesting conversation.
Reverend Adolf mentioned a few issues and I would like to go
back to one of these.

Throughout Latin America, people are concerned of
course with human rights violations, but we said quite rightly
that the most urgent and visible problem might be an
economic one. We said that about Argentina where President
Menem and former President Alfonsin appear to the Canadian
government to have been democratically elected.

How can you talk about human rights violations when
governments are democratically elected? If the problem is
mostly an economic one, those countries, more particularly
Argentina, must specify their needs to the Canadian
government so that we know what we can do as a government.
This is different from the Canadian churches, can do, whether
Catholic or Protestant.

You understand that the Canadian government cannot
intervene directly where there is a democratic government in
place. Unless the local governments or organizations
demonstrate that they do have problems and needs, there is
nothing we can do. Many types of interventions are possible. It
will be extremely difficult for us to act directly if that is what you
want us to do. You have to define your own needs and make
them known to the Canadian government so that we can discuss
possible solutions.
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Il est vrai que, de facon générale. il y a des échanges,
touristiques ou autres. Des Canadiens vont en Amérique du Sud,
ce qui fait que nous connaissons relativement bien la situation
globale. Mais lorsqu’on parle de solutions, il est important que
vous définissiez bien votre demande pour qu'on puisse com-
prendre clairement et vous dire si nous pouvons intervenir ou
non.

Dans ce sens-la, puis-je vous demander ce que vous attendez
du gouvernement canadien? Quelle suggestion pouvez-vous
nous faire dans ce contexte?

Rev. Adolph (Interpretation): I have one complete one to
begin with.

We are extremely pleased to see Canada become a member
of the Organization of American States and we are extremely
interested to see what role Canada will play within the OAS.

I must confess that in general terms. and I stress that
this is general terms, we have a hard time sometimes to
differentiate the U.S. policy from the Canadian policy. This
may be sheer ignorance on my part because I am not a
politician; I am a man of the church. I think Canada does have
an important role to play, and it is that of an independent
country. I think it would be a great shame if Canada were to be
considered the backyard of the United States or as another
banana republic, the way we are. I think its worth and its
importance will be in always having a policy of its own—an
independent policy. That is just a comment.
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Mr. Walker: What would be the benchmarks?

The Chairman: I think Bishop Pagura would like to add
something.

Bishop Pagura: The situation in Argentina illustrates
what I was saying before about the important role played by
the armed forces in the life of our country—at this moment,
any government in my country, particularly after the fall of
Alfonsin, because he was a very admired leader of my country.
In the end, he came under the pressure of the economic
structures connected to the multinational structures and the
armed forces. He had to deal with the armed forces. and he had
to give, against the feeling of most of the people in Argentina,
more and more space.

The Chairman: What about President Menem right now?

Bishop Pagura: Menem is doing exactly the same, and
has done exactly the same until this moment. The difference
is that Alfonsin ended that way; Menem began that way, and
he is still conditioned. He will be under the pressure of the
armed forces month after month. Alfonsin had a goal to finish
his mandate. For him, the goal was to give the presidency to
another civilian. That was his great dream. and he struggled hard
for that. Menem began his presidency under the conditions that
both economic and military forces were imposing on him.

I will say that our human rights organizations are very
disappointed, because when you do not appeal to the people, not
to a group meeting in the Plaza de Mio—that is part of the—

[Translation]

Of course, there is trade, tourism, etc. So that we know fairly
precisely what the situation is in general because of all those
Canadians going to South America. But if we are to find
solutions, it is very important that you define what you need so
that it is clearly understood and that we can decide whether we
should act or not.

May I ask you therefore what you expect from the Canadian
government? Do you have any suggestions?

Le rév. Adolf (interprétation): Je vais commencer par faire
une suggestion compléte en soi.

Nous sommes extrémement heureux que le Canada devienne
membre de I'Organisation des Etats américains et nous
apprécions le role que le Canada entend y jouer.

Javoue qu'en général, et je dis bien en général. nous
avons souvent du mal a faire une distinction entre la
politique américaine et la politique canadienne. C'est peut-
étre pure ignorance de ma part parce que je ne suis pas
politicien, mais bien homme d'église. Je crois.que le Canada a
effectivement un role important a jouer, celui d'un pays
indépendant. Ce serait scandaleux que le Canada soit considéré
comme l'arriere-cour américaine ou comme une république de
troisieme ordre, comme nous. Le Canada aura de la valeur et de
I'importance dans la mesure ou il aura toujours sa propre
politique indépendante. Ce n'est qu'une observation en passant.

M. Walker: Quels seraient les points de repere?

Le président: Je crois que monseigneur Pagura veut ajouter
quelque chose.

Mgr Pagura: La situation en Argentine illustre bien ce
que j'ai dit plus t6t au sujet du réle important que jouent les
forces armées dans la vie chez nous—en ce moment méme,
n'importe quel gouvernement, surtout depuis la chute
d’Alfonsin, puisque c'était un dirigeant trés admiré. En effet, il
a finalement cédé aux pressions des structures économiques
liées aux multinationales et aux forces armées. Il a di faire
affaire avec les forces armées et leur laisser de plus en plus de
place, contre la volonté de la plupart des Argentins.

Le président: Et le président Menem en ce moment?

Mgr Pagura: Menem fait exactement la méme chose. du
moins jusqu'a présent. La différence entre les deux hommes,
c'est qu'Alfonsin a fini comme cela. mais que Menem lui,
commence ainsi. I1 demeure conditionné. Il subira mois apres
mois les pressions des forces armées. Alfonsin avait comme
objectif de terminer son mandat. de passer la présidence a un
autre civil. C'était son grand réve et il a lutté tres fort pour le
réaliser. Menem a entrepris sa présidence dans des conditions
que lui imposent les forces économiques et militaires.

Je dois dire que nos associations qui s’occupent des droits de
la personne sont trés décues parce que. quand on ne lance pas
un appel au peuple, pas & une réunion en groupe Plaza de
Mayo—cela fait partie du. . .
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[Texte)

The Chairman: If I may, what is right for Argentina is also
right for other countries in Lain America. a lot of them.

Bishop Pagura: Yes, particularly because the model that is
being imposed on us is the same model for each country of Latin
America. That is why at this moment this economic aspect has
so much to say to us.

I recently heard a theologian from the United States at a
world ecumenical conference that had taken place in Seoul,
Korea. He spoke about what is happening in his own country,
in his own city, in his own suburban area where he lives, the
growth of delinquency, of poverty, of old peoples’ deaths,
children’s deaths. lack of education. problems in health
because of a philosophy of going back in the budget. He said
from the signs I see now., as we are rejoicing in the new
winds that are blowing in the eastern countries of Europe with
the freedom they are gaining, I want to say to you something. I
told him he was speaking as a prophet. He said I want to say the
wind will blow at some time in the future from the south to the
north, because we are beginning to suffer some of the same
deterioration these people in the south are already suffering in
large proportion. That is why the economic system is wrong for
us, and either we correct it as a human family or all of us will
suffer the consequences of that.
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Mr. Walker: I want to pick on a comment about our
being both a part of the OAS and independent. Many of us
worried at the beginning about whether or not we would be
able to find an independent role. The bishop has just given us
one idea, and that is the challenging of the military as being an
independent role. Are there other things we should aiming
towards in the OAS to show our independence? Do you have
priorities for us you would suggest?

Rev. Adolf (Interpretation): To take sides with the poor in the
world.

You are also part of the International Monetary Fund. I think
this would be an extremely important role. Until this problem of
foreign debt is solved we will not find a way out of the crisis in
Latin America.

It is important that you help us to find fairer terms of
trade between our countries. We cannot be asked to destroy
our coca plantations while at the same time we do not
receive fair prices for our coffee. our cacao, or our other
primary products. At the same time as Colombia was helping the
U.S. government try to eradicate or reduce drug trafficking the
price of coffee went down to levels where it was absolutely
impossible to produce it in a profitable manner.

So I think Canada has an extremely important political role
to play in the OAS, and that is what we are hoping for.

Le président: J'aimerais ajouter que le révérend Adolf nous
a dit avec beaucoup de tact qu'il avait eu I'impression que la
politique canadienne et la politique américaine étaient semb-
lables et que le Canada lui semblait étre la cour arricre des
Etats-Unis.

[Traduction)

Le président: Si vous le permettez, ce que vous dites au sujet
de I'Argentine vaut également pour beaucoup d'autres pays
d’Amérique latine.

Mgr Pagura: Oui, surtout parce que le modele qu'on nous
impose est le méme pour chaque pays latino-américain. C’est
pourquoi en ce moment, les questions économiques nous
touchent tellement.

Récemment. j'ai entendu un théologien américain a une
conférence oecuménique qui s'est tenue a Séoul, en Corée. Il
a parlé de ce qui se passait dans le quartier de la ville qu'il
habite aux Etats-Unis: 1'accroissement de la délinquance, de
la pauvreté, du nombre de déces chez les personnes agées,
chez les enfants, du manque d'instruction, des problémes de
santé, tout cela engendré par cette idée de supprimer le
déficit. Il a dit, tandis que nous nous réjouissions des vents
nouveaux qui soufflaient dans les pays d'Europe de I'Est qui
retrouvaient peu a peu la liberté, qu'il voulait nous dire quelque
chose a propos des signes qu'il voyait. Je lui ai dit qu’il parlait
comme un prophete. Il a dit que le vent allait finir par souffler
du sud au nord parce que le nord commencait a étre victime de
la méme détérioration de la situation dont souffrait déja une
grande proportion des gens du sud. Voila pourquoi le systeme
économique ne nous convient pas. Soit la famille humaine y
remédie, soit nous en subirons tous les conséquences.

M. Walker: Vous avez parlé de notre role a 'OEA et de
notre indépendance. Nombre d'entre nous ont craint que
nous n'arriverions pas a trouver un role indépendant.
Monseigneur vient de nous donner une idée, celle de
contester la puissance des militaires. Avez-vous d'autres
suggestions qui nous permettraient de prouver notre indépen-
dance a 'OEA? Avez-vous des priorités a proposer?

Le révérend Adolf (interprétation): De vous ranger du coté
des pauvres du monde.

Vous étes également membre du Fonds monétaire internatio-
nal. Vous pourriez y jouer un role extrémement important. Tant
que le probléme de la dette étrangere ne sera pas réglée, il sera
impossible de sortir I'Amérique latine de la crise actuelle.

Vous devez absolument nous aider a établir des échanges
commerciaux plus justes entre nos pays. Comment peut-on
nous demander de détruire nos champs de coca tout en
refusant de nous accorder un prix juste pour notre café. notre
cacao et nos autres matieres premieres? Alors méme ue la
Colombie aidait le gouvernement américain a enrayer ou
réduire le trafic de la drogue, le prix du café est tombé a un
niveau en-dessous du seuil de rentabilité.

Le Canada a donc un role politique extrémement important
a jouer a I'OEA et nous espérons qu'il le fera.

The Chairman: I must add that Reverend Adolf has told us
in a tactful way that he was under the impression that Canada
had the same policy as the US and that it was considered as the
backyard of the United States.
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Je fais une parenthése pour dire que nous essayons d'étre
un comité non partisan. Mon collegue de l'opposition serait
peut-étre enclin a accepter cette affirmation du révérend
Adolf, mais étant moi-méme membre de la majorité
gouvernementale, je lui dirai que son impression est complete-
ment fausse. Comme notre passé le démontre, nous avons une
politique totalement indépendante de celle des Etats-Unis,
particulierement au niveau des droits de la personne. Je pense
qu'il n'est pas nécessaire que je plaide davantage sur le dossier
canadien a ce propos.

Vous parlez de la dette, qui était le quatrieme point, en fait,
de I'évéque Pagura. Je ne sais pas quel est I'état actuel de la
situation, mais je vous rappellerai notre dossier de remise de la
dette parmi les pays du Commonwealth et parmi les 40 pays de
la Francophonie. C’est une indication tangible de notre
préoccupation quant a cette dimension.

Comme vous le disiez, le Canada est maintenant membre
de I'OEA, et non plus un simple observateur. Avec les
suggestions comme celles que vous nous faites et les
discussions que nous aurons, notre Comité, au cours des
prochaines semaines et des prochains mois, se sensibilisera
davantage a la situation en Amérique latine et pourra sirement
faire des recommandations au gouvernement dans l'intérét de
tous et chacun. Je vous remercie beaucoup.

Bishop Pagura. I want to thank you and your members for
coming here to share with us your time, to give us, with a little
bit of passion, your point of view from Latin America. We are
deeply concerned about this. The committee as a whole is going
to have a better view of the situation and will try to co-operate
with you. Thank you and good luck.

Bishop Pagura: Thank you.

Le président: Madame. et je m'adresse aussi a vous, nous vous
remercions infiniment de votre amabilité. de la facon extréme-
ment élégante de votre travail et de votre compétence. Merci
beaucoup, madame.

Le rév. Adolf: Gracias.

Le président: La séance est levée.

[Translation]

I have to say that we try not to show any partisanship in
this committee. Maybe my honourable friend on the other
side would tend to agree with what Reverend Adolf has said.
but being a member of the government, I must say that his
impression is wrong. As our history shows. our policy is totally
independent from that of the United States, particularly in the
area of human rights. There is no need to add anything else on
the Canadian record.

The fourth issue mentioned by Bishop Pagura was foreign
debt. I don’t know what is the present situation, but I must
remind you to compare our record as far as debt being forgiven
is concerned with that of the other Commonwealth countries
and the 40 French-speaking nations. It does show our concern.

You did say that Canada was now a member of the OAS
and not a simple observer anymore. Given the suggestions
you have made and the discussions we will have, our
committee will learn a lot more about the situation in Latin
America in the course of the next few weeks and months, and we
could probably make recommendations to our government in
the interest of everyone. Thank you very much.

Monseigneur Pagura, je veux vous remercier, vos collégues et
vous-méme, d'avoir pris le temps de venir ici nous communiquer
avec un peu de passion votre vision de I'’Amérique latine. Cela
nous intéresse énormément. L'ensemble du comité aura un
meilleur apercu de la situation et essaiera de collaborer avec
vous. Merci et bonne chance.

Mgr Pagura: Je vous remercie.

The Chairman: Madam. I am also talking to you, we thank
you immensely for your kindness. for the sophistication of your
work and for your competence. Thank you very much.

Rev. Adolf: Gracias.

The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned.
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[Text] [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Human Rights met at
11:10 o’clock a.m. this day, in Room 308, West Block, the
Chairman, Maurice Tremblay, presiding.

Members of the Committee present. Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Acting Member present: Howard McCurdy for Svend Robin-
son.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn, Research Officers.

Witnesses: From the Task Force on the Churches and Corporate
Responsibility: Renate Pratt, Consultant. From the North-South
Institute: Roy Coulpeper, Program Director, International
Finances and Debt.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and Tuesday,
December 19, 1989, the Sub-committee commenced a review
of Canada’s policy regarding Human Rights vis-a-vis interna-
tional financial institutions, international trade including mili-
tary equipment exports. (See Minutes of Proceedings, Monday,
December 4, 1989, Issue 1.)

Renate Pratt and Roy Coulpeper made an opening statement
and answered questions.

At 12:55 o’clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

Marie Louise Paradis

Clerk of the Sub-Committee

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit aujourd’hui a 11 h 10, dans la piece 308 de
I'édifice de 1'Ouest, sous la présidence de Maurice Tremblay
(président).

Membres du Sous—comité présents: Barbara Greene, David
Kilgour, Christine Stewart, Maurice Tremblay et David Walker.

Membre suppléant présent: Howard McCurdy remplace Svend
Robinson.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliotheque du
Parlement. Allan McChesney et Jack Stilborn, attachés de
recherche.

Témoins: Du Groupe de travail sur les Eglises et la responsabilité
des sociétés: Renate Pratt, conseillere. De I'Institut Nord—Sud:
Roy Coulpeper, directeur de programmes, Finances et endette-
ment international.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre
1989, le Sous-comité examine la position officielle du Canada
en matiere des droits de la personne, par rapport aux institutions
financieres internationales et au commerce extérieur incluant les
ventes de matériel militaire (voir les Procés—verbauix et témoigna-
ges du lundi 4 décembre 1989, fascicule n° I).

Renate Pratt et Roy Coulpeper font des exposés et répondent
aux questions.

A 12h 55, le Comité s'ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiere du Sous—comité

Marie Louise Paradis
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EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Tuesday, May 8, 1990
e 1111
Le président: A 'ordre!
Comme nous avons quorum, je déclare la séance ouverte.

We are here to commence our study on Canada's policy
regarding human rights vis-a-vis international financial
institutions and international trade, including military
equipment exports. Our first witness is Ms Renate Pratt, a
consultant with the Task Force on the Churches and Corporate
Responsibility. She will talk about financial institutions. From
1975 until 1986 she was the co-ordinator of the task force. She
is currently on the International Council of Trustees, Interna-
tional Defence and Aid Fund for Southern Africa.

From the North-South Institute we have Dr. Roy
Culpeper, Program Director, International Finance and Debt.
He has been there for the past four years. He is also the
research co-ordinator. From 1983 to 1986 he was adviser to
the Canadian Executive Director of the World Bank. He worked
previously with the Department of Finance and with the
Department of External Affairs. He has a PhD in economics
from the University of Toronto.

Ms Renate Pratt (Task Force on the Churches and Corporate
Responsibility): Mr. Chairman, thank you for the introduction
and thank you for inviting me. I am honoured to be the first
witness in this new committee dealing with international human
rights.

The Task Force on the Churches and Corporate
Responsibility is an ecumenical coalition of the main
Christian churches in Canada. Since its establishment in 1975,
much of our work has focused on Canadian corporate and
banking activity in countries whose regimes violate internation-
ally recognized human rights. Over the years members of the task
force have, as shareholders in corporations and banks, sought the
co-operation of management to invest in or loan to human rights
violator countries only on condition that they restore basic
human rights to their citizens.

By extension, the task force has from time to time
addressed the Canadian government. We have submitted
briefs and legislative proposals to various parliamentary
committees in areas where in our view the Government of
Canada should more effectively protect international human
rights. Our efforts to persuade the Government of Canada, as a
member of the international financial institutions, IFIs, to
increase the scope of Canada’s human rights policy illustrates
this point.

We have welcomed the repeated reassurances of
successive government ministers that the protection and
promotion of internationally recognized human rights is one
of Canada’s main foreign policy principles. We have
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The Chairman: Order, please!
Since we have a quorum, I call the meeting to order.

Nous allons procéder a I'examen de la position officielle
du Canada en matiere de droits de la personne, vis-a-vis des
institutions ~ financiéres internationales, le commerce
extérieur, y compris les ventes de matériel militaire. Notre
premier témoin est M™ Renate Pratt, consultante auprés du
Task Force on the Churches and Corporate Responsibility. M™
Pratt, qui de 1975 a 1986 était coordinatrice de ce groupe
d’étude, et qui siege actuellement au International Council of
Trustees, Fonds international de défense et d’aide pour I'Afrique
australe, va nous parler des institutions financieres.

L’Institut Nord-Sud nous délegue pour témoin M. Roy
Culpeper, Directeur du programme, Programme de finances
et de la dette internationale, depuis quatre ans au service de
I'Institut, qui est également coordinateur de recherche. De
1983 a 1986 M. Culpeper était conseiller du directeur exécutif
canadien de la Banque mondiale, apres avoir été employé par le
ministere des Finances et par le ministere des Affaires
extérieures. Il a un doctorat en économie de I'Université de
Toronto.

Mme Renate Pratt (Task Force on the Churches and
Corporate Responsibility): Monsieur le président, je vous
remercie de votre invitation ainsi que de votre introduction.
C’est un honneur pour moi d'étre le premier témoin de ce
nouveau comité traitant des droits de la personne au niveau
international.

Le Task Force on the Churches and Corporate
Responsibility est un regroupement oecuménique des
principales églises chrétiennes du Canada. Depuis 1975, date
de sa fondation, notre travail a porté essentiellement sur les
activités des banques et des sociétés canadiennes dans les pays
dont les gouvernements enfreignent les droits de la personne
internationalement reconnus. Au cours des années les membres
du groupe d’étude, en tant qu’actionnaires de sociétés et de
banques, ont demandé a la direction de ces entreprises de les
aider en ne consentant de préts ou de placements aux pays
coupables de ces violations qu’a la condition d’y voir restaurer
les droits de la personne.

Le groupe d'étude s'est également adressé de temps en
temps au gouvernement canadien, en présentant des
mémoires et des propositions législatives aux divers comités
sur des questions ou, a notre avis, le gouvernement canadien
devrait faire plus d’efforts en faveur de la défense internationale
des droits de la personne. A titre d’exemple je citerai nos efforts
visant a persuader le gouvernement du Canada, en tant que
membre des institutions financieres internationales, a élargir la
portée de sa politique de défense des droits de la personne.

Les ministres successifs nous ont assuré, a maintes
reprises, que l'un des principes de base de la politique
étrangére du Canada est la protection des droits de la
personne au niveau international et lI'encouragement aux
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commended various Canadian votes cast in favour of United
Nations resolutions condemning states which persist in gross and
systematic human rights violations. We support Canada’s
contribution to and active participation in the international
financial institutions such as the IMF, the World Bank and the
regional development banks.
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Our main disagreement with the Canadian government
on this issue has focused on Canada’s failure to apply its
commitment to human rights in all of the international
institutions in which it is a member. With regard to the IMF,
the World Bank and the regional development banks, we have
long advocated that Canada should make respect for human
rights a co-determinant along with economic and technical
criteria in its voting decisions for credit applicants.

In searching for a definition of “basic human rights”,
we have selected those narrowly defined rights without which
life would be extinguished or rendered unbearable. They
appear in identical form in the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights. They constitute the right to be free of arbitrary
arrest, detention and execution, torture and/or cruel inhumane
and degrading treatment, and internal or external exile.

These basic and minimum rights are almost universally
accepted. Observance of these should therefore form the
minimum criteria for an assessment of a government adherence
to basic human rights standards. IFI credit and loan applications
from governments that do not comply with such minimum
standards should be excluded until they have restored those
rights.

The Hon. David MacDonald, when a member of the
opposition, must be credited with the first-ever international
human rights proposal to Canada’s Parliament. His private
member’s bill of March 1977, reintroduced in March 1978,
was defeated. Had the bill become law, it would have prohibited
foreign aid and tariff concessions to any gross violator of human
rights. It would also have withheld Export Development
Corporation credits from regimes that persisted in systematic
human rights violations.

Simultaneously in the U.S., Congress passed a series of
amendments to the foreign aid legislation, which were
designed to put pressure on violators of internationally
recognized human rights. The amendments included section
701 of the International Financial Institutions Act. The new
section prohibited aid to countries with a pattern of gross and
conzistent violations of human rights unless the aid satisfied basic
needs.

[Traduction)

gouvernements a élargir ceux-ci. Nous avons applaudi a divers
votes du gouvernement canadien en faveur de résolutions des
Nations-Unies condamnant des Etats qui persistent a violer
systématiquement les droits de la personne. Nous appuyons la
contribution du Canada et son active participation aux institu-
tions financiéres internationales tel que le Fonds monétaire
international, la Banque mondiale et les banques de développe-
ment régional.

Notre principal désaccord avec le gouvernement canadien
sur cette question tient au fait que ce dernier ne défend pas
la cause du droit de la personne dans toutes les institutions
internationales dont il est membre. Il y a longtemps que nous
recommandons que le Canada devrait faire du respect des droits
de la personne un critere au méme titre que les critéres
économiques et techniques qui interviennent dans les décisions
de vote de crédits, que ce soit au Fonds monétaire international,
a la Banque mondiale ou dans les banques régionales de
développement.

Pour définir ce que nous entendions par «droits
fondamentaux de la personne», nous nous sommes attachés
aux droits étroitement définis sans lesquels la vie est réduite
a néant ou rendue insupportable. Ces droits sont mentionnés
sous une forme identique dans la Déclaration universelle des
droits de la personne et dans le Pacte international relatif aux
droits civils et politiques, a savoir le droit de ne pas subir
d’arrestation, de détention et d’exécution arbitraire, de ne pas
étre soumis a la torture et ou a des traitements cruels, dégradants
et inhumains et le droit de n’étre envoyé en exil ni interne ni
externe.

Ces droits minimaux et fondamentaux sont presque partout
acceptés et c’est pourquoi leur respect devrait constituer le
crittre minimal pour juger si un gouvernement respecte les
droits fondamentaux de la personne. A défaut, ces gouverne-
ments devaient voir rejeter leur demande de crédits et de préts
aux institutions financiéres internationales jusqu'a ce qu’ils aient
restauré ces droits.

L’honorable David MacDonald, lorsqu’il était membre de
I'Opposition, a a son honneur la premiere proposition
adressée au Parlement du Canada sur les droits de la
personne au niveau international. Son projet de loi
d'initiative parlementaire de mars 1977, présenté une seconde
fois en mars 1978, a été rejeté. S'il avait ét€ adopté, il aurait
interdit 'aide a I'étranger et les concessions tarifaires a tout
gouvernement ayant gravement enfreint les droits de la
personne. Avec ce projet de loi, la Société pour I'expansion des
exportations aurait refusé les crédits aux régimes qui persistaient
a violer systématiquement les droits de la personne.

Pendant ce temps le Congrés, aux Etats-Unis, a adopté
une série d'amendements a la Loi sur I'aide étrangere, visant
a exercer des pressions sur ceux qui enfreignent les droits de
la personne internationalement reconnus. Ces amendements
comprennent l'article 701 de la International Financial Institu-
tions Act. le nouvel article interdisant I'aide aux pays qui portent
gravement et systématiquement atteinte aux droits de la
personne, a moins que l'aide ne réponde a des besoins
¢élémentaires.
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American executive directors at the World Bank and the
regional development banks are therefore obliged to advance
by voice and vote the cause of human rights and are
authorized to oppose any loan or other forms of assistance to
regimes that engage in gross and systematic violations of human
rights. These legislative initiatives, including the extension to
international financial institutions, must rank with the most
important testimony to what can be achieved in this area.

Also in 1983 the U.S. Congress imposed very severe
restrictions on any U.S. support for IMF credits to South
Africa as long as apartheid persists. A decade after David
MacDonald’s attempts to move the Canadian Parliament in a
similar direction, the Special Joint Committee of the Senate and
House of Commons on Canada’s International Relations
rekindled these concerns. In its report of June 1986, Indepen-
dence and Internationalism, the joint committee concluded:

We recognize that the most extreme violations of human
rights destroy the possibility of economic and social develop-
ment. Accordingly we recommend that Canada use its voice
and vote at meetings of international financial institutions to
protest systematic, gross and continuous violations of human
rights.

A year later the House of Commons Standing Committee on
External Affairs and International Trade reaffirmed this
recommendation. It asked that:

Canada work for changes to allow human rights concerns to
be put openly on the agenda of international financial
institutions and, in addition, examine very critically multilater-
al loans to countries deemed “human rights negative” or
“human rights watch”.

These terms denote the two most serious categories of human
rights offenders.

Both the Trudeau and Mulroney governments had opposed
the consideration of human rights in the operations of the IFIs.
This position has not been inadvertent or accidental; it has been
deliberately adopted and persuasively argued. They have held
that human rights are political matters that should have no place
in institutions exclusively concerned with economic and techni-
cal criteria.
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As a result, it has happened that in New York, Canada’s
permanent representative to the United Nations voted in
favour of resolutions condemning the systematic and gross
violations of human rights of a particular regime, while in
Washington, Canada’s executive director in the World Bank, in
the IMF, or in the Inter-American Development Bank has voted
in favour of a major financial aid package to the very same human
rights violator regime.

[Translation]

Les directeurs américains de la Banque mondiale et des
banques régionales de développement sont donc obligés de
plaider la cause des droits de la personne et de voter en
conséquence et sont autorisés a s'opposer a tout prét ou
autres formes d’aide a des régimes coupables de violer les droits
de la personne de fagon grave et systématique. C'est la un
exemple important de ce qui peut étre fait dans ce domaine, en
particulier le fait que ces mesures législatives s’appliquent aux
institutions financieres internationales.

En 1983 également, le Congrés des Etats-Unis a imposé
des restrictions treés séveres a toute contribution américaine
aux crédits du Fonds monétaire international a I’Afrique du
Sud tant que persistera le régime d’apartheid. Dix ans apres
la tentative de David MacDonald de faire adopter une loi
similaire, le Comité mixte spécial sur les relations extérieures du
Canada a rallumé le flambeau. Dans son rapport de juin 1986
intitulé «Indépendance et Internationalisme» le Comité mixte
spécial conclut:

Par ailleurs, (le Comité n'ignore pas non plus que les violations
les plus flagrantes des droits de la personne empéchent tout
développement économique et social. Par conséquent, il
recommande que le Canada profite de sa voix aux réunions des
institutions financiéres internationales pour s’élever contre les
violations systématiques, flagrantes et soutenues des droits de
la personne.

Un an plus tard, le Comité permanent des Affaires
extérieures et de la Défense nationale reprenait a son compte
cette recommandation, en demandant que:

Le Canada oeuvre en faveur de changements pour que les
questions touchant aux droits de la personne figurent
officiellement & l'ordre du jour des institutions financieres
internationales et, en outre, examine dans un esprit tres
critique les préts multilatéraux aux pays qui ne respectent pas
les droits de la personne ou sur lesquels pesent des soupgons
a cet égard.

Ces termes désignent les deux catégories de contrevenants les
plus flagrants.

Le gouvernement de M. Mulroney de méme que celui de M.
Trudeau se sont opposés a ce que les institutions financiéres
internationales prennent en compte la question des droits de la
personne. Le gouvernement n’a pas adopté cette position par
inadvertance ni par hasard, mais délibérément et il I'a défendue
de maniére convaincante. Il juge que les droits de la personne
sont de nature politique et n’ont rien a voir avec les institutions
qui se préoccupent uniquement de considérations économiques
et techniques.

C’est ainsi qu'a New York, le représentant permanent du
Canada auprés des Nations-Unies a voté en faveur de
résolutions qui condamnaient les violations flagrantes et
systématiques des droits de la personne par un régime donn¢
tandis qu'a Washington, le directeur canadien & la Banque
mondiale, au FMI ou 2 la banque interaméricaine de développe-
ment a voté en faveur d'une importante aide forfaitaire
financieére a ce méme régime.
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It is this anomaly—that the UN vote has no adverse
economic consequences for the offensive regime and brings
no relief to its victims—that human rights organizations and
successive parliamentary committees have sought to correct.
By endowing international financial institutions with the
authority to withhold financial aid until gross and continuous
violations of internationally recognized human rights have
ceased, a powerful incentive would be added for the restoration
of minimum rights by recalcitrant regimes.

Why, then, have successive Canadian governments resisted
this powerful instrument? Marc Lalonde, Minister of Finance in
1984, made the most persuasive case. He felt attempts to bring
human rights criteria to bear on IFI decisions were ill-concealed
political moves disguised as human rights concerns. Writing
about the experience at the Inter-American Development Bank,
he said:

During the term of President Carter, the IDB was placed
under considerable pressure to reduce programs to Chile
and Haiti in response to human rights considerations.
Currently, for quite different reasons, the U.S.A.
administration is seeking to restrict loans to Nicaragua and
Guyana. We and other members have resisted these efforts by
the U.S.A. to make the IDB an instrument of bilateral policy.
The original motivation for bringing the outside factors into
play may have been very laudable, but the end result may be
the destruction or weakening of a valuable institution.

Lalonde thus distinguished between human rights consider-
ations and straightforward political pressure serving U.S.
interests. However, these distinctions became blurred, and more
recent correspondence with Cabinet ministers no longer
expresses frustration with American political pressure, but
rejects human rights considerations in the IFIs as ipso facto
political and therefore a threat to the institutions.

The two parliamentary committees, by voice and vote,
have unanimously recommended that the Government of
Canada include human rights criteria in its loan and credit
decisions in the IFIs, and that it should work for changes in
the IFIs to allow human rights concerns to be openly on the
agenda of these institutions. In other words, they have
recommended a new rule that would make basic human rights
criteria, as a matter of principle, a co-determinant, in addition
to technical and economic criteria, for loan and credit approvals.

[Traduction)

Il est anormal que le vote a I'ONU n’ai aucune
répercussion facheuse de nature économique sur les régimes
qui violent les droits de la personne et n’apportent aucune
aide aux victimes. C'est cette anomalie que les associations
travaillant pour les droits de la personne et tous les comités
parlementaires qui se sont succédés ont tenté de corriger. Les
régimes récalcitrants seraient fortement incités a restaurer un
minimum de droits fondamentaux si I'on dotait les institutions
financiéres internationales du pouvoir de retenir toute aide
financiére jusqu'a ce que cessent les violations flagrantes et
continues des droits reconnus dans le monde entier.

Pourquoi alors les gouvernements fédéraux qui se sont
succédés au pouvoir n'ont-ils jamais employé cet outil si
puissant? Marc Lalonde, le ministre des Finances en 1984, est
celui qui a invoqué les arguments les plus convaincants. Selon
lui, ceux qui voulaient que les institutions financieres internatio-
nales tiennent compte de la situation des droits de la personne
dans leurs décisions dissimulaient mal leur motif politique; leurs
préoccupations a I'égard des droits fondamentaux n'étaient
qu'un prétexte. Au sujet de ce qui s’est passé a la Banque
interaméricaine de développement, M. Lalonde a écrit ce qui
suit:

Durant le mandat du président Carter, la BID a subi
énormément de pressions pour qu'elle réduise les
programmes d'aide du Chili et de Haiti a cause de la
situation des droits de la personne dans ces pays. En ce
moment, pour des raisons tout autres, l'administration
américaine cherche a faire diminuer les préts au Nicaragua et
a la Guyanne. Le Canada et d’autres pays ont résisté aux
efforts des Etats-Unis en vue de faire de la BID un instrument
de politique bilatérale. Au départ, les motifs ont pu étre tres
louables, mais la prise en considération de facteurs extérieurs
pourrait aboutir a la destruction ou a I'affaiblissement d'une
institution utile.

M. Lalonde a ainsi fait la distinction entre la prise en
considération de la situation des droits fondamentaux et les
pressions politiques directes en faveur des intéréts américains.
Malheureusement, la distinction s’est estompée et la correspon-
dance plus récente des ministres n'exprime plus aucune
frustration face aux pressions politiques américaines, mais
rejette la prise en considération par les institutions financieres
internationales de la situation des droits fondamentaux comme
étant d’emblée politique et donc une menace pour la survie des
institutions.

Les deux comités parlementaires ont recommandé a
I'unanimité, par leurs déclarations et leur vote, que le
gouvernement du Canada tienne compte de la situation des
libertés fondamentales dans ses décisions de préts et de
crédits au sein des institutions financiéres internationales, et
qu’ils préconisent des changements dans ces institutions pour
que les considérations humanitaires y fassent ouvertement
I'objet de discussions. Autrement dit, ils ont recommandé une
nouvelle régle, a savoir qu’en principe, la situation des libertés
fondamentales soient une considération des autorisations de
préts et de crédits au méme titre que les criteres techniques et
économigques.
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The government has evaded the substance of these
important recommendations. The 1987 government’s
response, To Benefit a Better World, promised no change. It
claimed Canada endeavours to give human rights due
consideration in the IFIs. Subsequent correspondence with
the Minister of Finance and the Secretary of State for
External Affairs make clearer still their preference for human
rights considerations at the discretion of the government, and
on the rare occasions when it wishes to exercise that option.
Letters from both ministers in December 1987 again warned of
politicization of the IFIs, and counselled the exclusion of any
non-economic criteria from decision-making. At the extreme,
they said, Canada would support curtailment of lending where
human rights violations made development impossible. This is
not a significant concession, in our view, as in such cases
economic and technical considerations would surely come to the
same conclusions.

e 1125

Human rights criteria should be clearly distinguished
from economic, technical and political criteria. Politicization
is bound to be a fact of life in these large international
financial institutions and should be acknowledged and dealt
with as such. It should not be portrayed as an impending menace
held at bay by the exclusion of human rights criteria. The IFIs
are among the most powerful international instruments.
Observance of basic human rights should be a co-determinant
in decisions on credit and loan applications through a process
whereby human rights criteria are consistently applied.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am sorry I went over time.

The Chairman: No, it is all right, Mrs. Pratt. Thank you very
much for this very interesting presentation.

Dr. Roy Culpeper (Program Director, International
Finance and Debt, North-South Institute): It is a privilege
and an honour for me to be here. I must say at the outset I
have no claim to be an expert on human rights. I am
somewhat humbled by the invitation to appear as a witness.
However, I do have some knowledge about the international
financial institutions and their mode of operation, and I have
given some thought to the topic at hand.

The need to establish or bolster human rights in many
developing countries is today beyond question. One has only to
open the pages of any Amnesty International report to find a
catalogue of horrifying human rights abuses from Burundi and
Burma to Guatemala, Peru and Somalia. The issue now extends
well beyond basic rights and abuses to questions of elementary
freedoms and democracy itself.

I have been asked to comment on how the international
financial institutions, by which I take to mean the multilateral
development banks—that is, the World Bank, the three
major regional development banks and the International

[Translation]

Le gouvernement a éludé le sens de ces importantes
recommandations. Sa réponse en 1987, «Pour batir un monde
meilleur», n’a promis aucun changement. Il y prétend que le
Canada s'efforce d'accorder & la situation des libertés
fondamentales toute la considération nécessaire au sein des
institutions  financieres  internationales. Les lettres
subséquentes du ministre des Finances et du secrétaire d’Etat
aux Affaires extérieures précisent encore que ceux-ci
préférent laisser cela a la discrétion du gouvernement et aux
rares occasions ou il souhaite exercer ce choix. Les lettres des
deux ministres, datant de décembre 1987, contiennent une mise
en garde contre la politisation des institutions financiéres
internationales et conseillent que les décisions soient prises en
excluant tout critére autre qu'économique. A la limite, disent-
ils, le Canada pourrait appuyer une réduction des préts la ou les
violations des libertés fondamentales rendent le développement
impossible. Ce n’est pas une concession tres importante selon
nous, puisque les seules considérations économiques et techni-
ques les ameneraient certainement a la méme conclusion.

Il faut faire une nette distinction entre les criteres
économiques, techniques et politiques et ceux concernant les
libertés fondamentales. La politisation finira par étre une
réalitt dans ces grandes institutions financiéres
internationales et devrait donc étre reconnue comme telle. On
ne devrait pas donner I'impression que c’est un risque imminent
que permet de contenir I'exclusion des criteres humanitaires.
Les institutions financieres internationales sont les instruments
internationaux les plus puissants. Le respect des libertés
fondamentales devrait étre pris en compte pour décider de
l'octroi de crédits ou de préts et les criteres humanitaires
devraient étre appliqués de facon uniforme.

Merci, monsieur le président. Je suis désolé d'avoir pris un
peu plus de temps que prévu.

Le président: Cela ne fait rien, madame Pratt. Je vous
remercie beaucoup de cet exposé tres intéressant.

Dr Roy Culpeper (directeur du programme de finance et
de la dette internationale, institut Nord-Sud): C’est pour moi
un privilége et un honneur d'étre ici. Je vous dis tout de suite
que je ne me prétends pas un expert des droits de la
personne. C'est avec beaucoup d’humilité que jai accepté votre
invitation 4 comparaitre. Je connais toutefois un peu les
institutions financiéres internationales et leur mode de fonction-
nement et j'ai réfléchi au sujet que vous abordez aujourd’hui.

Il est indéniable qu'il faut établir ou faire respecter les libertés
fondamentales dans bien des pays en développement. Il suffit de
feuilleter n'importe quel rapport d’Aministie internationale
pour y trouver une liste horrible des violations des droits
fondamentaux, que ce soit au Burundi, en Birmanie, au
Guatémala, au Pérou ou en Somalie. Le probléme va mainte-
nant au-dela des violations des droits fondamentaux puisqu’on
remet parfois en question des libertés élémentaires et la
démocratie méme.

On m'a demandé de venir expliquer comment les
institutions financiéres internationales, qui sont selon moi les
banques multilatérales de développement, soit la Banque
mondiale, les trois grandes banques de développement
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Monetary Fund—might use their considerable clout to help
reduce human rights abuses and to establish rights and freedoms
that we in Canada take for granted as an integral and necessary
aspect of civil society. While agreeing wholeheartedly on the
urgent need to establish or protect human rights and freedoms,
I will say at the outset that I find this proposal strewn with pitfalls.

To begin with, the charters of the IFIs make such action
difficult. Witness, for example, in the World Bank’s Articles of
Agreement, Article III, section Sa, which says:

The Bank shall make arrangements to ensure that the
proceeds of any loan are used only for the purposes for which
the loan was granted, with due attention to considerations of
economy and efficiency and without regard to political or
other non-economic influences or considerations.

The clause is in there, I think, for a very good reason.

At the same time—and I must agree completely with
Renate here—it is quite clear that political factors have often
been at work in influencing the nature and distribution of the
IFIs’ loans. It should be noted that these political forces stem
from the member countries of the IFIs, whose representatives
exert pressure on management and staff either to lend or not to
lend. Most of the time such political forces operate behind the
scenes, affecting loans in process rather than in a more public and
transparent fashion.

The US.A., as the largest shareholder of most of these
institutions, is uniquely positioned to exert such influence,
particularly in the case of the World Bank, the IMF and the
Inter-American Development Bank, all situated in
Washington. The Americans in the past have used their
power to advance the cause of human rights. During the
Carter Administration the U.S.A. established human rights
criteria to withhold the support of their executive directors of
loans to countries known for human rights violations, as Renate
has just mentioned. However, human rights factors were
supplanted under the succeeding Reagan Administration by
geo-strategic concerns that led, for example, to the suspension
of loans from the IDB to Nicaragua during the mid-1980s.

The behaviour of the U.S.A. toward the IFIs under the
Carter administration demonstrates that it is entirely possible
fqr member countries to use their voting power to express
disapproval of the treatment of human rights by borrowing
members. Other countries, including the Nordics, the
Netherlands and Italy, have also occasionally expressed their
disapproval of human rights performance in the same way.
Canada has rarely—perhaps once—joined this group.

[Traduction]

régional et le fond monétaire international, pourraient utiliser
leur pouvoir considérable pour aider a faire diminuer les
violations des droits fondamentaux et a faire reconnaitre les
droits et libertés qui, au Canada, sont pris pour acquis puisqu’ils
sont partie intégrante et nécessaire d'une société civilisée.
J’admets volontiers qu’il faut de toute urgence faire reconnaitre
ou protéger les droits et libertés fondamentaux, mais je dois dire
que cette suggestion est pleine d’embfiches.

Tout d’abord les Chartes des institutions financiéres interna-
tionales rendent difficile I'application d’une telle mesure. Prenez
par exemple la clause Sa de I'article III des statuts de la Banque
mondiale qui se lit comme suit:

La banque prendra des dispositions en vue d’obtenir que le
produit d’un prét soit consacré exclusivement aux objets pour
lesquels il a été accordé, compte diiment tenu des considéra-
tions d’économie et de rendement et sans laisser intervenir des
influences ou considérations politiques ou extra-
économiques.

Cette clause a sans doute sa raison d’étre.

Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec Renate quand elle dit
que, de toute évidence, des influences politiques s’exercent
sur la nature et la répartition des préts des institutions
financiéres internationales. Ce sont les pays-membres des
institutions qui exercent ces forces politiques, puisque leurs
représentants font des pressions sur les cadres et le personnel
pour qu'ils consentent ou refusent des préts. La plupart du
temps, ces forces s’exercent en coulisse durant le processus
décisionnel; il ny a la rien de public ni de transparent.

Les Etats-Unis, le principal actionnaire de la plupart de
ces instutitions, est particuliecrement bien placé pour exercer
une telle influence, surtout aupreés de la Banque mondiale,
du FMI et de la Banque inter-américaine de développement
dont les sieges sociaux se trouvent tous a Washington. Par le
passé, les Américains ont utilisé leur pouvoir pour faire
avancer la cause des droits de la personne. Durant
I'administration Carter, les Etats-Unis ont établi des criteres
humanitaires en vertu desquels leurs directeurs n’appuyaient pas
des préts a des pays connus pour la violation des droits
fondamentaux, comme vient de le dire Renate. Malheureuse-
ment, 'administration Reagan a remplacé ces considérations
humanitaires par des préoccupations géostratégiques qui ont
abouti, par exemple, a la suspension des préts de la BID au
Nicaragua au milieu des années 80.

L'attitude des Etats-Unis a I'endroit des institutions
financieres internationales sous I'administration Carter
montre qu'il est tout a fait possible pour les pays—-membres
d'utiliser leur droit de vote pour exprimer leur désavoeu de la
facon dont les membres emprunteurs violent les droits
fondamentaux. D’autres pays, y compris la Scandinavie, les
Pays-Bas et I'ltalie ont agi de la méme facon a I'occasion
pour exprimer qu'ils étaient mécontents de la situation des
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However, loans can generally be approved without the support
of these dissenting members. In fact, one gets the impression that
the conscientious objectors—if we may refer to them as
that—did not want to actually stop the loans, but rather to send
a message to the regime in question to clean up their act. There
is little evidence that this stance influenced the human rights
performance of such borrowers.
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It could therefore be argued that to have a pronounced
impact it might require mobilizing a majority of shareholders’
votes. As a practical matter this would be difficult, since
several developing country borrowers would have to join the
objectors, an unlikely prospect at present. Even if this approach
were to succeed, it could serve to seriously fragment the
multilateral agencies. Objecting members might abstain on or
vote against a loan, but might differ on the detailed criteria
underlying their decision.

For example, how much human rights abuse is unacceptable?
How much proof of torture is necessary before this kind of
sanction is adopted? Or they might differ among each other as
to which particular borrowing countries most deserve this form
of sanctions——Zaire or Somalia, Borundi or Guyana.

Moreover, once the precedent is established, other non-eco-
nomic factors, such as environmental criteria, could also be
brought to bear on the IFIs in the same way by punishing
ecologically unacceptable behaviour with loan non-approvals.
Certainly there is a growing lobby in the north for that kind of
behaviour and activity at the IFIL.

The question is not whether, but how human rights—or for
that matter, the preservation of the ecology—can be advanced
without impairing the functioning of these agencies or their
multilateral nature.

In my view, if they are to continue to operate effectively
it would be much better for the IFIs to internalize the criteria
for human rights standards on a basis acceptable to all or
most members. In practice, this approach would lend itself to
the lowest common denominator. The least stringent human
rights standards are likely to command the greatest support of
members. Once agreed, however, such standards could be built
upon gradually, with rising norms among member countries.

The advantage of this approach is that it would be applied
consistently and uniformly to all borrowers. Human rights
conditionality would depend on multilaterally agreed standards,
not on the vagaries of voting behaviour at the executive board.

There is cause for optimism that the IFIs are actually, if slowly,
moving in this direction. For example, the World Bank now sees
governance as a legitimate issue to discuss with its borrowers.
This was raised in the bank’s recent long-term perspective study
on sub-Saharan Africa. entitled From Crisis to Sustainable
Growth.

[Translation]

droits de la personne dans certains pays. Le Canada a
rarement—peut-étre une fois—agi de cette fagon. Cependant,
les préts peuvent généralement étre autorisés sans 'appui des
membres dissidents. En fait, on a I'impression que ces objecteurs
de conscience—si on peut les appeler ainsi—ne veulent pas
vraiment empécher que les préts soient accordés; ils veulent
plutdt signaler au régime en cause qu'ils devraient apporter des
améliorations. Il ne semble pas qu'une telle attitude ait incité les
emprunteurs a mieux respecter les droits fondamentaux.

On pourrait dire que pour avoir de leffet, il faudrait
mobiliser la majorité des actionnaires. En pratique, ce serait
difficile, puisqu’il faudrait que plusieurs pays en
développement qui sont emprunteurs se joignent aux
objecteurs de conscience, une perspective improbable a I'heure
actuelle. Et si cela réussissait, il risquerait d'y avoir fragmenta-
tion grave des organismes mutilatéraux puisque ceux qui
s’opposeraient, s'abstiendraient ou voteraient contre un prét,
pour des motifs sans doute différents.

Par exemple, a partir de quel moment les violations des droits
fondamentaux deviennent-elles inacceptables? Comment la
torture doit-elle étre prouvée avant qu'on adopte des sanctions?
Les membres pourraient aussi ne pas s’entendre sur les pays qui
méritent le plus ces sanctions—le Zaire ou la Somalie, le
Burundi ou la Guyana.

En outre, une fois créé le précédent, d’autres facteurs
non-économiques, par exemple des criteres écologiques, pour-
raient aussi €tre pris en considération par les institutions
financiéres internationales et on punirait les pays trop pollueurs
en refusant de leur accorder des préts. Dans 'hémisphére nord,
il y a un mouvement croissant pour qu’on punisse par les
institutions financiéres internationales les activités polluantes.

11 faut donc plutét se demander comment faire avancer la
cause des droits fondamentaux—et aussi de la préservation de
I'écologie—sans nuire au fonctionnement des institutions ni
aller a I'encontre de leur caractére multilatéral.

Selon moi, pour que le fonctionnement des institutions
financiéres internationales demeure efficace, celles-ci doivent
intérioriser des criteres humanitaires acceptables pour tous
les membres ou presque. En pratique, on serait obligé
d'adopter le plus bas dénominateur commun puisque ce sont les
critéres les plus larges qui sont susceptibles de rallier I'appui de
la majorité. Toutefois, on pourrait par la suite rehausser les
critéres adoptés au fur et @ mesure que les normes s'éléveraient
dans les pays membres.

L’avantage de cette solution, c'est que les critéres s'applique-
raient uniformément a tous les emprunteurs. Les critéres
humanitaires reposeraient sur des normes adoptées par toutes
les parties et non pas sur le vote imprévisible du conseil
d’administration.

On peut penser que les institutions financiéres internationa-
les se déplacent lentement dans cette direction puisque, par
exemple, la Banque mondiale considere maintenant que la
question du gouvernement est un sujet pertinent de discussion
avec les emprunteurs. C'est mentionné dans la récente étude de
la Banque sur les perspectives a long terme de I'Afrique
Sub-Saharienne intitulée «From Crisis to Sustainable Growth».
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For the bank, good governance consists of a basic set of
attributes, usually necessary if sustained development is to take
place —for example, accountability, transparency, predictability.
The word that best captures these notions is “stewardship.

Governments should be expected to mean what they say, to
make their best efforts to meet commitments, and to account for
what they do with their resources—if not to their own people
then at least to the IFIs lending the money. In other words, they
should govern as though development were indeed the nation’s

priority.

Some might take this to be a strictly limited agenda.
Nevertheless, the bank’s heightened consciousness has finally
given it the temerity to raise the issue of borrowing countries’
military expenditures as a constraint on development, something
that the bank has in the past stayed well away from.

Proof of the bank’s new sensibility recently surfaced. In
April it held back an IDA credit, a soft loan, to Zaire. It
would have disbursed $50 million to $60 million for the
health and education sectors. The grounds were that the
quality of Zaire’s development and investment expenditures—in
the health, education, and transportation infrastructure sec-
tors—are deteriorating while unnecessary or wasteful expendi-
tures are rising.

Examples of this include President Mobutu’s office, a lot of
expenditures associated with his personal commitments, lavish
preparations for the Kinshasa Francophone Summit, and white
elephant investments such as a $200 million sugar refinery in the
face of falling sugar prices.
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In a parallel move the IMF has suspended a credit from its soft
credit structural adjustment facility on the grounds that Zaire
could not account for its 1989 fiscal expenditures properly.

It is easy to be critical of these initiatives. Despite a slow-
down of its lending pursuant to these moves by the World
Bank, there is still a $100 million annual net transfer from
the World Bank to Zaire. One can raise the question: So
what? But as limited as they are, I would argue that these are
moves in the right direction and they should be strongly
supported by all those favouring a more assertive role for the IFIs
in the area of human rights and governance.

It also may be possible to broaden this initiative by
drawing upon a related theme raised in the bank’s recent
study on Africa, that of the so-called enabling environment.
This concept refers to an economic climate in which private
initiative can flourish, or at least not be severely constrained by
the.state. It is difficult to conceive of such an enabling
environment without two sets of basic human rights: first,
freedom against arbitrary arrest or dentention, and second. the
right to private property.

[Traduction)

Selon la banque, un bon gouvernement doit posséder
certaines caractéristiques fondamentales habituellement néces-
saires au développement durable—par exemple, étre responsa-
ble, transparent et prévisible. On parle a ce propos d’intendance.

Les gouvernements devraient toujours penser ce qu'ils disent,
faire de leur mieux pour assumer leurs obligations et rendre
compte de I'utilisation de leurs ressources—sinon a leur propre
population, du moins aux institutions internationales qui leur
prétent des fonds. Autrement dit. les gouvernements doivent
agir comme si le développement était effectivement la priorité
de leur nation.

Pour certains, ce n'est peut-étre pas suffisant. Néanmoins, la
sensibilisation de la banque lui a finalement donné la témérité
de soulever le probleme des dépenses militaires des pays
emprunteurs qui nuisent au développement. La banque n’avait
jamais osé le faire avant.

On a récemment eu la preuve de cette nouvelle prise de
conscience de la banque. En avril dernier, elle a retenu un
crédit de I'AID, un prét de faveur, au Zaire. Elle devait
débourser 50 ou 60 millions de dollars pour les secteurs de la
santé et de I'éducation. Elle a invoqué comme motif la
détérioration du développement au Zaire et la diminution des
dépenses d'investissement—dans les secteurs de la santé, de
I'éducation et de 'infrastructure pour les transports—alors que
les dépenses inutiles et le gaspillage augmentent.

Elle a donné comme exemple I'aménagement du bureau du
Président Mobutu, beaucoup de dépenses liées a ses obligations
personnelles, des préparations fastueuses pour le sommet de la
francophonie a Kinshasa et plusieurs éléphants blancs comme la
raffinerie de sucre de 200,000,000 $ alors que les prix du sucre
dégringolent.

En parallele, le FMI a suspendu un de ses crédits de faveur
comme facilit¢ d’ajustement structurel, sous prétexte que le
Zaire ne pouvait pas bien rendre compte de ses dépenses pour
1989.

Ces initiatives prétent le blanc a la critique. Méme si les
décisions de la Banque mondiale ont ralenti ces préts, elles
continue tout de méme de transférer chaque année 100
millions de dollars net au Zaire. On peut donc se demander a
quoi cela sert. Quelles que soient leurs limites, ces décisions sont
tout de méme un pas dans la bonne direction et elles devraient
étre appuyées sans réserve par tous ceux qui souhaitent que les
institutions financiéres internationales jouent un role plus
marquant dans le domaine des droits de la personne et de la
régie gouvernementale.

On pourrait donner de I'ampleur a cette initiative en
s'appuyant sur une question connexe soulevée dans une étude
récente qu'a faite la banque sur I'Afrique, celle de
I'environnement dit clé. On entend par la un climat
économique propice a I'épanouissement de I'entreprise privée
ou au moins auquel I'Etat n'impose pas de sérieuses contraintes.
On peut difficilement concevoir un tel environnement clé d’ot
seraient absentes deux libertés fondamentales: la protection
contre l'arrestation ou la détention arbitraire et le droit a la
propriété privée.
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Unless individuals and private property are protected
against unlawful seizure by the state or its agents, how can
market capitalism, so emphasized by prevailing doctrines of
economic development, ever take root or function efficiently?
Moreover, once firmly established, these two basic human rights
can be built upon. The protection of the person and of property
are fundamental to many other rights—freedom of expression,
the press, association, to name a few.

Last but not least, this approach appears altogether consistent
with Article III, section S(a) of the World Bank’s Articles of
Agreement, which I quoted earlier.

Let me sum up briefly. With respect, I would like to
disagree with Renate and say that I do not think that
instructing our executive directors at the IFIs to vote against
loans to human rights’ abusers is an effective way of
promoting human rights. In my view it would be more productive
and more helpful to the establishment and spread of human
rights in the long run to induce the IFIs to adopt lending criteria
which support both human rights and economic development,
somewhat along the lines suggested by the Standing Committee
on External Affairs and International Trade.

As a starting point, I would suggest that all adjustment
loans be made conditional on the establishment or
entrenchment of the two basic human rights of the person
and of private property. To be sure, this is a gradualist
approach to human rights in the IFIs, but ultimately it will be
both easier and more successful than moving on a broad front.
Other fora, particularly the UN, are eminently more suited for
seeking to promote all of the tenets of the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights and the international covenant, which Renate
cited.

In addition, relying excessively on the IFIs is bound to raise
the question of symmetry—i.e., how will the developed countries
also be forced to observe these rights.

I wish to make a final comment on the wider agenda of
democratization. Questions of a constitutional nature, for
example, the nature of political participation or
representation, are particularly difficult for the IFIs to
handle. This is because there may be many ways to
democratize, and no country is in a position to claim that its
own form of democracy is best or well suited to nations with
very different cultural traditions and political constraints. I
would say that it may be better to rely on the instincts of the
citizenry in many of these countries, and let the democratic wind
sweep across lands where they have not yet or have just begun
to blow. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Dr. Culpeper.

[Translation)

Si les particuliers et la propriété privée peuvent étre
saisis illégalement par I'Etat ou ses agents, comment une
économie capitaliste de marché, sur laquelle insistent les
théories de développement économique, pourrait-elle
s’enraciner et fonctionner efficacement? En outre, une fois ces
deux droits fondamentaux biens établis, ils assurent un assise
solide au reste. En effet, 1a protection de la personne et de la
propriété est essentielle au respect d’autres droits comme la
liberté d’expression, la liberté de presse, la liberté d’association,
pour ne nommer que celles-la.

Enfin, cette solution semble conforme au paragraphe 5(a)de
I'article 43 des status de la Banque mondiale, que jai déja cité.

En résumé, et en toute déférence, je ne suis pas d’accord
avec Renate car je ne pense pas que le fait de donner
instruction a nos directeurs dans les institutions financiéres
internationales de voter contre les préts aux régimes qui
violent les droits de la personne soit un bon moyen de
promouvoir les droits fondamentaux. Je crois qu'un moyen plus
constructif et plus utile d’établir et de faire respecter a longue
échéance les libertés fondamentales serait d’inciter les institu-
tions financiéres internationales a adopter des critéres de prét
propices a la fois aux libertés fondamentales et au développe-
ment économique, un peu comme ce qu'a proposé le comité
permanent des Affaires extérieures et du Commerce internatio-
nal.

Pour commencer, tous les préts d’ajustement devraient
étre conditionnels a la reconnaissance de deux droits
fondamentaux: la protection de la personne et le droit a la
propriété privée. C'est évidemment une démarche étapiste en
vue de faire admettre des criteres humanitaires par les
institutions financieres internationales, mais ce sera plus facile
et mieux réussi que si I'on veut tout faire d'un coup. D’autres
forums, notamment I'ONU sont beaucoup plus propice a la
promotion de tous les principes de la Déclaration universelle des
droits de I'hnomme et le Pacte international qu'a mentionné

Renate.

En outre, si on exige trop des institutions financiéres
internationales, on finira par soulever la question de I'équivalen-
ce pour les pays développés, c'est-a-dire comment obliger
ceux—ci a respecter les libertés fondamentales.

En terminant, je voudrais faire une observation sur le
sujet plus vaste qu'est celui de la démocratisation. Les
questions de nature constitutionnelle, par exemple la forme
de participation ou de représentation politique, sont
particulierement délicates pour les institutions financiéres
internationales, parce qu’il y a bien des facons de
démocratiser un pays et que personne au monde n’'est en
mesure de prétendre que sa démocratie est la meilleure en
soi ou pour des nations dont les traditions culturelles et les
contraintes politiques sont tres différentes. Il vaudrait peut-étre
mieux se fier aux instincts des citoyens de bien des pays et laisser
souffler le vent de démocratie qui atteindra sans doute bientot
les contrées qui n'ont pas encore été atteintes. Merci, monsieur
le président.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, M. Culpeper.
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When we first met Ms Pratt and Dr. Culpeper they asked me
how many members would attend this meeting. Based on recent
experience, I said maybe two, if we are lucky probably three. Iam
pleased to see that all members are attending today, and it is not
a coincidence, because of course this topic is very important, and
again because of your experience.

Without any further preamble, I am going to allow the first set
of questions to Mr. Walker.
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Mr. Walker (Winnipeg North Centre): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman, and thanks to both of you for coming out.

Ms Pratt, I want to talk about something we are all trying to
be concerned with, and that is the space between what we say and
what we do. You introduce your topic on your first page and you
say:

Our main disagreement with the Canadian government on
this issue has focused on Canada’s failure to apply its
commitment to human rights in all of the international
institutions.

What are some of the barriers, do you think? We all know
what we should be doing and you will find very few politicians in
theory disagreeing with this. But in the practical world, we fall
short. How do you account for this?

Ms Pratt: How do I account for what the government says and
what the government does?

Mr. Walker: Yes. I do not mean this in a partisan sense, but
just governments in general, because it goes back for 10 or 15
years.

Ms Pratt: Sure it does. In fact, most of the research that
underlies this document was collected during the tenure of the
Liberal government preceding the Mulroney government.

Mr. Walker: Yes, right.

Ms Pratt: Actually, as far as the international financial
institutions are concerned, Mr. Walker, it seems to me that
apart from some glaring contradictions, that they are against
politicization and they have themselves engaged in exploiting
the possibility of playing politics, I think that they actually
have done what they said. They have said they are against
human rights criteria being introduced in the voting patterns
in the international financial institutions. Part of the reason
is I think what Roy was explaining. There is a resistance or a fear
to meddle with something that was hard to establish. The
international financial institutions and the charges, as Roy
pointed out, took a major global initiative to get going, and
somehow there is a resistance to sort of say that since it is not
written in stone, why can we not change it?

I think there is also a mythology that they are bankers
and that bankers are not political. We in the task force, in
our experience of the churches dealing with business, think
that is not correct. Bankers are just as much politicized as

[Traduction)

Quand j'ai rencontré M™ Pratt et M. Culpeper la premiére
fois, ils m’ont demandé combien de députés seraient présent a
la séance. J'ai dit qu'il y en aurait probablement deux et, avec un
peu de chance, peut-étre trois, étant donné nos dernieres
réunions. Je suis heureux de voir que tous les membres du
comité sont la aujourd’hui. Ce n’est pas une coincidence, c’est
parce que le sujet est trés important et que vous avez bonne
réputation.

Je vais sans tarder autoriser M. Walker a poser les premiéres
questions.

M. Walker (député de Winnipeg-Nord-Centre): Merci,
monsieur le président, et merci a vous deux d’étre venus.

Madame Pratt, je veux parler de ce qui nous inquiete tous:
I'écart entre ce que nous disons et ce que nous faisons. Vous
lancez le sujet dés la premiére page de votre mémoire en disant:

Notre principal désaccord avec le gouvernement canadien sur
cette question tient au fait que ce dernier ne défend pas la
cause du droit de la personne dans toutes les institutions
internationales.

Quels sont les obstacles, croyez-vous? Tous nous savons ce
qu’il faut faire et trés peu de politiciens s’y opposeront en
théorie. Mais en pratique, c’est une autre histoire. Comment
expliquer cet échec?

Mme Pratt: Vous voulez savoir comment je peux expliquer
I'écart entre ce que dit et ce que fait le gouvernement?

M. Walker: Oui. Cela dit sans partisanerie puisque ce sont
tous les gouvernements qui agissent de la méme facon depuis
une quinzaine d’années.

Mme Pratt: Evidemment. La plupart des études utilisées
pour rédiger ce mémoire ont été faites au moment ou le
gouvernement libéral était au pouvoir, avant le gouvernement
Mulroney.

M. Walker: En effet.

Mme Pratt: En fait, pour ce qui est des institutions
financiéres internationales, je pense qu'outre certaines
contradictions flagrantes—bien qu'étant opposées a toute
politisation, elles ont elles-mémes exploité les jeux
politiques—je crois qu'elles ont fait ce qu'elles ont dit. Elles
se sont opposées a ce que les votes exprimés dans les
institutions financiéres internationales soient influencés par
des criteres humanitaires. Roy vous en a en partie expliqué
les raisons. On craint de se méler de quelque chose qui est
difficile a définir. Comme Roy I'a souligné, les institutions
financieres internationales ont pris une importante initiative
globale pour commencer, mais on semble hésiter a se demander
pourquoi ne pas changer les choses si elles ne sont pas coulées
dans le béton.

Il y a aussi le mythe selon lequel les banquiers s’occupent
de finances et pas de politique. Les membres du groupe de
travail ont pu constater que ce n'était pas vrai dans les
transactions des églises avec le monde des affaires. Les
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you people are. One has to take that into account and not deny
that fact. I think that was part of the reason we had the same
responses from Mr. Lalonde and from Mr. Wilson, from Mr.
MacEachen when he was Secretary of State for External Affairs,
and from Mr. Clark of the present government, the myth that
these are politically neutral institutions.

Mr. Walker: Is that resistance based on an ideology, on the
federal bureaucracy? Is it based on sort of the internal ideas of
the international institutions? Is it based upon the Canadian
banking system? What are the sources—

Ms Pratt: I have the feeling you are asking the wrong person.
You ought to ask your minister this.

Mr. Walker: You are the student of this topic.
Ms Pratt: Yes.

Mr. Walker: I will tell you what we are trying to get at, Ms
Pratt. We were trying to get past talking to all of us who agree
with each other and try to find out who disagrees and how do we
influence them.

Ms Pratt: I think there is a certain lethargy in the civil
servants about this. A number of these questions I discussed
personally with some of the people who were employed by
the banks. Roy was one of them actually, and I am not
including him about the lethargy, but there is this sort of “Leave
it to us, Ms Pratt. Why do you want to know this and why do you
want to know that?” I think one of the things that would be very
helpful in bringing these questions more into the open would be
a greater transparency of the issues being illuminated in Canada.
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It is frustrating because it is very difficult to figure out
who is responsible, who sits in the World Bank, who sits in
the IDB, who sits in the IMF. The press does not report on
what votes take place in the various centres around the
world. Canada’s second largest single block of overseas
development aid is for these international financial
institutions. So there is very little known about this. There is
no parliamentary review about what goes on, how Canada
has voted, what the position is of the government. It is an extra
which is running out there, and if you do not have a transparency
on certain decision-making, then these are hidden from the
public view. People are used to not talking about it and make
decisions which are easier made without public knowledge.

Mr. Walker: Part of the strategy the American government
followed a few years ago was to mandate reporting systems into
the Secretary of State. So now there is an annual report
discussing human rights, on the assumption that will lead to it
being integrated. Do you see any strategy for following some sort
of mandated reporting process of Canada’s involvement in these
international organizations?

Ms Pratt: Yes. I have not mentioned this here, but it has
been one of the recommendations the churches have made
through various other coalitions and through the task force
on the churches and corporate responsibilities, urging an

[Translation)

banquiers sont tout autant politisés que vous I'étes vous-méme.
Il faut en tenir compte et ne pas nier cette réalité. Si M. Lalonde,
M. Wilson, M. MacEachen, quand il était secrétaire d’Etat aux
Affaires extérieures, et M. Clark, qui occupe le méme poste dans
le gouvernement actuel, ont tous répondu de la méme facon,
c’est a cause de ce mythe voulant que ces institutions soient
apolitiques.

M. Walker: Est-ce que cette hésitation se justifie par une
idéologie de la bureaucratie fédérale? Est-ce qu’elle découle des
idées internes des institutions internationales? Est-ce qu’elle
s'inspire du systtme bancaire canadien? Quelles sont les
sources. . .

Mme Pratt: Je crois que vous devriez poser la question a
quelqu’un d’autre. Vous devriez plutét interroger votre ministre.

M. Walker :C’est vous qui étudiez la question.
Mme Pratt: Oui.

M. Walker: Je vais vous dire ou nous voulons en venir. Nous
en avons assez de discuter de ces choses entre nous. Nous
voulons découvrir qui nest pas d’accord et comment on peut les
influencer.

Mme Pratt: Disons qu'il y a une certaine léthargie dans
la Fonction publique. J'ai personnellement discuté de
certaines de ces questions avec les cadres employés des
banques en question. Roy en particulier, et on ne peut pas le
taxer de léthargique, mais on m'a en quelque sorte dit:
«faites-nous confiance, M™¢ Pratt. Pourquoi voulez-vous savoir
ceci et cela?» Si on parlait plus ouvertement de ces questions au
Canada, ce serait tres utile.

Ce qui est frustrant, cest qu'il est tres difficile de
déterminer qui est responsable, qui siege a la Banque
mondiale, a la BID et au FMIL Les journaux ne rapportent
pas les votes qui se tiennent dans divers centres un peu
partout dans le monde. Ces institutions financieres
internationales sont les bénéficiaires du deuxieme plus
important bloc d'aide canadienne au développement.
Pourtant, on en sait trés peu. Le Parlement n’examine pas ce
qui se passe, comment le Canada a voté ni quelle position a
adoptée le gouvernement. Quand on ne parle pas de certaines
décisions, elles se prennent a I'insu de la population. Les gens
sont habitués a ne pas en parler parce que les décisions sont
toujours plus simples a prendre quand la population n’est pas au
courant.

M. Walker: Il y a quelques années, le gouvernement
américain a adopté comme stratégie de confier I'obligation de
faire rapport au département d’Etat. On publie maintenant un
rapport annuel sur les droits de la personne en présumant que
cette question sera un jour intégrée au reste. Croyez-vous qu'on
devrait suivre cet exemple et demander la préparation d’'un
rapport périodique sur la participation du Canada a ces
organismes internationaux?

Mme Pratt: Oui. Je n'en ai pas parlé ici, mais c'est 'une
des recommandations que les Eglises ont faites par
I'entremise de diverses autres coalitions et aussi du Groupe
de travail sur les Eglises et les responsabilités d’entreprises.
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annual review where non-governmental organizations and the
government get together—your committee, for example—and
say okay, what decisions have we made, and what are the criteria
by which these decisions have been made?

I would argue we should put the politics right on the
table in these decisions, so that both you in Parliament and
the government have a grip on what is going on. I suggest
that this is a very good time. Roy was referring to different
kinds of cultures, and we should be careful about the criteria
we establish. I cannot imagine that any other culture wouid
actually enjoy torture or extrajudicial executions or arbitrary
detention. These are basic kinds of things, and I think this is
a good time to make plans about a more careful review of these
matters in Canada’s Parliament. The period we have been
talking about was a period of great human rights violations,
especially in Latin America, the Philippines and South Africa,
places like that.

We are entering, hopefully, a period of time where they will
listen, and it is best to make rules when there are not immediate
cases for which those rules are being made, so that they are made
in a time when nobody is threatening somebody else.

Mr. McCurdy (Windsor—St-Clair): Thank you both for your
presentations.

Looking at the article you published in Human Rights and
Canadian Policy, entitled “International Financial Institutions”,
about the history of the treatment by the IFIs of South Africa,
you present a really dramatic case of how the IFIs were able to
justify what turned out to be an essential support for apartheid.
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We have been talking about this question of human
rights as if the decisions of the IFIs were politically neutered,
when if you look at their preoccupation with debt and balance
of payments and adjustment programs, particularly if you
look at it not only from the context of South Africa but in your
analysis of how pleasing dictatorships are not so often to be, the
preoccupying ideology seems to be completely devoid of any
inherent consideration of what I suspect is your point of view and
mine with respect to economic development, but rather the
notion that those loans should be made to the those who please
a certain market-driven ideology no matter what in the hell
happens to the people.

If that is a fair analysis of what is happening, are we not, when
we talk about introducing human rights considerations or even
ecological considerations, challenging what may turn out to be
a pretty fundamental attitude that drives the IFIs?

Ms Pratt: I wonder whether the global concern about the
environment is not, hopefully, giving us a way into that
question. There is a realization internationally, both north
and south, that we have to do something about the

[Traduction)

On a demandé que les organisations non gouvernementales et
le gouvernement—votre comité, par exemple —fassent ensem-
ble un examen annuel des décisions prises et des critéres sur
lesquels elles se fondaient.

Je dis qu'il faudrait étaler les motifs politiques de ces
décisions pour que les parlementaires et le gouvernement
saisissent bien ce qui se passe. Ce serait le moment opportun
d’agir. Roy a mentionné qu’il fallait faire trés attention a
I'établissement des critéres étant donné les différences
culturelles. Je ne pense pas qu'une culture donnée prenne
plaisir a la torture, aux exécutions sans jugement ou a la
détention arbitraire. Ce sont la des droits trés fondamentaux
et c'est le moment de planifier une analyse plus attentive de ces
questions par le Parlement canadien. La période dont nous
venons de parler en a été une de graves violations des droits de
la personne notamment en Amérique latine, aux Philippines, en
Afrique du Sud, et dans d’autres pays encore.

Nous sommes a l'aube, espérons-nous, d’'une €re ou ces pays
nous écouteront. Mieux vaut établir des regles en I'absence de
cas concrets afin que personne ne se sente visé.

M. McCurdy (Windsor— St-Clair): Je vous remercie tous les
deux de vos exposés.

Dans l'article que vous avez publié dans Human Rights and
Canadian Policy qui était intitulé «International Financial
Institutions», sur la fagon dont les institutions financieéres
internationales ont traité I’Afrique du Sud, vous présentez de
facon dramatique comment les institutions ont réussi a justifier
ce qui était essentiellement un appui a I'apartheid.

Nous discutons de cette question des droits de la
personne comme si les décisions des institutions financieres
internationales étaient apolitiques alors que a I'égard de
I'’Afrique du Sud, et aussi selon votre analyse des dictatures
sympathiques qui souvent ne le sont pas, celles-ci se préoccu-
pent de dettes, de balances des paiements et des programmes
d’ajustement sans accorder aucune importance a votre concep-
tion du développement économique et a la mienne. Autrement
dit, elles accordent des préts a ceux qui se conforment a une
certaine idéologie du marché quel que soit le sort réservé a la
population.

Si c’est 1a une analyse juste de la réalité, ne sommes-nous pas
en train de contester I'attitude fondamentale des institutions
financiéres internationales quand nous parlons d'ajouter des
criteres humanitaires ou méme écologistes?

Mme Pratt: Je me demande si l'intérét mondial qu'on
accorde a l'environnement n'est pas en train de faire
progresser les choses. On commence a se rendre compte
partout, aussi bien dans I’hémisphére nord que dans
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environment and that we cannot go on to deforest not just the
Amazon forests, the rain forest, but many many places in East
Asia, in Africa. But the poor are driven to do that for fuel. And
very soon they will die. The north with be harmed through the
warming trend, and the south with be harmed equally. So I think
there is now a coming together of the realization that we all have
to do something about it.

I am very pleased to see our Minister of Finance in Balin
making a statement about Canada’s concern about the environ-
ment. He wants the World Bank to do certain things in the
manner Roy was describing: that decisions should come from
within the structures of these organizations.

I do not have any quarrel with that part. But when we
deal with human rights and we deal with IMF adjustment
policies, some of these are IMF conditionality, as we lay
people call them. And I think we are also dealing with the
right to subsistence, if in fact the conditions as such that they
are extracting an overweening demand from governments to
cut subsidies to basic food stuffs, to cut back on social services
and health and education and so on and so forth. Then that
is a curtailment of that human right. Now, this is not a human
right violated by that government, this is a human rights, as far
as I am concerned, violated by the extraction of these conditions
through the IMF. They tell that government they have to do X,
Y, and Z, and that endangers the subsistence of the poor. That
is where again I am pleased with what you are saying, that it
should come from within the international financial institutions.
They should change the way in which they look at loan
disbursements, credit disbursements, and what the conditions
are for these.
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Mr. McCurdy: But I hear you agreeing with Dr.
Culpeper on the notion that there should be developed not
an ad hoc regard for human rights issues but a systematic
approach to adopting guidelines. I think there is a significant
difference between your emphases, and I find this very
interesting. One emphasis comes quite directly out of the
question I asked you. For example, the assurance of an adequate
level of subsistence for the population of a receiving country
would be one hallmark right that could not be construed as
inconsistent with the economic and other considerations that are
applied by the IFIs.

Dr. Culpeper puts his emphasis on arbitrary arrest and
property. Now, I found those to be criteria that flow rather
naturally from a particular view of the world. This is a view
of the world that motivates the IFIs, in my opinion. It is a
view of the world that makes it difficult for developing countries,
because surely private property is no big deal to the peasant. But
private property may be a significant issue with respect to
ecological issues. Arbitrary arrest means nothing if you do not
have freedom in the first place. Subsistence seems to me to be
number one in regard to that. Can I get your reaction to that
comparison?

[Translation]

I'hémisphere sud, qu’il faut faire quelque chose pour préserver
I'environnement et que nous ne pouvons pas continuer a
déboiser les foréts d’ Amazonie, et les autres foréts ombrophiles
dans bien des pays de I'Est asiatique et d’Afrique. Mais les
pauvres n'ont pas le choix parce qu'’ils ont besoin de carburant.
Bientdt, ils vont mourir. Si le réchauffement de la planéte va
nuire a ’hémisphere nord, il en va de méme pour I'hémisphére
sud. On commence donc a réaliser que nous devons tous faire
quelque chose.

Je suis heureuse de voir que notre ministre des Finances est
allé faire une déclaration sur les préoccupations environnemen-
tales du Canada. Il veut que la Banque mondiale fasse certaines
choses dont a parlé Roy, c’est-a-dire que les décisions soient
inspirées par les structures de ces organismes.

Je n’ai aucune objection, mais quand il est question des
droits de la personne et des politiques d’ajustement du FMI,
certaines de ces conditions sont particulieres au fond. Cela a
aussi trait au droit a la subsistance si les conditions sont
telles qu'on exige des gouvernements qu'ils réduisent
démesurément les subventions aux aliments de base, les
services sociaux, les services de santé, 'éducation, etc. Cela
devient une violation des droits fondamentaux. Selon moi, ce
n’est pas le gouvernement qui viole les droits, c’est le FMI par
les conditions qu’il impose. Le Fonds dicte au gouvernement
telle ou telle mesure qui met en péril la survie des pauvres. Je suis
donc heureuse qu’on dise que cela devrait venir des institutions
financieres internationales qui devraient regarder d’un autre
angle les préts, les crédits et les conditions qui les assortissent.

M. McCurdy: Vous étes donc d'accord avec M.
Culpeper: il ne faudrait pas considérer parfois seulement les
droits fondamentaux, mais établir des lignes directrices
systématiques. Vous ne mettez pas I'accent au méme endroit,
mais c'est trés intéressant. Suite a la question que je vous ai
posée, vous insistez sur I'importance de maintenir un niveau de
subsistance adéquat a la population du pays emprunteur; ce droit
n'irait pas a 'encontre des considérations économiques et autres
des institutions financieres internationales.

M. Culpeper, lui met l'accent sur les arrestations
arbitraires et la propriété privée. Je trouve que ces droits
découlent tout naturellement d'une certaine vision du monde.
Selon moi, cest la vision qui motive les institutions
financiéres internationales et qui pose des difficultés aux pays en
développement, puisque le droit a la propriété privée n'a pas
beaucoup de signification pour les pauvres paysans. Mais il peut
prendre de l'importance quand il est question de problémes
écologiques. Pour ceux qui ne sont pas libres, la protection
contre les arrestations arbitraires n'a pas beaucoup de sens non
plus. Selon moi, la priorité c'est donc le droit & la subsistance.
Que pensez-vous de cette comparaison?
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Dr. Culpeper: I agree fully with Renate that greater
transparency is needed in decision-making. This will correct
what perhaps might be a misconception arising from my last
remarks. I was not implying that differences in culture should
shelter torture or extra judicial processes. I was just saying that
differences in culture give rise to different forms of democratiza-
tion. I was talking about the much wider question there. For
example, is a one-party state in Tanzania democratic? A lot of
people would say yes, others might say no.

With regard to Mr. McCurdy’s question, I would agree that the
right to subsistence is very basic to the whole process of
development. I think the IFIs have come to the view that their
adjustment programs will not work either economically or
politically to the extent that the plight of the poorest is
undermined and they become poorer.

I think what you are seeing now in Washington in the IFIs is
asecond and third generation of adjustment loans and economic
policy reforms which put a lot of emphasis on protecting the
poorest; in fact, even hints of empowering the poorest. This
comes out of the work I was mentioning in my remarks on the
latest report from the bank on sub-Saharan Africa.

I would endeavour to say that even the peasant does
have a stake in private property. I think what you find in
many countries is that peasants are quite often at the
capricious whim, either of the state or of larger landholders
or those with political power, the elites, insofar as they do not
have firm and secure title to their land. I think this has to be one
of the most fundamental rights of all, along with the right of
protection of the person, and I do not see why it is any less
valuable to someone just because they are poor.

Of course, it could be that many peasants are landless. In that
case, the right to private property means nothing at all, except
if the right to private property is put in place. Then suddenly the
acquisition of land for the landless becomes a project that means
something. Without any secure title to land, the whole issue of
land reform—giving land to the landless—is going to go
nowhere.
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So I do believe it can be a very powerful tool in the whole
project of redistribution and empowering the poor and making
their economic future very much more secure.

Mr. McCurdy: That may be generally so, but would we not
have to admit that the right to private property has more often
been used at the expense of peasants and the landless than to
their benefit?

Dr. Culpeper: Well, I think this is not because of
enshrined rights as such, but more because of the way power
is structured in many of these countries. There what you have
is not rights but privileges, and the entrenched power of

[Traduction]

S

M. Culpeper: Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec Renate
quand elle dit que le processus décisionnel doit se faire au
grand jour. Peut-étre cela corrigera-t-il I'impression fausse
que vous ont laissée mes derniéres remarques. Je ne voulais
pas dire que les différences culturelles devraient permettre de
cacher la torture et d’autres agissements sans proces. Je disais
simplement que les différences culturelles nécessitent des
formes de démocratisation différentes. J'abordais la question
dans un sens treés large. Par exemple, est-ce démocratique en
Tanzanie d’avoir un régime politique unipartiste? Pour beau-
coup, la réponse est affirmative et pour beaucoup d'autres, elle
est négative.

Pour ce qui est de la question de M. McCurdy, je crois
moi-aussi que le droit a la subsistance est trés fondamental a
tout le processus de développement. Les institutions financiéres
internationales croient maintenant que leurs programmes
d'ajustement ne seront acceptables ni du point de vue
économique, ni du point de vue politique s’ils accentuent la
misere des pauvres.

On voit maintenant dans les institutions basées a Washington
une deuxiéme et une troisieme génération de préts d’ajustement
et de réformes économiques qui mettent l'accent sur la
protection des pauvres. On a méme I'impression qu’on voudrait
leur donner plus de pouvoirs. Cela ressort du dernier rapport de
la banque sur I'Afrique subsaharienne que j'ai mentionné dans
mon exposé.

Joserais méme affirmer que les paysans profiteront eux-
aussi du droit a la propriété privée, car dans bien des pays, ils
sont souvent a la merci des caprices de I'Etat, des grands
propriétaires fonciers ou de I'élite qui détient les rénes du
pouvoir, puisqu'ils ne détiennent pas la propriété incontestable
de leurs terres. Je crois que c'est I'un des droits les plus
fondamentaux avec celui du droit a la protection de la personne
et je ne vois pas pourquoi ce serait moins important pour un
pauvre que pour un autre.

A moins évidlemment que bien des paysans ne soient pas
établis sur une terre. Dans ce cas, le droit a la propriété privée
ne veut absolument rien dire a moins qu’il soit finalement
reconnu. Alors, pour ceux qui n'ont rien, I'achat d’'une terre
devient un projet. Sans droit de propriété assuré, toute la
question de la réforme fonciére —c'est-a-dire le fait de donner
des terres a ceux qui n’en ont pas—n’a aucun sens.

Je suis donc convaincu que cela peut €tre un puissant
instrument de répartition de la richesse, qui donnerait un certain
pouvoir aux pauvres et assurerait un peu mieux leur avenir
économique.

M. McCurdy: Peut-étre en général, mais ne doit-on pas
reconnaitre que le droit a la propriété privée a plus souvent été
utilisé aux dépens des paysans qu'a leur profit?

M. Culpeper: Ce n'est pas une question de
reconnaissance de droits; cela dépend plutot de la fagon dont
le pouvoir s’exerce dans la plupart de ces pays. La-bas, il n'y
a pas de droits, seulement des privileges, et le pouvoir
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elites to do whatever they damn well please. That is a big
difference. I think the rule of law should take it upon itself to
make sure the poor and the weak are protected from the
capricious actions of the rich.

Mr. McCurdy: Does it not follow that they be able to
participate in governments?

Dr. Culpeper: It does indeed. But as I suggested in my
last remarks, once you move into this area you get into
somewhat murkier waters. My only point there was that it is
much more difficult for the IFIs to wade in and say to one
government, I am sorry, your government does not have a
sufficiently representative political structure, therefore we will
withhold any further loans to you. I think that is a very difficult,
if not impossible, judgment to make.

Mr. McCurdy: Is it not a judgment that could be made,
if there is a will, within reasonably well-crafted criteria that
are economically based? Ms Pratt called attention to the fact
that the relationship you saw as parallel between ecological
considerations and economic considerations and human rights
considerations versus economic considerations merge, and
that if there is a will based on a somewhat different ideology
from what seems to have driven the IFIs up until now, it
ought to be possible to craft human rights criteria that are not
so finely tuned as to make it difficult in terms of political
interference and so on, but criteria that are based on adequate
subsistence for a population, relating that to the ecological
considerations, which are, after all, in the final analysis
economic, taking a look at such issues as arose in South Africa
with labour mobility, the training of labour to make it possible
for the economic machine to run.

It has generally been possible to find ways of making what are
really individual opportunities consistent with the economic
priorities in training and so on on. It seems to me it should be
possible to generate a reaction to what is being done that would
point towards what should be being done if there were a general
awareness of what is being done; and that is something we do not
have.

Dr. Culpeper: I would certainly agree on that point.
What ultimately what happens in these countries is much
more a function of internal dynamics and internal politics and
power, and we can sometimes be misled on the extent of
influence and power of external organizations, even the IFIs.
They are very influential, but ultimately their window onto
developing countries is either narrow or tiny, I would submit,
except perhaps in one or two states where we are talking about
very small countries that are overwhelmingly dependent on
foreign aid.

If you accept that, I think the issue is how the
international community, through the IFIs and others, can
act as a benign force to try to influence political development,
as well as economic development, to go in these directions. It
is a tricky one. As with the ecology, I think the argument is that
it is better to be at the table trying to influence the politicians and
the bureaucrats with ongoing dialogue than to take your marbles,
go home, end the dialogue and cut them off altogether.

[Translation]

reconnu qu’ont les élites de faire ce qui leur plait. C'est la grande
différence. Dans I'Etat de droit, les pauvres et les faibles
devraient étre protégés contre les caprices des riches.

M. McCurdy: Ne serait-il pas logique qu’ils fassent partie des
gouvernements?

M. Culpeper: Effectivement. Comme je l'ai déja dit,
cette question est un peu plus délicate. Autrement dit, il est
beaucoup plus difficile aux institutions financiéres
internationales de refuser la demande d'un gouvernement
parce que sa structure politique n’est pas assez représentative. Il
est tres difficile, voire impossible, de porter un tel jugement.

M. McCurdy: Si on le veut vraiment, ne serait-il pas
possible de porter un tel jugement a l'aide de critéres fondés
sur la raison et sur les réalités économiques? M™¢ Pratt a
souligné que le parallele que vous avez établi entre
considérations écologistes et économiques, d'une part, et
considérations humanitaires et économiques, d’autre part,
peut en fait devenir convergence et que, si on le veut
vraiment et si on se fonde sur une idéologie un peu différente
de celle suivie jusqu'a présent par les institutions financieres, il
devrait étre possible d’énoncer des criteres humanitaires assez
précis pour rendre toute ingérence politique quasiment impossi-
ble. Ces criteéres devraient reposer sur la nécessité d’assurer une
subsistance adéquate a la population et sur certaines considéra-
tions écologistes qui sont, apres tout, en dernieére analyse
économiques; il faudrait tenir compte de certaines questions,
comme la mobilité de la main-d'oeuvre en Afrique du Sud, et la
formation de la main-d’oeuvre nécessaire au fonctionnement de
I'économie.

On a généralement pu trouver le moyen d’adapter les
possibilités personnelles de formation aux priorités économi-
ques. Il devrait donc étre possible grace a une prise de
conscience de la réalité, d'inspirer ce qui devrait étre fait. Pour
I'instant, ce n'est pas le cas.

M. Culpeper: Je suis d’accord. Ce qui se passe en fin de
compte dans ces pays est beaucoup plus fonction de la
dynamique interne, de la politique et des jeux de pouvoir
internes. Parfois on peut se tromper sur lI'ampleur de
I'influence et du pouvoir des organismes externes, méme des
institutions financiéres internationales. Ceux—ci ont énormé-
ment d’influence, mais souvent leur vue sur les pays en
développement est trop étroite, exception faite dans un ou deux
trés petits pays qui dépendent presque exclusivement de I'aide
étrangere.

Cela dit, la question, a mon sens, est de savoir comment
la communauté internationale, par [I'entremise des
institutions financiéres internationales et d’autres organismes,
peut exercer une influence bienfaisante pour essayer
d'orienter le développement politique autant qu'économique.
Clest trés délicat. Comme pour I'environnement, I'argument,
c'est qu'il vaut mieux étre parmi les politiciens et les bureaucra-
tes pour pouvoir les influencer et poursuivre le dialogue au lieu
de rentrer chez soi et de couper le contact.
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Mr. McCurdy: But who is at the table? The big criticism
of Ms Pratt and all of us is that this all goes on without us at
the table, without any weighing of Canada’s collective point
of view, if we can define it in any sense in that way, with
respect to these things. On the other hand, as the American
point of view changes, they have no hesitancy in acting. It
would seem to me that to arrive at some principles, as you
suggested, for gauging human rights or democratization
issues, which were firmly advocated and applied, might exercise
some control if there was a collective awareness for each of those
representatives of each of the blocks in these various entities. It
would in some sense be open—that is what they do is
transparent—so that a criticism can be directed at them. We do
not know what the hell is going on right now.

Dr. Culpeper: I certainly agree with this fully, and in various
of our publications. .. I did a short piece on the IDB quite
recently, for example. I argued very strongly in favour of more
accountability and reporting of the IFIs through the representa-
tives of the Canadian government to the Canadian people and
involved Canadian people in the whole process of decision-mak-
ing and how policies are made at the IFIs.

How you do that is a bit tricky because of the complexity of
these organizations and so forth. But I do not think that should
be put as an obstacle or an excuse not to do anything. So I think
there is scope to be at the table.

But I think in the final analysis we also have to consider
how we preserve the multilateral nature of these
organizations. In a sense, the forcing by more enlightened,
shall we say, developed countries of their human rights
consciousness on less enlightened members of the same
institutions might have limits in terms of preserving the
multilateral nature of the organization. Do we want to have
organizations in which all members participate of their own
volition or do we basically want to use power, the greater
shareholding of certain countries, to force an agenda on the
institutions? I think it is better to bring countries along than to
force them along.

The Chairman: I am going to allow an additional comment
by Ms Pratt, and I am sure she is going to answer quite properly
to your questions about that.

Ms Pratt: I just want to make a few comments from the
exchange between Roy and Howard McCurdy.

One problem I have is to actually combine what I would
like our government to do or what I would like to take place
in the IFIs with a drive for democracy. 1 really feel there is a
basic issue in protecting people from human rights abuses
that make life impossible. If this happens to be so because of a
dictatorship that is arbitrarily arresting, torturing, killing people
in order to stay in power, it is one thing. If, however, the IFIs
would say that we are already here, we must democratize the
whole world, then I draw the line. My bottom line is the
protection of life for people.

[Traduction)

M. McCurdy: Mais qui sont ces gens? La principale
critique de M™ Pratt et de nous tous, c’est que tout cela se
passe sans que nous y soyons, sans qu’on tienne compte du
point de vue collectif du Canada, si I'on peut en parler ainsi.
En revanche, les Américains, quand ils changent d’idée,
n’hésitent pas a agir. Pour en arriver a des principes
permettant d’évaluer le respect des droits fondamentaux ou
la démocratisation, on pourrait exercer un certain controle si
les représentants de ces divers pays en arrivaient a une prise de
conscience collective. Ce serait un peu plus ouvert, et on pourrait
leur adresser des critiques. Pour le moment, on ignore ce qui se
passe.

M. Culpeper: Vous avez parfaitement raison, et dans
plusieurs de nos publications. . . J'ai rédigé un court article sur la
BID récemment. J'y demanderais une meilleure imputabilité
des institutions financiéres internationales et je proposais que
les représentants du gouvernement canadien fassent a la
population du pays des rapports a leur sujet. Ainsi, les Canadiens
participeraient a la prise de décision et a I'établissement des
politiques de ces institutions.

Il n’est pas aisé de concrétiser cette suggestion étant donné la
complexité de ces organisations. Néanmoins, cela ne devrait pas
servir d’excuse pour ne pas agir. Je crois qu’on peut donc se faire
une place.

En derniére analyse, nous devons aussi songer a
préserver le caractere multilatéral de ces institutions. En un
sens, si les pays développés plus éclairés, dirons-nous,
imposent leur conception des droits fondamentaux aux
membres qui sont moins éclairés, on pourrait avoir du mal a
préserver le caractere multilatéral de ces organismes. Voulons-
nous des organisations auxquelles les membres participent tous
de plein gré ou voulons-nous utiliser le pouvoir majoritaire de
certains pays pour imposer un certain ordre du jour? Il vaut
mieux convaincre que vaincre.

Le président: Je vais permettre a M™ Pratt de faire une autre
intervention et je suis certain qu'elle répondra tres bien a vos
questions.

Mme Pratt: Je voudrais faire quelques observations au sujet
du dialogue entre Roy et Howard McCurdy.

J’ai beaucoup de mal a concilier, d’'une part, I'action que
jattends de notre gouvernement et, d’autre part ce que je
voudrais que les institutions financieéres internationales
fassent pour étre plus démocratiques. Je suis convaincu qu'il
faut absolument protéger les gens des violations des libertés
fondamentales qui rendent la vie impossible. Si cela se produit
parce qu'une dictature arréte arbitrairement les gens, les torture
et les tue pour se maintenir au pouvoir, c'est une chose, mais si
les institutions financieres internationales décident qu’elles
doivent démocratiser le monde entier, alors je dis que c’est trop.
Ce que je veux, c'est protéger des vies humaines.



5:20

International Human Rights

8-5-1990

[Text]
e 1210

If we go into whether or not Tanzania is a democracy and
whether we need to democratize it, that has nothing to do with
the IFIs or any other state that is not a gross violater of human
rights. If we do not draw the line there, then we are in a big
ideological mess.

On the other point, I do take Mr. McCurdy’s point about
private property and landless peasants. I just came back from
attending the independence celebrations in Namibia. Their
constitution protects private property. What does that mean?
It means you cannot have land reform. You cannot redress a
gross injustice if private property is protected. The blacks in
Namibia once had the right to private property, but it was
taken away from them in the early part of the century. That
type of private property protection is one thing, but it is usually
the protection of those who have the private property, not the
ones who want it. It makes it very difficult to engage in land
reform, which is so often at the root of poverty in these countries.

The important thing—this was also mentioned by Mr.
McCurdy and it reconciles the pessimism about Namibia that I
just expressed—is at least there is participation now. People can
vote certain things out. Our record of change to the Constitution
of Canada cannot be recommended. but constitutions can be
changed.

In the end, I was talking about how to get all countries
to agree on certain human rights standards for IFI members.
There are even examples of Latin American countries,
members of the IDB or the World Bank, voting against credit
to Chile, one of their neighbours, because they were appalled by
what was going on there. The important thing is that we open
discussion about these things. My plea to the Canadian
government is that at the moment there is not a readiness to
entertain this: “This will lead to politicization”—end of
discussion. That is my concern.

Ms Greene (Don Valley North): Could you give me
some concrete examples of how you see this addition of
human rights as a co-determinant operating? For example,
we had a very controversial loan to China following the
Tiananmen massacre. The issue had environmental as well as
human rights considerations. In that instance the government
went ahead, but it was subjected to a considerable amount of
criticism. How do you view that particular incident?

What about the situation in Romania? Under Ceausescu
there were abominable human rights violations, but we
proceeded with the Candu reactor program. Again, there
were tremendous environmental considerations because
Romania is still heavily dependent on soft coal for its energy, and
it is in a deplorable state, which affects many people’s right to
exist. As well, the right to private property was being grossly
violated. They were eliminating villages and taking away the
peasants’ right to live, because the main way they were subsisting
was through the black market. Would both of you please
comment on the issues involved there?

[Translation)

Si I'on commence a se demander si un pays comme la
Tanzanie est démocratique ou non et s'il faut la démocratiser, je
dis que cela ne regarde pas les institutions financiéres
internationales ni les autres pays qui ne violent pas les droits
fondamentaux. Si nous n’imposons pas de limite, ce sera le chaos
idéologique.

Je prends bonne note des remarques de M. McCurdy au
sujet du droit a la propriété privée et des paysans qui n'ont
pas de terres. je reviens de Namibie, ou l'on célébrait
I'indépendance. La constitution namibienne protége le droit a
la propriété privée. Qu'est-ce que cela signifie? Cela
empéche toute réforme fonciere. Si la propriété privée est
protégée, il est impossible de corriger des injustices
flagrantes. Les Noirs de Namibie ont déja eu le droit de
propriété, mais on le leur a enlevé au début du siecle. C'est bien
d'assurer une telle protection, mais généralement, cela protége
ceux qui détiennent la propriété, pas ceux qui la veulent. I
devient tres difficile d'entreprendre la réforme fonciére néces-
saire pour enrayer la pauvreté a sa base méme.

L'important—M. McCurdy en a aussi parlé, et cela rejoint le
pessimisme que je viens d’exprimer a propos de la Namibie—,
c’est qu’il y ait au moins une certaine participation maintenant.
Les gens pourront voter pour supprimer certaines choses. La
facon dont nous modifions notre constitution au Canada n’est
pas un bon exemple, mais il est tout de méme possible de
modifier une constitution.

Vers la fin de mon exposé, je me suis demandé comment
on pourrait amener tous les pays a s'entendre sur certains
droits fondamentaux pourvant servir de criteres parmi les
membres des institutions financiéres internationales. Il est
déja arrivé que des pays latino-américains, membres de la BID
ou de la Banque mondiale, votent contre I'octroi d'un crédit au
Chili, un de leurs voisins, parce qu'ils étaient outrés de la
situation dans ce pays. L'important, c’est que nous en discutions
librement. Je demande au gouvernement canadien de ne pas se
contenter de répliquer que cela peut mener a une politisation et
de s'arréter 1a. C’est ce que je crains.

Mme Greene (Don Valley-Nord): Pourriez-vous me
donner des exemples concrets de la facon dont, selon vous,
on pourrait ajouter des criteres humanitaires? Par exemple,
on a consenti a la Chine a la suite du massacre de
Tiananmen un prét qui a été trés controversé. En plus des
considérations humanitaires, il y avait aussi des considérations
écologistes. Le gouvernement a donné son appui, mais il a été
assez critiqué. Que pensez-vous de cet incident?

Et ce qui sest pass¢é en Roumanie? Sous le régime
Ceausescu, il y avait d'abominables violations des droits
fondamentaux, mais nous avons néanmoins poursuivi le
programme du réacteur Candu. La encore, il y avait aussi
d’importantes considérations écologistes, puisque la Roumanie
continue de dépendre énormément de la houille grasse pour ses
besoins énergétiques, et le pays est dans un état déplorable, ce
qui nuit au droit a la vie de bien des gens. Par ailleurs. on violait
grossierement le droit a la propriété privée. On a détruit des
villages entiers et privé les paysans de leur droit de vivre puisque
leur seul moyen de subsistance, c'était le marché noir. Est-ce
que vous pourriez tous les deux faire quelques remarques?

“.
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Dr. Culpeper: What is troublesome in these kinds of
examples, and indeed in the whole mode of using votes at the
executive board as ways of bringing about change or
correcting the behaviour of a borrowing country, is what I
mentioned in my remarks, and that is the problem of
consistency and uniformity. Too often such kinds of
expressions of disapproval erupt at a particular moment—for
example, after the Tiananmen massacre. China has been a
notorious human rights abuser for many years in terms of
imprisonment, arbitrary detention, summary execution, and so
forth—many of them public. Of course Tiananmen Square was
even more horrific than all that, but why had we not raised these
kinds of objections beforehand?

The same with Romania. Romania was a great friend of the
west because of the ability of Ceausescu to thumb his nose with
impunity at the Soviet bloc and cultivate his own peculiar brand
of foreign policy. We chose in those days to ignore what was
going on in Ceausescu’s domain.

So what upsets me quite a bit is the lack of uniformity
and consistency in going down that road and having an ad
hoc case-by-case approach to human rights as loans come up
to the board. I think it is far more important, and in the long
run far more protective and supportive of human rights, if one
is able to work in decision-making criteria, in a public and open
and transparent way—I am very much in favour of that—that will
ensure uniformity among all countries, and consistency through
time as well.

So that would be my remark or my comment on your question,
but Renate might have a comment.

Ms Pratt: I agree with Roy. I just wanted to say that the Candu
reactor thing was a bilateral decision and it would come under
human rights and trade, I would imagine, and perhaps also
protection of the environment. I do not trust these people with
nuclear reactors.

Just for your information, the churches protested this very
strongly. It came more or less at the same time as we were also
selling a Candu reactor to Argentina, and I remember the twin
concern we had in Argentina—this was under the generals—and
under Ceausescu. He was not our friend, but he was a friend of
the west. So we did protest these two issues there.

Bl_lt basically I agree: a consistent criterion ought to be applied,
and in many ways I am very pleased to hear the suggestion that
these should come out of the financial institutions.

I remember having talked with the Royal Bank on making
loans to South Africa, and they said: we do not do those kinds
of things, we give everybody a loan except for houses of
ill-repute. We asked, how do you arrive at that? We just do not
do that, they answered. So we felt you must have some criteria
for who you give to and who you do not give to, and you cannot
just sort of pick and choose.

[Traduction)

M. Culpeper: Ce qui m'ennuie dans de tels exemples, et
d’ailleurs dans toute cette facon d’utiliser les votes au conseil
d’administration pour faire apporter des changements ou
corriger le comportement d'un pays emprunteur, c'est,
comme je l'ai dit, la difficulté d’avoir une certaine uniformité.
Trop souvent, de telles expressions de mécontentement se
produisent & un moment donné, par exemple, aprés le
massacre de Tiananmen. Depuis des années, il était de
notoriété publique que la Chine violait les droits fondamentaux
en imposant des peines d'emprisonnement, des détentions
arbitraires, des exécutions sommaires, etc.—et bien souvent en
public. Evidemment, ce qui s'est passé sur la place Tiananmen
a été encore plus horrible, mais pourquoi n’avons-nous pas
formulé les mémes objections avant?

On peut en dire autant au sujet de la Roumanie, qui était un
bon ami du monde occidental parce que Ceausescu pouvait se
permettre de faire des pieds de nez au bloc soviétique en toute
impunité et de suivre sa propre politique étrangére assez
spéciale. Nous avons alors choisi de fermer les yeux sur ce qui se
passait dans le domaine de Ceausescu.

Donc, ce qui me choque, c'est I'absence d'uniformité et
de cohérence, c'est cette facon d’aborder cas par cas le
probléeme des droits fondamentaux. Il est beaucoup plus
important, et a longue échéance beaucoup plus utile et
avantageux pour la protection des libertés fondamentales, de
pouvoir appliquer des critéres de décision connus de tous. Ainsi,
on pourra étre assuré d’une uniformité dans le temps et dans
I'espace.

Voila ce que je voulais dire; peut-étre Renate veut-elle
commenter également?

Mme Pratt: Je suis d’accord avec Roy. Je voulais simplement
dire que la vente du réacteur Candu a été une décision bilatérale
et qu'il aurait di étre question dans cette transaction des droits
fondamentaux et de la protection de I'environnement. Je ne
confierais pas a ces gens des réacteurs nucléaires.

Pour votre gouverne, les Eglises ont protesté énergiquement
contre cette vente. A peu pres au méme moment, nous avons
vendu un réacteur Candu a I’Argentine—alors dirigée par les
généraux—qui nous préoccupait tout autant que la Roumanie
sous Ceausescu. Ce n'était pas un de nos amis, mais un ami du
monde occidental. Nous avons quand méme protesté contre ces
deux contrats.

Mais en principe, je suis d’accord: Il faudrait appliquer des
criteres uniformes, et je suis contente que cette suggestion
vienne des institutions financicres elles-mémes.

Je me souviens d'avoir discuté avec la Banque Royale des
préts qu'elle consentait a I'Afrique du Sud. On m’avait répondu
qu’on accordait toujours des préts sans poser de questions, sauf
aux maisons closes. Quand nous avons demandé pourquoi, on
nous a répondu que cela ne se faisait pas. Nous pensions qu'il
devrait y avoir des criteres pour déterminer a qui on refusera un
prét. On ne peut pas faire cela au petit bonheur.
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I think in international financial institutions it is even more
important. If it comes out of the institution itself, that is great.
You still need your executive director to say yes, this is a case
where it applies—and that is where the members come in and
where Canada as a member comes in.

Ms Greene: What kinds of criteria would you see specifically?
The ones down here, that there be no arbitrary arrests, or. . .?
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Ms Pratt: I have put that down because this was from an
attempt by the task force to have this matter introduced as a
matter of policy under the Liberal government when there
was a replenishment or a new amount of money being
pledged by Canada. We looked for it in the task force. We put
our heads together. We went through the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights and the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights. We said a lot of people have agreed to these
things and we want to get to the bottom line: we want to protect
life and limb of people. So this is where we came out.

It is not written in stone at all. There are institutions like
Amnesty International and human rights organizations who
could be helping in getting a set of criteria honed on which every
can agree. It is not necessarily this set.

Ms Greene: You believe these are the most important.

Ms Pratt: Yes. I notice again the Minister of Finance
said in his speech to the IMF and the World Bank annual
meeting in Berlin two years ago that there should be a
greater discussion with knowledgeable non-governmental
organizations regarding the environment. I do not see any reason
why, if this goes for the environment, we could not have a similar
input from knowledgeable human rights organizations on
human rights criteria.

Ms Greene: The other question I had was with respect to the
churches. Obviously your task force was on the churches and
corporate responsibility. I am wondering how they are address-
ing this issue. The poorest and most needy nations are also most
frequently the greatest violators of human rights.

Ms Pratt: As you noted, some months ago, the church
paid heavily for its commitment in El Salvador when five of
their Jesuit priests were murdered there. These are our
partners in the Third World and in human rights violator
countries. Partners we have known have been killed in South
Africa, in Namibia and around the world. We are trying to help
these people, which of course elicits further repression. This is
why we feel very much on the front line and very much interested
in a strong international instrument that will help.

Ms Greene: You are supporting dissidents within these
structures that support the —

Ms Pratt: As best as we can, yes. I mean we not personally in
the task force but the churches themselves.

Ms Greene: Do you think the government should do that too
in terms of aid to a nation such as China?

[Translation]

C’est encore plus important pour les institutions financiéres
internationales. Si la suggestion émane de Iinstitution elle-
méme, c’est splendide. Il faut encore que le directeur accepte, et
c'est 1a que les membres, dont le Canada, ont un role a jouer.

Mme Greene: A quel critere en particulier songez-vous?
Ceux énoncés ici, qu'il n'y ait pas d’arrestations arbitraires ou. . .

Mme Pratt: J'ai écrit cela parce que le groupe de travail
tentait de faire adopter cette politique par le gouvernement
libéral au moment ou le Canada devait engager une nouvelle
somme. Le groupe de travail y a réfléchi. Nous nous sommes
mis tous ensemble et nous avons relu la Déclaration universelle
des droits de 'nomme et le Pacte international relatif aux droits
civils et politiques. Bien des gens ont accepté cela et, ce qui nous
intéresse, c'est la protection de la vie et I'intégrité physique des
gens. C’est la que nous avons abouti.

Rien n’est jamais définitif de toute facon. Certains organis-
mes comme Amnesty international et d’autres associations
s'occupant des droits de la personne pourraient aider a
I'établissement d'une série de critéres acceptables a tous. Ce
pourrait étre des critéres différents de ceux—ci.

Mme Greene: Vous croyez que ceux-ci sont les plus
importants.

Mme Pratt: Oui. Encore une fois, dans son discours
devant l'assemblée générale annuelle du FMI et de la
Banque mondiale, qui s'est tenue a Berlin il y a deux ans, le
ministre des Finances a dit qu’il faudrait discuter davantage
de I'environnement avec les organisations non gouvernementa-
les compétentes. Si cela vaut pour I'environnement, je ne vois
pas pourquoi nous ne pourrions pas faire la méme chose avec les
organisations compétentes en matiere de droits de la personne
pour établir des critéres dans ce domaine.

Mme Greene: Mon autre question concerne les Eglises. De
toute évidence, votre groupe de travail s'intéresse aux Eglises et
aux responsabilités des entreprises. Je me demande comment les
Eglises abordent la question. Les pays les plus pauvres et les plus
démunis sont souvent ceux ou l'on viole le plus les droits
fondamentaux.

Mme Pratt: Vous savez qu'il y a quelques mois, I'Eglise
a payé trés cher son engagement au Salvador, ol cing de ses
prétres jésuites ont été assassinés. Ce sont nos associés dans
le tiers-monde et dans les pays ou I'on viole les droits de la
personne. D’autres de nos associés ont été tués en Afrique du
Sud, en Namibie et ailleurs dans le monde. Nous essayons
d’aider ces gens, ce qui multiplie évidemment la répression.
Voila pourquoi nous avons I'impression d'étre au front et nous
voulons tant qu'un outil international fort et capable de nous
aider soit adopté.

Mme Greene: Vous appuyez dans ces structures des dissidents
qui sont favorables. . .

Mme Pratt: De notre mieux. Je ne parle pas des membres du
groupe de travail, mais des Eglises mémes.

Mme Greene: Croyez-vous que le gouvernement devrait faire
la méme chose pour l'aide qu'il accorde a un pays comme la
Chine?
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Ms Pratt: I have not dealt with aid. I really have not given it
much thought. When we talk bout human rights and internation-
al financial institutions, I would have thought that on a principal
matter the government can help to strengthen the international
human rights observance.

Ms Greene: I think the question we are addressing addresses
that but goes beyond it as well into more general government
activities.

Mr. Kilgour (Edmonton Southeast): I think it has all been
covered pretty well, Mr. Chairman. Ms Pratt, do you have
anything your colleague has said that you would like to elaborate
upon further? Or do you think you have dealt with it as much as
you want to?

Ms Pratt: Why not ask a question of him and then I will think
about it? I do not want to take up your time.

Mr. Kilgour: I just do not really understand where you are
coming from, with respect. I guess we should agree to differ. Is
there anything you have not said as fully as you want to or
anything you want to raise more fully, since I am the last one to
ask a question?
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Dr. Culpeper: Well, I would like to clarify a position, if it is
leaving you wondering what my position is. My position is based
on an enlightened pragmatism, and also a deep concern to do as
much for human rights as is possible within structures, and not
run up against brick walls sooner than one needs to. I think that
is basically where I am coming from.

I elaborated two rights in my presentation. The first one
collapses the list of rights in Renate’s paper into one. I refer
to that as the right of the person, and I certainly imply
freedom from torture, and cruel and inhumane and degrading
treatment, and internal or external exile. I feel it is necessary to
try to boil these down as much as possible if one is going to see
progress, and not run afoul of Occam’s razor, subdividing rights
to a degree where it becomes difficult to get implementation, but
I would complement that with the right of property, and I do see
this as basic to any liberal society. It is not informed by any
market ideology on my part.

Perhaps I should clarify that particular aspect. I see the
right of property as being fundamental to land reform, and I
would say to Renate and to Mr. McCurdy that it would be
difficult to engineer any land reform unless the redistributed
lands are firm and secure to the beneficiaries thereof. Once you
take away land without proper compensation, for example, what
security do peasants who are beneficiaries of that process have?
People want to know that what they have in the way of assets or
property, they have in full and secure title. If that is taken away
from them, nothing is secure, basically.

Of course that does not mean the distribution of land is just
or fair, nor does it indicate how land should be redistributed, but
if land or property is going to be redistributed, it is going to be
a futile project unless the people who are benefitting from it can
say, at the end of the day, that what they have been given is theirs
as long as they want to hold onto it.

[Traduction)

Mme Pratt: Je ne traite pas d'aide internationale. Je n'y ai pas
vraiment réfléchi. Quand on parle de droits fondamentaux et
d’institutions financiéres internationales, je crois qu’en principe
le gouvernement peut aider a renforcer le respect des libertés
fondamentales dans le monde entier.

Mme Greene: Je crois qu'il est question de cela, mais de
beaucoup plus encore, et que cela nous ameéne dans des activités
gouvernementales plus générales.

M. Kilgour (Edmonton-Sud-Est): Monsieur le président, je
crois qu'on a fait le tour de la question. Madame Pratt,
voudriez-vous ajouter quelque chose a ce que votre collegue a
dit? Croyez-vous que tout ait été déja dit?

Mme Pratt: Pourquoi ne pas lui poser une question pour me
laisser réfléchir? Je ne veux pas vous faire perdre du temps.

M. Kilgour: En toute déférence, je ne comprends pas
vraiment sur quoi vous vous fondez. Je présume que nous
pourrions nous mettre d’accord sur les constatations de notre
désaccord. Comme je suis le dernier a poser des questions,
pensez-vous avoir encore quelque chose a ajouter?

Dr Culpeper: Je voudrais préciser ma position si vous vous
posez des questions la-dessus. Elle se fonde sur un pragmatisme
éclairé et aussi sur mon désir profond de faire le plus possible
pour garantir le respect des droits de la personne a I'intérieur de
structures précises tout en évitant de nous jeter dans des
impasses. Voila, je pense qu’elle est ma position, pour I'essentiel.

Je parle de deux droits dans mon exposé. Le premier
correspond a la liste des droits énoncés dans le document de
Renate. Je parle simplement du droit de la personne, ce qui
comprend certainement le droit d’echapper a la torture, aux
traitements cruels, inhumains et dégradants, a I'exil au sein de
son pays ou a I'étranger. A mon avis, il faut essayer de simplifier
ces notions le plus possible pour voir si I'on a accompli des
progres sans essayer de couper les cheveux en quatre et sans
diviser a tel point les droits qu'il serait difficile de les faire
respecter. J'ajouterai cependant a cela le droit a la propriété
parce que je considére que c'est fondamental pour toute société
libérale, et je ne me laisse pas influencer a cet égard par une
quelconque idéologie de marché.

Je devrais peut-étre préciser davantage ma pensée. A
mon avis, le droit a la propriété est essentiel a toute réforme
fonciére et je voudrais dire a Renate et a M. McCurdy qu’il
serait difficile d’appliquer une réforme fonciere a moins de
pouvoir vraiment garantir aux bénéficiaires que les terres qui
leur sont attribuées leur appartiennent. Si l'on enléve a
quelqu'un une terre sans l'indemniser convenablement, par
exemple, comment les paysans qui bénéficient de la réforme
pourraient-ils se sentir en sécurité? Les gens veulent savoir
qu'ils ont un titre de propriété complet sur ce qui est a eux. Si
cela leur est enlevé, plus rien n'est certain.

Bien siir, cela ne veut pas dire que la distribution des terres est
juste ou équitable, et cela ne dit pas non plus comment les terres
doivent étre attribuées, mais si I'on veut redistribuer des terres
ou des biens, cela ne servira a rien tant que les bénéficiaires ne
pourront pas étre certains a la fin du compte que ce qu'ils ont
recu leur appartient aussi longtemps qu’ils le veulent.
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Mr. Kilgour: The late Chief Justice Laskin I think used
to observe that the only non-prejudiced thing was a vegetable,
and I think that is where I run afoul of what you are saying
and where I agree with Ms Pratt. I think if we had people
and criteria on the IFIs that had human rights among them, or
more strongly entrenched, as I think she is calling for in her
excellent paper—I read through it quickly—we would make
better headway.

Let us take the example of Burundi. I think it is Burundi
where one tribe has 15% of the population and the other
tribe has roughly 85% of the population, yet all of the
positions—including, I believe, all the scholarships for people
studying in Canada—come from the 15% tribe. Should the IFIs
not be making some effort, in the name of equality or fairness,
to see that there is not a great deal more fairness in the way
Burundi conducts its affairs, in terms of grants or loans or
whatever?

Dr. Culpeper: I think that is a good question, and I think the
question is how one does this.

Mr. Kilgour: You simply say that if you do not see 85% of the
CIDA grants are going to go to the majority tribe and 15% to the
minority tribe, you are not going to get any money. The World
Bank, and so on, should do basically the same thing.

Dr. Culpeper: It is far easier for a bilateral government to do
that than it is for a multilateral government. I think it should be
put on the agenda of multilateral institutions, to make sure these
things are given consideration and implemented as fairly and as
transparently as possible.

Burundi is perhaps one of the best cases in point, but there are
other examples as well. In Uganda a majority mistreats the
minority members of the population, sometimes, in the past, with
impunity.
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I'think it is important to think through the implications of such
policies for other countries and the need to apply them to other
countries uniformly and consistently. That was my point.

Ms Pratt: I pulled out some stuff and made a note when
Roy was speaking about the things we sort of question. Right
at the beginning, Roy was saying that it would be against
Article III, section 5a of the World Bank to bring to bear
anything else but economic and efficiency criteria to the loan
decisions. He went on to elaborate how this has all changed; we
are taking into account all kinds of things. These are not
necessarily economic or efficiency things in the strictest sense,
only in the wider sense.

I agree with that. We now have very strong environmental
concerns. In the World Bank we have had these since the
mid-1970s. This includes the protection of tribal peoples in loan
decisions written into the guidelines. We even have women in
development as a very special thing in the World Bank.

[Translation]

M. Kilgour: Le regretté Juge en chef Laskin disait, je
pense, que seul un legume n'a pas de préjugés, et je pense
que la-dessus je ne suis pas d’accord avec vous et que je me
range a l'avis de M™ Pratt. Selon moi, il y avait au sein
des institutions financiéres internationales des gens soucieux du
respect des droits de la personne et des critéres d’admissibilité
qui les respectent, comme je pense que M™ Pratt le demande
dans son excellent document, et je I'ai lu rapidement, nous
pourrions accomplir davantage de progres.

Prenons l'exemple du Burundi. C'est, je crois dans ce
pays qu'une des tribus représente 15 p. 100 de la population
et l'autre environ 85 p. 100; et or tous les postes importants,
y compris, si je ne m'abuse, toutes les bourses données aux
étudiants au Canada, vont & des membres de la tribu
représentant 15 p. 100 de la population. Les institutions
financiéres internationales ne devraient-elles pas s'efforcer au
nom de I'équité ou de la justice d'obtenir qu'en retour de
subventions ou de préts, le Burundi agisse de fagon plus
équitable?

Dr Culpeper: Je pense que c’est une excellente question, mais
il s’agit de savoir comment on pourrait procéder.

M. Kilgour: On pourrait dire simplement que si 85 p. 100 des
subventions de I'’ACDI ne vont pas a la tribu qui représente la
majorité des habitants et 15 p. 100 des subventions, a I'autre, le
Burundi ne recevra pas d’argent. La Banque mondiale et les
autres organismes internationaux devraient faire essentielle-
ment la méme chose.

Dr Culpeper: Il est beaucoup plus facile a un gouvernement
agissant seul de poser de telles conditions qu'a un organisme
multilatéral. Selon moi, les institutions multilatérales devraient
veiller & ce que ces facteurs et politiques soient appliqués de la
facon la plus équitable et la plus ouverte possible.

Le Burundi est peut-étre I'un des meilleurs exemples de ce
genre, mais il y en a d’autres. En Ouganda, la majorité maltraite
la minorité et parfois impunément.

Je crois important de penser aux répercussions que ces
politiques auront sur les autres pays et a la nécessité de les
appliquer de facon uniforme. Voila ce que j'avais a dire.

Mme Pratt: J'ai pris quelques notes lorsque Roy parlait
des mesures que nous contestons. Il a commencé par dire
qu'il était contraire au paragraphe Sa de l'article 3 des statuts
de la Banque Mondiale de prendre les décisions relatives au
crédit en fonction de critéres autres qu'économiques. Il a ajouté
que la situation avait changé du tout au tout et que toutes sortes
de facteurs entraient en ligne de compte. Ils se rapportent a
I'économie et a I'efficacité non pas au sens le plus strict, mais au
sens le plus large.

Je suis d'accord. Nous avons maintenant de sérieuses
preoccupauons au su]et de Tenvironnement. La Banque
mondiale s'intéresse a la questxon depuxs le milieu des années 70.
Nous cherchons notamment a protéger les populatxons tribales
lorsque nous décidons d'accorder ou non un prét. Le role des
femmes dans le développement revét une importance tres
particuliere aux yeux de la Banque.

R
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So it all depends on the interpretation. If they are elastic, we
agree they can be included; if they are not, we exclude them.

In my research on international financial institutions, I
have found although some say the IMF must not take
anything but economic objectives into consideration, there are
lawyers who have argued that they are obliged to protect the
basic right to subsistence. They affirm this by pointing to Article
I, section 2 of the Articles of Agreement. This says that the IMF
is to facilitate the expansion and balanced growth of internation-
al trade and to contribute thereby to the promotion and
maintenance of high levels of employment and real income.

It does not do that. With the austerity programs it is now
demanding, it is no longer as severe as it used to be. It all depends
on the interpretation of these articles of agreement. I do not
think they are necessarily big stumbling blocks for renovation,
and the way we use these international financial institutions for
good purposes.

Mrs. Stewart (Northumberland): In the gamut of existing
financial institutions, we have one in Canada, the Export
Development Corporation, the EDC. This is parallel and
similar to international financial institutions. It certainly does
not have the impact and clout of any of the IFIs simply for the
amount of funding it distributes, but I wondered if your
comments would relate to the EDC as well, or if you had any
other comments you might make about the Export Development
Corporation.

It seems to me that it is sometimes easier to criticize a
multilateral institution like an IFI, but should we not also be
looking at home? We have talked about CIDA and its difficulties,
External Affairs’ criteria. But this other body does not seem to
get a lot of attention sometimes.

Ms Pratt: You will be interested to know that the Task Force
on the Churches and Corporate Responsibility started with the
EDC, asking which countries they support when making
trade-related loans, what exports are they are helping?
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You know the Export Development Corporation...I do
not know whether it still does, but it has had two
disbursement facilities. One was at the discretion of the
government, which was mainly political stuff. The other one
was straight economic. So if the economic advisers at the Export
Development Corporation said no, this is uneconomical, not a
good trade loan to make, and Cabinet said there are overriding
political interests we have in making this export, then they have
access to that particular facility.

We used to get their publications, which were very good.
They were transparent. You could actually see what went to
what country. They would not say what for, because they
were commercial confidential things, but you could tell. Our

[Traduction]

Par conséquent, tout dépend de la fagon dont on interpréte
les choses. S'il s’agit d'une interprétation élastique, ces préoccu-
pations sont incluses et dans le cas contraire, elles sont exclues.

Au cours des études que j'ai réalisées sur les institutions
financiéres internationales, j'ai constat¢é que méme si
certaines estiment que le FMI doit tenir compte uniquement
des objectifs économiques, des avocats ont fait valoir qu’il
fallait protéger le droit fondamental de subsistance. Ils
s’appuient sur le paragraphe 2 de I'article 1 des statuts. Ily est dit
que le FMI doit faciliter 'expansion et la croissance équilibrée
du commerce international de facon a contribuer a promouvoir
et maintenir un niveau d’emploi et de revenu réel élevé.

Il ne le fait pas. Compte tenu des programmes d’austérité qu’il
exige maintenant, ces critres ne sont plus aussi séveres
qu'avant. Tout dépend de la facon dont les statuts sont
interprétés. Je ne pense pas qu’il s'oppose nécessairement a la
rénovation et a l'utilisation des institutions financieres interna-
tionales a de bonnes fins.

Mme Stewart (Northumberland): Parmi les diverses
institutions financiéres existantes, nous avons au Canada la
Société pour I'expansion des exportations, la SEE. Elle
s'apparente aux institutions financieres internationales. Elle
n'a certainement pas autant d’influence que les institutions
financiéres internationales, ne serait-ce qu'en raison du
montant des fonds qu’elle distribue, mais je me demande si vos
observations ne pourraient pas également s’appliquer a elle ou
si vous avez d’autres remarques a formuler au sujet de la SEE.

Il est sans doute plus facile de critiquer les institutions
multilatérales telles que les IFI, mais pourquoi ne pas nous
pencher sur nos propres institutions? Nous avons parlé de
I'ACDI et de ses difficultés, et des criteres des Affaires
extérieures. Mais on ne parle pas beaucoup de cet autre
organisme.

Mme Pratt: Sachez que le groupe de travail des Eglises sur les
responsabilités des sociétés a commencé par la SEE en
demandant quels étaient les pays qu’elle appuyait pour les préts
commerciaux et quelles étaient les exportations qu’elle favori-
sait?

Vous connaissez la Société pour I'expansion des
exportations. . . J'ignore si c’est encore ainsi, mais elle avait
deux possibilités de déboursement. L'une d'ordre surtout
politique, et lautre d’ordre purement économique. Par
conséquent, si les conseillers économiques de la Société pour
I'expansion des exportations disaient qu'un prét commercial ne
se justifie pas du point de vue économique, et que le Conseil des
ministres estimait que des intéréts politiques exigeaient que
nous exportions, le déboursement était alors possible.

Nous avions I'habitude de recevoir ces publications, qui
étaient excellentes et tres claires, puisqu’elles permettaient de
voir ce que recevait chaque pays. Les montants n'étaient pas
indiqués, car il s’agissait de renseignements commerciaux
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first protest with the government was in fact about the Export
Development Corporation’s facilities. They no longer make
these publications. I am very glad you are bringing this up. We
had to poke around and write and ask, what did you do with this
and that and the other country? Then it was very interesting also
for military experts from Canada sent to other countries.

Soyes, we would very much support an initiative in that regard,
and if it is difficult to get to the bottom of what the IFIs do, it is
not easier to get more information there just because it is a
Canadian export pact.

Mrs. Stewart: You talked about an annual review trying
to get more transparency and to strategize how to get more
transparency, and I wondered if you had any more specific
comments or ideas on that type of review. Right now the
NGOs meet with External Affairs once a year before the Geneva
talks to review international human rights violations, but I sensed
you were talking about something quite different and I wondered
if you could elaborate.

Ms Pratt: Our idea was that this could be useful for the
pre-Geneva round with NGOs, so we know which countries
Canada regards as gross and consistent or systematic, or
whatever the word is, human rights-violator countries. But that
would be the beginning, so to speak, because then the NGO
community quite often says yes, and in addition to that, this, that,
and the other. Their information is very good about violations.

But what we would be interested in in addition to that is
a discussion with government and with parliamentarians—you
are very important people—on how our aversion to these
violations of human rights translates into how we interact
with them commercially and in aid and in the international
financial institutions arena. This is a bit of dreaming, but you
would expect Finance would say, well, these are the decisions
we have supported in the various international financial
institutions, or multilateral banks, as I think they are more
usually called now. So you would have an idea of what the
justification for that would be and the NGOs could say, well, we
disagree with that. You could have a debate about it. Or we might
agree with it. And this could take place annually, or biannually,
whatever is logically the better way of doing it. I imagine annually
you have to start immediately after your first session to prepare
for the next one, in terms of tabulation. But it does give a public
face to Canada’s policy implementation.

e 1240

Mrs. Stewart: The environmental lobby has been fairly
effective, I would say, in trying to highlight the necessity for
public review of projects before they are approved to determine
and make sure they are not having negative environmental
impacts. I would suggest that the same type of public
participation could be used as a criterion in terms of looking at
human rights issues involved as well.

[Translation]

confidentiels, mais il était possible de le savoir. Notre premiére
plainte auprés du gouvernement a concerné en fait la Société
pour I'expansion des exportations. Elle n'a plus ces publications.
Je suis trés heureux que vous souleviez cette question. Nous
devions demander toutes sortes de renseignements, écrire pour
demander quels préts avait obtenu tel ou tel pays. C’était aussi
trés intéressant pour les experts militaires envoyés par le Canada
dans d’autres pays.

Nous serions donc tout a fait en faveur d’une initiative a ce
sujet, et s'il est difficile de savoir exactement ce que font les IFI,
ce n'est pas plus simple d’obtenir des renseignements ici lorsqu'il
s’agit d'un organisme canadien pour I'expansion des exporta-
tions.

Mme Stewart: Vous avez parlé d’'un examen annuel pour
essayer de mieux savoir ce qui se passe, et pour déterminer
comment parvenir a cet objectif; j’'aimerais savoir si vous avez
des observations précises ou certaines idées sur ce type
d’examen. Actuellement, les ONG se réunissent une fois par an
avec les représentants des Affaires extérieures avant les
négociations de Genéve pour examiner les violations des droits
de la personne au niveau international, mais j'ai eu 'impression
que vous parliez de quelque chose de tout a fait différent, et je
me demande si vous pourriez nous donner des précisions.

Mme Pratt: Nous pensions que ces rencontres avec les ONG
pourraient étre utiles avant les négociations de Geneéve, car nous
savons quels sont les pays que le Canada considere comme
violant de facon systématique ou permanente les droits de la
personne. Mais ce serait un début, pour ainsi dire, car tres
souvent les ONG font état d’autres violations, étant elles—
mémes tres au courant de cette question.

Ce qui nous intéresserait en outre, ce serait des
discussions avec le gouvenement et des parlementaires—car
vous étes des gens trés importants—afin de déterminer
comment notre aversion envers ces violations des droits de la
persone nous ameéne a modifier nos échanges commerciaux
avec ces pays, l'aide que nous leur consacrons, et celle des
institutions  financiéres internationales. C’est peut-étre
prendre ses réves pour la réalité, mais il faudrait que le
ministére des Finances dise qu'il a appuyé telle ou telle décision
des différentes institutions financiéres internationales ou des
banques multilatérales, comme on les appelle plus fréquemment
aujourd’hui. Vous auriez donc une idée des justifications
données, et les ONG pourraient les réfuter. Il pourrait y avoir un
débat ou éventuellement un accord. Ce genre de chose pourrait
avoir lieu chaque année ou deux fois par an, selon la meilleure
facon logique de procéder. J'imagine que chaque année, il
faudrait commencer a préparer le prochain classement, immé-
diatement aprés la premiéere session. C'est une facon de donner
un visage public au processus d’application des politiques du
Canada.

M. Stewart: Le lobby de I'environnement a été assez efficace,
je dois dire, et a su montrer qu'il faut un examen public des
projets avant leur approbation pour voir s'ils ne risquent pas
d’avoir des effets négatifs sur I'environnement. A mon avis, nous
pourrions utiliser le méme critére, c’'est-a-dire une participatjon
semblable du public quand on examine les questions relatives
aux droits de la personne.
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What I do not understand from the environmental lobby
is the exact sort of participation you would ask for, because
you are always going to find groups that are opposed to
anything. You are trying to come to consensus, and right now
there is no consensus at all because there is no public
participation. We have a long way to go. Would you envisage
some way you could structure public participation in review
processes? They are looking for more transparency, of course,
but beyond transparency, actual participation in the process—
native peoples, indigenous peoples.

Ms Pratt: Are you asking me about how to organize NGOs
in Canada so that they could come forward —

Mrs. Stewart: Or internationally. For example, we talk
about a project in Brazil that might have a negative impact
upon the environment and also on human rights issues, and
there is a call to the international financial institutions that
before such projects are approved local people should be
informed. Right now one of the problems is that often the
expertise in assessment comes from the developed country’s
NGOs, and they have to work in conjunction with local public
groups to draw attention to potential problems.

Ms Pratt: It is very hard then to make a decision on which
public organizations to listen to. There are organizations that will
not even come and talk to the government because they feel it
is part of the system and no good can ever come of it, so they will
screen themselves out by themselves.

I do not know. Maybe that is an organizational question
that comes after the policy has been decided, or something
like that, but I cannot imagine that it is all that difficult. The
only difficulty I see at this point is that your discussion, or
your consensus-building with NGOs on what should be done,
usually takes so long to do that the World Bank has long ago
made a decision about whether to make that grant or withdraw
it.

Dr. Culpeper: 1 think we could learn a few things from
the Americans in this department. They tend to be much
more conscientious respecting the need for accountability of
the IFIs. Their executive directors are called upon much
more often by congressional committees to come and talk and
explain what is going on, to give testimony and so forth. I think
we could certainly do that a lot more than we do. I was adviser
to three executive directors, and to my knowledge during that
period none of them were ever asked to come and testify before
any parliamentary committee.

One thing that could happen, for example, is the government
could be asked to report to the Canadian public and to
Parliament every year and give a report on the activities of each
of the multilateral institutions. The focus. I think, should be fairly
general. Are these institutions being effective? What are they
doing to further development? What are they doing for poverty?

The issues are elastic. I think the issue of human rights
and environment must appear in such a document. If they did
not at the outset, there would be a demand for the
government to address these issues. Perhaps if you have such

[Traduction)

Cest exactement la sorte de participation que vous
voudriez, parce qu'il y a toujours des groupes qui sont
opposés a tout. On essaie d’en arriver a un consensus, mais
actuellement il n'y en a pas parce qu’il n'y a pas de
participation publique. Il reste encore beaucoup de chemin a
faire. Pourriez-vous trouver un moyen de faire participer le
public au processus d'examen? Les gens souhaitent une
meilleure transparence, mais également une meilleure participa-
tion au processus—les autochtones, en particulier.

Mme Pratt: Vous voulez savoir comment les ONG au
Canada pourraient s’organiser de facon. . .

Mme Stewart: Ou sur le plan international. Il y a un
projet au Brésil, par exemple, qui pourrait avoir un effet
négatif sur 'environnement et sur les droits de la personne;
on demande aux institutions financiéres internationales
d’informer la population locale avant que le projet soit
approuvé. Actuellement, le probleme, entre autres, est que trop
souvent les experts en matiere d’examen de projets appartien-
nent aux ONG des pays développés, et il faut travailler en
collaboration avec les groupes issus de la population locale pour
susciter I'intérét nécessaire.

Mme Pratt: Il est trés difficile de décider quels sont les
organismes publics qui doivent étre entendus. Il y a également
des organismes qui ne veulent pas dialoguer avec le gouverne-
ment; pour eux il représente le systeme, et rien de bon ne peut
en sortir. Ils s’éliminent donc d’eux-mémes au départ.

Je ne sais pas. Clest peut-€tre une question
d’organisation qui intervient une fois que la politique a été
décidée. J'ai peine a croire que ce soit si difficile. Le
probléme avec la discussion que vous préconisez et avec votre
tentative pour en arriver a un consensus avec les ONG sur les
choses a faire, c'est que cela supose un tel délai qu'entre temps
la Banque mondiale risque d’avoir depuis longtemps pris sa
décision de maintenir ou de retirer la subvention.

M. Culpeper: Nous pouvons peut-étre nous inspirer de
I'expérience des Américains a cet égard. Ils sont beaucoup
plus soucieux de la nécessité de I'imputabilité de la part des
institutions financiéres internationales. Leurs directeurs
généraux sont convoqués beaucoup plus souvent qu’ici devant
les comités du Congrés pour expliquer ou ils en sont et
témoigner de facon générale. Nous pourrions nous-mémes faire
beaucoup plus sur ce point. J'ai été conseiller aupres de trois
directeurs généraux. A ma connaissance au cours de cette
période aucun d’eux n’a été appelé a témoigner devant un
comité parlementaire.

Une facon de procéder serait de demander au gouvernement
qu’il fasse rapport tous les ans a la population et au Parlement
des activités de chacune des institutions multilatérales. La portée
de ce rapport pourrait étre assez étendue. Les questions
pourraient étre les suivantes: ces institutions sont-elles effica-
ces? Que font-elles pour susciter le développement? Quelles
mesures prennent-elles pour remédier a la pauvreté?

Les questions pourraient englober un certain nombre de
choses. Les droits de la personne et I'environnement
devraient y figurer. Autrement, la demande expresse en serait
faite au gouvernement. Dans I'éventualité ou les comités
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an annual process of reporting, it would be far easier for
parliamentary committees to speak to that document and ask
questions, and ask representatives what they feel and what they
are doing on Canada’s behalf to further these kinds of issues. I
do not think it is beyond imagination to come up with the right
kinds of structures.
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I do know that the knowledge of the Canadian public on
these issues is just about non-existent, and I think there is a
great educational project in store. The NGOs are very well
informed because they take it upon themselves to do the
research, to ask questions and to read the documentation. Not
many other Canadians do that. It is through no fault of their own.
These organizations are in Washington, or they are in Manila,
or they are in Abidjan and so forth. What happens in those places
is quite far away from the consciousness of Canadians fixated by
Meech Lake and so forth.

Mr. Walker: I have two brief questions. One is a follow-
up to Christine’s question on using the parallel of the
environmental movement. One  progression the
environmental movement has made is changing policies in a
structural sense, changing policies so that most of our major
undertakings by government now have to have an
environmental impact assessment tied to them. Do you see
any progress being made in having a human rights assessment
done as part of the structural adjustment packages that
international organizations often insist upon when they do their
aid packages? This is just to follow up what you were talking
about, the need to start documenting things.

Dr. Culpeper: I think the short answer is no, there are
no efforts at all. But as I have suggested in my remarks,
there is a window, there is an opening in terms of the World
Bank’s newly found importance of this whole issue of
governance. How effective are governments in governing, and
how accountable are they? I think this is a wonderful
development, and I think it should be reinforced and pushed.
That is what I have tried to do. I think I have probably gone
beyond the limits of what most IFIs and certainly the Canadian
government would find acceptable at this point. But unless you
ask for these things, you will not get them.

Mr. Walker: I have one last question for both of you.
This not the first time a parliamentary subcomittee has
started down this trail of looking at international human
rights. What would be in the back of your minds as some
bench-marks of success of our work for the next couple of years?
Where do you see progress having to be made where no one else
has made any progress? I started my questioning an hour ago by
saying we all know the rhetoric of it. What would be some of the
bench-marks that you would look for as observers?

[Translation)

parlementaires dervraient rendre des comptes annuellement, il
me semble qu’il leur serait beaucoup plus facile de réagir au
document et de poser les bonnes questions, et de demander aux
représentants ce qu'ils en pensent et ce qu'ils ont I'intention de
faire au nom du Canada pour faire avancer la cause. Il n’est pas
inconcevable que l'on puisse trouver un jour les bonnes
structures.

En tout cas, je suis sir dune chose, c'est que la
population canadienne ne sait a peu pres rien sur la question
et que cela justifierait un grand projet éducatif. Les ONG
sont tres bien informées parce qu'elles prennent sur elles-
mémes de se renseigner, de faire de la recherche et de lire les
documents pertinents, contrairement aux Canadiens en général.
Mais ce n’est pas de leur faute, car ces organismes sont situés a
Washington, a Manille ou a Abidjan, par exemple, et ce qui se
passe dans ces endroits exotiques est tres loin des préoccupations
des Canadiens, qui se concentrent pour linstant sur le lac
Meech.

M. Walker: J'ai deux petites questions, dont la premiére
découle de celle de Christine au sujet du parallele avec le
mouvement écologique. Le mouvement écologique a réussi a
faire évoluer les politiques d’'un point de vue structurel, car
aujourd’hui, la plupart des grandes entreprises du
gouvernement doivent étre évaluées en fontion de leur
impact sur I'environnement. A-t-on fait le méme progres du
coté des droits de la personne? Autrement dit, est-ce que
I'évaluation en matiere de droits de la personne fait partie des
conditions imposées par les organismes internationaux aux pays
qui leur demandent de I'aide? Si je vous pose la question, c'est
que vous avez parlé de la nécessité de commencer a monter des
dossiers.

M. Culpeper: Pour répondre brievement, c'est non:
aucun effort n'a été fait en ce sens. Mais comme je I'ai dit
dans mon exposé, il y a une lueur d’espoir, puisque la
Banque mondiale vient de se rendre compte de I'importance
de la facon de gouverner. Autrement dit, jusqu’a quel point les
gouvernements sont-ils efficaces dans leur facon de gouverner
et jusqu’a quel point sont-ils imputables de leurs actes? Cette
nouvelle évolution me semble merveilleuse, et il faudrait la
renforcer et la pousser plus loin, comme jai tenté de le faire. J'ai
méme sans doute été au-dela des limites acceptables pour la
plupart des institutions financiéres internationales et méme
pour le gouvernement du Canada. Mais qui ne demande rien,
n'a rien.

M. Walker: Une derniére question, et je m’adresse a
vous deux. Ce n'est pas la premiere fois qu'un sous-comité
parlementaire examine les droits de la personne a I'échelle
internationale. Qu’est-ce qui, selon vous, serait une marque
de succes pour les travaux du comité au cours des prochaines
années? Est-il possible pour nous d’avancer la ou personne
d’autre n'a réussi? Et dans quel domaine? Il y a une heure, jai
expliqué pourquoi cette question pouvait étre purement
académique. Mais pour vous, observateurs de cette scene,
qu’est-ce qui serait un succes?
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Ms Pratt: From our point of view, it is to get whatever
recommendation you will come up with, which I would hope
would be in line with the two committees that preceded you,
the special joint committee and the Standing Committee on
External Affairs and International Trade. Whether in fact your
recommendation will be identical to the ones they have issued,
orwhether, in the passage of time, you will come to share the goal
but find a different method that you would recommend to the
government, that would be the prerequisite for the next thing we
would like to see, and that is the government actually acting upon
it.

In response to the recommendations the other two
committees made, which were in the same direction, the
government said they endeavoured to consider human rights.
That does not mean a thing unless there is some flesh on the
bones of that statement. So if you can achieve a concrete
government response that satisfies you that would be an
achievement, especially if you manage to get greater public
participation in the issue, you will then find that Canadians
will rally and make sure the government is doing what it actually
said it was going to do. But if the government says right from the
beginning they are not going to play ball, the leverage is gone.

e 1250

Dr. Culpeper: I agree with everything Renate has said. I think
two kinds of particular responses could be viewed as successes;
one is the regular reporting that we were talking about just a few
minutes ago. I think if the committee’s work can succeed in
pushing the government in that direction that would be a great
advance, and that would help discussion, transparency, debate
and so forth.

The other example of success I think can come in the
form of Finance Minister Wilson’s intiative on the
environment, which Renate was referring to a little bit earlier
in her remarks. Mr. Wilson can make this kind of intiative if
he can go to the development committee of the World Bank
and say the environmental issue has come to the stage where
it now really has to be tackled head on by the World Bank
group, and this is what we propose the bank should do about
it. I think you could do something quite analogous and similar
on the human rights side. What is to prevent Mr. Wilson from
making a similar initiative at the development committee of the
World Bank and the IMF? He could say that it is in the interest
of development and developing countries to establish or to
further human rights because of the reasons that both of us have
talked about—both moral and economic. I think the economic
underpinning has to be there, because ultimately it has to do with
the mission and the mandate of these institutions. If it comes
completely out of the blue, then my own personal view is that it
has less of a chance of success.

The Chairman: Dr. Culpeper and Ms Pratt, on behalf of
the members of the committee I want to thank you very
much for sharing with us your experience and also your
vision. It is obvious to me that there is a message in your

[Traduction)

Mme Pratt: Pour notre part, nous accepterons toutes les
recommandations que vous voudrez bien émettre, en espérant
qu'elles seront dans la méme optique que celles des deux
comités qui vous ont précédés, soit le comité mixte spécial et
le comité permanent des Affaires extérieures et du Commerce
international. Peu importe que vos recommandations soient
identiques aux leurs ou qu’avec le temps, vous décidiez de viser
au méme objectif tout en recommandant au gouvernement une
méthode d’action différente: I'important pour nous c'est que le
gouvernement agisse enfin concrétement.

Lorsqu'il a réagi aux recommandations émises par les
deux autres comités, et qui allaient dans le méme sens, le
gouvernement a affirmé qu’il tentait de tenir compte des
droits de la personne. Or, cela ne signifie strictement rien
tant qu’il ne joint pas le geste a la parole. Donc, si I'on
réussit 4 obtenir un réponse concrete du gouvernement qui
est satisfaisante, particulierement si 'on réussit a sensibiliser
d’avantage la population a la question, alors on s’apercevra
que les Canadiens se rallieront pour s’assurer que le gouverne-
ment fait bien ce qu’il a dit qu'il ferait. Mais si le gouvernement
dit des le départ qu'il ne jouera pas le jeu, alors on perd I'effet
de levier.

M. Culpeper: Je suis d’accord avec tout ce que Renate a dit.
Je pense que deux types de réponse pourraient étre considérés
comme un succes, l'une est la présentation réguliere de rapports,
comme nous en parlions il y a quelques minutes. Si le comité
réussit a encourager le gouvernement a le faire, ce serait un bon
pas en avant qui aidera a la discussion, a la transparence, au
débat, etc.

L’autre exemple de succés peut provenir d’une initiative
du genre de celle du ministre des Finances Wilson sur
I'environnement, dont Renate a parlé tout a I'heure. M.
Wilson peut prendre ce genre d’initiative s’il peut aller voir
le comité de développement de la Banque mondiale et lui
dire: «La question environnementale en est actuellement a
une étape ou le groupe de la Banque mondiale devrait
s’attaquer a la question, et voici ce que nous proposons que
la banque fasse a ce sujet.» Vous pourriez entreprendre quelque
chose de ce genre dans le domaine des droits de la personne.
Qu’est-ce qui empéche M. Wilson de prendre une initiative
semblable auprés du comité de développement de la Banque
mondiale et du FMI? Il pourrait dire que c’est dans I'intérét du
développement et des pays en voie de développement d’établir
ou d’encourager les droits de la personne pour les raisons, a la
fois morales et économiques, dont nous avons parlé tous les
deux. Je crois qu’il est nécessaire d'en souligner les raisons
économiques, car en fin de compte cette question est liée a la
mission et au mandat de ces institutions. Si cela tombe tout droit
du ciel, alors personnellement j’estime qu’il y a moins de chances
de succes.

Le président: Monsieur Culpeper et Madame Pratt, au
nom des membres du comité, je tiens a vous remercier
d’avoir partagé avec nous votre expérience et votre vision.
Votre déclaration contient un message pour le gouvernement,
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statement toward the government, but let me assure you that it
is a concern of all Members of Parliament, and the proof is that
the committee is here. You were talking about the two previous
committees. To my knowledge one of them is still in action, but
I want to focus on human rights and that is why we are here.

Ms Pratt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Dr. Culpeper: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: We will adjourn until the next meeting.

[Translation)

mais je vous assure que cette question préoccupe tous les
députés, et I'existence méme de notre comité en est la preuve.
Vous avez parlé des deux comités précédents. A ma connaissan-
ce, un de ces comités existe toujours, mais je m'intéresse surtout
aux questions des droits de la personne, et c’est pourquoi nous
sommes ici.

Mme Pratt: Merci, monsieur le président.
M. Culpeper: Merci, monsieur le président.
Le président: La séance est levée.
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[Text] [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Human Rights met at
6:10 o’clock p.m. this day, in Room 308, West Block, the
Chairman, Maurice Tremblay, presiding.

Members of the Commiittee present: David Kilgour, Christine
Stewart, Maurice Tremblay, David Walker.

Acting Member present. Howard McCurdy for Svend Robin-
son.

Other Member present: Joseph Volpe.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Allan McChesney, Jack Stilborn, Research Officers.

Witnesses: From McMaster University: Dr. Rhoda Howard,
Professor of Sociology; From the Canadian Council of Churches:
Bonnie Greene, Member of its Committee on the Churches and
International Affairs; From Project Ploughshares: Bernie Regehr,
Research Coordinator.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Standing Committee on Human Rights and the Status of
Disabled Persons dated Tuesday, June 27, 1989, and Tuesday,
December 19, 1989, the Sub-committee commenced a review
of Canada’s policy regarding Human Rights vis-a-vis interna-
tional financial institutions, international trade including mili-
tary equipment exports. (See Minutes of Proceedings, Monday,
December 4, 1989, Issue N° 1).

The witnesses made opening statements and answered
questions.

By unanimous consent it was agreed,—That the documents
presented by the witnesses be appended to this day’s Minutes of
Proceedings. (See Appendix INHU-1-2-3).

At 7:50 o’clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

Marie Louise Paradis

Clerk of the Sub-Committee

Le Sous-comité des droits de la personne au niveau
international se réunit aujourd’hui a 18 h 10, dans la piéce 308 de
I'édifice de I'Ouest, sous la présidence de Maurice Tremblay
(président).

Membres du Sous-comité présents: David Kilgour, Christine
Stewart, Maurice Tremblay et David Walker.

Membre suppléant présent: Howard McCurdy remplace Svend
Robinson.

Autre député présent: Joseph Volpe.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Allan McChesney et Jack Stilborn, attachés de
recherche.

Témoins: De l'Université McMaster: Rhoda Howard, professeu-
re de sociologie. Du Conseil canadien des Eglises: Bonnie Greene,
membre du Comité des églises et des affaires internationales. Du
Projet Ploughshares: Bernie Regehr, coordonnateur de la recher-
che.

Conformément au mandat que lui a confié le Comité
permanent des droits de la personne et de la condition des
personnes handicapées les mardis 27 juin et 19 décembre
1989, le Sous-comité examine la position officielle du Canada
en matiére des droits de la personne, par rapport aux institutions
financiéres internationales et au commerce extérieur incluant les
ventes de matériel militaire. (Voir les Procés—verbaux et témoigna-
ges du lundi 4 décembre 1989, fascicule n° 1).

Les témoins font des exposés et répondent aux questions.

Par consentement unanime, il est convenu,—Que les docu-
ments présentés par les témoins figurent en annexe aux
Proces-verbaux et témoignages d’aujourd’hui. (Voir Appendices
«INHU-1-2-3»).

A 19 h 50, le Sous-comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convoca-
tion du président.

La greffiére du Sous—comité

Marie Louise Paradis



6:4 International Human Rights 29-5-1990
[Text] [Translation)
EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES
[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus] [Enregistrement électronique]
Tuesday, May 29, 1990 Le mardi 29 mai 1990
e 1807

Le président: A I'ordre!
Nous avons quorum, je déclare donc la séance ouverte.

We are meeting today to continue our study on Canada’s
policy regarding human rights vis-a-vis international financial
institutions; international trade, including military equipment
imports. Our witnesses today are Dr. Rhoda Howard, Ms Bonnie
Greene, and Mr. Bernie Regehr.

Dr. Rhoda Howard is Professor of Sociology at
McMaster University. Professor Howard has contributed
numerous publications in the field of human rights. Among
her latest works is an article entitled “Civil Political Rights
and Canadian Development Assistance”, which has been
distributed to you. She is the author of a recently completed
manual for monitoring human rights in other countries. This was
prepared on behalf of the Department of External Affairs, in
co-operation with the University of Ottawa’s Human Rights
Research and Education Centre.

Bonnie Greene is from the Canadian Council of
Churches. She is a member of its Committee on the
Churches and International Affairs. She served as a
chairwoman of the Helsinki Working Group and is a member
of the Human Rights Advisory Group of the World Council of
Churches. She is the editor of a new book entitled The Canadian
Churches and Foreign Policy: for the Healing of the Nation, which
I understand will be published soon.

Bernie Regehr is a Research Co-ordinator for Project
Ploughshares. He is the author of Arms Canada: The Deadly
Business of Military Exports. He is the Canadian government’s
representative on the United Nations Secretary General’s expert
panel concerning register of the international arms trade.

Dr. Howard.

Mme Rhoda Howard (professeure en sociologie, McMaster
University): Merci. Tout d’abord, monsieur le président, je
voudrais m’excuser de ne pas étre capable de vous présenter mon
commentaire en francais. Mais je serai capable de répondre a vos
questions posées en frangais, et ce sans traduction. J’essaierai.

Le président: Je vous en prie.

Dr. Howard: I would like to speak about two matters: the
manual for monitoring human rights, which I recently completed
for External Affairs, and my recommendations for promoting
human rights internationally through foreign aid.

e 1810

First of all, I authored this manual on monitoring human
rights for Mr. Dan Livermore of the Human Rights and
Humanitarian Affairs Division of the Department of External
Affairs. The manual was developed in consultation with a

The Chairman: Order, please!
I see we have a quorum and we can start now.

Nous continuons aujourd’hui notre examen de la position
officielle du Canada en matiere de droits de la personne
vis-a-vis des institutions financiéres et du commerce extérieur,
y compris les exportations d’équipement militaire. Nos témoins
sont M™ Rhoda Howard, M™ Bonnie Greene et M. Bernie
Regehr. b

M™ Rhoda Howard est professeure de sociologie a
I'Université McMaster. Elle est l'auteure de nombreux
documents du domaine des droits de la personne. On trouve
parmi ses derniéres oeuvres un article intitulé «Civil Political
Rights and Canadian Development Assistance» qui vous a été
distribué. Elle a récemment rédigé un manuel pour I'évaluation
du respect des droits de 1a personne dans d’autres pays. Il a été
préparé pour le ministére des Affaires extérieures, en collabora-
tion avec le Centre de recherche et d’enseignement sur les droits
de la personne de I'Université d’Ottawa.

M™¢ Bonnie Greene fait partie du Conseil canadien des
églises. Elle est membre du Comité sur les églises et les
affaires internationales de cet organisme. Elle a présidé les
travaux du groupe de travail d’Helsinki et est membre du
Groupe consultatif sur les droits de la personne du Conseil
oecuménique des églises. Elle est la responsable d’un nouveau
livre intitulé «The Canadian Churches and Foreign Policy: for
the Healing of the Nation», qui sera bientot publié, je crois.

Bernie Regehr est coordonnateur de la recherche pour le
projet Ploughshares. 11 est 'auteur de «Arms Canada: The
Deadly Business of Military Exports». Il est le représentant du
gouvernement canadien auprés du Groupe d’experts du secrétai-
re général des Nations unies chargé du registre du commerce
international de I'armement.

Madame Howard.

Dr. Rhoda Howard (Sociology Professor, McMaster Univer-
sity): Thank you. First, Mr. Chairman, I would like to apologize
for not being able to give you my presentation in French but I
will be able to answer your questions if they are asked in French,
without translation. I will try.

The Chairman: Thank you, please go on.

Mme Howard: J’aimerais parler de deux sujets: le manuel
d’évaluation du respect des droits de la personne que j'ai
récemment préparé pour les Affaires extérieures et mes
recommandations pour la promotion des droits de la personne
a I’échelle internationale grace a I'aide internationale.

D’abord, disons que jai préparé ce manuel sur
Pévaluation du respect des droits de la personne pour M.
Dan Livermore, de la Direction des droits de la personne et
des affaires sociales du ministére des Affaires extérieures. J'ai
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number of other people, in three meetings in 1989. They
included four other academics—Tony Tillett of the Pearson
Institute at Dalhousie, Marshall Conley of Acadia University,
Stephen Toop of the McGill Law Faculty, James Hathaway of
Osgoode Hall—and Doug Williams and Magda Seydegart from
the Ottawa Human Rights Research and Education Centre.

My latest information is that this document will be
circulated to post offices as a guide to supplement telexes,
instructing them on human rights reporting, on the
assumption that they will have perhaps one week to report
on human rights in each country. One purpose of this manual,
as I understand it, will be to make clear to post offices that human
rights is in their area of responsibility; that they must seek out
information, and they must do so by talking to people they might
not normally talk to, for example, dissidents, rural peasants’
leaders, and trade unionists.

The offices will be instructed in this manual to look especially
for gross, persistent and systematic human rights abuses. But
they will also be careful to report on human rights improvements
and successes as well as failures, to reduce the perception of
unwarranted interference in the internal affairs of other
countries.

They will report on the magnitude of human rights violations,
on trends in violations, and compare these to a reasonable base
line that takes into account such matters as the level of economic
development and significant political events such as howrecently
a dictatorship was overthrown. Finally, they will report on the
degree of government responsibility for human rights violations.

We started our consideration of this manual with a short list
of ten proxy rights, or substitute rights, that cover the entire
United Nations list in the United Nations human rights
documents. This was a list which I wrote in an academic journal
with an American colleague in 1988.

The Canadian list will include four key rights in four key
categories. It will be suggested to offices that they report on
freedom from arbitrary arrest and detention; on the right to
food; on non-discrimination against women, ethnic groups,
religious and linguistic groups, and also non-discrimination
against indigenous groups; and freedom of expression. These
four rights together act as proxies for the entire range of rights
included in the United Nations documents.

Our special concerns here were to make sure also that this list
made sense to Canadians while still being in conformity with UN
standards, and I believe we have done this; and secondly, to be
sensitive to cultural issues, and we did this, I think, by going
through specific criteria to determine when a matter was cultural
and when it was political. I can give those details to you later, if
you like.

[Traduction]

consulté diverses personnes pour ce travail, lors de trois
réunions, en 1989. Il y avait notamment quatre autres
universitaires: Tony Tillett, de I'Institut Pearson a Dalhousie,
Marshall Conley de I'Université Acadia, Stephen Toop de la
Faculté de droit de I'Université McGill, et James Hathaway de
Osgoode Hall. Il y avait également Doug Williams et Magda
Seydegart du Centre de recherche et d’enseignement sur les
droits de la personne de I'Université d’Ottawa.

D’aprés les derniers renseignements qu'on m’a fournis,
le document sera distribué aux agents de mission comme
supplément aux télex comportant des instructions sur les
rapports & faire au sujet des droits de la personne. On
présume qu’ils auront chacun une semaine pour préparer un
rapport sur les droits de la personne dans chaque pays. A mon
avis, ce manuel vise a faire comprendre aux agents de mission
que les droits de la personne font partie de leurs responsabilités:
ils doivent recueillir 'information, notamment en s’entretenant
avec des gens auxquels ils ne parlent pas normalement, comme
des dissidents, des leaders ruraux et des syndicalistes.

Ce manuel demande aux agents de mission de noter
particulierement les violations des droits de la personne qui sont
flagrantes, persistantes et systématiques. Mais pour réduire la
perception que pourraient avoir les pays-hotes d’une ingérence
injustifiée de notre part, les agents doivent également s’efforcer
de rapporter toute amélioration ou succes dans le domaine des
droits de la personne, autant que les échecs.

Ils devront faire rapport de I'importance des violations de
droits, des tendances de ces derniéres, et utiliser des points de
comparaison raisonnables, en tenant compte par exemple du
niveau de développement économique et des événements
politiques importants, par exemple le renversement d’'une
dictature. Finalement, ils doivent préciser quelle est la responsa-
bilité du gouvernement dans la violation des droits de la
personne.

Nous avons commencé nos travaux en créant une liste de dix
droits repéres, ou droits de substitution, qui représentent toute
la liste des droits figurant dans les documents des Nations unies.
11 s’agit de la liste que j’avais écrite en 1988, avec un collegue
américain, dans une revue universitaire.

La liste canadienne comprendra quatre droits—clé dans
quatre catégories—clé. On suggérera aux agents de mission de
faire rapport sur les arrestations ou détentions arbitraires, sur
le droit a la nourriture, sur la discrimination contre les
femmes, les groupes ethniques, religieux et linguistiques et
contre les groupes indigénes ainsi que sur les atteintes a la liberté
de parole. Ces quatre secteurs représentent toute la gamme des
droits compris dans les documents des Nations unies.

Nous voulions d’abord nous assurer que cette liste aurait un
sens pour les Canadiens, tout en étant conforme aux normes de
I'ONU, et je crois que nous y sommes arrivés. D’autre part, il
fallait qu’elle soit adaptée a la culture de chaque pays. Nous
avons établi des critéres pour déterminer si une question était
d’ordre culturel ou politique. Je vous reparlerai de cela en détail
plus tard, si vous le souhaitez.
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My other concern is to give you some recommendations on the
question of integrating human rights into foreign aid and foreign
policy in general. First of all, I think that all foreign policy, trade
aid and refugee policy, should include the same component of
human rights. I will not speak on that, as I believe my colleagues
will do so.

Second, I think there should be consistent and comparative
assessment of all countries’ human rights performance. I had
passed out a sample of how you could do this—a grid for
evaluating human rights performance. A couple of years ago I
said I thought this was not possible. It is still extremely difficult,
but the methodologies have improved.

The sample grid I am suggesting here has along the left
the four rights that the External Affairs’ manual includes;
food, non-discrimination, arbitrary arrest, and press, and then
the three measurements of magnitude, trends and
responsibility. To evaluate each of these, I use the categories
suggested by the Winegard report: human rights positive,
satisfactory, watch, or negative. I put in some examples from my
own research on Indonesia and Nigeria, with the warning that
these are subjective judgments on the basis of available
documentary evidence and that statistical quantification and
numerical cut-off points are impossible, on this kind of ranking.
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Nevertheless, I think it might be possible to at least institute
a policy whereby there is a threshold below which further aid to
a country must be justified. If a country falls below that threshold
on human rights performance, then continuation or new aid
must be justified.

This is not merely an ethical matter. This is also a matter of
efficacy. Human rights and development are intricately related
and countries with severe human rights violations are frequently
unable to use the aid or the loans we supply them with. They will
use arms we supply them with, frequently against their own
citizens.

This does not mean that I favour sanctions. I believe sanctions
should be decided on a case-by-case basis, taking into account
a variety of factors. I do favour conditionality and a graduated
response, which allow for encouragement of human rights
improvements and also redirect Canadian aid and other
resources to support human rights activists.

My final recommendation is that far more aid should go
explicitly to support civil and political rights that provide
protection and participation for oridinary citizens interested in
human rights. In general, rather than cutting off aid to poor
human rights protectors, it should be redirected wherever
possible to civil and political rights.

[Translation)

Jaimerais maintenant vous parler de mes recommandations
sur P'intégration des droits de la personne dans nos politiques
extérieures et nos politiques d’aide a I'étranger en général.
Drabord, je crois que toute politique extérieure, qu’il s’agisse de
commerce, d’aide internationale ou d’accueil des réfugiés,
devrait reposer sur des éléments communs concernant les droits
de la personne. Mais je n’en dirai pas davantage puisque mes
collégues vont vous en parler eux-mémes.

Deuxiémement, je crois qu’il faudrait faire une évaluation
uniforme et comparative du respect des droits de la personne
dans tous les pays. J'ai distribué un exemple de fagon de
procéder: une grille d’évaluation du respect des droits de la
personne. Il y a quelques années, je pensais que cétait
impossible. C’est toujours extrémement difficile mais les
méthodologies se sont améliorées.

La grille que je propose a quatre colonnes. Dans la
premicre, a gauche, vous voyez les quatre droits et libertés du
manuel des Affaires extérieures: nourriture, discrimination,
arrestation arbitraire et presse. En haut des trois autres
colonnes, vous voyez ce qu’il faut mesurer: I'importance de la
discrimination, la tendance et la responsabilité du gouverne-
ment. Pour chacune de ces colonnes, jutilise la notation
proposée dans le rapport Winegard: positif, satisfaisant, a
surveiller ou négatif. Je donne ici des exemples d’aprés mes
propres recherches en Indonésie et au Nigeria. Je souligne qu’il
s’agit de jugements subjectifs, fondés sur la documentation
disponible, et qu’il est impossible de donner des chiffres
statistiques ou des catégories numériques pour ce genre de
notation.

Je pense qu’il serait tout de méme possible d’énoncer une
politique créant un seuil sous lequel toute aide a un pays doit
étre justifiée. Si I'évaluation du respect des droits de la personne
pour ce pays tombe sous le seuil, 'aide accordée ou prévue doit
étre justifiée.

Il ne s’agit pas uniquement d’'une question morale. II faut
également penser a I'efficacité de I'aide que nous accordons. En
effet, les droits de la personne et le développement sont
intimement liés et les pays ou les droits de la personne sont
bafoués sont souvent incapables d’utiliser I'aide ou les préts que
nous leur fournissons. Ils utilisent les armes que nous leur
fournissons, souvent contre leurs propres citoyens.

Cela ne signifie pas pour autant que je sois en faveur des
sanctions. Je crois qu’il faut décider des sanctions en fonction de
chaque cas, et en tenant compte de divers facteurs. Je préconise
plut6t imposition de conditions ou une réaction graduelle, qui
permet d’encourager les améliorations dans le domaine des
droits de la personne et également de réorienter l'aide
canadienne ou les ressources fournies pour promouvoir les
défenseurs des droits de la personne.

Finalement, je recommande qu’on accorde davantage d’aide
explicitement a la promotion des droits civils et politiques afin
de protéger et d’encourager la participation des citoyens
ordinaires intéressés par les droits de la personne. En général,
plutdt que de couper les fonds a ceux qui protégent mal les droits
de la personne, on devrait les réorienter si possible pour la
défense des droits civils et politiques.
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Again this is not merely idealism. Evidence suggests that
historically societies that protect economic rights such as welfare,
the right to food and fair working conditions are societies in
which civil and political rights were first achieved. Then other
rights were wrested from below through freedom of the press,
trade union organization and so on.

Second, in the contemporary world governments that
promise economic rights without civil and political rights
generally do not deliver, except sometimes in high-growth
economies such as South Korea, where everyone can be made
better off in absolute terms, if not in relative terms. In
low-growth economies we often find that countries are
de-developed as a result of the abuse of civil and political rights,
as they have been in eastern Europe.

I am suggesting that if we seriously want to promote human
rights and development, a significant part of CIDA’s budget
should go to civil and political rights or a much larger budget
should be given to the new Institute for Human Rights and
Democratic Development in Ottawa.

I have many examples of the kinds of rights that could be
promoted without being overly political. Briefly, these would
be in the areas of supporting independent judiciaries, the
legal profession and constitutional rule; providing more
training in education—humanities, law, social sciences, and
philosophy, which sometimes produce thinkers; in promoting
freedom of the press, freedom of speech and freedom of
association; and in providing infrastructural assistance for
political participation.

Thank you.
The Chairman: Thank you. Ms Greene.

Ms Bonnie Greene (Member, Canadian Council of
Churches): I think the committee has received a copy of a
document I sent to the clerk of the committee. What I have
tabled for you is a summary of recommendations that
Canadian churches have made over a 10 years on the relation
between human rights and trade or on the use of the trade lever
in the pursuit of human rights. We have not approached it
primarily in that perspective, because that is an area we approach
with the private sector through shareholder discussions with
senior management of Canadian banks and corporations.

However, there are some cases in which we have felt that
there is the need for some role on the part of the
government to deal with very, very serious human rights
violations where trade is involved. What I have therefore
done is to cull for you the primary recommendations we have
made, which would allow for some sort of consistency between
our stand on human rights and our commitment to human rights
and the relations we have in the economic sphere with human
rights violator regimes.

[Traduction]

Je répéte qu'il ne s’agit pas d’idéalisme béat. Les faits ont
prouvé qu’historiquement, les sociétés qui protégent les droits
économiques comme le bien-étre, le droit a la nourriture et les
conditions de travail décentes sont celles ol on est arrivé en
premier au respect des droits civils et politiques. Ensuite, ont été
obtenus d’autres droits, grace a la liberté de la presse, a la liberté
d’organisation des syndicats, et ainsi de suite.

Deuxiémement, aujourd’hui, les gouvernements qui
promettent des droits économiques sans pour autant
promettre de droits civils et politiques ne remplissent
habituellement pas leurs promesses, a I'exception
d’économies a forte croissance comme la Corée du Sud, ol
I'ensemble de la population a profité de la croissance méme si
chaque individu ne s’en est pas nécessairement trouvé mieux.
Dans les économies a faible croissance, la situation peut
s’aggraver par suite de I'abus des droits civils et politiques,
comme on I'a vue en Europe de I'Est.

Si nous voulons vraiment promouvoir les droits de la
personne et le développement, une bonne part du budget de
I’ACDI devrait étre consacrée aux droits civils et politiques. I
faudrait augmenter le budget du nouvel Institut des droits de la
personne et de I'avancement démocratique d’Ottawa.

Je connais bien des exemples de droits dont on pourrait
faire la promotion sans que ce soit politiquement.
Rapidement, il s’agit du soutien accordé a I'indépendance du
pouvoir judiciaire, de la profession juridique et du pouvoir
constitutionnel; de la promotion de la formation en enseigne-
ment, en sciences sociales, en droits et en philosophie, afin de
former des penseurs; a la promotion de la liberté de la presse, la
liberté de parole et la liberté d’association; et l'aide a
I'établissement de structures qui favoriseront la participation
politique.

Merci.
Le président: Merci. Madame Greene.

Mme Bonnie Greene (membre du Conseil canadien des
églises): Je pense que les membres du comité ont recu un
exemplaire du document que j’ai envoyé a la greffiere. Je
vous ai présenté un résumé des recommandations que les
églises canadiennes ont faites au cours des dix derniéres années
au sujet des droits de la personne et du commerce, ou de
I'utilisation d’outils commerciaux pour la promotion des droits
de la personne. Nous n’avons pas adopté d’emblée cette
approche, parce qu’il s’agit de discussions que nous voulions
avoir avec le secteur privé par I'intermédiaire d’entretiens avec
les actionnaires et la direction de certaines banques et sociétés
canadiennes.

Il reste que dans certains cas, nous estimions que le
gouvernement pourrait avoir un réle a jouer lorsqu’il y a de
trés graves violations des droits de la personne chez des
partenaires commerciaux. J’ai choisi pour vous les principales
recommandations que nous avons faites, et qui nous permet-
traient une certaine cohérence entre notre position sur les droits
de la personne et nos relations économmiques avec des régimes
qui violent les droits de la personne.
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I have also attached a more philosophical but very brief
set of arguments from which the recommendations arise, and
you have those in your hands. I will not go through the
attached document, only through the recommendations. I
have tabled with Mr. McChesney copies of all the major briefs
the churches have put forward, based on their experience with
human rights violator regimes and with Canadian corporations
and banks that are in their portfolios. They lay out the cases from
which these recommendations arise and they may be of interest
to the committee in future if you want to pursue particular points.

The approach we have taken is that Canada would wish
to pursue and back up its human rights commitments made
in the United Nations. It is in our interest and it is part of
our tradition. The kind of basic human rights values or
guidelines that Rhoda has outlined are also built into the
approach we have used with trade. However, because the
churches have tended to view trade and normalized economic
relations as an ameliorating influence for human rights under
modest, moderately good circumstances, the way we have
defined the basic gross and systematic human rights violations
is a little bit different from the way Rhoda has defined it.

We have talked about those rights that citizens must
expect to be protected from as torture, arbitrary arrest,
detention, execution, arbitrary execution without any kind of
trial, disappearance and government-sponsored starvation,
that being the bottom line below which it would be very
difficult to demonstrate that the trade with a violator regime
or the operation of an enterprise in that country can in fact
ameliorate the situation for human rights. So we have talked
about using the trade lever primarily in cases were there is a
systematic record of gross and systematic human rights violations
of that sort, and above that line trying to foster or encourage
improvements in human rights performance, in some cases with
improved access to trade opportunities, in other cases with
assistance to help countries deal with particularly difficult
situations.

On those assumptions we have also determined for
ourselves that two corollaries would emerge: one, that
Canada ought to develop its own policy to ensure that there
would be no help given by the government or by non-
governmental agencies within Canada to gross and
systematice violator regimes; and two, that Canada would
wish to reduce to an absolute minimum, though not
necessarily eliminate absolutely, contacts with violator
regimes. Again, as Rhoda has said, it would need to be on a
case-by-case basis that one would determine precisely when one
used the trade lever. On those assumptions, what we have done
is to lay out five objectives and some possible ways for
implementing that sort of approach to the use of the trade lever
in pursuit of human rights.

The first objective deals with setting standards and simply asks
that we would take initiative in laying out the criteria by which
we would evaluate human rights violations in a particular
country.

[Translation)

Jai également annexé une bréve présentation des
arguments philosophiques d’ou découlent les
recommandations. Vous les avez devant vous. Je ne vous
parlerai pas de lannexe mais uniquement des
recommandations. J’ai envoyé a M. McChesney des exemplaires
des mémoires les plus importants présentés par les églises, qui
sont fonction de leur expérience auprés des régimes ou sont
violés les droits de la personne et des banques et sociétés
canadiennes qui font partie de leur portefeuille. On y présente
les cas qui ont donné lieu aux recommandations et qui
pourraient intéresser le comité a I'avenir si vous voulez vous
pencher sur ces questions particuliéres.

Nous avons d’abord considéré que le Canada voudrait
respecter et raffermir les engagements qu’il a pris devant les
Nations unies au sujet des droits de la personne. Il y va de
notre intérét et cela concorde avec nos traditions. Nous avons
appliqué au commerce les valeurs et orientations proposées par
Rhoda. Toutefois, comme les églises sont d’avis que le
commerce et les relations économiques normales peuvent avoir
un effet positif sur les droits de la personne, surtout en des
circonstances plutdt favorables, nous avons défini autrement
que Rhoda les violations flagrantes et systématiques des droits
de la personne.

Nous avons déterminé que des droits devaient protéger
les citoyens contre la torture, les arrestations arbitraires, la
détention, les exécutions arbitraires ou sommaires, la
disparition et la famine provoquée par le gouvernement.
Cest 1a le seuil en deca duquel il serait trés difficile de
prouver que le commerce avec un régime violateur des droits
de la personne ou l'exploitation d’'une société dans ce pays
pourrait améliorer la situation des droits de la personne.
Nous avons donc parlé d’utiliser 'arme du commerce surtout
dans les cas oll on avait constaté des violations flagrantes et
systématiques des droits de la personne. Au-dessus de ce seuil,
nous voulons encourager la promotion des droits de la personne
notamment par un meilleur accés au commerce ou par P'aide
accordée aux pays qui vivent des situations particuliérement
difficiles.

A partir de 13, nous avons pu énoncer deux corollaires:
d’abord, le Canada devrait créer ses propres politiques pour
veiller 4 ce que notre gouvernement ou des organismes
gouvernementaux canadiens n’accordent pas d'aide a des
régimes ol sont bafoués les droits de la personne; et ensuite,
que le Canada réduise 4 un minimum ses relations avec de
tels régimes, sans toutefois couper les ponts. Encore une fois,
comme disait Rhoda, il faudra évaluer chaque cas pour
déterminer comment utilser I'arme du commerce. Aprés avoir
établi cela, nous avons fixé cinq objectifs et proposé des
appliations possibles de cette approche pour que les leviers du
commerce servent a la promotion des droits de la personne.

Le premier objectif est de fixer des normes et des critéres
servant & évaluer le respect ou la violation des droits de la
personne dans un pays donné.
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The second objective is a very bureaucratic objective,
procedures for reviewing the implementation of human rights
commitments, an annual public review. It is the kind of
process question that has to be put in place, but you will
recognize that in order to make that process work a certain
amount of disclosure is required. In this case we have asked for
disclosure of the nature of trade or investment in a country that
has the potential for assisting a gross and systematic human
rights violator regime to maintain its grip on power, or to repress
its own population. You need certain kinds of information in
order to conduct that kind of review.

We have also suggested, under objective 3, that we then
need to go systematically toward incorporating human rights
criteria in the decision-making process related to trade and
economic matters. It is not a very advanced or avant-garde
proposal that we are making. We are suggesting that in fact
social responsibility guidelines ought to be established within
public corporations as well as private corporations and
financial institutions. We are not specifying what the content
ought to be—that ought to be part of the process of discussion
in establishing them —but having social responsibility guidelines
and an internal review process with reporting out to the
authorized body within Canada would be part of a normal
process of inserting human rights criteria into the decision-mak-
ing.
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We have laid those out with respect to the Export Develop-
ment Corporation, to companies that have a known relationship
with a very serious, gross and systematic human rights violator
and to Canadian financial institutions. We have also given a
number of those recommendations related to international
financial institutions, because they have a basic role in the
promotion of human rights as well.

The fourth objective is the only point at which we ask for
assertive negative action; that is, restriction by government on
trade and economic activity that is directly supportive of
human rights violator regimes. This means, for example, a
ban on military and strategic goods to governments that are
likely or have a known record of using them against their
own population. It means that no export permits, as an
administrative measure, would be issued for those kinds of
countries. It means as well that there would need to be a very
serious review where there are applications for exports to those
particular countries of dual-purpose equipment that is known to
be used for both civilian and military purposes. It means a serious
review when one is dealing with countries that are below the
human rights floor. The last point under there suggests that no
public funds should be used to protect Canadian companies
engaged in trade with such countries in those kinds of goods.

The fifth objective is the more general one. In our
experience in Third World countries in particular, but also in
eastern Europe, the correlation between deteriorating
economic and social conditions, movements for social change

35093-2

[Traduction]

Le deuxiéme objectif est trés bureaucratique: il s’agit des
procédures d’examen de la mise en oeuvre de nos principes
en matiére de droits de la personne et d'un examen public
annuel. Clest un processus qu’il faut établir mais vous
reconnaitrez que pour qu’il fonctionne, il faut un certain degré
de transparence. Dans ce cas—ci, nous avons demandé que soit
divulguée la nature des activités commerciales ou de I'investisse-
ment dans un pays, qui pourraient aider un régime qui viole de
facon flagrante et systématique les droits de la personne a garder
le pouvoir ou a réprimer le peuple. Pour procéder a ce genre
d’examen, il faut des renseignements.

Le troisieme objectif propose d’incorporer
systématiquement les critéres des droits de la personne dans
la prise de décisions relatives au commerce et a I'économie. Il
ne s’agit pas d’'une proposition nouvelle ou d’avant-garde.
Nous suggérons en fait que des directives relatives a la
responsabilité sociale soient établies pour les sociétés d’Etat
ainsi que pour les sociétés privées et les établissements
financiers. Nous ne parlons pas du contenu de ces directives
parce qu’il devrait résulter de discussions. Mais il reste que dans
le cadre de linsertion des critéres relatifs aux droits de la
personne dans la prise des décisions, il faudrait qu’il existe des
directives en matiére de responsabilité sociale et qu'un examen
interne ait lieu, suivi d'un rapport a l'autorité intéressée au
Canada.

Nous avons formulé des recommandations au sujet de la
Société pour I'expansion des exportations, par rapport a des
sociétés qui ont des rapports connus avec des pays qui violent de
facon flagrante et systématique les droits de la personne et par
rapport a des établissements financiers canadiens. Nous avons
également formulé un certain nombre de recommandations au
sujet d’institutions financiéres internationales, puisque ces
derniéres jouent également un rdle fondamental dans la
promotion des droits de la personne.

Le quatrieme objectif est le seul a I'égard duquel nous
demandons des mesures concrétes et vigoureuses, a savoir la
limitation par le gouvernement de toute activité commerciale
ou économique qui appuie directement un régime qui viole
les droits de la personne. Cela veut dire, par exemple,
interdiction de fournir du matériel militaire et stratégique a
des gouvernements qui ont la réputation de l'utiliser contre
leur population ou qui sont susceptibles de le faire. Sur le
plan administratif, cela veut dire qu’aucun permis d’exportation
ne serait délivré pour ce genre de pays. Cela voudrait dire
également qu’il faudrait étudier trés sérieusement toute deman-
de d’exportation vers ces pays de matériel polyvalent, pouvant
servir aussi bien a des fins militaires que civils. Cela impliquerait
également un examen sérieux dans le cas de pays qui ne
répondent pas aux critéres de base en matiére de droits de la
personne. Il découle notamment de ce qui préceéde que les
deniers publics ne devraient pas servir a protéger des soci€tés
canadiennes qui fournissent du matériel de ce genre a ces pays.

Le cinquieme objectif est plus général. D’apres
I'expérience que nous avons des pays du tiers monde en
particulier, mais aussi de I'Europe de I'Est, il existe une
corrélation bien claire entre la détérioration des conditions
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amongst the people of the country and repressive measures on
the parts of government is extremely obvious. This is one of the
reasons we have attempted to keep the linkages between trade,
human rights violations and the promotion of justice.

They are not neatly cut apart. This means there is a need
to introduce into some of the major economic institutions
that we have internationally human rights criteria such as
social responsibility guidelines for the international financial
institutions, for example. Thus, when questions of Third World
debt are addressed, there is a careful and deliberate review of the
measures that are introduced to ensure that they do not further
exacerbate the situation for human rights for the people. This is
not to say that no aid may be given or that no financial support
may be given, but that review needs to be part of the process.

We have also suggested that it is in Canada’s interest to
support very strongly GATT and reform of GATT and the
international financial institutions. We would hold up out of
our experience with eastern Europe in particular the
Conference on Security and Co-operation in Europe as a
model framework in the experience of the churches of a
linkage between security matters, economic development as if
the people of the region matter, and promotion of human
rights above the basic gross and systematic human rights floor.
That process bears scrutiny and study as we try to introduce
human rights criteria in making decisions about when to use the
trade lever.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Ms Greene.
Mr. Regehr.

Mr. Bernie Regehr (Project Ploughshares): Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the opportunity to address the
question of military sales in human rights. I have also distributed
a one-page sheet, which comes from our project within the
Canadian Council of Churches. It is focused, I would say, almost
extremely narrowly. It is a very narrow focus on the question of
disclosure.

This is on the premise that disclosure facilitates a political
process in which part of the larger questions of human rights
violation can be more effectively dealt with. I will take just a few
minutes to try to suggest the relevance of the disclosure of the
export or the transfer of military commodities to the question of
human rights themselves.

The support for international sales of military commodities
are really based upon the claimed right of all states to acquire
military forces for the purpose of self-defence. Similarly, the
right to export military commodities is claimed under the
sovereign right of states to make, to bear, and to sell arms.

[Translation)

économiques et sociales, les pressions populaires en faveur du
changement social et les mesures de répression de la part du
gouvernement. Voila donc pourquoi nous nous efforgons de lier
le commerce, les violations des droits de la personne et la
promotion de la justice.

Ce sont des réalités indissociables. Par conséquent, il
convient d’appliquer dans certaines de nos grandes
institutions économiques des critéres internationaux en
matiere de droits de la personne comme, par exemple, des
lignes directrices en matiére de la responsabilité sociale
s’appliquant aux grandes institutions financiéres internationales.
Ainsi, lorsqu’il est question de la dette du tiers monde, on
veillera a appliquer des mesures qui ne viendront pas aggraver
encore davantage la situation sur le plan des droits de la
personne. Cela ne veut pas dire que I'aide financiére ne sera pas
consentie mais plutot qu'une évaluation faite dans I'optique des
droits de la personne serait intégrée au processus.

Nous avons également soutenu que le Canada a intérét a
ce que le GATT soit une institution trés forte et a ce que la
réforme du GATT et des institutions financieres
internationales se poursuivent. Egalement, compte tenu de
notre expérience en Europe de I'Est, nous estimons que la
Conférence sur la sécurité et la coopération en Europe
constitue un modéle valable, selon les églises, d’intégration
des questions de sécurité et du développement économique
dans une perspective de sensibilité aux besoins de la population
et de promotion des droits de la personne au-dela du strict
minimum. Le processsus mérite d’étre étudié par ceux qui
s'intéressent a faire intervenir les critéres des droits de la
personne dans les décisions visant le recours aux pressions
commerciales.

Le président: Je vous remercie beaucoup, madame Greene.
Monsieur Regehr.

M. Bernie Regehr (Project Ploughshares): Je vous remercie
beaucoup, monsieur le président. Je suis content d’avoir
I'occasion d’aborder la question du rapport entre les droits de la
personne et les ventes de matériel militaire. J’ai fait circuler un
document d’une page qui vise un aspect trés précis de ce qui nous
intéresse, dans le cadre du Conseil canadien des églises. Il est
question trés précisément de transparence.

L’hypoth3se de base, c'est que la divulgation facilite un
processus politique qui est de nature a régler de fagon plus
efficace les grandes questions liées aux violations des droits de
la personne. Je vais tenter brievement d’expliquer en quoi la
divulgation de renseignements au sujet de I'exportation ou du
transfert de matériel militaire intéresse pertinemment les droits
de la personne.

Le commerce international de matériel militaire est fondé, en
réalité, sur le droit que revendique tous les Etats de se doter de
forces militaires pour assurer leur défense. De la méme maniére,
on revendique le droit d’exporter du matériel militaire au nom
du droit souverain des Etats de fabriquer, d’utiliser et de vendre
des armes.
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The Canadian government, in stating its right to sell military
commodities to governments engaged in human rights viola-
tions, says that even those countries possess the right of nations
to defend themselves against external aggression. So there is this
right to the defence against external aggression. It is really the
foundation of the political consensus in support of military sales.

But if you look at the pattern of the arms trade more
closely, it turns out that except in those areas in the Third
World where there is active international combat or a high
degree of conflict internationally, the export of military
commodities goes primarily to states engaged in internal conflict.
In fact, of current conflicts considered to be military conflicts, or
potential military conflicts in the foreseeable future, about 90%
are conflicts within a single state. They are not conflicts between
states. This is according to a study by the University of Uppsala
in Sweden.

So the main function of military institutions within those
states is not to deal with the external enemy, but the enemy from
within.

Of course, one needs to go on a case-by-case basis to assess
the legitimacy of the internal dissident groups. But the
conclusion one has to draw from this is that in those cases in
particular the activity of the armed forces is not to protect against
external enemies, but is to deny dissident activities within their
own countries.

These are regimes that typically do not enjoy a broad
consensus of popular support. They depend increasingly on
military force for the maintenance of the regime. The logical
extension of this, as that dependence grows, is for the regime
itself to become a military regime. In fact, the pattern has been
that from the 1960s in Third World countries, when about 20%
of states were military governments, to now, a much larger
number of states, about 50% of them, are actually military
governments.

The significance of this is that it is generally understood
that countries run by military governments are about three
times as likely to use systematic violation of human rights as
an instrument of national policy in order to maintain internal
order. The problem is that the hiding away from public scrutiny
of this transfer of military commodities to regimes whose military
forces have a primary role in repression, this secrecy, actually
facilitates and permits that activity. It prevents it from coming
under the eye of public scrutiny.

Openness and disclosure, however, facilitate a political
process of scrutiny of those kinds of sales. They challenge the
right of human rights violator states to acquire the means to
repression in order to continue the repression. Openness
itself is not a control of transfers from one state to other, but
openness does contribute to a climate of restraint in transfer
of military commodities from one to the other. In the
Canadian case, for example, it has been acknowledged by the
Department of External Affairs that it is much more difficult to
get a permit to export military commodities to a country in the
Third World if there is within Canada an active constituency of
support for that country.

[Traduction]

En affirmant son droit de vendre des fournitures militaires a
des gouvernements qui violent les droits de la personne, le
gouvernement canadien proclame que ces pays ont eu aussi le
droit de se défendre de toute aggression externe. Voila donc
comment on justifie, sur le plan politique, les ventes de matériel
militaire.

Un examen plus attentif de la nature du commerce des
armes révele cependant que, sauf dans les régions du tiers
monde ou il existe des conflits internationaux armés ou des
tensions internationales trés vives, les exportations de
fournitures militaires sont surtout destinées a des Etats ou il
existe des conflits internes. De fait, selon une étude de
I'univervisé d’Uppsala en Suede, environ 90 p. 100 des conflits
militaires actuels ou potentiels sont des conflits internes et non
pas les conflits entre Etats.

C’est donc un ennemi intérieur que combattent les institu-
tions militaires de ces Etats et non pas un ennemi de I'extérieur.

Il faut évidemment évaluer au cas par cas la légitimité de la
dissidence interne. Il faut cependant conclure pour les cas qui
précedent que I'activité des forces armées ne vise pas a protéger
I’Etat d'une menace externe mais a réprimer la dissidence a
I'intérieur du pays.

Le phénomeéne correspond généralement a des régimes
qui ont peu d’appui populaire et qui, pour se maintenir,
doivent s’appuyer de plus en plus sur la force militaire. Le
régime militaire est I'aboutissement logique du recours
croissant a la force. Depuis les années 60, la proportion d’Etats
du tiers monde dirigés par des gouvernements militaires est
passée de quelque 20 p. 100 a 50 p. 100 environ aujourd’hui.

Or, il est généralement accepté que le recours a des
violations systématiques des droits de la personne comme
instrument de politique nationale pour le maintien de I'ordre
intérieur est a peu pres trois fois plus fréquent dans les pays
dirigés par des gouvernements militaires. Malheureusement, le
fait de soustraire a un examen minutieux du public les transferts
de fournitures militaires a des régimes dont les forces militaires
participent activement a la répression facilite la répression et la
rend possible.

Par contre, l'ouverture et la divulgation ont pour effet de
favoriser un débat public sur le commerce du matériel
militaire et de contester le droit revendiqué par les Etats qui
violent les droits de la personne de se doter des moyens qui
peuvent leur permettre d’exercer leur répression. L'ouverture
n’équivaut pas a un contrdle direct sur les transferts de
matériel militaire d’'un Etat & un autre mais a tendance a
favoriser un climat de prudence et de pondération. Dans le
cas du Canada, par exemple, le ministere des Affaires
extérieures reconnait qu’il est beaucoup plus difficile d’obtenir
un permis d’exportation de matériel militaire vers un pays du
tiers monde dont les intéréts sont bien représentés ici méme au

pays.
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So when there are very active solidarity groups related to
Central America in Canada, this makes it more difficult to get
apermit to export a military commodity to Central America. The
likelihood of it being discovered through contacts in the recipient
countries is greater; therefore, it places greater restraint on the
provision of export permits.
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So knowledge and information produce restraint. Canada has
in the past provided permits for the export of military
commodities to countries such as South Korea, Indonesia, the
Philippines, Iran in the earlier regime, Brazil, Chile, Malaysia—
cases such that, had there been full openness or full disclosure,
there would have been much more careful restraint or reluctance
to provide those export permits.

Therefore what I have come to focus on is the question of
disclosure and a number of recommendations for changes in
Canadian disclosure policy. I will highlight a couple of things
there.

Currently Canada does not identify the recipients of
military commodities from this country. It publishes aggregate
figures showing the total amounts of military commodities
exported to the United States, then another aggregate figure
showing the total amount of military commodities exported to
Europe, and another aggregate figure for the rest of the world.
It does not break down the amounts to individual countries. So
that is a very minimal change in the disclosure practice that ought
to happen: the disclosure of the specific amounts to particular
countries.

An important argument against full disclosure is that of
commercial confidentiality, and in fact that is the argument
that now prevails: if you provide full disclosure of the export,
say, of an armoured vehicle to a particular country, well,
there is only one company in Canada that makes armoured
vehicles, so you have disclosed the name of the company, the
amounts, and information that would be of interest to the
competitors of our armoured vehicle manufacturers in the
United States or Switzerland.

There is a very big hole in that argument, in my view,
because in fact the rule of commercial confidentiality does not
prevail when the same company sells the same commodity to
the Canadian government. When you sell an armoured
vehicle to the Canadian government, then that is fully open
information. You can find the contract number, the specific
amount of the invoice, and follow-on invoices for repairs. In
other words, there is full disclosure. So the competitors from the
United States or Belgium or any other country can look at our
public documents in Canada and find the commercial informa-
tion of interest to them.

The real point of the restriction in secrecy in exports to
non-Canadian customers is the political point rather than
the commercial confidentiality point. Besides that, there is a
fundamental principle that military commodities are not

[Translation)

Par exemple, dans la mesure ot des groupes de solidarité avec
I’Amérique centrale sont trés actifs au Canada, il est plus difficile
d’obtenir un permis d’exportation de matériel militaire vers
I’Amérique centrale. Puisqu’il est plus probable que ces
exportations soient portées a la connaissance du public par
I'intermédiaire d’observateurs dans le pays de destination, les
autorités ont tendance a faire preuve d’une plus grande retenue
dans la délivrance de permis d’exportation.

La connaissance et I'information ont donc tendance a limiter
le commerce du matériel militaire. Par le passé, le Canada a
délivré des permis d’exportation de matériel militaire a des pays
comme la Corée du Sud, I'Indonésie, les Philippines, I'Iran, au
début du régime, le Brésil, le Chili, la Malaysia. Dans chaque cas,
s'il y avait eu transparence ou divulgation, on aurait été
beaucoup plus prudents ou réticents dans la délivrance de
permis d’exportation.

Jen suis donc arrivé a concentrer mon attention sur la
question de la divulgation et sur un certain nombre de
recommandations visant & modifier la politique du Canada en la
matiére. Je voudrais notamment attirer l'attention sur les
aspects suivants.

A Theure actuelle, le Canada n'identific pas les pays
auxquels il exporte du matériel militaire. II publie des
données d’ensemble qui montrent les quantités totales de
fournitures exportées aux Etats-Unis, les quantités totales
exportées vers I'Europe et les quantités totales exportées dans le
reste du monde. Il n’existe pas de ventilation par pays. Il faudrait
donc tout au moins que soient divulguées les quantités selon le

pays d’exportation.

Ceux qui sont contre la divulgation compléte invoquent
notamment comme argument le caractére confidentiel des
transactions commerciales. Par exemple, dans le cas des
exportations de véhicules blindés, étant donné que ces
véhicules ne sont fabriqués au Canada que par une seule société,
on soutient que la divulgation du nom de la société, des quantités
exportées et d’autres renseignements pouvant intéresser des
fabricants concurrents aux Etats-Unis ou en Suisse nuiraient a
la société canadienne.

L’argument est difficilement acceptable, 4@ mon avis,
puisque la régle du caractére confidentiel des transactions
commerciales ne s’applique pas lorsque la méme société vend
le méme matériel au gouvernement canadien. Tous les détails
relatifs 4 la vente de véhicules blindés au gouvernement
canadien sont en effet divulgués au public. Toute personne
intéressée peut connaitre le numéro de contrat, la valeur de la
facture de vente et des factures d’entretien, Autrement dit, la
divulgation est totale. Les concurrents des Etats-Unis ou de la
Belgique ou de tout autre pays peuvent donc consulter nos
documents publics pour obtenir des renseignements d’ordre
commercial qui peuvent les intéresser.

La raison pour laquelle il convient de limiter le caracté{c
secret des exportations a des clients non canadiens est plqtot
d’ordre politique que commercial. De plus, les marchandises
militaires ne sont pas des marchandises comme les autres.
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commodities like all other commodities. That is a very awkward
way of saying these are unique commodities with a unique role
and they ought to be subject to public scrutiny in a way that the
sale of pick-up trucks or cars does not need to be the subject of
public scrutiny.

In the United Nations group studying the matter of
arms-transfer transparency, which the Canadian government
supports and which, as you mentioned, is a group I sit on,
that is an attempt to develop international standards for
disclosure for the purpose of openness contributing to
restraint, but also for the purpose of developing verification
procedures and methods to support eventual movement
towards actual international agreements to control the
transfer of military commodities from one state to the next.
There are currently no such international agreements, which
means the only way in which there is now an exercise of restraint
in military exports is through unilateral national measures and
guidelines.

She has only one recommendation on that. It is the one that
has already been mentioned by Bonnie Greene, that Canada
ought to change its guideline on the export of military
commodities to countries that are acknowledged to be serious
violators of human rights.
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The guideline currently says Canada will permit export of
military commodities to those countries if it can be
demonstrated that those specific commodities are not likely to
be used against civilians. So the guideline would not permit
the sale of machine guns to Indonesia, for example, or to any
other country you may choose. That commodity is not likely to
be permitted, but the sale of sono buoys for the navy would be
permitted because they cannot be used to directly attack civilians.

Our recommendation is that this guideline be changed
and that there be a blanket prohibition on sale of military
commodities to countries that are acknowledged by our own
government to be serious violators of human rights. Making a
distinction between those military commodities directly used for
repression and other military commaodities fails to recognize that
a capacity for repression is not only technical, but also political,
and that it depends upon the aid and comfort symbolized in the
supply of military commodities to a military regime acknowl-
edged to be directly active in repression.

Our two sets of recommendations are as follows: full
disclosure and annual public review of the export of all military
commodities from Canada, in order to facilitate clear public
scrutiny, because Members of Parliament are presently denied
the details of military trade, which ought to be available; and
second, prohibition of export of military commodities to human
rights violators.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Regehr, for your
very interesting comments.

Mr._Kilgour (Edmonton Southeast): I hope the witnesses do
not think I am representing the Conservative Party. The same
committee met this afternoon and I sat with the opposition.

[Traduction]

Compte tenu de leur caractére particulier et de leur utilisation,
leur vente doit faire I'objet d’Un examen public minutieux, ce
qui n’est pas le cas pour la vente de camionettes ou de voitures.

Le groupe d’étude des Nations-Unies sur la transparence
dans le commerce des armements, qui est appuyé par le
gouvernement canadien et dont je fais partie, comme vous
Pavez dit, cherche a mettre au point des normes
internationales en matiére de divulgation aussi bien pour
favoriser la limitation de ce commerce que pour favoriser
I’établissement de procédures et de méthodes de vérification
qui pourraient servir éventuellement dans le cadre d’accords
internationaux visant le contréle du commerce international des
marchandises militaires. Ce genre d’accord international n’exis-
te pas a 'heure actuelle et les seules mesures de limitation du
commerce du matériel militaire sont celles qui sont prises
unilatéralement par certains pays.

Nous n’avons qu’une recommandation a formuler a ce sujet.
Comme l'a déja proposé Bonnie Greene, le Canada doit
modifier sa ligne de conduite en matiére d’exportation de
marchandises militaires a des pays ou des violations graves des
droits de la personne ont été constatées.

D’apres les lignes directrices actuelles, le Canada permet
I'exportation de matériel militaire vers ces pays dans la
mesure ou il peut étre prouvé que le matériel en question ne
sera vraisemblablement pas utilis€é contre des civils. Le
Canada n’autoriserait donc pas la vente de mitrailleuses a
I'Indonésie ou a certains autres pays. Cependant, il autoriserait
la vente de bouées sonores pour la Marine puisqu’elles ne
peuvent pas servir directement contre la population civile.

Nous recommandons que la ligne directrice soit modifiée
de sorte qu’il soit généralement interdit de vendre quelque
matériel militaire que ce soit a des pays connus pour leurs
violations des droits de la personne. En faisant la distinction
entre le matériel militaire qui peut servir directement a la
répression et d’autres types de matériel militaire on ne tient pas
compte du fait que la capacité d’exercer la répression a non
seulement une dimension technique mais aussi politique et
qu’elle dépend du soutien et de I'encouragement que représente
la fourniture de matériel militaire a un régime militaire dont les
activités directes de répression sont connues.

Nos deux recommandations sont donc les suivantes: premie-
rement, divulgation compléte et examen public annuel de toute
activité d’exportation de matériel militaire a partir du Canada,
de facon a faciliter un examen public minutieux et parce que les
députés ne regoivent pas a I’heure actuelle tous les détails qui
devraient leur étre fournis au sujet du commerce des armes; et,
deuxiemement, interdiction d’exporter du matériel militaire a
des Etats qui violent les droits de la personnes.

Le président: Je vous remercie, Monsieur Regehr, de vos
commentaires fort intéressants.

M. Kilgour (Edmonton-Sud-Est): J’espére que le témoin ne
croira pas que je représente le Parti conservateur. A la réunion
précédente du méme comité je siégeais avec I’Opposition.
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Can we append those documents we have been provided with
to our record for today so we will have the chart and the
statement from Mr. Regehr and the statement from Ms Greene?

The Chairman: Is everyone agreed?
Some hon. members: Agreed.

Mr. Kilgour: I thank you all, and I wish we could hear all of
you individually. I do not know why you have to be lumped
together.

Have you all read the article by Cranford Pratt that is
contained in Irving Brecher’s book on human rights, develop-
ment and foreign policy, Canadian Perspectives? Have you had
a chance to see the article? Our researcher gave us all a copy and
I hope others have received one.

The article is called “The Limited Place of Human Rights in
Canadian Foreign Policy”, and it opened my eyes to a number
of points. Mr. Pratt quotes you, Mr. Regehr, on page 173 of the
book:

Bernie Regehr tells a similar story of minimal implementation
in regards to the official policy that Canada would sell no arms
to countries whose policies are wholly repugnant to Canadian
values. That attractive policy, often referred to, was, in fact,
never applied. The policies of no country were ever judged so
repugnant to Canadian values that we should not sell arms to
them.

Regehr also documents the fact that the rules relating to the
sales to oppressive regimes of equipment capable of being
used for both military and civilian purposes have consistently
been interpreted loosely so as to permit more sales.

The article provides a view as to why the people over at the
Pearson building are so adamantly opposed to having human
rights factors such as you have been discussing as active
ingredients in our foreign policy.

Do you have any insights to add, other than those you have
already mentioned? I think all of us on this committee are
dumbfounded at times at how little impact an elemental respect
for basic human rights has on the minds of those people; with the
best of intentions, I assume. Does any of you wish to comment?
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Mr. Regehr: By way of introduction I might make one
brief comment, and it is that the present climate in fact is
making this more difficult. Every industrialized country in the
world that has an arms industry is now experiencing the
problem of surplus capacity and is looking more aggressively for
customers beyond its own circles. There have been stories in The
New York Times recently about the step-up of sale of military
commodities demobilized in Europe to Third World countries.
In other words, it is becoming commercially much more
competitive, so the pressure is increasing to relax the guidelines,
to relax and eliminate or reduce the political impediments to
sales, because you have a hard enough time making them simply
on commercial grounds.

[Translation)

Pouvons-nous incorporer aux procgés-verbaux les documents
qui nous ont été fournis pour qu’ils contiennent le tableau, la
déclaration de M. Regehr et celle de M™ Greene?

Le président: Tout le monde est d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

M. Kilgour: Je vous remercie de votre témoignage. J’aurais
souhaité des comparutions distinctes. Je ne vois pas pourquoi
vous devez étre groupés.

Avez-vous tous lu I'article de Cranford Pratt contenu dans le
livre d’Irving Brecher au sujet des droits de la personne, du
développement et de la politique étrangére qui s'intitule
Canadian Perspectives? Avez-vous eu l'occasion d’en prendre
connaissance? Notre recherchiste nous en a remis un exemplaire
et j'espere que d’autres en ont regu.

L’article, qui s’intitule «The Limited Place of Human Rights
in Canadian Foreign Policy» m’a ouvert les yeux a divers égards.
M. Pratt vous cite, monsieur Regehr, a la page 173 de 'ouvrage:

Bernie Regehr constate le peu d’effet pratique de la politique
officielle selon laquelle le Canada ne vendra pas d’armes a des
pays dont la politique va tout a fait a I'encontre des valeurs
canadiennes. On a souvent cité cette politique fort louable
mais on ne I'a jamais appliquée. En effet, on n’a jamais jugé
que la politique d’'un pays allait a I'encontre des valeurs
canadiennes au point de nous interdire de lui vendre des
armes.

Regehr a réussi également a établir que les regles relatives a
la vente a des régimes oppressifs de matériel pouvant servir
aussi bien a des fins militaires que contre la population civile
ont toujours été interprétées de facon tres large, de maniere
a favoriser le commerce du matériel militaire.

Larticle nous permet de comprendre pourquoi les occupants de
I’Edifice Pearson s’opposent si farouchement a I'intégration de
critéres liés aux droits de la personne comme ceux dont il est
question ici a la prise de décision en matiére de politique
étrangere.

Vous auriez donc peut-étre quelques autres réflexions utiles
a nous exposer. Je crois qu’il arrive a tous les membres du comité
d’étre stupéfaits de constater la peu d’'importance que peut avoir
pour ceux qui déterminent notre politique étrangere les critéres
du respect élémentaire des droits de la personne, méme s'ils sont
sans doute animés des meilleures intentions. L'un d’entre vous
aurait-il un commentaire a formuler?

M. Regehr: Je vous dirais tout d’abord que le contexte
actuel rend la démarche plus difficile. Dans tous les pays
industrialisés du monde, l'industrie de l'armement est en
situation de capacité excédentaire et s’emploie a trouver de
nouveaux débouchés. Le New York Times faisait état récemment
des efforts accrus qui sont déployés a I'heure actuelle pour
vendre dans le tiers monde le matériel militaire devenu inutile
en Europe. Autrement dit, @ mesure que la concurrence
s"accentue, on cherche de plus en plus a assouplir ou a supprimer
les entraves politiques 4 un commerce des armes déja difficile.
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The one thing one can say in defence, in a not overly
complimentary way, of the Canadian policy is that while there
have been very specific efforts to increase sales and permits
have frequently been granted for the sale of military
commodities to repressive regimes, there are some notable
instances in which the sales then fell through, and that is precisely
because of the high level of competitiveness. It is very difficult
to sell, and that is going to put increased pressures on relaxation
of guidelines.

Mr. Kilgour: Pity.

Dr. Howard, your chart is a fascinating one. I am looking
particularly at Indonesia. Would their policies in East Timor
have played a major part in the ratings you have given them
under the different headings? Can you just explain that?

Dr. Howard: Yes, but do you mind if I answer your first
question briefly?

First, Mr. McChesney has a copy of this manual that I wrote
for External Affairs, and I sent Mrs. Stewart a copy as well. T have
no idea whether this will actually be used. I have the
impression—an impression only—that there is some resistance
to this first step of reporting on human rights in the internal
affairs of countries with whom we deal.

I do not want to ask you to focus on my judgments, which are
academic. Indonesia’s record on human rights, yes, is partly East
Timor; partly it is continued persecution of former political
prisoners, for example, who are denied the right to work,
thousands of murders of so-called criminals in urban areas in the
1980s persecution of minority Chinese, absence of freedom of
the press, and so on.

Nigeria appears to be heading in that direction, I am very sorry
to say.

Mr. Kilgour: And you could do this chart for presumably any
country you could get enough information about?

Dr. Howard: A human rights reporting officer who read
the basic information made available by organizations such as
Amnesty International or Article XIX on freedom of the
press, who took seriously his or her obligation to discuss
human rights with people at his or her posting, and who had
access to information provided by Canadians should be able to
make up a chart something like this on each country. However,
comparative evaluations would have to get really banged out.

But you do not actually need to compare countries with each
other. You can simply say that the best available evidence we
have on country X is that its human rights performance is
deteriorating and that we should look to see whether we should
redirect some of our aid.

[Traduction]

Si la politique canadienne en la matiére reste vertueuse,
c’est bien malgré elle. En effet, en dépit defforts trés
concrets visant a accroitre les ventes et du fait que de
nombreux permis ont été accordés pour la vente de matériel
militaire & des régimes répressifs, il est arrivé dans certains cas
retentissants que les efforts de vente n’ont pas abouti, justement
a cause de l'intensité de la concurrence. Dans ce contexte, les
exportateurs vont s’efforcer de faire assouplir les lignes de
conduite.

M. Kilgour: C’est dommage.

Madame Howard, votre tableau est des plus intéressant. Les
diverses cotes que vous attribuez a 'Indonésie dépendent-elles
dans une large mesure de la politique de ce pays a I'endroit de
Timor est? Pouvez-vous me donner des explications?

Mme Howard: Jaimerais tout d’abord répondre a votre
premiére question.

M. McChesney a recu un exemplaire du manuel que j'ai
rédigé pour le compte des Affaires extérieures et j’en ai
également fait parvenir un a M™® Stewart. Je ne sais pas du tout
si le document va étre utilisé. J’ai 'impression—tout simplement
I'impression—que cette premiére étape de surveillance des
droits de la personne dans les pays avec lesquels nous
entretenons des relations suscite certaines résistances.

Pour ce qui est du tableau, mes observations sont d’ordre
théorique et je vous prie de ne pas trop vous y attarder. La cote
attribuée a 'Indonésie en matiere de droits de la personne est
effectivement liée a la situation a Timor est. Elle est li€e
également aux persécutions que continuent de subir d’anciens
prisonniers politiques a qui on refuse, par exemple, l'autorisa-
tion de travailler, a I’assassinat de milliers de prétendus criminels
dans les régions urbaines lors des persécutions visant la minorité
chinoise durant les années 1980, a I'absence de liberté de la
presse, et ainsi de suite.

Je dois constater a regret que le Nigéria semble vouloir
emprunter la méme voie.

M. Kilgour: Et, avec les renseignements voulus, on pourrait
vraisemblablement dresser ce genre de tableau pour n’importe

quel pays?

Mme Howard: Pour dresser un tableau du genre, il
suffirait a tout agent de surveillance des droits de la personne
de lire les renseignements de base fournis par des
organisations comme Amnistie Internationale ou obtenus aux
termes de Particle 19 sur la liberté de la presse, de s’intéresser
sérieusement aux questions de droits de la personne dans son
pays d’affectation et de réunir des renseignements obtenus
aupres de sources canadiennes. Cependant, il faudrait des
évaluations comparatives trés sérieuses.

Cependant, il n’est pas nécessaire de comparer des pays les
uns aux autres. En se fondant tout simplement sur les
renseignements disponibles sur un pays donné, on peut trés bien
arriver a la conclusion que la situation se détériore en matiére de
droits de la personne et qu’il convient d’envisager la possibilité
de réorienter une partie du programme d’aide.
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An example is Mr. Abdoulaye Wade, who came here from
Senegal last September. He is the leader of one of the opposition
parties. Ataluncheon he asked a CIDA official whether we could
not give him a printing press. He is the leader of the Liberal
Party, one of the two opposition parties, but he needs a new
printing press—that kind of thing.

Mr. Kilgour: Ms Greene, you have been at human rights for
along time. Would you add some insight into how we shake them
enough over at External Affairs that they will start to pay
attention to the concerns we are all concerned with?

Ms Greene: Sure. One of our early briefs identified the
problem we had picked up of what we called
compartmentalization of human rights. That is a natural
evolution of bureaucratic institutions, and I do not mean
bureaucratic in a pejorative sense. People have to have job
descriptions and have to have quite precise divisions of
labour, and it is quite a natural phenomenon to say that
people who are related to the United Nations section of the
Department of External Affairs will take care of human rights
and, quite thoughtlessly, leave it at that. That has been the reason
we have gone to Canadian corporations and tried to acquaint
them with the fact that there are United Nations declarations.
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You simply have to inform people who have senior
decision-making capacity that standards exist, that there are
ways to get information, and it is important to take
responsibility in leadership positions, either in the External
Affairs department or within the private sector to create the job
descriptions, the processes, the standards that will allow this to
become part of the life of an organization. It takes a very long
time. I do not think it is all ill will, but I think the forces Bernie
has described make it harder to do.

Mrs. Stewart (Northumberland): I also regret that we do not
have a lot more time with our witnesses today, because each one
of them is such a fount of information. I certainly have a lot of
questions, and I am sure asking them will provoke others. I will
start with trying to look at one for each of the witnesses.

Rhoda Howard, I was very interested in receiving your
paper, which presented your manual. Thank you very much
for sending it to me. I was concerned when I finished reading
it—to the same question that was expressed already by David.
It outlined a process that I think we need as a basis to get
going, but I was concerned about the application of that. You
have already answered to some extent your concern that
there is reluctance to actually apply this. Our concern is that
we go through processes, but we do not really have a concrete
commitment to them. Has there been any discussion about the
External Affairs department, about CIDA or any department
going through staff and officer training using your manual?

Dr. Howard: There is already a program of staff and
officer training in human rights. I attended one session with
Mr. McCurdy, as it happens. It was a two-day session in
which there were some presentations, and then there were

[Translation]

Jai & I'esprit le cas de M. Abdoulaye Wade, un Sénégalais qui
aséjourné ici en septembre. I dirige I'un des partis d’opposition.
Lors d’'un déjeuner, il a demandé a un représentant de 'ACDI
s’il ne serait pas possible de lui fournir une presse. Il a beau étre
le chef du Parti libéral, 'un des deux partis de 'opposition, ce
qu’il lui faut, c’est une nouvelle presse.

M. Kilgour: Madame Greene, vous vous intéressez depuis
longtemps aux droits de la personne. Sauriez-vous comment
nous pourrions inciter les gens des Affaires extérieures a tenir
compte de nos préoccupations?

Mme Greene: Certainement. Dans l'un de nos premiers
mémoires, nous avions mis le doigt sur le probléme de
cloisonnement qui existe en matiére de droits de la personne.
Il s’agit du résultat d’'une évolution normale pour les
institutions bureaucratiques et jemploie le terme sans
intention péjorative. La division du travail étant ce qu’elle
est, avec ses descriptions de taches et ainsi de suite, il est
assez normal de supposer sans y réfléchir davantage que les
fonctionnaires qui ont des rapports avec la section des Nations
Unies du ministéres des Affaires extérieures seront ceux qui se
chargeront des droits de la personne. Voila pourquoi nous avons
cru bon d’approcher les entreprises canadiennes pour tenter de
les sensibiliser a I'existence des déclarations des Nations Unies.

Il est essentiel d’informer les décideurs qu'il existe des
normes, qu’il est possible d’obtenir des renseignements et
que ceux qui occupent des postes de commande, tant au
ministére des Affaires extérieures que dans le secteur privé,
ont la responsabilité de mettre au point les descriptions de
taches, les procédés, les normes qui permettront d’intégrer les
considérations relatives aux droits de la personne a Iactivité de
toute organisation. Le processus est lent. Ce n’est pas, 8 mon
avis, une question de mauvaise volonté. Cependant, j’estime que
les tendances décrites par Bernie rendent la tache plus difficile.

Mme Stewart (Northumberland): Je trouve malheureux
également que nous n’ayons pas plus de temps a consacrer a nos
témoins aujourd’hui, puisque chacun d’entre eux connait
tellement bien son domaine. Mes questions sont nombreuses et
je suis convaincue qu’elles en susciteront d’autres. Je vais tenter
tout d’abord d’en poser une a chacun des témoins.

Madame Howard, je vous remercie de m’avoir fait
parvenir votre manuel. II m’a beaucoup intéressé. Apres
Pavoir lu, je me suis posé la méme question que celle qu'a
déja posée David. Le processus décrit dans le document me
semble nécessaire comme point de départ mais je me suis
interrogée sur son application éventuelle. Vous nous avez
déja fait savoir qu’il semblait exister certaines réticences a ce
sujet. Nous avons parfois tendance & préparer des projets,
mais sans aller jusqua les concrétiser. A-t-on étudié, au
ministére des Affaires extérieures, a '’ACDI ou dans un autre
ministére, la possibilité d’utiliser votre manuel comme instru-
ment de formation des membres du personnel?

Mme Howard: Il existe déja un programme de formation
du personnel en matiére de droits de la personne. De fait, j’ai
participé & une séance avec M. McCurdy. Il s’agissait d'une
séance de deux jours comportant des exposés et des
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some discussions of cases. This manual has in fact just been
finished. The idea is that it will supplement telexed and
confidential instructions. I have no idea how it will be used, if at
all.

Mrs. Stewart: I sense from all of you that you agree that aid,
trade, refugee determination, and trade in arms should all be
integrated in terms of how we address human rights issues. We
obviously recognize the compartmentalization of human rights
and how it is being addressed, which is a problem.

You may know that we have a subcommittee under the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and International
Trade that is looking at international debt. Certainly the
human rights perspective of how we deal with international
debt has come before that committee. So there is a certain
overlap that I have experienced. But we are starting to
produce a report in the subcommittee on international debt,
and one of the areas we are particularly going to be
addressing is the role of the international financial institutions
and our own Export Development Corporation, the fact that
there is this compartmentalization and how we get those
departments to work together.

Bonnie Greene, in your work I have had a sense that the
Canadian Council of Churches has tended to look at the private
sector in relation to human rights issues, but is there a
discrepancy or a focus that is more important than another to
address? My perception is maybe wrong, but I perceive that you
tend to address your efforts to the private corporate sector rather
than government.

Ms Greene: No. All the recommendations that are listed
here that relate to trade with human rights violator regimes
are drawn from briefs to government about government
policy. A great deal of energy goes into meetings as
shareholders with the management of companies and banks
in our portfolios, because there is no requirement that on
incorporation a company within Canada must have a social
responsibility set of standards. It does not have to have that.
It does not have to have a social responsibility review process at
the moment. We tried to get an amendment to the Ontario
Business Corporations Act to deal with that kind of question
some time ago, but did not find political will for it.
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At the moment we are forced to deal with private activity
that deals with human rights violators, simply as
shareholders. We are perfectly happy to do that. We
recognize the legitimacy of that within our kind of society
where the private sector is not intruded upon in an onerous way
by the government. But we would at least appreciate some sort
of restrictions on the part of the government; for instance,
requirements for social responsibility guidelines within corpra-
tla(;(ns. That is a very important step that the government could
take.

[Traduction]

discussions de cas. Le manuel vient tout juste d’étre rédigé. Il est
censé servir de complément aux renseignements transmis par
télex et aux instructions confidentielles. Je ne sais pas du tout
quel usage on compte en faire; je ne sais méme pas §'il va étre
utilisé.

Mme Stewart: Vous semblez tous étre d’accord pour dire que
les questions de droits de la personne doivent étre abordées de
facon globale en tenant compte des domaines de la coopération,
du commerce extérieur, de la détermination du statut des
réfugiés et du commerce des armements. Il existe évidemment
un probléme de cloisonnement et nous le reconnaissons.

Vous savez peut-étre qu’il existe un sous-comité du
Comité permanent des affaires étrangéres et du commerce
extérieur qui se penche sur I'endettement international. Or,
ce comité a certainement été sensibilisé aux rapports qui
existent entre la question des droits de la personne et celle de
la dette internationale. J'ai donc pu constater un certain
degré d’intégration des deux questions. Dans le cadre de la
préparation de son rapport, le sous-comité s’intéresse
notamment au role des institutions financiéres internationales
et aussi d’une institution financiére canadienne, la Société pour
I'expansion des exportations, au phénomene du cloisonnement
et aux moyens d’assurer 'intégration des activités des divers
ministeres.

Madame Greene, vos travaux m’ont donné I'impression que
le Conseil canadien des Eglises a eu tendance a aborder la
question des droits de la personne en se penchant surtout sur le
secteur privé et je me demande s’il n’y a pas 1a un certain
déséquilibre? J’ai I'impression, peut-€tre a tort, que vous vous
intéressez davantage au secteur privé qu’au secteur gouverne-
mental.

Mme Greene: Non. Toutes les recommandations qui
figurent ici et qui portent sur les échanges commerciaux avec
des régimes qui violent les droits de la personne sont tirées
de mémoires adressés au gouvernement et visant la politique
gouvernementale. Nous consacrons beaucoup d’efforts aux
rencontres, a titre d’actionnaires, avec des dirigeants de
sociétés et de banques et, étant donné que les entreprises qui
se constituent en sociétés au Canada ne sont tenues de
respecter aucune norme en matiere de responsabilité sociale.
L’exigence n’existe pas. Un processus d’examen de la responsa-
bilité sociale n’est pas nécessaire pour le moment. Nous avons
tenté d’obtenir une modification a la Ontario Business Corpora-
tions Act pour régler cette question il y a quelque temps déja,
mais il n’y avait pas la volonté politique nécessaire.

Pour T'instant, nous sommes obligés de nous pencher sur
les activités commerciales privées dans des pays portant
atteinte aux droits de la personne uniquement a titre
d’actionnaires. Nous sommes heureux de pouvoir agir ainsi.
Nous reconnaissons que dans notre société, le secteur privé ne
doit pas subir d’ingérence indue du gouvernement. Mais nous
aimerions que le gouvernement impose au moins certaines
restrictions. Par exemple, qu’il exige des sociétés privées qu’elles
respectent le principe de la responsabilité sociale. Ce serait 1a un
premier pas trés important pour le gouvernement.
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That would at least move us in the direction of the private
sector having a signal from government that it expected social
responsibility on the part of corporate entities. I must say they
have moved rather rapidly among the largest corporations into
that kind of discussion themselves. The problem is primarily with
the smaller corporations that are not really playing in the more
enlightened leagues.

Mrs. Stewart: In terms of the international financial
institutions, over the years questions have been put to
governments about how the international financial
institutions make their loans, grants, whatever, to countries.
The response has more generally been that those particular
institutions must operate exclusively on economic principles
rather than taking in the civil-political rights issues. Do you see
any movement out of that mode, or ways we as a committee
might try to encourage a move from that?

Ms Greene: I do not think I would say that we see
movement. It is the reason I commended the Conference on
Security and Co-operation to the committee. When a critical
mass of opinion begins to move in a particular direction,
Canada tends to jump into the fray and to be rather vigorous
in pushing the case within an international arena or
multilateral arena. Our sense is that this has not been the
case on Canada’s part in the international financial
institutions. We have asked that we carry the can for this
particular approach, for some sort of social responsibility
guidelines for international financial institutions, and give
leadership, even if there is not a political moment within those
institutions right now.

We have also asked that if Canada cannot win consensus
among the other member states of the financial institutions,
at the very least it would offer guidance and instructions to
our representatives, as small as our voting capacity might be.
I would not be overly optimistic about our capacity to persuade
all sorts of other member states; we are not that big a player
necessarily. But that does not absolve us of the obligation to
make the case and to act within those institutions on the basis
of our own commitments. They are in our interests as well as in
others.

But again, I think the change that has begun to come within
the Conference on Security and Co-operation in Europe
indicates that there are institutions that can reach a critical mass
of consensus and make shifts. That to me is an encouraging sign.

Mrs. Stewart: All of you refer to disclosure as being an
important principle. Mr. Regehr, I wonder if you could let us
know how Canada ranks in terms of disclosure with other
countries of our arms sales abroad, in terms of destination and
so on. Where do we rank in the western world?

Mr. Regehr: The country that ranks high—I do not
know if highest, because it is difficult to judge—is the United
States, which has a much more extensive requirement for
disclosure and for congressional review of exports. There is a
threshold, the amount of which I have forgotten, but it is
probably higher than the highest of Canadian military exports;
in other words, the low end of the threshold in the United States
that requires a full disclosure is of quite a high value.

[Translation]

Le gouvernement pourrait ainsi commencer a faire compren-
dre au secteur privé qu’il s’attend a ce que celui-ci assume ses
responsabilités sociales. Il faut avouer que les plus grandes
sociétés ont déja entamé d’elles-mémes ce genre de discussions.
Le probléme provient surtout des petites sociétés qui sont moins
sensibilisées a la question.

Mme Stewart: Dans le cas des institutions financiéres
internationales, on a posé des questions aux gouvernements
sur la fagcon dont elles accordaient leurs préts ou leurs
subventions a certains pays. La réponse était généralement
que ces institutions doivent faire reposer leurs décisions
exclusivement sur des principes économiques sans tenir compte
des droits civils et politiques. Voyez-vous un changement dans
ce domaine ou pouvez-vous proposer au comité des facons de
favoriser ce changement?

Mme Greene: Je ne crois pas qu’il y ait eu des
changements. C’est pourquoi j'ai parlé avec chaleur de la
Conférence sur la sécurité et la coopération en Europe.
Quand une masse critique commence a se former, le Canada
a tendance a se mettre de la partic et a défendre
énergiquement la cause dans laréne internationale ou
multilatérale. Nous estimons qu’il ne I'a pas fait cette fois
pour les institutions financieres internationales. Nous avons
demandé que le Canada prenne la défense de cette approche et
prone le principe de la responsabilité sociale pour les institutions
financiéres internationales, et que nous fassions preuve de
leadership méme si la volonté politique manque au sein de ces
institutions.

Nous avons également demandé que, si le Canada ne
peut rallier les autres états qui soutiennent ces institutions
financiéres, qu’il donne au moins des instructions a ses
représentants, méme si notre vote n’est pas nécessairement
déterminant. Je ne serais pas trop optimiste au sujet de notre
capacité de persuader les autres états membres; nous ne sommes
pas un partenaire si important. Mais cela ne diminue en rien
notre obligation de défendre cette cause au sein de ces
institutions. Il y va de notre intérét et de celui d’autres pays.

Je crois que les changements qu'on a pu entrevoir a la
Conférence sur la sécurité et la coopération en Europe
démontrent qu’il peut y avoir un changement d’attitude
important au sein de certaines institutions. C’est pour moi un
signe d’espoir.

Mme Stewart: Vous parlez tous de l'importance de la
transparence. Monsieur Regehr, j'aimerais savoir comment le
Canada se place par rapport aux autres pays pour la divulgation
de ses ventes d’armes a I'étranger, la destination des armes, etc.
Comment nous plagons-nous parmi les autres pays occiden-
taux?

M. Regehr: Il est difficile d’évaluer quel pays occupe la
premiére position. Mais les Etats-Unis sont certainement
parmi les premiers pays en ce qui touche les exigences de
divulgation et I'examen des exportations par le Congres. Il y
a un seuil pour la divulgation, mais j'oublie les détails. Il est
toutefois probablement plus élevé que les plus importantes
exportations de matériel militaire du Canada. Autrement dit, le
seuil pour lequel est exigé la divulgation des ventes aux
Etat-Unis est trés élevé.
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So you would have to use different figures. But there is a
procedure in the United States for full reporting to Congress.
The President is required to report to Congress military sales
above a certain value, and Congress then has a certain number
of days—I think it is 60 days—within which to comment or to
deny permission for such a sale.
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The majority of the sales simply go through, but the act
of reporting them to Congress for scrutiny is an act of public
disclosure. This is of great benefit to non-governmental
groups. It permits them to engage in political discussion
about the appropriateness of sending military commodities
hither and yon, and that activity of political debate and
discussion in the informal sector of the non-governmental
sector acts as a restraining influence on the activity itself. The
President, because he knows there is going to be a political
response, is more restrained and careful about the ones that are
reported. Of course, as a major military manufacturer the United
States reserves the right to export military commodities wherever
they want and they sell them widely.

So the United States is a good example of extensive disclosure.
Britain has a policy similar to Canada’s—it is quite restrictive.
Only aggregate figures are provided, and there is no parliamenta-
ry review. Sweden has a bit more disclosure.

Mr. McCurdy (Windsor—St-Clair): We seem to have a
phenomenon in which the parliamentary system presents
serious impediments to getting any information at all, and the
congressional system inevitably leads to more openness. In
any case, only $300 million worth of Canadian weapons is
likely to be sold overseas. One inevitably wonders when the
low mark for disclosure in the United States comes close to
being the high mark of our total sales. One wonders how
much energy one should spend on it. I suppose a question you
have to ask about all of these things is, how much impact does
Canada have with any action it takes with respect to human and
political rights?

Let us use a more direct example. It concerns Myanmar,
where Petro-Canada is engaged in a contract with a
repressive regime, one which may have met its Waterloo
although we cannot be sure of that. Several of us have posed
the question, why does the government not act? There are
several aspects to this question—can it act, how does it act, what
would be an appropriate way of approaching this, and what
general rules might be applied to Crown corporations—never
mind private enterprise—in terms of relating human rights to the
way we behave towards those human rights offenders?

Ms Greene: We absolutely agree that corporate-led
sanctions should apply to Crown corporations. That ought to
be easier to achieve, but it has not been. We had one case
where the Province of Ontario owned shares in a major

[Traduction]

11 faudrait donc utiliser des chiffres différents. Mais il y a bien
aux Etats-Unis une procédure d’examen par le Congres. Le
président doit déclarer au Congres les ventes de matériel
militaire dépassant une certaine valeur. Le Congres a ensuite un
certain nombre de jours, 60, je crois, pour émettre des
commentaires ou refuser d’autoriser la vente.

La majorité des ventes sont tout simplement autorisées,
mais la déclaration au Congrés pour examen est une forme
de divulgation publique. C’est un grand avantage pour les
organisations non gouvernementales. En effet, cela leur
permet d’entamer les discussions politiques sur la pertinence
d’envoyer du matériel militaire a I'étranger et cette activité
de débat politique informel, dans le secteur non
gouvernemental, a déja une influence restreignante sur les
ventes. Le président, parce qu’il connait les répercussions
politiques de son geste, est plus prudent pour les ventes qui sont
divulgées. Bien entendu, en tant que fabricants de matériel
militaire, les Etats-Unis se réservent le droit d’exporter du
matériel militaire ou que ce soit. Ils ont une large clientéle.

Les Etats-Unis sont donc un bon exemple de divulgation
étendue. La Grande-Bretagne a une politique similaire a celle
du Canada, qui est trés limitée. On ne fournit que des chiffres
globaux, et il n’y a pas d’examen parlementaire. La Suede offre
un peu plus de transparence.

M. McCurdy (Windsor—Saint-Claire): Il semble que
notre syst¢tme parlementaire pose des obstacles sérieux a
I'obtention d’information alors que le systtme du Congres
mene inévitablement a une plus grande ouverture. Quoi qu’il
en soit, plus de 300 millions de dollars d’armes canadiennes
semblent étre vendues a I'étranger. On ne peut que se poser
des questions lorsque le seuil de divulgation aux Etats-Unis
est pres du plafond de nos ventes totales. On se demande
combien d’énergie il faut y consacrer. Et dans toutes ces
questions, il faut bien se demander quelle influence peuvent
avoir les mesures prises par le Canada par rapport aux droits de
la personne et aux droits politiques?

Prenons un exemple concret. Il s’agit de Myanmar.
Petro-Canada a un contrat avec un régime répressif, dont on
ne sait pas encore s’il connaitra un revers. Plusieurs d’entre
nous se sont posé la question: Pourquoi le gouvernement
n’agit-il pas? Il y a plusieurs aspects a cette question. Peut-il
agir? Comment agit-il? Quelle serait la bonne facon de
procéder? Quelles régles générales pourraient s’appliquer aux
sociétés d’Etat, ne parlons pas du secteur privé, en ce qui
concerne les droits de la personne et notre comportement
vis-a-vis des violateurs de ces droits?

Mme Greene: Nous sommes d’accord, les sanctions du
secteur privé devraient s’appliquer également aux sociétés
d’Etat. Ce devrait méme étre plus facile a réaliser, méme si
on ne I'a pas fait. Je me souviens d’un cas ou la province de



6:20

International Human Rights

29-5-1990

[Text]

corporation engaged in a joint venture with the Government of
South Africa. In the 1980s when we asked the Province of
Ontario to vote with us on our shareholder resolution to ask the
company to give up its contracts with the police and military of
the South African government, the Government of Ontario did
not make that decision. I think that is a scandalous situation.
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What we are looking for is some sort of similarity in the
application of standards across the board, but somebody has
to set up the basic demand that there be social responsibility
guidelines established, whether it is a public or a private
sector corporation, and that there be a review process with
public disclosure or there is no way to make that happen.
Otherwise, you end up in the situation we had with the
Government of Ontario, where the only possibility to
embarrass the government was if the media took a shot at the
provincial government, and that is a matter of competition with
all the other events that might make the press on a particular day.
That is not a very regular way to deal with human rights
obligations.

Dr. Howard: I can give you an answer from the work I
did, comparing human rights violations in South Africa and
black Africa, which is published in the volume edited by
Cranford Pratt and Robert Matthews. A question that was
posed to me frequently was, why should we worry about
South Africa when there are some black African countries
that are just as bad? My answer would be that we ought to
clean up our own house first. When very severe human rights
violators are in the orbit of the western world and are our historic
allies—in the case of South Africa, also a former member of the
British Commonwealth with whom there are links of ancestry,
religion and so on—then I think we have a particularly strong
obligation to say we will not countenance this kind of human
rights abuse any longer.

Further, in the case of South Africa, it was a particularly
western kind of abuse; namely, discrimination against people
who are not white. Finally, on the practical level, there was an
international movement both of governments and of non-gov-
ernmental organizations that increased the chance that we could
actually get something done.

There are many countries in the world whose human
rights performance is well below the threshold of what is
acceptable. I do not believe any Canadian government of any
party would voluntarily or even unhappily put itself in a
situation where it did not make profits, as in the case of
Petro-Canada and the CANDU sales to Romania. I think we
have a particular obligation to act when a human rights violator
is within the western orbit and when we ourselves can be
considered to be complicitous, or to be helping in that human
rights violation. But that is not the general principle you are
looking for.

Mr. McCurdy: David asked earlier about the seemingly
almost absolute resistance of the External Affairs bureaucracy
to any change in what seems to be a very fundamental ethic.
It really is difficult to comprehend how it is possible for a

[Translation)

I'Ontario possédait des actions d’'une grande société qui avait
une entreprise en co-participation avec le gouvernement en
Afrique du Sud. Dans les années 80, nous avons demandé a la
province de voter avec nous sur une résolution d’actionnaires
pour demander a la société de renoncer a ses contrats avec la
police et 'armée du gouvernement sud-africain. Le gouverne-
ment de 'Ontario en a décidé autrement. Je pense que c'est
scandaleux.

Ce que nous souhaitons, ce sont des normes semblables
d’application générale, mais il faut que quelqu’un établisse
fermement le principe de la responsabilité sociale, qu’il
s’agisse d’'une société publique ou privée, et qu'un processus
de révision avec divulgation publique des informations soit
mis en place. Sinon, on va se retrouver dans la méme
situation que le gouvernement de 'Ontario qui n’agit que si
les médias I'attaquent et le mettent dans I'embarras, ce qui
signifie qu’il faut auparavant convaincre les médias que ces
questions présentent plus d’intérét que les autres. Vous
conviendrez que ce n’est pas une méthode trés fiable pour
garantir le respect des droits de la personne.

Mme Howard: Je vais vous répondre en comparant les
violations des droits de la personne en Afrique du Sud et
dans les pays d’Afrique noire, telles qu’elles sont rapportées
dans le volume de Cranford Pratt et Robert Matthews. On
me dit souvent: «pourquoi accorder tant d’importance a
I’Afrique du Sud quand la situation est aussi déplorable dans
certains pays d’Afrique noire»? Ma réponse a cela est qu'il
faut d’abord mettre de l'ordre chez-soi. Quand les pays qui
méprisent le plus les droits de la personne sont dans le
collimateur du monde occidental, et quand ces pays font partie
de nos alliés traditionnels—et je rappelle que I’Afrique du Sud
était également membre du Commonwealth, avec lequel nous
avions des liens historiques, religieux et autres—nous avons
I'obligation trés nette d’intervenir publiquement.

D’autre part, dans le cas de I’Afrique du Sud, il s’agissait d'une
forme d’abus particuliérement occidental, c’est-a-dire de
discrimination contre des non blancs. Finalement, sur le plan
pratique, la naissance d’'un mouvement international regroupant
des gouvernements et des organisations gouvernementales
augmentait nos chances de succes.

Bon nombre de pays sont largement en-dessous de ce qui
est tolérable, au chapitre du respect des droits de la
personne. Je ne crois pas cependant que le gouvernement
canadien, quel qu’il soit, veuille, délibérément ou non,
refuser de faire des profits, comme dans le cas des ventes de
Petro-Canada et du CANDU a la Roumanie. Il n’en reste pas
moins que nous avons le devoir particulier d’intervenir quand un
pays portant atteinte aux droits de la personne fait partie de
orbite occidentale et que nous risquons d’étre considérés
comme des complices. Mais cela n’est cependant pas le principe
général que vous recherchez.

M. McCurdy: David vous a interrogé tout a I'heure au
sujet de la résistance apparemment absolue de la bureaucratie
et des Affaires extérieures a tout changement fondamental au
plan de I'éthique. Il est difficile de comprendre comment un
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government to fail utterly to react in the case of Petro-Canada
or the CANDU reactor sales to Romania in the face of gross and
collusive —insofar as Canada is concerned—human rights abuse,
to not take any action whatever.

You would think the natural response of a Joe Clark or
of a Jake Epp ought to be, dammit, let us put a stop to this;
let us make sure there is no implication of Canada in any
official or semi-official way in this kind of garbage. How can
we reconcile that to what we claim to be our principles on
the international scene with respect to human rights and
democracy? When we had the hearings on South Africa, it
was pretty damn clear that those who were operating in that
sector four years ago were doing every bloody thing conceivable
to impede any reasonable approach, beyond rhetoric, when
dealing with the South African regime. It has changed since then,
and of course the political imperatives were coming from
elsewhere. But it does seem to me that there is a huge wall of
resistance and convention and so on that prevents so much of
what seems to be so bloody obvious. We are sitting here spinning
our wheels about such questions as. .. Really, let us face it, we
are spinning our wheels.

e 1910

I do not think there is anybody at this table who does not
feel we should have full disclosure of arms sales, who does
not feel we should have full disclosure of the judgment our
government imposes upon the various nations in the world
with which we deal in respect to their human rights and
democratic practices. It is virtually considered to be revolution-
ary even to contemplate that, and most of the bloody information
about what we do we get from American disclosure.

I think it is an outrage, but I also think it is an outrage
that we sit here spinning our wheels to arrive at a conclusion
that was already in front of us a year ago, that we should
have this. Be patient with me. I am wondering whether there
is any collective advice there, not on whether we should do
certain things, because we are all in agreement, you three,
everybody here is all in agreement. Do you have any suggestions
on how we can change this?

Ms Greene: Yes.
Mr. McCurdy: How we can penetrate this bloody mess?

Ms Greene: We have a very concrete example from our
own experience as non-governmental organizations involved
in the United Nations process with External Affairs. It used
to be that back in the early 1980s and late 1970s, when it was
time for the United Nations Human Rights Commission to meet,
we travelled to Geneva and hung around the edges, never
knowing, having no disclosure from the Canadian delegation on
what its priorities were going to be around human rights violator
regimes, what kinds of actions they were going call for, etc., etc.

Sometimes we found that the evidence we would lay
before other country delegations would be contradicted by the
Canadian delegation. We were very fortunate to get from the
person of Yvon Beaulne, who at the time was the

[Traduction]

gouvernement peut rester aussi passif dans le cas des ventes de
Petro-Canada ou des ventes de CANDU a la Roumanie, face a
des abus aussi flagrants en matiére de droits de la personne,
étant donné que cela frise méme la collusion, tout au moins pour
ce qui est du Canada.

On pourrait penser qu'un Joe Clark ou un Jake Epp
n’hésiterait pas & y mettre le hola, de fagon a garantir que le
Canada ne pourra jamais étre accusé de collusion avec ce
genre d’horreur, sous quelque forme que ce soit. Comment
pouvons-nous alors prétendre que nous respectons les
principes internationaux en matiére de droits de la personne
et de démocratie? Quand nous avons tenu des audiences sur
I'Afrique du Sud, il était évident que ceux qui travaillaient
dans ce secteur, il y a quatre ans, avaient recours a toutes les
combines possible pour bloquer toute intervention raisonnable
face au régime sud-africain. La situation a changé depuis, et les
impératifs politiques ne sont plus les mémes. Il me semble
toutefois qu’il y a toujours une résistance énorme qui empéche
de faire ce qui parait tellement évident. Nous sommes ici a
tourner en rond alors qu’il y a de vrais problémes a résoudre.
Honnétement, reconnaissez que nous tournons en rond.

Il n’y a personne autour de cette table qui ne soit pas
convaincu que nous devrions divulguer les chiffres sur nos
ventes d’armes ainsi que l'opinion officielle de notre
gouvernement au sujet des infractions aux droits de la
personne et aux pratiques démocratiques par telle ou telle
nation. Pour certains, ce serait presque révolutionnaire que
d’envisager une telle chose alors qu’elle est tout a fait naturelle
de la part des Etats-Unis.

A mon avis, nous nous comportons de maniére honteuse
et il est honteux que nous soyons obligés de tourner en rond
pour arriver a une conclusion qui était déja évidente il y a un
an. Je me demande donc si vous avez des conseils a nous
donner pour sortir de ce cercle vicieux. Autrement dit, quelles
recommandations concrétes pouvez-vous faire, étant donné
qu’il est bien évident que nous sommes tous d’accord sur
I'objectif ultime.

Mme Greene: Oui.
M. McCurdy: Comment sortir de cette pagaille?

Mme Greene: Je peux vous donner un exemple trés
concret, tiré de notre expérience d’organisation non
gouvernementale ayant participé au processus des Nations
unies avec les Affaires extérieures. Au début des années 80,
et méme a la fin des années 70, quand la Commission des droits
de ’'homme des Nations unies devait tenir une réunion, nous
nous rendions a Genéve et nous tournions autour des
délégations officielles. Cependant, la délégation canadienne
refusait systématiquement de nous dire quelles étaient ses
priorités a I'égard des régimes portant atteinte aux droits de la
personne, quelles mesures de rétorsion elle allait réclamer, etc.

Nous constations parfois que certaines informations que
nous adressions a d’autres délégations nationales étaient
contredites par la délégation canadienne. Nous avons
finalement eu la chance que M. Yvon Beaulne, ambassadeur
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ambassador to the commission, a commitment to disclosure and
aregular systematized process of review and detailed dialogue on
the question, not simply frustration in which we say, my God, this
has gotten to such a bloody mess that we now must invoke a trade
sanction.

That is a reaction of frustration; that is not a systematic,
serious review. What happened because of Ivon Beaulne’s
work is that a regular review now occurs. Every January and
February we have a late summer review of the results of
what happened at the United Nations. We now have comparison
of External Affairs assessment of the human rights situation of
the priorities to go on the agenda, and dialogue between the
human rights organizations that are non-governmental and the
federal government and other ministries. It takes place, it is
regularized, it is institutionalized, it is part of our life.

People now have it on their day books, it is in people’s
jobs descriptions to do it, and that is what makes it work.
That is why we have suggested that there needs to be a public
review mechanism that deals with the kind of information
and goes on rather regularly. It cannot happen on a hit-and-miss
basis, it cannot happen just because there are elections in country
X. It must happen over a period of time and it has to be
sytematized, and that is the only thing that will empower you as
parliamentarians.

We do not claim that the review process is perfect for
non-governmental organizations, but it is 1,000 times better than
anything we ever had before and better than exists in most of the
countries in which there are churches that we work with.

Mr. McCurdy: This manual of yours—

The Chairman: I am sorry, Mr. McCurdy. If you do not have
any more comment, Dr. Howard, I will recognize Mr. Walker.

Dr. Howard: It was just that the manual, as far as I
know, will not be a public document. The manual will be
public, but the results of the assessments, as far as I know,
are not intended to be public. You could ask External Affairs
why that would be so, and they will probably say because they
cannot be frank when the assessments are public. The advantage
of making them public is, of course, that non-governmental
organizations and experts and parliamentarians and so on can
then object and ask for corrections and so on. But there is then
an official statement of what the government thinks about that
country.

This is what has happened in the United States. The U.S.
assessments in the early 1980s were considered to be quite bad
on the whole. As a result of much pressure from NGOs and
experts, they have become much better, with the exception of a
few countries in which the United States has important political
interests.
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Mr. Walker (Winnipeg North Centre): This was the very
point, Professor Howard, that I wanted to pick up on; that is,
whether or not you thought the American model was good.
My own bias is that although it is a very ambitious project at

[Translation]

canadien auprés de la commission, prenne 'engagement de
nous communiquer régulierement des informations et de
participer & un dialogue systématique a ce sujet. De cette
mani€re, nous pouvions discuter sériecusement des mesures
nécessaires pour sortir de cette pagaille, par exemple en
invoquant des sanctions commerciales.

Il n’y avait auparavant pas d’analyse systématique et
sérieuse de la situation. Griace & Yvon Beaulne, cela se fait
maintenant de maniere réguliere. En janvier et février, nous
faisons le point sur les activités des Nations unies. Nous
pouvons analyser la position des Affaires extérieure sur les
divers régimes portant atteinte aux droits de la personne, et nous
pouvons dialoguer avec les organisations non gouvernementales
ainsi qu’avec d’autres ministéres. Ce processus est désormais
régulier, il est institutionnalisé.

Comme ces consultations sont maintenant officielles et
planifiées, les choses vont beaucoup mieux. Voila d’ailleurs
pourquoi nous recommandons un mécanisme d’examen
public, qui permettrait d’examiner publiquement ce genre
d’informations, a intervalle régulier. Cela ne peut pas se faire au
hasard, simplement parce que tel ou tel pays tient des élections.
Ce doit étre un processus systématique et a long terme, et c’est
le seul qui puisse vous donner a vous, parlementaires, un moyen
d’action réel.

Nous ne prétendons pas que le processus de révision soit
parfait pour les organisations non gouvernementales, mais il est
mille fois préférable a la situation d’autrefois, et a celle qui
prévaut encore dans la plupart des pays ot il y a des églises avec
lesquelles nous travaillons.

M. McCurdy: Votre manuel. ..

Le président: Veuillez m’excuser, monsieur McCurdy. Si
Madame Howard n’a rien a ajouter, je vais devoir donner la
parole a M. Walker.

Mme Howard: A ma connaissance, ce manuel n’était pas
censé étre un document public ou plutét, il le deviendra mais,
si je ne me trompe, les résultats des évaluations ne sont pas
censés étre publiés. Vous pourrez poser la question aux
représentants des Affaires extérieures, qui vous diront probable-
ment qu’ils ne pourront pas s’exprimer tout a fait honnétement
si leurs avis doivent étre rendus publics. Evidemment, 'avantage
de la publication est que les organisations gouvememental&s, les
experts, les parlementaires, peuvent intervenir et demander des
corrections. Quoi qu’il en soit, il s’agit 1a de ce que pense
officiellement le gouvernerment de tel ou tel pays.

Ce systtme nous vient des Etats-Unis. Les évaluations
publiées par les Etats-Unis au début des années 1980 étaient
gcneralement jugées trés mauvaises. Suite aux pressions
exergées par les ONG et par les experts, elles se sont bcaucoup
améliorées, sauf en ce qui concerne quelques pays ou les
Etats-Unis ont des intéréts politiques importants.

M. Walker (Winnipeg-Nord-Centre): Cest précisément
ce dont je voulais parler, professeur Howard. Selon vous, le
modeéle américain est-il satisfaisant? Bien que ce que nous
envisagions au Canada me semble étre un projet trés
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first for us because it is quite a compendium, I thought the
mandated process of forcing External Affairs to present to a
committee such as this on an annual basis their perception of
human rights violations around the world will be a beginning
process. I was curious as to whether or not you are on the same
wavelength as that.

Dr. Howard: The U.S. system is good except for the major
problem that the United States does not recognize economic
rights as rights. From a conversation I had with Mr. Richard
Schifter, who is the Assistant Secretary for Human Rights and
Humanitarian Affairs in the U.S. Department of State, it appears
that they will not recognize economic rights.

We included food as a key right for that very reason, even
though it is difficult to assess. It is not impossible. One can look
at deliberate withholding of food from populations or sudden
and severe changes in production methods or removal of land as
examples of when the right to food is violated.

Even an annual assessment for each country may not be
necessary. For example, for some in the “positive” or
“satisfactory” range, you might go every two or three
years. It would have to be regular. Once the basic report is
written, unless there is a sudden and very severe change, it should
not be very difficult to continue revising that report and noting
changes, either positive or negative, on an annual or biannual
basis.

Mr. Walker: Does anybody else want to add to that? Is that
basically what you all think should be done? The other
componen